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10

CHAIR ARAKAWA: I'm going to call the Land Use Committee

11

meeting to order. (Gavel.) Good morning, everyone,

12

and welcome to our Land Use Committee meeting. This

13

morning we will be discussing two items: Item No.

14

LU-37, which is the request from Roy Figueiroa,

15

General Manager of Makena Resort Corporation for a

16

Change in Zoning; and the other item would be LU-5,

17

Conditional Permit for the new National Guard Armory

18

related improvements in Puunene.

19

This morning we have Councilmembers Dain Kane

20

present, Councilmember Robert Carroll, Councilmember

21

Riki Hokama, Councilmember Mike Molina,

22

Councilmember Wayne K. Nishiki, and Councilwoman

23

Charmaine Tavares. Jo Anne Johnson will be a little

24

bit late and Councilmember Pat Kawano is excused.

25

From the Water Department we have
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1

representatives Ellen Kraftsow and George Tengan.

2

We have Richard Minatoya representing our Corporate

3

[sic] Counsel, Bill Medeiros will be representing

4

the Administration GIS, and Danny Agsalog will be

5

making a presentation from my office. We also have

6

Yvette Bantilan and David Raatz, our staff.

7

This morning what we're going to be doing is

8

we're going to be doing some presentations relating

9

to water issues. In trying to determine what we

10

need to do within our communities and in trying to

11

make good decisions, two major questions have come

12

up that we need to sort of explain, and what we're

13

trying to do is explain what's happening with water

14

and with our highway system. So I've had Danny

15

Agsalog putting together as much information as we

16

can coming from a nonprofessional water standpoint,

17

just trying to get the information. He's been

18

researching it to make a presentation that we all

19

can understand or try to understand.

20

After which we will have water experts from

21

the State Water Commission and -- to be able to

22

question what we're presenting and to be able to try

23

and explain it a little bit better as well as from

24

the Water Department. So if there are any aspects

25

of what Danny presents that they feel need to be
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1

worked on, we want them to come in afterwards and be

2

able to clarify.

3

And this is for the benefit of the Council

4

and the public 'cause a lot of what's happening in

5

the presentations sometimes gets too technical and

6

goes right over our heads, sometimes it's too simple

7

and it doesn't get to the gist of what we need to

8

understand. So we're trying to make it

9

understandable so that everybody can understand what

10

we need to have before us in making the decisions.

11

So Danny. Where'd Danny disappear?

12

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman. Question, please.

13

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Yes, sir, Mr. Hokama.

14

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: While I can appreciate what you're

15

trying to do for everyone this morning, including

16

your Committee, I just want to be sure that it's

17

within what's been posted for this meeting?

18

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Yes.

19

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Mr. Minatoya, we with -- are we

20

within the parameters of what the Chairman's

21

intentions are?

22

MR. MINATOYA: Well, looking at the agenda, it does

23

discuss consideration of passage of the draft bill

24

for -- well, draft bills for both Makena and for the

25

National Guard Armory. And I guess it appears that
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1

you could make the argument that the presentation

2

will provide information to the Committee as part of

3

a deliberation to water decision under what's listed

4

in the agenda. So it appears that it would meet

5

what's listed.

6

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you very much.

7

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Council Members, I have one person

8

who has asked to testify now. Her name is Becky

9

Collin. Becky.

10
11

. . BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY . .
MS. COLLINS: Good morning, Council Members. My name is

12

Becky Collins. I am testifying as an individual

13

this morning in front of your Land Use Committee.

14

And I thank you very much for allowing me just a few

15

moments to express my opinions before you get

16

started. I know that you guys have very serious

17

decisions to make and you need to weigh them. And I

18

think it's encouraging that you're getting a lot of

19

input. And I'm very excited about the input that

20

you're getting and I hope that it will help you to

21

resolve the issues before you this morning.

22

I am a Kihei resident and I work in Kihei.

23

And I just have a few things to speak on regarding

24

Makena's proposal before you this morning. I live

25

in my house largely in part because of what the
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1

Makena and Wailea and the Central Joint Venture have

2

done for Kihei. Without them bringing water to the

3

Makena-Wailea area, I'm sure that my house would

4

never have been built. So I'm thankful to them for

5

that.

6

I would like to say that I also drive on the

7

Piilani Highway. And while there were a lot of

8

traffic problems for a while, I have noticed -- and

9

this is prior to the September 11th, of course --

10

that the traffic is moving much, much better. And I

11

am very encouraged by their commitment to get the

12

roadway widened, very -- very stand-up community

13

citizenship on their behalf of taking a leadership

14

role with government to get that moving forward.

15

I think that the last thing that I want to

16

reiterate as a person living here in Maui is their

17

commitment to the community. They have gone forward

18

with providing infrastructure prior to their

19

approvals on many occasions. They brought the

20

water. Of course, they had to before their initial

21

resort was built. They have improved the roadways

22

in the area of the resort. They have signed up to

23

pay for the planning and the design work of the

24

Piilani Highway. And they have even put in a

25

substantial amount of their own infrastructure,
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1

sewer treatment plants and roadways, et cetera,

2

without having any of their approvals solidly in

3

place.

4

I hope that you look favorably on this

5

application today. And I hope that you resolve the

6

items that you need to resolve as far as

7

infrastructure goes. And thank you for your time

8

and thank you for hearing me early this morning.

9

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Thank you, Becky.

10

Any questions for Becky?

11

Thank you very much.

12

. . END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY. .

13

CHAIR ARAKAWA: For the viewing audience, because this is

14

being shown on Akaku, prior to the meeting starting

15

the Chairman asked if anyone who wants to testify

16

because they couldn't sit through the presentation

17

would step forward prior to the presentations. The

18

rest of the testifiers will be testifying at the

19

time we introduce the items more specifically. So

20

they have asked -- opted to delay their testimony.

21
22
23

Danny. Okay. I'm going to take a very short
recess to drop the screen. Recess.

(Gavel.)

RECESS: 9:15 a.m.

24

RECONVENE: 9:18 a.m.

25

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Call the Land Use meeting back to order.
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1
2

(Gavel.)
MR. AGSALOG: Good morning, Mr. Chair, members of the

3

Committee, my name is Danny Agsalog and, like the

4

Chairman said earlier, I'm here to present a

5

layman's point of view and understanding of the

6

Central Maui System. I asked to present first

7

because I'd like the expert, water expert, to repute

8

anything I say that, you know, it's not -- again,

9

it's not on the rules. And I think with -- with my

10

presentation and their expert testimony today, we

11

will have a better understanding of what's going on,

12

especially in the Iao Aquifer that my boss, the

13

Chairman, asked me to do.

14

So on this presentation I have asked David to

15

help me press the button there, so I don't have any

16

remote control to do it. I have a pointer here.

17

But, anyway, thank you very much.

18

The purpose of this is to understand the

19

availability of water resource and the system on the

20

Central Maui System. And how can we best utilize

21

the available resources we have and how can we best

22

protect our -- these resources.

23

Next. Next plate, please.

24

The background, the fact shows that, you

25

know, in the past or we have shown that, you know,
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1

we almost have reached the -- or approaching the

2

limit of Iao Aquifer as to its sustainable yield.

3

This was apparent with the dropping of the water

4

level and raising of the chloride level --

5

chloride -- yeah, the chloride level was rising up.

6

Okay. Next one.

7

The NW -- CWRM web page, they have put in

8

there that they're concerned. Our present estimates

9

of the water availability throughout the State is

10

based on inadequate data. This raises a problem

11

when we approach the limits of our resources. And

12

this -- this is -- they explained this more on an

13

occasion that happened in Molokai and where they

14

have a 7 million gallons on one of the aquifer in

15

Molokai, 7 million gallons as designated and

16

allocated or reserved to various individuals, and

17

next test that they have done, the aquifer only

18

yielding 3 to 5 million gallons today. So they have

19

this concern.

20

Next plate.

21

The two major concerns that I have, and

22

issues, I should say, that we should look at and

23

they asked the community to be looking at it, when

24

we use -- when we do land use planning, to consider

25

the availability of water. Because this is a
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1

resource that is when it's gone, it's gone. Okay.

2

And the needs for water resource data. Okay.

3

Basically this is just to explain how our resources

4

is bring to us. It start with the rain. We have

5

rain, then you need the storage.

6

Okay. Okay. Oops. Can you go back, David?

7

Okay. We need the rain, and when we have the

8

rain, then we have -- we need a storage system. A

9

storage system could be a reservoir or the aquifer

10

system that we have. You know, those are our

11

storage -- natural storage system. If those storage

12

system are full, it leaks, it leaks through maybe a

13

stream or a river. Right there. Or through a

14

dikes, you know, in the ocean.

15

I learned this -- I am not a hydrologist, so

16

probably the hydrologist could explain it a lot

17

better later on, but through my reading and talking

18

to the Water Department. Ellen Kraftsow, as a

19

matter of fact, was very helpful for me to

20

understand the system. So this is -- this is where

21

we are concerned, you know, do we have enough

22

storage in Iao, you know, natural storage, because

23

we don't have that much reservoir there. So, you

24

know, we need the -- the aquifer, we need to protect

25

the aquifer down here. Okay.
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1

Next plate, David.

2

This shows a typical cut-out of our -- of a

3

storage system. You have a reservoir, which is

4

surface water, and you have the underground aquifer

5

and you could draw this through pumping -- through

6

wells and pumping, and you could probably use this

7

one for a free-flow system.

8

Okay. Next plate, please.

9

And when we have it out, you know, we store

10

it, too, in our domestic tanks already where we have

11

it for home use. So we have these in our various

12

communities. We see them all along.

13

Next plate, please.

14

Okay. What is the available water? Okay.

15

These are the available water we have. And I got

16

this from the maps that the Water Commission -- CWRM

17

website, by the way, is a very, very helpful website

18

to go to get a lot of information. So the island of

19

Kauai, we have 388 million gallons estimated yield

20

for their sustainable yield, and the island of Oahu

21

is 446 million gallons, island of Molokai you have

22

81, and 6 for Lanai. Maui is 476 million gallons

23

and for the island of Hawaii is 2,431 million

24

gallons.

25

These are how it's distributed in our County
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1

in island of Maui. It's not a county. On the

2

island of Maui. Because -- By the way, the

3

sustainable yield is by island, not by County. So

4

we showing 476 in our island and which most of this

5

developed -- developed source is in the central

6

area, primarily in Iao Aquifer.

7
8
9

I think I run out of battery. Anyway, next
plate, David.
Okay. Aquifer is assigned sustainable yields

10

are -- should not be an absolute, according to Dr.

11

John Mink that made a presentation at the Water

12

Board Committee of the Whole last Monday. He

13

mentioned that these numbers should be just used for

14

tools and management -- management -- for management

15

purposes. Okay. The sustainable yields per aquifer

16

is the maximum yield under the optimum condition.

17

Do we optimize our installation of our farms and our

18

land? I don't know. I am not an engineer to do

19

that. But, you know, for us to get the -- the

20

assigned yield, it has to be optimized. Maybe we

21

have to space -- spread out our pumps perfectly

22

within the aquifer. We might have to drill the --

23

drill the wells a certain height. I'm not sure of

24

that. Okay. Or maybe we have to resize our pump.

25

Our pumps might be so big that create vacuum and,
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1

you know, draw the saltwater instead of drawing it

2

from the side of the lens.

3
4

Okay. Do we have the aquifers
interconnected? CWRM said, yes, they are connected.

5

Go ahead, David.

6

In Oahu, the island of Oahu, they -- they

7

look at the central aquifer, the one in the dark in

8

the middle there. And talking to the CWRM last

9

week, this particular aquifer here supposed to have

10

a potential yield of over 100 million gallons a day.

11

They are -- they have assigned 23 million gallons

12

because some of the yield they assign it to this

13

adjacent aquifer because without assigning this --

14

some of the yield from the higher aquifer, this the

15

yield of the -- the adjacent aquifer won't be as

16

much as it is right now.

17

And, you know, a lot of the scientists

18

looking at, are they interconnected? You know,

19

they're not the same level and all that. According

20

to CWRM, the Central Aquifer has 272 feet above sea

21

level under well level and the Waiahole, which is

22

over here is only 21 feet and Waiahole II Aquifer on

23

the east side -- north side is 12 feet. How can

24

they be interconnected? According to Lenore

25

Nakom(?) said they believe it sits underground to
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1

feed those. Because this is supposed to be -- this

2

is a higher elevation, also. So it seeps

3

underground, and they truly believe that. So I

4

think there is interconnection of this -- this

5

aquifer.

6

Okay. What's our water needs? If we look at

7

the comparison, I compare it Honolulu, Oahu and

8

Maui. You know, Honolulu where they have a little

9

bit over a million population they use 170 million

10

gallons a day, and we use right around 34 million

11

gallons and which we have an estimated 476 million

12

gallons. So do we have a problem? Well, we -- you

13

guys decide on that one.

14

Next plate.

15

Okay. These are the calculations I made, I

16

looked at for projected water use. In 1985 I had

17

the privilege of reading some minutes from a 1985

18

Land Use -- Land Use Economic Development meeting

19

chaired by the late Velma Santos and in which our

20

Honorable Councilman Nishiki was a member at the

21

time. And this number was the number they used at

22

that time as a number of use per capita to -- in

23

1985. And 400 was -- 400 gallons per capita was

24

used by the County Planning Committee -- County

25

Planning Department as to allocate for future use of
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1

water. So I have that 400 over there. And the

2

middle one is I have taken it by taking the -- the

3

2000 population and the 2000 consumption, water

4

consumption, so I came out to 302 as the current use

5

of our County today. So I came out very close to

6

394 million gallons a day in 2000. So if we are

7

looking for a project -- if we are projecting till

8

2010 and we have 476 million gallons of water

9

estimated, do we really have a problem? Well, maybe

10

it's on the development process, you know, maybe how

11

do we develop this resources that we have and where

12

are we going to develop it. And I have some notes

13

over there and it shows where I get those numbers.

14

Next plate, please.

15

So I -- Looking at this plate, it's the Iao

16

Aquifer and where the pumps located and -- and the

17

distribution of it like the Mokuhau is right here

18

and it's the first bigger pumps that we have, and we

19

had the Wailuku shafts down right here. And

20

Kepaniwai right behind. And the -- I put this

21

because it's also apparent important in the

22

installation of the new -- the joint venture that

23

they have at that time in which it added I think it

24

was about 13 million gallons capacity.

25

Next plate, David.
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Okay. In understanding the Iao Aquifer, I

1
2

just took the -- the descriptions that they wrote in

3

our water protection plan under the CWRM and this is

4

the descriptions of what it is. Currently they

5

assign a yield of 20 million gallons. And we

6

shouldn't be able to pump more than that, but

7

studies says that, you know, it should be more than

8

that.

9
10
11

Okay. Next plate, David. Okay. Next.
Press it one more time.
These are the numbers -- the capabilities of

12

the pumps in a certain area. North Waihee, it's

13

which -- which we have right on the top there. This

14

pointer cooperate with me. North Waihee is right

15

there. I did it from the top. And that's -- that's

16

one of the -- our newest pump I think that's

17

installed there. And then the joint venture North

18

Waihee is down here. It's a big group of pumps.

19

It's 13 million gallons. The Waiehu Heights is only

20

3. -- 3.6 and it's right around this area. And the

21

Mokuhau, which is -- we have three pumps over there

22

and within 30 yards radius, I would say, very close

23

together. I have visited all this area in the

24

process of studying -- doing this presentation. And

25

we have the Kepaniwai pumps and the Wailuku shaft.
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1

Next plate, David.

2

I had the -- asked Ellen Kraftsow to show me

3

how a pumping capacity should be and do we have it.

4

And I think we have it. What we did here is the

5

first column of the -- after the name going to the

6

right, the first column is the installed capacity.

7

If you look at Mokuhau No. 2, Mokuhau No. 2 is blank

8

on the next column because it's now -- the pump has

9

been removed, it's no longer in operation. Okay.

10

So the -- the second -- the middle column of the

11

numbers, those are the actual pumping for those

12

particular pumps. And the max day is the

13

requirement that this pump should be able to pump

14

should we have an emergency. That's at a maximum

15

demand. And looking at that with our installed

16

capacity -- The battery is going down. Anyway, when

17

you look at your -- your capability of pumping your

18

max day, I took -- looking at the one, two, three

19

lines from the bottom, I have to minus the biggest

20

pump that we have, that's what I understand from the

21

Water Department. And also I have to minus No. 2

22

because Mokuhau No. 2 is no longer there, so I have

23

to minus that. So our total source capacity on a

24

maximum day is 3384 million -- 33 million 840, which

25

is, if you look at the total on the right column,
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1

right here, this one is lower, so this is higher,

2

therefore you could pump that out, you have enough

3

pumping power to pump up.

4

Next plate.

5

Okay. The joint venture, I put this because

6

of historical significance, just because we knew

7

that at that time, 1985, Mr. Nishiki has questions

8

because they thought the lens was thinning already,

9

but we were only pumping a very small amount then.

10

Okay. This joint venture, to give you a background,

11

they intended to install about 19 million gallons.

12

I don't know if that was 19 million gallons max day

13

or 19 million gallons installed capacity, but

14

actually they installed 13 million gallons. That's

15

in the Waihee. So if you derate that to for the 150

16

requirements for a max day, they should be just only

17

allowed 8.6 million gallons.

18

Next plate.

19

Okay. This was when I was reading the

20

minutes from the -- I think this was the September

21

17th, 1985 meeting and Mr. Manabu Tagomori made a

22

presentation and at that time 20 million gallons was

23

already designated for the Iao Aquifer. And the

24

current withdrawal at the time was 12 million -- 12

25

to 13 million gallons. And even that, you know, the
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small -- even with the low withdrawal then, now we

2

withdraw 17 million, the chloride level was rising.

3

That was under the Mokuhau pumping where you have

4

the three pumps together. So Mr. Tagomori was

5

really, really concerned, you know, but they still

6

maintain the 20 million gallons sustainable yield,

7

even though they were concerned. They just

8

maintained that we could do it.

9

So I put this plate over here and I got this

10

from one of the USGS publication. This is to show

11

it's not -- it's not really the way I would want to

12

show how Mokuhau drilling high level chloride then,

13

but, you know, this particular plate or picture is

14

showing that, you know, you're drawing the brackish

15

water. I -- with my reading, you know, I understand

16

that saltwater is heavier than -- than the

17

freshwater, but why should we draw from the bottom

18

instead from the side. I think maybe it's a matter

19

of engineering. You know, I'm not an engineer, so I

20

would like to draw water from the side instead of

21

sucking it from the bottom. So maybe the pump is a

22

little bit too big. Maybe we could put a smaller

23

pump so we draw -- we have a gentler way of drawing

24

water from side to side.

25

Next plate, please.
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A plate -- a pump that's drawing just the

2

freshwater, I don't know, this is just to show that,

3

yeah, you could lift up the bottom, but it shouldn't

4

be as much because, you know, on the side of -- of

5

the pumps are -- you know, there's properties of

6

soil, rocks, whatever. It's not a free flow water,

7

so, you know, you have to size the pump, I would

8

say, so that you could have a smooth, gentler way of

9

drawing and maximizing your pumping out of the water

10

instead of pulling it directly from the bottom

11

because that's -- that's how it creates the vacuum.

12

Next plate, please.

13

Okay. In his presentation, also, I -- it

14

bothered me and I wanted to share it with you

15

because Mr. Tagomori said that, you know, the basal

16

aquifer not subject to drought, but then the next

17

page he said that he was -- I think he was referring

18

to some flip charts or other -- some device that

19

they have at the presentation and he said that, you

20

know, it might be -- the dropping of the water must

21

be a result of rainfall because at that time the

22

rain wasn't coming. So, you know, I think he was

23

kind of very conflicting, also. And I wanted to

24

share that with you just for you to make a decision

25

of how was really this Iao Aquifer was working, you

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

LU 10/29/01

1
2

23

know, if we really have that. Okay.
And then he made reference to spreading,

3

spreading the wells. And, you know, I think

4

that's -- that's been said. It's been said by Dr.

5

Ming at the Committee of the Whole meeting when the

6

Board of Water Supply on Monday, also. He also

7

mentioned that the Mokuhau No. 2, their level was

8

rational and we know that 250 is the apex of our

9

limit. Okay.

10

Again, I make mention to you here that at the

11

time all three pumps were pumping and they are

12

within about 30 miles -- 30 yards radius. No. 2

13

being in the middle. Okay. So if you -- I was able

14

to get this in David Craddick's office, the Director

15

of Water Supply, and I think this kind of explain

16

how that would work. You know, if you have three

17

pumps pumping at the same time, you know, you would

18

create a big vacuum that may even cavitate or

19

collapse this water, whatever is in here, and then

20

you're going to suck up more brackish water instead,

21

you know. But if we have smaller pumps like the

22

Waihee one, it's not -- it's not as powerful as the

23

Mokuhau because these are spread a little bit

24

farther than each other, you know, so I think we

25

can -- we can relate to that.
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So now the Iao Aquifer sustainable yield,

2

well, with -- with the USGS study, with this lady

3

Patricia Shade, I haven't met her, I just read her

4

work, and she had four ways to estimate the

5

recharge. And this was done in 1997, so it's pretty

6

recently. And she could estimate the yield of the

7

Iao Aquifer at 51, you know, using an old data that

8

she has. And it takes 41 percent of the sum of

9

rainfall and irrigation. So now -- now we don't

10

have irrigation, the well might be slower than 51,

11

right. So the next one is 40 million gallons, an

12

average of recharge and, you know, again, plus the

13

irrigation. Well, we don't have irrigation as much,

14

maybe it's lower, right. So 36 million gallons an

15

average data -- data of 1986 to 1995, is 35 percent

16

of the rainfall plus the irrigation. We don't have

17

irrigation now, so it should be less. Okay. At 34

18

million gallons recharge under that natural

19

condition, which is 34 percent of the rainfall. Can

20

we accept that? Well, it's up to you to decide.

21

Okay. Next plate.

22

What is the available water in the Central

23

Maui? Okay. With the absence of the scientific

24

studies that refutes Patricia Shade's Iao water

25

budget in 1997 and the State stands on 20 million
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gallons Iao Aquifer and even with the

2

interconnection of the adjacent aquifer, I think I

3

believe that, you know, we have right around 30

4

million gallons for the whole Wailuku Aquifer.

5

Next plate, please.

6

The way I would show that is if this Wailuku

7

Aquifer, Waikapu, Iao, Waihee and Kahaloa, even at

8

if we say they are all the same aquifer, if they are

9

the same aquifer, we have a bigger sponge to retain

10

water. We have a bigger catchment to hold the

11

water. So it wouldn't be 20 million gallons, as a

12

lot of people say, because they say, okay, Iao

13

Aquifer and Waihee and Kahaloa and Waikapu is the

14

same, therefore they're all 20 million gallon. It's

15

not so. I think it's -- it's a little bit more than

16

that. So I derated it. I derate whatever it said,

17

Kahaloa has 8, Waihee has 8, and Waikapu has 2, so I

18

arrive at 13 million gallons, you know, very, very

19

conservative.

20

Next plate, please.

21

Okay. So recommendation is we should

22

optimize the available resources along with

23

spreading the wells. Pumps should be resized to

24

smaller pumps. Smaller pumps provide gentler

25

drawing of water and, you know, we don't thin it
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out, we don't draw chloride from the bottom. And

2

continue exploration of other water sources outside

3

of our Central Maui system.

4

That's -- Thank you very much. And I would

5

stand corrected from the expert if they have

6

anything to say about my presentation. Again, this

7

presentation is made for a very layman's term, my

8

understanding of the water system. Thank you very

9

much for your attention.

10

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Short recess. (Gavel.)

11

RECESS: 9:43 a.m.

12

RECONVENE: 9:46 a.m.

13

CHAIR ARAKAWA: I am going to call the Committee meeting

14

back to order. (Gavel.) At this time we're going

15

to have Steven Gingerich of the US Geological Survey

16

do a little bit of a presentation. So we're going

17

to be pulling the screen back down.

18

Before we do that, I do want to reemphasize

19

the fact that our office, when we did this research,

20

we're trying to bring it down and trying to

21

interpret all of the information that's there, so we

22

have done the research to do that. And we do want

23

and we expect the experts in water to be able to

24

comment on what we have presented and what we're

25

trying to find. But we found that in listening to
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everything, going to some of the Water Commission --

2

Water Board meetings, that there's a lot of

3

confusion in this area. And even the water experts

4

are not in total agreement with each other. So I

5

don't anticipate in any way, shape or form that

6

everybody will agree with our presentation. What

7

we're trying to do is create the ability to discuss

8

this and some of our extrapolations from what we

9

have been able to see. Okay.

10

So be very clear, we're not looking at

11

this -- the presentation that you saw as gospel of

12

fact. The main emphasis that needs to be made is

13

there is not enough data out there to get a real

14

firm grip on what is there. Be very clear about

15

that. And what we are trying to present is with the

16

data that's available trying to present a scenario.

17

So, Stephen Gingerich, will be presenting

18

from the US Geological Survey. And Stephen is a

19

hydrologist.

20

?: I guess we're not in recess then, huh?

21

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: You didn't call recess, Alan, you

22

know, Alan, so we're in session right now. You

23

didn't recess.

24
25

CHAIR ARAKAWA: As soon as you're ready, Stephen. We're
still in -- yeah, we're in session.
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(Inaudible).

1

?:

2

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Richard, can you close the door.

3

?:

4

MR. GINGERICH: Okay. My name is Steve Gingerich. I'm a

I got it.

I got it.

5

hydrologist with the US Geological Survey. We're

6

based out of Honolulu, but we were covering all the

7

islands. So I was asked to come and give a little

8

presentation about basically the groundwater in the

9

Iao Aquifer and talk a little bit about how -- as a

10

hydrologist, how we look at a groundwater system and

11

figure out how much water might be in the system,

12

and also how we collect certain data that helps us

13

basically see the health of the groundwater system.

14

So start off by talking just a simple

15

concept. We look at a groundwater system basically

16

as a box. The aquifer is the box, the rocks that

17

make up the system. And we want to figure out how

18

much input you get into the system, be it mostly in

19

this case from rainfall. And we look at the output,

20

how much you pump out, how much leaks naturally to

21

streams and to the ocean.

22

Okay. Components that make up input that we

23

can measure, rainfall obviously; fog drip, which is

24

basically parts of the forest to the mountains that

25

are continuously in clouds receive what could be a
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substantial amount of what we call fog drip. One

2

thing that is not really an input, but we need to

3

measure is the runoff, that's the amount that runs

4

off directly in the streams after rain and that does

5

not infiltrate into the aquifer. Another component

6

is called evapotranspiration. That's what the

7

plants use, either they extract from the ground or

8

the sun evaporates. A thing we need to know is

9

called soil moisture storage. That's the amount of

10

water that is stored in the soil before it makes its

11

way down into the aquifer. And also there's a

12

component of groundwater from adjacent systems. We

13

just saw about -- from northern -- north of Iao or

14

the Waihee area or from south of Iao there's

15

groundwater that may flow beneath the ground into

16

the system that we need to quantify.

17

So these in red are parts of the system for

18

Iao that I feel that we have very little or no

19

information about. We haven't measured fog drip,

20

haven't really measured evapotranspiration. We know

21

very little about what ground -- adjacent systems

22

are feeding into the system. So these are unknowns

23

that we have to keep in mind.

24

Then when you look at the aquifer, those

25

things that are important are the thickness and
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distribution of the rocks that make up the system

2

and how well they transmit water. And that ability

3

is called permeability, how well water will flow

4

through the rocks and how well it's stored in there,

5

the porosity or the amount of holes in the rocks

6

that can store water.

7

And we also want to know what we call

8

hydrologic boundaries, where streams are, where

9

volcanic dikes that might impede the flow of

10

groundwater, where you have sedimentary cap rock

11

and, of course, where the ocean is. All of these

12

factors we have to understand before we know

13

which -- how -- exactly how groundwater is going to

14

occur in the system.

15

And for Iao the thickness of the rocks and

16

the hydrologic boundaries, we have a fairly good

17

understanding of. We probably don't have a very

18

good understanding of the permeability and the

19

storage properties of the rocks. There haven't been

20

too many really good tests done on the rocks where

21

we do kind of standard tests.

22

Okay. The water in the system, we can figure

23

out how much is in there by measuring the depth of

24

the water, see how much water, freshwater there is

25

above sea level. And we can also measure the
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quantity or the quality of the water. The chloride

2

with water that is pumped out of all the wells is

3

measured continuously, and we also have a deep well

4

where we can measure the amount of chloride or

5

seawater intrusion beneath the aquifer or in the

6

deeper part of the aquifer in what we call a

7

transition zone well. And there's also a concern

8

for other contaminants. It hasn't been -- seemed to

9

be too much an issue in the Iao area, but you always

10

have to be concerned about the agricultural

11

contaminants.

12

Then, finally, we also need to know how much

13

water is coming out of the system either through

14

natural discharge to the ocean that always occurs,

15

same way with streams and springs. There's a

16

component of groundwater that might flow to adjacent

17

aquifer systems, and then, of course, there's

18

pumpage, both how much you pump out and from what

19

distribution. As we saw earlier, if you pump all

20

from one area, that's different than if you spread

21

your pumping out in an optimized pattern throughout

22

the whole aquifer.

23

And, again, for the system these values in

24

red are what we probably have little or no real good

25

data on for the Iao system. So this slide here
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shows the State's boundary of the Iao Aquifer in

2

blue, and then in red are the main pumping centers

3

for the Iao area. And to look at the health of the

4

system, the USGS in cooperation with the Water

5

Department collects this kind of data. You know,

6

there's rainfall data that's collected by the

7

National Weather Service. We have a program where

8

we measure water levels monthly or quarterly.

9

Chloride values are measured monthly, and then

10
11

pumpage is -- pumpage is monitored as well.
So I talk a little bit here about how we look

12

at that data. The topograph is a time series, the

13

date is not up yet, but it goes from 1983 until the

14

present. And what we're seeing on the top is the

15

rainfall over time. And this line down the middle

16

would be the average rainfall. And for the periods

17

where it's below average, as you can see, like this

18

is from '97 until the present, this is a rainfall

19

deficit. So we -- in the past three or four years

20

we have had a fairly significant rainfall deficit

21

over the long-term average. And that's as much as a

22

50-percent deficit, so that's a main concern,

23

obviously, for Iao and the lowered water levels and

24

rising chlorides are in part affected by this recent

25

rainfall deficit.
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Then in the second graph here we show the

1
2

monthly values of pumpage from the Iao Aquifer

3

system. The green line represents the State's 20

4

million gallon a day sustainable yield estimate

5

or -- and you can see over time, you know, where

6

that has been exceeded. And lately that's been --

7

we have been even under that value here.
And then from a series of wells we measure

8
9

the water level. So I have got five wells plotted

10

on here. This is test well A up here. Go ahead.

11

You can push it. A couple more to pop up here. So

12

these are color-coded. One more, I think.

13

Showing -- or can you see the colors from over here.

14

But showing how water levels have declined from

15

around 20 feet in 1983 to anywhere from 8 to 12 feet

16

at current level. And this is an indication that

17

you're pumping out more groundwater than is being

18

recharged into the system. Now, for most cases

19

that's -- whenever you start taking out groundwater,

20

you're going to lower water levels. That's a given.

21

It's just a matter of lowering them to a depth that

22

is detrimental to your system that we have to worry

23

about.

24
25

Okay. For the same time period plot the rain
again and the pumpage, and these are some chloride
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values from some of the same wells or wells in the

2

area showing how chlorides have risen over time.

3

Go back.

4

And some of the wells, the green here at

5

Waihee and the red, Shaft 33, not too bad right now.

6

They're climbing slightly in the last few years.

7

Have more of a trouble here at the purple and the

8

blue well, Waiehu and Mokuhau where occasionally

9

some of the values have been at the 250 milligram

10

per liter EPA-recommended chloride level. And,

11

again, that chloride level isn't a -- it's sort of a

12

recommended level. It's not necessarily detrimental

13

to drink water that's saltier than that, but most

14

people just don't want to do it.

15

And also we measure chlorides at depth in the

16

aquifer. We have this -- like I said, we have this

17

well that goes 1,200 feet below sea level. It's

18

open to the entire aquifer. And we periodically go

19

down and take samples of water and measure the

20

chloride value, which will tell us how much seawater

21

has intruded in the system. And so down here, this

22

is near the 100-percent seawater and this is your

23

transition zone area, the area between freshwater

24

and saltwater. This is the brackish water in here

25

and then up here we have the freshwater lens in the
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shallow part of the system. And this is the

2

chloride concentration across the top here. And for

3

reference, 250 milligrams per liter of chloride

4

value is, you know, way pressed up -- we're very

5

near zero down in here. So once you hit -- once you

6

start getting above 250, you're going to get a rapid

7

rise to 50-percent seawater and higher up here. And

8

obviously you're not going to be drinking this

9

stuff.

10

Next. So what I -- Oops, back. What I have

11

shown here in pink is kind of the upper part of the

12

transition zone. That's kind of what we're

13

interested in for Iao. I have it stretching from

14

the midpoint basically 50-percent seawater up to the

15

drinking water limit, which is close to 2 percent

16

seawater. And for reference, then, keep this pink

17

area in mind for the next graph here. And these are

18

some of the pumping centers. And I have plotted

19

basically that -- what I think the position of this

20

transition zone is in reference to the pumping

21

centers. And, again, here for reference here is the

22

deep monitor well that we measure and that's based

23

on the data that I just showed in the previous

24

slide.

25

And then if you look at the chloride values
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from some of these other pumping wells, you can see

2

where the transition zone has gotten close to or in

3

some cases probably is near the bottom of the well.

4

Now, these wells don't pump just from the bottom, so

5

they don't just suck up, you know, the bottom water.

6

They -- this is the pump from the whole open

7

interval, but -- so you get a mixture of water

8

that's partly salty and partly fresh, but the

9

combination is what you're concerned with.

10

So basically this kind of shows here, you

11

know, how much resource you're dealing with here.

12

You know, in some cases, you know, 200 to 250 feet

13

of freshwater and beneath that you're getting the

14

salty and saltwater.

15

Okay. Next. And another thing that we look

16

at is the rise of this transition zone over time.

17

Now, in 1985 when we started measuring this well,

18

the green line here shows where that -- where the

19

saltwater was. And one of the most recent

20

measurements here in 2001 in red here and you can

21

see the rise of about 100 feet or so of the

22

transition zone in that time. So that's important,

23

obviously important to see how that's moving with

24

time. But the one problem with this is it's not a

25

predictive tool, it's a reactive tool. Once it's
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moved up, then you measure it. You know, you

2

can't -- you can't look at this and say, well, that

3

means in 15 years it's going to be another 100 feet

4

higher. That's not something we can do with this

5

type of monitoring system.

6

Okay. Next. And for that same deep well,

7

this is a plot showing we collect values at the same

8

depth, you know, every quarter. So, for instance,

9

here at 750 feet deep down in the well back in 1985

10

the chloride concentration was near zero, 10, 20

11

parts -- milligrams per liter and over time as the

12

transition zone has risen, you can see how it has

13

climbed up to nearly seawater at this point. And so

14

we use all these different depths to see how the

15

freshwater lens is getting thinner and seawater is

16

rising in the system.

17

Okay. Next. And one thing I look at then is

18

the rise of the transition zone with time. And

19

here, again, the -- kind of the 50-percent seawater

20

portion, you can see from the early -- mid '80s we

21

had a very steep rise, and then it kind of settled

22

off for a while, it didn't rise too quickly, but

23

since the beginning '90s I would say it's had a

24

fairly steady rise over time. And also what we, of

25

course, were concerned with the 2 percent seawater
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because we're not -- we're not going to be drinking

2

this 50-percent seawater down here. You want to --

3

you would be drinking stuff that's a limit about

4

here. We can see a rise in time as well here. Not

5

quite as abrupt here, but still you see this

6

increasing with time. And I have blown up the

7

50-percent seawater position here over time, and

8

what I wanted to look at was the rate that has

9

risen.

10

Okay. So next. So what I have done here is

11

this is kind of for the scale on the right, this is

12

a rate of rise in feet per year. And when you have

13

got the highest rate of rise, say here, is about 15

14

feet a year in the early and mid '80s, that's when

15

corresponds to this very steep part of the curve.

16

And we've kind of flattened out, we have a fairly

17

low rate of rise through here or not at all. And

18

then as pumping is increased again, you get -- kind

19

of get these spikes up and down. What I -- the

20

reason I did this was to demonstrate the importance

21

of keeping this long-term monitoring going and you

22

don't want to really look from year to year or from

23

quarter to quarter. If you show the next plot, I

24

have even broken this down further and plotted this

25

rate of rise by looking back one quarter. So we
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measure in September and then we go back again in

2

three months and measure again. If you look at the

3

rate of rise between those two positions, you might

4

get some wildly variable rate because of recent

5

pumpage or recent rainfall, something like that. So

6

it's important not to measure it and say, oh, it's

7

only rising, you know, a foot per year since the

8

last three months. You really want to look long

9

term and look at this kind of -- this purple

10

long-term trend to see if the rate of rise has

11

averaged about, you know, 5 to 8 feet per year since

12

the mid '90s and it hasn't really shown any signs of

13

slowing down, you know, even though pumping has been

14

decreased since '96 and '97 you were pumping a lot

15

heavier at about 20 -- more than 20 million gallons

16

a day. It has been reduced to about 17 or 18 now,

17

but the rate of rise really hasn't changed that

18

much.

19
20
21
22

So that's all the information I wanted to
show now, so I would be glad to take any questions.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Council Members, do you have any questions
at this time?

23

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yes.

24

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. I want to take a short recess

25

first, Wayne, so that we can put on the lights and
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bring up the screen. Short recess.

(Gavel.)

2

RECESS: 10:05 a.m.

3

RECONVENE: 10:12 a.m.

4

CHAIR ARAKAWA: I'm going to call the Land Use Committee

5

back to order. (Gavel.) At this time I would like

6

to welcome Councilmember Jo Anne Johnson. She got

7

here about an hour or so ago, but because of the

8

presentations I didn't recognize her. So good

9

morning, Jo Anne.

10

We've had two presentations at this point and

11

what we're going to do after we -- I think we're

12

going to take testimony right now. Then after we

13

have testimony, we're going to have the Water

14

Department as well as other people come down here so

15

you can ask questions of them. Okay. And I think

16

it's very important that we try in our minds as

17

Council members to understand what the water issue

18

to the point that we can look at the projects that

19

we need to be making decisions on. So we have to be

20

comfortable with the information we have. And

21

again, I think you're going to find very

22

definitively that the experts are not all in

23

concurrence as to what it is.

24
25

Okay. Steve, I was going to ask a question,
but I think what we'll do is we'll just wait for the
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questions at one time after we have testimony.
We have quite a few people that want to do
testimony.

4

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Mr. Chair.

5

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Yes.

6

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Prior to getting into testimony, are

7

you planning or does the Water Department have a

8

presentation for us as well, or have you asked them

9

to give us a presentation?

10

CHAIR ARAKAWA: The Water Department has been giving us

11

presentations throughout the land use process, so

12

they have come up and they have made many

13

presentations. What I'm going to have them do is be

14

available to answer questions and have you be able

15

to ask them the questions. So I have not asked them

16

to do any formal presentation because we have had

17

many formal presentations.

18

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you.

19

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Thank you.

20

We have quite a few people that have signed

21

up to testify at this point, so what I'm going to do

22

is I'm going to be calling names and I will call two

23

names. The first name is the person that's going to

24

be testifying. The second person will be the next

25

person to testify. So if you can get closer to the
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mike area when your name is called so that we can

2

just keep the testimony going.

3

What I'm going to allow you is three minutes

4

because there are quite a few people that want to

5

testify. And at the three minutes, what I'm going

6

to do is we're going to tell you it's three minutes

7

and each of you make a decision at that point, if

8

you want to continue on, continue on, I will give

9

you approximately another minute to conclude. Okay.

10

If you feel that you're going to need more than an

11

extra minute, I'm going to ask that you wait, let me

12

know, and we'll put you at the end of the testimony

13

to come back and we will give you another three

14

minutes or so to conclude your testimony at the end

15

of the -- everybody having a chance to testify. In

16

this way we'll allow people to be able to testify

17

without having to wait a whole long time in

18

fairness.

19

Okay. Any questions? If not, the -- And I'm

20

going to ask each of you when you come up to please

21

state your name. Now, the reason is going to be

22

very obvious when I start butchering your names.

23

For the record we want it done -- you pronounce your

24

name correctly, so if I mispronounce it, we have it

25

on record, and we do tape these presentations. So

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

43

LU 10/29/01

1

we want to make sure that the right person is

2

recognized for their testimony and that we don't

3

have any mix-ups because the Chairman mispronounces

4

your name. And I apologize in advance. I will

5

probably do that, although I will try not to. Part

6

of the problem is trying to decipher handwriting. A

7

lot of times I cannot read the letters correctly and

8

so I mispronounce the name because I'm reading it

9

wrong.

10

Okay. Any questions to this point? If not,

11

the first testifier will be Linnel Nishioka,

12

followed by Sean Lester.

13
14

. BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY . . .
MS. NISHIOKA: Good morning, Chair and members of the

15

Committee. My name is Linnel Nishioka. I'm the

16

Deputy Director for the Commission on Water Resource

17

Management. And in deference to your time limit, I

18

will not read my testimony. You have it. What I

19

would like to do is just maybe offer a few comments

20

to the two presentations that were made.

21

First, for you to know, the Commission has

22

consistently maintained that the sustainable yield

23

for Iao Aquifer is 20 MGD. We are currently

24

relooking at that issue. That will be coming before

25

the Commission on Maui on our November 14th meeting,
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we'll be here.

2

The second thing is that if you look at my

3

testimony on page 2, I have given you the current

4

pumping data for Iao and also for Waihee Aquifer,

5

which is the adjacent aquifer. Currently the

6

pumpage for Iao is about 17.5 MGD, which is

7

currently about 85 percent of sustainable yield; and

8

also the pumpage for Waihee is about 4 MGD, which is

9

about 50 percent of what we think sustainable yield

10

is, which is 8 MGD.

11

I think one of the points that's been made --

12

two points that are really important. The first one

13

was made by your staff, which is the importance of

14

optimizing the wells. On top of the amount that you

15

pump, the most critical factor for being able to get

16

sustainable yield is the placement of the wells.

17

And just to illustrate it, if you took eight straws

18

and you put it in a glass and you sucked from those

19

eight straws, the amount of water you would draw

20

down would be tremendous versus one straw in that

21

glass. And what's happening at Iao in certain

22

places is the wells are too close together. One

23

solution would be what your staff has mentioned

24

which is a smaller pump, but that would reduce the

25

amount of water that you could get. Our suggestion
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1

would be that the wells be shorter in-depth, that

2

you lower the depth of the wells by backfilling

3

them. That's -- in that way, as you saw with the

4

USGS presentation, you would be above where what

5

they call the transition zone is where is the mix

6

between salt and freshwater. So you would be in the

7

freshwater lens. So that's one of the things that

8

we have consistently recommended for the last 10, 15

9

plus years, is that the pumpage be spread, the wells

10

be relocated. And I think that's something the

11

Department of Water Supply has been doing and has

12

found.

13

When I first came two and a half years ago to

14

the Commission, the pumpage was almost at 20 MGD and

15

that was problematic. What we're finding is that

16

anything above the 20 MGD sustained over a period of

17

a year is resulting in well failure. That's how you

18

lost Mokuhau II, the pumpage was in excess of the 20

19

MGD.

20

The second thing I think which is important

21

that was raised in both presentations is the need

22

for additional data. I think what the USGS was

23

telling you and also your staff is that we do need

24

data. Just for the Council's information, our

25

current priority -- our first priority right now for
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an additional deep monitor well is in South Iao.

2

That's our number one priority. We currently have

3

our Waiehu deep monitoring well, which is in Central

4

Iao, and we would like to put another well in South

5

Iao.

6

We are also trying to work with USGS to again

7

come up with some of the inputs that we need to

8

figure out the water budget. Currently we're trying

9

to figure out the budget with limited information.

10

And what that does is that's like you trying to

11

figure out your County budget, but you don't how

12

much you spend for roads, you don't know how much

13

you spend for housing, you don't know how much you

14

spend for social programs, but yet you think there's

15

a total budget, and that's a problem for us. So

16

those are the really information gaps that we're

17

currently trying to work on.

18
19

So with that, I'm happy to answer any
questions at a later point. Thank you, Chair.

20

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Thank you. Questions for Linnel?

21

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: You will have her back?

22

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Will you be available after this?

23

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Because I have a myriad of

24
25

questions.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you.

2

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, can I ask a question so

3

she may prepare if she doesn't have that

4

information?

5

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Hokama, please do.

6

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you. Thank you.

7
8
9
10

Ms. Nishioka, thank you very much for being
with us this morning.
MS. NISHIOKA: Thank you for inviting me.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Do -- would you be able to make any

11

relevant comparisons between Oahu and Maui, since,

12

you know, the -- we're looking at approximately 475

13

million gallons a day for both islands. Both

14

islands have different capacities of development on

15

what is being drawn out of the system, but do you --

16

would you be able to share with us some information

17

whether -- like what we were shown from the USGS as

18

well as Mr. Arakawa's office, Oahu's chloride levels

19

and what rates it has changed over the last 10 years

20

or so that we could make some kind of comparison

21

if -- if necessary.

22

MS. NISHIOKA: Yeah. I think what's a little bit

23

different with Oahu is you have a much bigger

24

municipal use component. On Oahu the 170 MGD is all

25

municipal use. Here on Maui you have a very
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different system because, as your staff pointed out,

2

there's 34 million gallons a day, which is about 10

3

percent or less of sustainable yield for the island,

4

but you have a quite big component of irrigation use

5

because of the -- you are one of the few islands

6

that still have an existing agricultural industry,

7

so the rechargeability with having that much

8

irrigation changes the picture a little bit for you

9

guys versus Oahu. In Oahu it's sort of a localized

10

phenomenon in terms of chloride rise. It tends to

11

really be more of an infrastructure problem with the

12

spacing of the wells versus the increased water use.

13

So that's -- that's what we're seeing if we compare

14

the two.

15

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you very much.

16

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Thank you very much and we'll talk

17

to you a little bit later and ask questions.

18

Sean Lester followed by Stephen West.

19

MR. LESTER: Aloha, Mr. Chairman. My name is Sean Lester.

20

Members of the Council, it's been a while, good to

21

see you again. This brings up a rather interesting

22

question on what's before you and I just want to

23

throw out a few things and maybe give you a couple

24

things to think about.

25

First of all, this doesn't have to do with
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jobs or construction. The question goes deeper.

2

And I believe that this Council -- I'm real happy to

3

see you folks, you're doing a great job, from what I

4

can see from my own personal way of seeing it.

5

These are just a couple of questions. As the

6

recharge rates decrease or at question, the main

7

question which arises is is this the way we, the

8

people of Maui, want to spend this limited resource.

9

This is a permanent allocation of a limited resource

10

on a -- it's right now and it's going to be going on

11

from generation after generation. This is not just

12

a -- something that's going to be happening with

13

this Council, it's going to be happening for the

14

next 30, 40, 50 Councils. This is a permanent

15

allocation of a limited resource.

16

Makena Corporation is a corporation that will

17

come and go, as corporations do. I mean, they seem

18

to be big today, in 30 years we really don't know.

19

The allocation is still permanent. If a theoretical

20

average yield is used to justify such large needs,

21

what will happen if it doesn't happen, if the amount

22

of water can't be delivered? And this is a real big

23

question. What -- who goes without water? Is it

24

the regular people? Is it Makena Corp? What about

25

lawsuits or whatever that you're opening the County
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or whoever is really, you know, being held

2

accountable for this?

3

What impact would it have on any future

4

growth if such a large development is built and

5

cannot be serviced? It's a very important question.

6

What happens if five or ten years from now suddenly

7

we find we don't have the water? Who doesn't get

8

the water? Is it Makena, or is it the rest of it?

9

When I turn on my tap, does that mean I get

10

saltwater or I don't get any water at all? I'm

11

concerned about that. I think the people of Maui

12

County are also concerned about that.

13

If there isn't a way with the aquifer to have

14

this need due to very large demand, will it

15

effectively stop even small or new growth due to the

16

fear of nonservice? That's another question that

17

comes up. If smaller development -- is smaller

18

development a better way to take on such available

19

resources? I believe the day of large development

20

on Maui is finished. Our resources are just too

21

finite to service such large development as we have

22

seen in the past.

23

If we could have had the foresight 30 years

24

ago to plan growth based on the knowledge we have

25

now, I believe we would have a different looking
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island. I really do. The areas we have built on

2

would be built with conservation of finite resources

3

as a criteria for approval of development. You have

4

that information and ability to do this today. The

5

main thing is, please, if there is a question, err

6

on the side of being conservative with this usage

7

before we're -- we end up with another crisis. We

8

have enough things on our plate right now without

9

adding this to the crises that we're dealing with.
You are smart people. We have put you in

10
11

power to do the job. You're doing a very good job.

12

I'm happy about the things I'm seeing. And also I'm

13

really happy to see that perhaps the day of the

14

large corporations coming in and asking for

15

something and we say they must know what they're

16

doing, they're doing the best for Maui, perhaps at

17

one time that may have been true, today we all have

18

to stand up and take our own responsibilities.

19
20
21

So thank you very much for being here and
thank you very much for listening to me.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Thank you very much.

22
23
24
25

Any questions for Sean? If not, thank you,
Sean.
Stephen West will be followed by Ron Sturtz.
MR. WEST: Aloha, Council Members. My name is Stephen
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West. I have just had -- over the past few months

2

you have been inundated with a vast amount of

3

testimony and presentation why we should or should

4

not move forward in the rezoning of LUC-37. It is

5

my personal belief that the company is a vital

6

partner in the community and has staying power.

7

This company is -- has made improvements to Maui's

8

baseball stadium at War Memorial Complex. We are

9

involved in programs at Maui Community College,

10

offer tuition programs for employees that want to

11

better themselves. Maui Prince Hotel extends its

12

hospitality in our Food and Beverage Department for

13

the citizen's patrol which patrols Maui's beaches

14

and parks. The company has brought resources for

15

South Maui, a wastewater treatment for Makena's

16

residents, and I stress Makena's residents, and a

17

park that is maintained by the hotel. This passage

18

will contribute a great amount of jobs to Maui's

19

workers. Thank you very much for your time.

20
21

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Thank you. Any questions for
Stephen?

22

Thank you, Stephen.

23

Ron, followed by Matt Maynard.

24
25

MR. STURTZ: Aloha, Council Members, Mr. Chairman. My
name is Ron Sturtz. I'm vice president of Maui
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Tomorrow. And Maui Tomorrow is involved in land use

2

planning, community design and responsible growth,

3

and we're looking at this particular project, along

4

with many others. And I want to thank the Makena

5

Resort Company -- Corporation for bringing the

6

project forward at this time because it's brought to

7

our attention -- because of its size, it's brought

8

to our attention the very significant issues that

9

we're discussing today and it gives us a chance to

10

look at the bigger picture.

11

I was a bit distressed to hear Dr. Stephen

12

Gingerich point out that over a 20-year period of

13

their studies our pumpage on average has been going

14

up, our water level has been going down. Chloride

15

levels have been going up, the transition zone has

16

been going up, and the sea level -- seawater level

17

has been rising over 20 years.

18

Who wasn't present today is Bill Meyer, who

19

is the ex-head of the USGS, who was at the Water

20

Board meeting last week. He was in a unique

21

position to give testimony because he's no longer

22

responsible for being appropriate, doesn't have to

23

play the politics any more. His estimate was that

24

the Iao Aquifer has a sustainable yield of maybe 13

25

to 14 million gallons per day. And we're pumping at
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17.9 right now, so we need to look at these numbers.
I think that Linnel Nishioka made some very

3

telling comments. She pointed out, by the way, that

4

the State Board is coming back in November to look

5

at the lao Aquifer. It has been asked for

6

designation. You can be sure they're not -- they're

7

not looking at it to raise the level of pumping.

8

They're here to talk about reducing it even further.

9

And I would like to remind us of the fairy

10

tale about the king who rode through the -- the

11

countryside with no clothes. And all of the -- all

12

of his followers were looking down at the ground in

13

reverence and bowing until a little child came along

14

and looked up and saw the king was naked. And when

15

he looked up, suddenly the whole community became

16

aware there's something they weren't seeing.

17

It was asked why is it different between Oahu

18

and Maui, they have about the same amount of water,

19

they have ten times the population, and they're

20

drawing about five times as much usable water. How

21

can that be? Why are we struggling with this small

22

amount of water we have? And she said, well, it has

23

to do with the municipal private mix. There's much

24

more of a larger municipal component there. I would

25

like to suggest to you that we're looking with this
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narrow little field at the Iao Aquifer as if it's

2

all we have. And I'm suggesting that it's maybe

3

1/10th of what's currently being drawn by other

4

interests on the island, the large corporations,

5

A&B, EMI, Maui Land and Pineapple, C. Brewer,

6

Agribusiness, all of them are using somewhere in the

7

range of 400 million plus gallons a day of water.

8

And so the question that we have look upon as a

9

County is: Should we be taking a look at perhaps

10

reallocating slightly some of that water that's

11

currently being taken rather than trying to find new

12

sources or drill more wells or dig more deeply.

13

Let's take some water that's currently being taken

14

and let's reallocate it. If you think about the

15

amount of water going for agriculture, if you took

16

10 percent of it or 5 percent of it and allocate it

17

to municipal use through proper arrangements,

18

through proper compensation, et cetera, you would

19

double the amount of water available to our

20

municipal water supply.

21

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Ron, can you tie up?

22

MR. STURTZ: Yeah, I'll finish.

23

So I'm just suggesting that perhaps we look

24

up and look at the king and say, we have a real

25

issue going on here and it's time to do things a
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little bit differently because we can't afford to

2

keep doing it the way we've been doing it -- up to

3

this point in time. So I'm going to suggest that

4

the charge by the Mayor to the Water Board to go out

5

and explore doing contracts, doing deals with those

6

who presently have access to all the rest of our

7

water be pursued diligently and that this County

8

look at doing that. And the County as a whole look

9

at getting involved perhaps with the water leases in

10

East Maui, et cetera, to get some portion of that

11

for public use. And if that happens, we'll have the

12

water for the Makena Resort Corp and the other

13

developers. We'll still have the other traffic

14

issues and other things to look at, proper use of

15

land use, but at least we'll have the water issue

16

resolved.

17
18
19
20
21

Thank you very much.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Any questions for Ron? If not,
thank you very much.
Matt Maynard, followed by Fely Mortel.
MR. MAYNARD: Good morning, Council, and thank you for

22

having me. My name is Mat Maynard, and I have been

23

an employee of the Maui Prince Hotel for 15 years.

24

I'm married and have -- married a local girl and

25

have a daughter. And I have been in Kihei for over
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20 some odd years.
And I would like to just kind of reiterate

3

what the first lady who gave testimony, Becky, I'm

4

sorry, I didn't catch her last name, but one of the

5

things that she said and stated was if it wasn't for

6

Seibu Corporation bringing the water to Kihei, most

7

of us who live there today probably wouldn't be

8

living there at all because there was no water

9

system to Kihei other than about a 1-inch line. So

10

we all should be somewhat thankful for the things

11

that Wailea and Seibu have brought to us.

12

The company puts in and has put in millions

13

of dollars annually into the County through the

14

donations of the wastewater treatment plant, the

15

water systems, the golf courses, all the -- the

16

people who have jobs. They pay our salaries twice a

17

month and our benefits, and that all goes directly

18

back into the County coffers. So they have been a

19

very good community participant.

20

Another mention was that maybe they're going

21

to be gone. Well, Seibu has weathered the storm, in

22

essence. We had a very hard number of years. Since

23

the September 11th tragedy, we have had some cutback

24

in hours, and that's not due to the company's

25

doings, it's the airports reservations and such that
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have kept people from being here. But they have

2

laid nobody off. Everybody still has their jobs.

3

This was one of the questions we were asked earlier,

4

are we worried about our jobs in the future? Well,

5

yeah, we're all worried about our jobs in the

6

future, but it's shown that this company stays with

7

the community and is not willing to just pack up and

8

leave when things get tough.

9

And that they donate to charities every year.

10

We have the United Way and many others that they

11

donate to. They give free brunch and dinners and

12

things that, you know, people ask for donations all

13

the time. So I would just urge you to vote

14

positively for the rezoning. Thank you.

15

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Thank you, Matt.

16

Any questions? Thank you very much.

17

Fely, followed by Lehua Clubb.

18

MS. MORTEL: My name is Fely Mortel, and I also work for

19

the Maui Prince.

20

CHAIR ARAKAWA: State your name, please.

21

?: She did.

22

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Oh.

23

MS. MORTEL: I did. You didn't hear me. Okay. For those

24
25

that didn't hear me, my name is Fely Mortel.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay.
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MS. MORTEL: And I also work for the Prince. But I am

2

here to say that we have a company that is helping

3

the people, helping our community. And we're

4

looking -- if we're looking at water resource, I

5

think all of you have heard all the other

6

presentation about the water resources and I am

7

pretty sure we will all come together with this

8

issue on water. Because, I mean, if you're

9

comparing Oahu and Maui, I know that everybody knows

10

that water here -- I mean, we got to -- we're going

11

to get this issue done. Compared to Oahu, the

12

population is so much, it's tremendous, and they

13

don't have too much of an issue.

14

But, you know, what I want to say is that the

15

company here that wants to do this development will

16

help our community for everyone and everybody

17

will -- will benefit by all this. I know everybody

18

think, you know, no, it's not going to happen and,

19

oh, down the road it's not going to happen, but I

20

know and I believe in my heart that you will all

21

make the right decisions because you will be hearing

22

a lot of testimonies here about this whole issue.

23

But, like I said, we have a good community

24

here and the Chairman here, members will vote for

25

this rezoning. And I have confidence that
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everything that is said here will be put --

2

everybody will put into their mind, they will -- I'm

3

getting all nervous here. Okay. I'm sorry.

4

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Relax.

5

MS MORTEL: But, anyway, you know, the community will

6

benefit by this. And, you know, the company has

7

done a lot. They have helped a lot of people. And

8

I was born here, I was raised here, and I am -- I am

9

proud to be a Maui resident, let me put you -- put

10

it that way, very proud. And I am proud to be

11

working where I am. And I am proud of everybody

12

who's associated with this project.

13
14
15
16
17
18

And I really want to thank you for listening
to me. I'm sorry, but I'm very nervous. Thank you.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Thank you for coming, Fely.
Any questions for her? If not, thank you
very much.
Lehua Clubb, followed by Edward Chang.

19

MS. CLUBB: Aloha, Council Members, Mr. Chair.

20

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Good morning.

21

MS. CLUBB: My name is Lehua Clubb. I work for the Maui

22

Prince Hotel, who are asking you for rezoning. And

23

I am very happy, Chairman, that you showed us about

24

the -- the displays about water, et cetera. I

25

almost have to like change my -- my testimony. But
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Maui Prince right now has not had one -- Maui Prince

2

right now has not had one layoff. If you look at

3

all the other hotels, they're hurting and people are

4

lined up, you know, unemployment, 400, 600, 200

5

people a day. We're still working. They still have

6

us working. Somebody mentioned that, oh, you know,

7

corporate comes and goes. Well, I have to say that

8

our company is here to stay and they have been here

9

I believe 26 years.

10

So if anything, I know you all come to our

11

brunches, so -- and you know the kind of food that

12

we serve, it's first class. And you even get half

13

price, Wayne. So, please, take it into

14

consideration. We're just asking for rezoning and

15

it's a 30-year stretch. We're not going to tell you

16

we're going to build the hotel next year, you know.

17

And the water, like Fely said, will be resolved. I

18

mean, you know, all of us have to have water.

19

Without water, we're no body. So I want to thank

20

the Chair for showing us the displays or, you know,

21

trying to explain to me.

22

And that lady there, Laurie, Laurie, what is

23

her name, Linnel, she did, you know, of all that

24

presentation, she did the best and easy for my

25

Hawaiian mind.
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But I just want you guys to consider that

1
2

Makena Resort is a good corporation. They treat us

3

well. And if you guys want to keep coming to the

4

brunches, you better vote yes.

5

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Thank you, Lehua.

6

MS. CLUBB: Don't ask me questions because I don't have

7

the answers. I just want you guys vote yes. Thank

8

you.

9
10

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Our only question is how is Wayne getting
half price? Don't answer that.

11

MS. CLUBB: Okay.

12

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Thanks.

13
14

Edward Chang, followed by Jennifer Larson.
MR. CHANG: Good morning, Council Members, my name is Ed

15

Chang. I'm a resident of Makena. I'm also a member

16

of Makena Association. And I stand before you as

17

one of the few local residents from Makena. When I

18

say I represent Makena in favor of the new rezoning

19

requirements that you guys are asking Makena Resort

20

to fulfill, I support their venture.

21

In my very young years in Makena, that place

22

used -- we used to be treated like second-class

23

citizens. The place was a dumping ground for

24

rubbish. Over the past years and through the

25

transitions many improvements have been made because
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of where Makena is. Our beaches are getting

2

cleaner. It also used to be used as a dump ground.

3

The County is now starting to pay more emphasis

4

there. The State is starting to pay more emphasis

5

there. These kinds of discussions also bring out

6

more emphasis.

7

In addition, I believe that Makena Resort,

8

who belongs to the Prince chain, you look at almost

9

every major island, the Prince Hotel is there.

10

Makena Resort is probably a little different than

11

the others in that they have more vast acreage,

12

therefore required to go through this process that's

13

different from all the other islands. I believe

14

that they're going to be here a long time. They've

15

already been here 20 plus years.

16

In addition to that, they're coming forward

17

to you with a plan that you can plan on as opposed

18

to many small increments of plan where you can't --

19

you don't know until the plan comes through how much

20

water is going to use. You can look at their plan

21

and say 15 years from now this plan may be

22

completed, or maybe it's 25, but they are not going

23

to use the required water of 2 million gallons or

24

whatever that amount is immediately. It's not going

25

to happen till several years from now. I'm sure Roy
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Figueroa can speak more of that. And I wonder if

2

the question has even been asked, but the water

3

allocation for them will not be used tomorrow and

4

perhaps not even next year.
So I stand here in support as resident of

5
6

Makena the Makena Resort proposal. Thank you very

7

much.

8
9
10

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Thank you.
Any questions? Thank you very much.
Jennifer Larson, followed by Aylett Wallwork.

11

MS. LARSON: Aloha and good morning, Council Members.

12

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Good morning.

13

MS. LARSON: I'm probably more nervous than Fely was, my

14

team member, but I come here as an employee, but I

15

come here mostly as an individual. My heart is into

16

this project. Makena Resort --

17

CHAIR ARAKAWA: State your name, Jennifer.

18

MS. LARSON: Pardon?

19

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Pronounce your name so we get it right.

20

MS. LARSON: Oh, I'm sorry. Jennifer Larson.

21

Makena Resort is my employer and Kihei is my

22

home for the last six years. Makena Resort has

23

displayed a tremendous ohana feeling to its

24

employees and to this community. Our property hosts

25

a Community Workday every year, we go out and we
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clean Makena Beach, the roadways through Makena.

2

Roy has put a lot of time and thought as well as

3

Seibu Corporation before doing any advance changes

4

or community changes. There's a lot of thought.

5

It's brought before you. When they do bring their

6

plans, they do not bring it in to do it tomorrow,

7

they bring in their plans for the future not just

8

for us as employees now, but for our future

9

generations and our children that want to be raised

10

and stay on this island.

11

A member had said -- one lady had said

12

earlier, I believe, or a gentleman had said earlier

13

that corporations come and go. I believe Seibu will

14

not come and go. Seibu will be a long factor on

15

this island. It has withstood many changes, the

16

economic slow points at the early '80s. It's

17

withstood Desert Storm and it will withstand the

18

September 11th tragedy.

19

I just ask that the Council member look at

20

what Seibu has offered this community, what it will

21

continue to offer, and approve the rezoning. And

22

I'm sure that with the water being a strong dilemma

23

at this point that if you do do the rezoning, you

24

will know in the future that down the road that this

25

property and this -- or this growth will happen and
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that you could put more thought into the

2

construction that you are approving in all parts of

3

Maui as well and not just Kihei. Because we have a

4

lot of construction going up, so if we're talking

5

about water issues, we need to look at the whole

6

island as far as construction, not just what Seibu

7

wants to do. Thank you.

8
9
10
11
12

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Thank you.
Any questions? If not, thank you very much,
Jennifer.
Aylett, followed by Laurie Chang.
MR. WALLWORK: Good morning, Mr. Chairman, Council People.

13

My name is Aylett Wallwork. I am glad I'm following

14

Mr. Chang here. He did a good -- a great summary of

15

what this place is all about.

16

I first came to Maui on a visit back in I

17

guess '61, '62, someplace in that area. And we used

18

to go out to what we called son of a bitch, which is

19

now called Chang's Beach and beyond that was what is

20

now called the great Big Beach. Driving along those

21

roads, the road was just a dirt road and it was just

22

covered up and all we came up across was somewhere

23

along the line we saw this highway marker saying 32

24

full of bullet holes. And this is back in '61, '62,

25

and at that time. Since then I have started with
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1

this project with Makena back in 1984 as

2

representing the architect in building the hotel,

3

and we still had to come out to the project in a

4

dirt road. And then later on the Makena put in this

5

improvement on Makena Alanui. I'm getting away from

6

myself.

7

The issue of water, when I first started with

8

Makena Resort proper, it was 1986 and one of the

9

items that was a big item at that time was what they

10

call the joint venture of -- which was bringing the

11

water out to Makena from Wailuku. And today the

12

water comes all the way through Kihei and extends

13

past the Makena Resort, Maui Prince Hotel, goes all

14

the way down to Big Beach. And from that time prior

15

to that water coming out here, all we had in that

16

area was just Driscoll lines. And running through

17

the golf course, alongside the highway, I would say

18

there was like five, five Driscoll lines was trying

19

to support homes down the road. And right now

20

there's an 8-inch line running all the way down to

21

Big Beach. From there on, people have tied into the

22

system and might be with some Driscoll lines, but

23

there's been developments beyond Big Beach where

24

people have developed some pretty well -- pretty

25

nice houses out there.
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68

Traffic, in the past there was none at all

2

down in that area through Kihei. The hotel has

3

tried to help the traffic problems out there by

4

carpooling, and we have been pretty successful with

5

that. And the hotel has encouraged the hotel -- the

6

employees to carpool. And if you have a substantial

7

group, they'll give you a reserved parking stall and

8

it's to try and help these traffic problems out

9

there.

10

I know Makena Resort has tried to ease the

11

traffic problems by fronting some funds for the

12

study of the four lane (inaudible).

13

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Can you tie it up?

14

MR. WALLWORK: And so like Lehua says, basically what

15

we're looking for is to give us a hand and vote yes

16

on this rezoning.

17

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Thank you.

18

Any questions? If not, thank you, Aylett.

19

Laurie Chang, followed by Sylvia Calibuso

20
21
22

Pitts.
Auntie, you just get three minutes now.
MS. CHANG: I know. Thank you. Good morning to all of

23

you. My name is Laurie Chang. I am a residence of

24

Makena. You see me now I think probably the third

25

time. I think I have been here fourth time and will
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1

continue to come, my husband and I, because we

2

reside in Makena and we know what Makena Resort has

3

done for us in Makena. We believe in them. We have

4

faith in them. We know this is a long project.

5

And, boy, I have never seen a project and I have

6

been -- I have sat through quite a few -- that have

7

done so much research as you have on water and

8

traffic. And I think the time has come for it, but

9

I would like to tell you, Makena Resort, this

10

project is, you know, not going to be done right

11

away. And so it -- you have been given the time, so

12

I am only asking you, and it's a big asking, but I

13

know what the Makena has done for all of us, not

14

just the people of Makena, but all of us. It's so

15

pleasant now to go Makena. Why? We've got good

16

road. We've got lights. We've got good water.

17

We've got a beautiful hotel. People are happy

18

there. And so I am going to ask that -- I know this

19

water issue is a big issue, but for all of you to

20

really look into your hearts and just be fair, be

21

fair to this development because this development

22

have done a lot for us and I think they deserve at

23

least that consideration, a fair consideration.

24

Thank you.

25

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Thank you very much.
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2
3

Any questions? If not, Sylvia. She's to be
followed by Fred Hollenbeck.
MS. PITTS: Aloha and good morning, Chairman Arakawa and

4

members of the County Council. My name is Sylvia

5

Calibuso Pitts. I am a local girl born and raised

6

here on the island of Maui. I'd love to say 24

7

years in Haiku and my permanent residence at this

8

time for the past 18 years, Maui Meadows. I am

9

employed by the Maui Prince Hotel; however, I am

10

here on my own behalf to seek your support for

11

Makena Resort Corporation's request to rezone.

12

My topic is not about the water, it's about

13

long-term growth, Smart Growth -- sorry, long-term

14

Smart Growth. From post World War II until 1970

15

Maui had little growth. Maui's main industry was

16

agriculture. Government jobs were the second

17

industry. Maui's then Mayor Elmer Carvalho cared

18

tremendously for Maui's own. He saw Maui's youth

19

leaving the State for jobs. His Smart Growth plan

20

was to take Maui's dust bowl, the south coast, which

21

is Kihei and Wailea, Makena, and develop a

22

first-class resort destination thus creating jobs in

23

the construction, hotel and secondary industries.

24

He received commitments from several developers to

25

pay for Maui's soon to be booming economic growth.
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These included the Makena Prince Development

2

Corporation, Wailea Development Company, formerly

3

A&B, and if I am correct, I might be -- I may be

4

wrong, Northwest Life Insurance Company. During

5

these years many island born were able to return

6

from the mainland and overseas. The younger

7

generation getting out of high school had more

8

opportunities. I am one of them. They and their

9

future generations were given the chance to continue

10

making Maui home. I have a 22 year old who has left

11

the island. I wish he would come back home.

12

Was this a Smart Growth plan? The State

13

benefited with lots of new taxes giving back an

14

unfair share for infrastructure upgrades to our

15

island of Maui. Maui's dust bowl attracted

16

thousands of people. They chose South Maui instead

17

of Molokai or Fuji. After Elmer's term, Hannibal

18

Tavares continued the plan, requiring new developers

19

to pay their dues. One shift in plans allowed more

20

Up-Country development whereas Elmer was opposed to

21

rezoning any in use Ag. land.

22

It appears that during the '90s, the smart

23

and long were left out. Now, someone it takes --

24

I'm sorry. Now some want to take some new Smart

25

Growth plans. Has Maui and the new arrivals
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forgotten the long-term plan set up -- set for it by

2

Elmer? The Makena Resort Corporation has put up

3

over $30 million plus into Maui's infrastructure and

4

to date has 300 hotel rooms. That is over $100,000

5

per room dues paid. Then add their annual payroll

6

and transient --

7

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Sylvia, can you tie up within a minute?

8

MS. PITTS: Okay. I'm almost done.

9

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay.

10

MS. PITTS: Okay. And add their annual payroll and

11

transient and excise taxes paid and the countless

12

numbers of donations to charities. Now they are

13

told their smart, long-range plans don't fit in.

14

Members of the County Council, I respectfully

15

request that you approve Makena Resort Corporation's

16

request to rezone. Mahalo.

17

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Thank you.

18
19
20
21

Any questions? If not, thank you very much,
Sylvia.
Fred Hollenbeck, followed by Scott Ingwers.
MR. HOLLENBECK: Good morning. My name is Fred

22

Hollenbeck. I'm a South Maui resident, and I am

23

here in support of the project. I would like to see

24

you folks give it a favorable decision. I can

25

remember going out to Kihei and once I got past
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Azeka's and Suda's, I'd better have lunch or I'd

2

better know the Changs, you know. It's a lot

3

better. It's -- You have seen a great, responsible

4

corporate citizen over the years. Please support

5

them. Thank you very much.

6
7
8

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Thank you very much.
Any questions? If not, Scott Ingwers
followed by Dick Mayer.

9

MR. INGWERS: Good morning. Ladies and gentlemen of the

10

Council, good morning. I come before you today on

11

behalf of the 400 employees of the Maui Prince Hotel

12

at Makena Resort to request your approval of the

13

proposed rezoning.

14
15
16

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Scott, you want to say your name so that
we can get it right.
MR. INGWERS: Oh, yes. Forgive me. My name is Scott

17

Ingwers. I'm the hotel manager at the Maui Prince

18

Hotel, and I have also been responsible for the Food

19

and Beverage Department for the past three and a

20

half years.

21

I'd like you all to know that no matter how

22

much you spend, I appreciate you coming down to the

23

brunch. Thank you for the plug, Lehua, I appreciate

24

that very much.

25

Getting back to the point at hand, we feel

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

74

LU 10/29/01

1

very comfortable making this request due to the fact

2

that Makena Resort has always been a good friend and

3

a responsible member of Maui's community. From the

4

very generous and cooperative installation of water

5

infrastructure in South Maui in years past to our

6

current commitment to providing guests of Maui with

7

a world-class golf experience as evidenced by the

8

recent renovation of the Makena South Golf Course to

9

our future commitment to providing residential

10

opportunities to those who would call Maui home, we

11

respectfully ask for your support.

12

In these current difficult times for the

13

tourism industry various companies are coming out of

14

the woodwork touting their kama'aina friendly flag

15

as fair weather friends. Maui Prince Hotel and

16

Makena Resort has always led the way in kama'aina

17

support as evidenced by the hundreds of residents

18

who dine in our restaurants, stay in our rooms and

19

enjoy our golf courses every week. We will continue

20

to be the kama'aina resort in South Maui supporting

21

countless causes such as Women Helping Women to aid

22

victims of domestic violence.

23

I applaud the thought process brought up by

24

the gentleman prior of reallocating the current

25

water supply to a fairer and more equitable
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distribution. We ask that you allow the Makena

2

Resort the opportunity for controlled, methodical,

3

sustainable growth for the future. Please grant the

4

rezoning to a neighbor that is deserving of such

5

consideration. Mahalo.

6
7

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Thank you. Any questions for Scott?
Thank you very much, Scott.
Dick Mayer. He will be followed by Ululani

8
9
10

Correa.
MR. MAYER: Thank you very much, Chairman. My name is

11

Dick Mayer. The first thing I just want to do is

12

remind us all of a basic principal in economics,

13

supply and demand. We've heard a lot of discussion

14

today about the supply of water, we have heard

15

nothing about the demands. The Iao Aquifer serves

16

not just the South Maui corridor, but also Wailuku

17

and Kahului, our major urban area on the island.

18

And before any decision is made as to what will

19

happen with the water, we should have a figure that

20

would indicate the needs of Kahului and Wailuku.

21

Because all the water that will go to Kihei will

22

then not be available for Kahului or Wailuku, which

23

is our major governmental center, our major

24

commercial center, our major educational center and

25

our major health care center. We should know the
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needs -- not to mention it's also our largest

2

population center. We need to know the numbers of

3

gallons needed by not just today Kahului-Wailuku,

4

but the planned Wailuku-Kahului that will be

5

contained in the Wailuku-Kahului Plan. I have seen

6

nothing describing demand.

7

The other second -- the second issue I would

8

like to take up is the item I just gave out to you,

9

and that is with regard to the County's General

10

Plan. And I would like to read -- have you follow

11

with me for a few minutes on this. It states item

12

B, paragraph -- second paragraph there, "All

13

agencies of the County shall comply with the

14

provisions of the General Plan." So what does the

15

General Plan say about this? If we read down the

16

page, and I have highlighted this thing, there are

17

five themes in our General Plan. This proposal

18

would violate I believe several of these. For

19

example, theme 3 down at the bottom, it says,

20

"Protect Maui County shoreline and limit visitor

21

industry growth." That's in our General Plan.

22

That's the law.

23

It says in there and it's the statement

24

directly quoted, "Discourage further urban

25

development of the shoreline." Theme 4, "Maintain a
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viable economic that offers diverse employment

2

opportunities for residents." And by that it means

3

broaden our economic base so that we are not so

4

dependent on tourism. This proposal would make this

5

island far more dependent on one industry, the

6

tourist industry.

7

And, finally, No. 5, "Provide for needed

8

resident housing and the development of resident

9

housing as a major social need of our community." I

10

don't believe this project would help satisfy the

11

needs of our housing and in particular it would put

12

the jobs at the resort very far away from where the

13

housing is being built on this island. There should

14

be provisions made not just for affordable housing,

15

but affordable housing on the project site so people

16

don't have to commute that 30 miles up to Pukalani

17

or 25 miles into Kahului.

18

If you read further in the plan on the second

19

page, there are a number of provisions within the

20

visitor industry, and I don't have time to go

21

through them all with you, but you can read them.

22

It says, "Discourage any additional shoreline resort

23

development. Require that new developments continue

24

to contribute their fair share to infrastructural

25

costs. Encourage enhancement" -- item E there,
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"Encourage enhancement of existing visitor

2

facilities without substantial increase in room

3

count." In other words, room count should not go

4

up. This is the General Plan. So this is not

5

something -- my idea, this is the plan that has been

6

adopted by the Council, it's part of our law, the

7

Mayor signed it, and we have to approve projects

8

based on this General Plan, or go ahead and change

9

the General Plan.

10
11
12
13

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Dick, can you conclude, or do you want to
come back?
MR. MAYER: I will try to conclude in -- because I have
another meeting this afternoon.

14

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay.

15

MR. MAYER: I have indicated on the last page on a long

16

sheet of paper a resolution that I feel the Council

17

would probably be comfortable in adopting, and that

18

is a resolution in favor of responsible growth. And

19

by that I mean we should be looking at, and I have

20

indicated the underlined there for you, the problems

21

we have, congested roads, health and safety, school

22

facilities, major medical facility will be far away

23

from our hospital, water supply, fire danger, et

24

cetera. And then I have indicated some of the

25

things that you might do, and I think the most
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important thing since my time is limited, I would

2

like to refer to the very last paragraph and read

3

that. And it says, "and, finally, be it further

4

resolved that the Maui County Council will postpone

5

discussions and action on all proposals of over 50

6

acres and/or over 100 units from the South Maui

7

district until the Council has received the

8

information cited above that will allow it to make

9

informed and responsible decisions."

10

I don't think you have all that information

11

at this time. I urge you to get that information

12

and be able to make responsible decisions because we

13

have another project right next door, the Wailea

14

670, which will also put several thousand cars on

15

the road. It's been approved by the Planning

16

Commission, it's coming to you, and we should take a

17

look at all of these large projects. We have the

18

Maui Nui project at the entrance to Kihei, a large

19

project. There are many, of course, smaller ones.

20

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Dick, I'm going to have to ask you --

21

MR. MAYER: Okay.

22

CHAIR ARAKAWA: -- to call it.

23

MR. MAYER: I would like to urge you to consider this and

24
25

if possible take responsible action on this.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Thank you. Any questions for Dick?
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: One question, please.

2

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Hokama.

3

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you. Good to see you, Dick.

4

MR. MAYER: Thank you.

5

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: My question, Dick, is why only

6

projects over 50 acres and 100 units? Because

7

from -- I'm compiling information, and for the South

8

Maui region over the last ten years small

9

developments have totaled way over what this large

10

development has asked and I think they make just as

11

much impact as any other development --

12

MR. MAYER: I would --

13

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: -- in, you know, proportion.

14

MR. MAYER: Right. I would entirely agree with you that

15

cumulatively they do. I know that the word

16

moratorium has been used and I know that there's a

17

reluctance to sometimes get into it. And I think,

18

you know, I would certainly be in favor of looking

19

at all of the projects, but at least as a first

20

step -- and partly because it's these large projects

21

like Wailea 670 which you will be wrestling with

22

over the next six months, probably, the Makena

23

project, which you are now wrestling with, and Maui

24

Nui one, which has an impact right on the traffic

25

right as you enter Kihei. At least you have to tell
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the developers, why should the developers and all

2

the staff from the hotels come down here and

3

individuals come down and have to lobby you back and

4

forth until all the information is assembled. On

5

the smaller projects you just don't get as many

6

people. You could easily say let's not take a look

7

at any of these projects until we know all the

8

numbers, and I think that would probably be the wise

9

and responsible thing to do. But certainly the big

10

ones which drags everybody out, takes huge amounts

11

of time at the Council, so you don't have the time

12

to do a lot of the other business that is pressing

13

on you, at least that much. If you want to reduce

14

the number down to 30 acres, 20, 10 or any project,

15

I think it would be a wise step.

16

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you, Dick.

17

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Any further questions? If not, thank you

18

very much, Dick.

19

MR. MAYER: Thank you very much. Thank you, Council.

20

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Ululani. She will be followed by Russell

21

Duarte.

22

MS. CORREA: Good morning, Chair Arakawa.

23

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Good morning.

24

MS. CORREA: And good morning, Council Members. I am

25

Ululani Correa, also an employee of the Maui Prince
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Hotel, however, I stand before you this morning to

2

read written testimony as submitted by two of our

3

Makena residents and neighbors, Sam Garcia, Jr. and

4

his brother John.

5

The letter is dated October 29. Dear Mr.

6

Arakawa and Commission Members: We regret not being

7

able to attend your hearing regarding the Makena

8

Resort rezoning; however, we are both not able to

9

excuse ourselves from work. Please do, however,

10

accept this letter as our testimony in support of

11

the Makena Resort request for rezoning. Makena

12

Resort (Seibu, Inc.) has already contributed

13

financially to Maui County's infrastructure

14

development. Makena Resort has contributed to the

15

water transmission costs from West Maui to South

16

Maui as well as assisted in the drilling of the

17

wells in West Maui. Without the water improvements,

18

we Makena residents would continue to have only a

19

2-inch waterline serving our homes.

20

Makena Resort has also contributed to the

21

road construction to this end of South Maui.

22

Driving along Makena Alanui now is quite a pleasure

23

in comparison to the winding Old Makena Road.

24

Makena Resort continues to offer financial

25

assistance toward the traffic study to determine a
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solution to the Piilani Highway traffic problem as

2

well as the restriping process.

3

They have proven to be excellent neighbors,

4

constantly seeking our advice and concurrence in

5

their development plans. They have created a resort

6

product that the residents of this island should

7

hold with pride. We are confident that their future

8

plans will continue to be in good taste. As

9

residents of Makena for the last 25 years, we highly

10

urge your approval of Makena Resort's application

11

for rezoning.

12

Mahalo Nui for your continued hard work and

13

service to our island residents. Signed Sam Garcia,

14

Jr., Makena resident; John Garcia, Makena resident.

15
16
17

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Thank you very much. Did you want to make
comments on your own, or you're just reading this?
MS. CORREA: I'm reading this and as an employee of the

18

Makena Resort, Maui Prince Hotel for almost the

19

last -- almost 14 years, we have -- as you have

20

heard testimony from many of our employees, we are

21

strongly behind this rezoning process. And as many

22

of you know, it's not going to be something that's

23

going to be done overnight. We're looking at a

24

long-term process. And we sincerely urge your

25

consideration to this request.
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4

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Thank you very much. Any
questions? Thank you, Ululani.
Russell Duarte, followed by Tim Farrington.
Duart or Duarte?

5

MR. DUARTE: Duart.

6

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Duart.

7

MR. DUARTE: Thank you. I shouldn't need this microphone.

8
9

I'm Portuguese, I'm loud.
Aloha and good morning, everyone. My name is

10

Russell Duarte and I am a -- I am speaking in favor

11

of the approval process of the Makena Resort

12

Corporation. I'm a concerned parent and employee,

13

proud employee of the Makena Resort Corporation.

14

You know, as we all know and very -- very

15

proud, Maui is the number one visitor destination

16

here in the world. You know, it's for good reasons

17

because Maui -- the people are very special. It's

18

very beautiful. But I like to believe, I like to

19

believe, also, that we are creative people here on

20

the island of Maui. That's why we're number one.

21

Now, we flew a mission to the moon and we

22

landed back with people safely. I think the Council

23

and the people of Maui can come up with an equitable

24

idea on how to serve all of Maui with a quarter of

25

the population of the island of Oahu and serve the
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water needs of the island of Maui.

2

Makena Resort has been recognized as a good

3

neighbor and a good employer and a good partner in

4

the County of Maui as well as the many other islands

5

here in Hawaii. The Prince Hotel has been a good

6

provider of tax revenue and employment. Many things

7

have happened since our last Council meeting here on

8

the island of Maui as well as the rest of the world.

9

Here on the island of Maui we are faced with many

10

gripping realities, losses of jobs and a drain of

11

tax revenues.

12

Presently the Makena Resort is applying for

13

rezoning to continue development and also provide

14

jobs, jobs over an eight-year period, much needed

15

jobs and much needed tax revenue. Over the years

16

Makena Resort has invested multimillions of dollars

17

in Maui County's infrastructure and continues to

18

show commitment; presently hundreds of jobs, tax

19

revenue, and countless contributions to charities.

20

Maui County has lobbied across the world on

21

the mainland for companies to come here and provide

22

jobs. At this point in time Maui County needs jobs,

23

and Makena Resort is willing to provide them. With

24

the history of our employment, our good standing in

25

Hawaii, Maui -- Maui should be considering and
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asking themselves why not? Why not provide this

2

opportunity to Makena and to the people of Maui for

3

jobs? So I'm asking you, the Council members, for

4

your consideration for this development.

5
6

Thank you very much.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Thank you very much, Russell.

7

Any questions? If not, thank you.

8

Tim Farrington, followed by Bob Parsons --

9
10

Rob Parsons, excuse me.
MR. FARRINGTON: Good morning, Council Members. My name

11

is Tim Farrington. I'm an architect who has lived

12

here in Kihei for the last 25 years. I'm presently

13

building a home in Makena and I'm here to support

14

the Makena Resort project rezoning.

15

Makena Resort has been a partner in the

16

development of the Kihei-Wailea area. They have

17

built two of the finest golf courses on this island

18

as well as the Prince Hotel, which employes hundreds

19

of people. They have added valuable infrastructure

20

to the Makena area, most recently about two miles of

21

tree-lined boulevard and sewage treatment plant,

22

always with an ear for the concerns of the

23

neighbors.

24
25

They have been a commendable steward of their
undeveloped lands, which they now want to develop.
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They have partnered with Wailea and the County to

2

bring water to Kihei over 30 years ago. This single

3

piece of infrastructure has allowed over 10,000

4

people like myself to live, work and enjoy the

5

incredible lifestyle which South Maui has to offer.

6

None of us would be living here if it wasn't for the

7

foresight of this venture. Thirty years from now it

8

will not be a -- not be about Seibu or any of the

9

large corporations, it will be replaced by a viable

10

community of people living in the Makena area.

11

South Maui does have infrastructure problems,

12

none of which is insurmountable. Restriping Piilani

13

to four lanes will reduce the time we spend

14

commuting. Those who say it will not forget what it

15

was like when it was only South Kihei Road. A few

16

years from now we will only remember when Piilani

17

was two lanes, and a few more years, God willing,

18

we'll have the Kihei bypass to the airport and the

19

Up-Country road. More broadly speaking, we will

20

remember when the island didn't have the Lahaina

21

bypass, the Paia bypass, and four lanes on Haleakala

22

Highway.

23

Please have the foresight and the belief in

24

this County to vote -- and vote for this project,

25

which will bring hundreds of millions of dollars
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into our economy and for years to come will provide

2

tax revenues for these -- for the roads, parks and

3

schools that Maui wants and needs. Thank you.

4

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Thank you, Tim.

5

Any questions? If not, thank you.

6

Rob Parsons followed by Boogie Lu'uwai.

7

MR. PARSONS: Aloha and good morning, Mr. Chair, Council

8

Members, members of the community of Maui. My name

9

is Rob Parsons. I would like to begin by applauding

10

the Chair for the pursuit of gathering the pertinent

11

information here so that Council members or

12

Committee members can make responsible planning

13

decisions.

14

I would like to backtrack to the July 2nd

15

meeting on the same subject where I presented

16

comments and concerns as Conservation Chair of the

17

Sierra Club, Maui Group. At that meeting State

18

Department of Transportation Director Brian Minaai

19

praised the developer for his promise to contribute

20

to the design of restriping the Piilani Highway.

21

Also at that meeting Councilmember Hokama challenged

22

the accepted practice of placing a required

23

affordable housing component elsewhere in the

24

community plan region. And, finally, Councilman

25

Nishiki at that meeting said, we really need some
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more facts here. We need to have all the pertinent

2

facts available to make responsible planning

3

decisions.

4

Before the information that was brought forth

5

today on the water, about the only other pertinent

6

information was when the Planning Department

7

revealed that there's already some 1,557 units that

8

have received SMA approvals in South Maui. Since

9

then Wailea Beach Villas has been approved, that's

10

another 105. We have got nearly 1,700 units, which

11

equates to about 3,500 to 4,000 new cars on the

12

road. Add in, as has been mentioned earlier, the

13

possibility of Wailea 670 and you can see that we

14

are talking about a lot of more cars on the road.

15

Is restriping Piilani enough? I really think that

16

it's -- will fall short of what we need and that we

17

ought to rethink that quick fix that has been

18

offered.

19

So we need a lot more information here so

20

that not only can you plan responsibly, but that you

21

can comply legally with what's necessary for your

22

decision. For instance, when 40 to 50 construction

23

workers and union reps come forward saying, you

24

know, I think this is a good project, we really need

25

the jobs, as happened last week with Wailea 670, you
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need at your fingertips island-wide data on

2

construction. Do we need the jobs or are we -- are

3

we overdoing it with job approvals, which leads to

4

the boom-bust cycle and we don't protect and manage

5

our growth and actually it is detrimental because

6

then we need to bring in more construction workers

7

and jobs don't even go to our local workers. So we

8

need to manage our growth.

9

In the Wailea 670 proposal their traffic

10

study revealed in conjunction with the State

11

Department of Transportation that ultimately we're

12

looking at a six-lane Piilani Highway, adding five

13

more traffic signals. Is this the direction we want

14

to go? Is this managing quality of life for South

15

Maui? It's not. I suggest that we really need to

16

look at another reliever road mauka of the Piilani.

17

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Rob, can you tie it up, or do you want to

18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

come back?
MR. PARSONS: I think I'd better come back for three
minutes. Thank you.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Thank you.
Boogie Lu'uwai. Boogie will be followed by
Jonathan Starr.
MR. LU'UWAI: Chairman Arakawa, Council Members, my name
is Boogie Lu'uwai. I'm a residence of Makena and
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also with the Makena Community Association. I

2

support the application for Makena Resort's

3

rezoning. And some of the reasons why I like all of

4

us, they're good neighbors to us, they inform us

5

what's going on in the community, and the last time

6

we addressed the water run-off problems, I met with

7

the Roy Figueroa, we had the County engineer down

8

there, and we're trying to resolve that problem.

9

And this was -- this was a meeting we have a good

10
11

neighbor.
They put in the water line. Probably I

12

wouldn't be there, living there if we didn't have

13

good, fresh water as contributed by the Makena

14

Resort, Incorporated. Some time ago we used to have

15

a 2-inch line coming down to Makena. When we were

16

growing up, we had a fishing house down there, my

17

cousin Ed Chang used to live up on the top. There

18

was a 2-inch line that ran all the way from Kula to

19

Makena. And if any one of the five residents there

20

used the water, you couldn't use the water. Most of

21

the time it came out of the pipe, it was -- it was

22

brown. So you remember in those days to put a

23

filter on, many people put a durum bag on to get the

24

dirt down.

25

But, like I say, I support the resort. I do
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not want to see them penalized after they put so

2

much finances they put in the roads, the water

3

system. And thank you.

4

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Thank you.
Any questions for Boogie? If not, Jonathan

5
6

Starr.

7

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Mr. Chair.

8

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Yes.

9

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: At the conclusion of Mr. Starr's

10
11

testimony, can we take a 10-minute recess?
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Rob Parsons will be coming back after Mr.

12

Starr's testimony, and then we're done with

13

testimony.

14

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you.

15

CHAIR ARAKAWA: So after that we will take a short recess.

16

MR. STARR: Aloha, Mr. Chair and Committee Members. My

17

name is Jonathan Starr and I have some comments on

18

water issues. And, you know, I would like to say

19

that they're not necessarily the -- the comments of

20

my fellow board members, but they are my own

21

comments.

22

And I was very happy to see a presentation

23

about water at this Committee. I think that it's

24

very important for -- for all of you to understand

25

what the true issues are and for the public to be
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educated as well. And the more -CHAIR ARAKAWA: Jonathan, could you wait just a few
seconds.

4

MR. STARR: Yeah.

5

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Our Corp. Counsel would like to make a few

6

comments.

7

MR. STARR: Yeah.

8

MR. MINATOYA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I just want to make

9

clear for Mr. Starr that I hope that he's aware of

10

the pending legal action regarding a former member

11

of the County Planning Commission. And this is not

12

to impede on your free speech rights, but, you know,

13

there -- it has been raised in the past where a

14

member of a board or commission comes to testify

15

before the Council on a specific project and thereby

16

is later sued by the developer because of the idea

17

that they may be pre- -- may have predetermined

18

their voting in a particular -- on a particular

19

issue. So I just wanted you -- want you to be aware

20

of that as you testify.

21

MR. STARR: Okay.

22

MR. MINATOYA: Thank you.

23

MR. STARR: I'm perfectly willing if they wish to sue me,

24

but I am testifying on my own behalf and I am here

25

to present some information as I know and not to --
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not to pro or con to a particular project.

2

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Thank you. If you're comfortable with

3

that Corp. Counsel decision and you understand what

4

they're saying, if you wish to proceed, please do.

5

MR. STARR: Yeah. Basically, you know, I come here to

6

share -- you know, to share information and to

7

clarify. And I am glad that people are being aware

8

of the water issues because it's important. Water

9

is our life and without -- without adequate water,

10
11

life will not be possible on this island.
A few -- a few -- a few comments relating to

12

the presentation that was made before us. Iao

13

Aquifer, you know, as we have seen is at the limit

14

and we know we need to look elsewhere for additional

15

water sources. What was not really made clear is

16

about the Waihee Aquifer. And in the presentation

17

it was shown that the Waihee Aquifer has a

18

sustainable yield of 8 million gallons, which was

19

not a tested number, but is a paper -- is a paper

20

number. And so far we have developed wells in the

21

southern portion of Waihee Aquifer. Danny actually

22

got it right when he divided it down into Waihee and

23

Kahaloa into this subsegments, but the only wells we

24

have so far and the only plans we have relate to the

25

southern portion of Waihee. And there we have
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wells -- in the last few months of pumping, we've

2

been pumping about 4.6 million gallons a day, and

3

that is over the sustainable yield for the southern

4

portion of Waihee. The sustainable yield is 4. If

5

you take 90 percent, which is the max pumping limit,

6

you get 3.6, and we have been pumping about a

7

million gallons a day over -- over that for the last

8

several months. Iao for the last several months we

9

have been pumping about 19 or over 19, where we're

10

trying to keep the -- the average year-round below

11

18. So what we are pumping is basically everything

12

we have got.

13

The northern part of Waihee, there hasn't

14

been any test -- testing done, no one has drilled a

15

well there. We may be able to exploit water

16

resources there, we're not sure. It will mean

17

crossing some big gulches.

18

Also presented on the list was 2 million

19

gallons for Waikapu segment, and as far as I know,

20

the only wells that have been drilled there have

21

been -- have been dry. So I don't know if that's

22

really a dependable source.

23

Left off of the chart was the Iao Tunnel,

24

which is a good source where we get almost 2 million

25

gallons a day. And that's a high level dike-type
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source. So I wanted to set the -- set the record

2

straight on that.

3

One other issue is that it was said that

4

about 40 million gallons a day have been developed

5

on Maui out of 400 and some odd million gallons of

6

sustainable yield. The reason why that number is so

7

low is not because more water has not been

8

developed, but because there's no pumpage data on

9

the additional water that's been developed. There's

10

another probably 200 million or more gallons of

11

water in addition to the 40 that is being pumped

12

throughout Maui, but the only entity that regularly

13

supplies its pumping records and are available back

14

to us are the Board of Water Supply's records. So

15

when you see, you know, low numbers, that's because

16

there is no accounting for the rest of the pumping.

17

I believe that the corporation Mr. Agsalog

18

works for pumps over a 100 million gallons, and then

19

there's probably another 100 million of other

20

entities that's all the golf courses and all of the

21

hotels and so on. So there's a lot of pumpage

22

that's not the 40 million gallons shown on that.

23

And, you know, I have also heard a lot of

24

comment about the -- you know, the joint venture

25

development, and there are three wells that were --
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1

that were drilled there. The original plan had

2

called for sets of two, so you had one pumping one

3

and one back up one, and it was never -- it was

4

never really followed. So -- and we have to

5

discount -- discount that. We were not able to

6

spread out the pumping, which would allow us

7

possibly to optimize things.

8

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Jonathan.

9

MR. STARR: Anyway, those are just a few comments.

10

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay.

11

MR. STARR: I'll be available if there's any questions to

12

be asked, but, once again, I do thank you for

13

bringing these issues out into the -- out into the

14

public live. And I think that the whole community

15

will benefit from this discussion. Thank you.

16
17

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Thank you.
Any questions for Jonathan?

18

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Question.

19

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Nishiki.

20

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you.

21

Jonathan, you heard from USGS and also from

22

the State Commission on Water Resources that there

23

is information needed prior to making any sort of

24

decision in the Wailuku area. What is the Board

25

doing in regards to trying to get information? Do
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you work with the Water Department and then work

2

with the State Commission on Water Resources and

3

also the USGS being that there is an inadequate

4

amount of information from these two entities

5

stating that without this information, they really

6

cannot give us any more pertinent, I guess, stats.

7

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Jonathan, before you answer that --

8

MR. STARR: Yeah.

9

CHAIR ARAKAWA: -- Councilmember Nishiki is asking you a

10

question that is Board-related and assuming you

11

represent the Board. Now, you may choose to or not

12

choose to answer that question because you're

13

testifying as an individual.

14

MR. STARR: Yeah. I think that everyone feels that we

15

need more datapoints, that we need more monitoring

16

wells. And, you know, that's something that the

17

Commission feels very strongly about and the USGS

18

feels strongly about and as far as I know other

19

Board members feel strongly about. The more

20

monitoring wells you have, the more information you

21

have. That's a primary source of data.

22

When it comes to data about water use outside

23

of what the Board does in our own pumping, that --

24

that becomes an issue that we have no -- we have no

25

say over, you know. And I don't think the Council
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even has a say over. That becomes an issue that is

2

up to Water Commission to monitor the resource and

3

the resource use. The Board is basically a utility,

4

you know, we provide water for domestic use.

5

Outside of our utility use, however, there's not

6

really much record of what's -- what's going on with

7

the resource.

8
9

Outside of Iao Aquifer, there's not much work
being done. And, you know, I don't know if it's

10

really in the -- in the -- it's not in the

11

Board's -- it's not the Board's business to do it.

12

And the Commission does it specifically when an area

13

is designated as a Water Management Area. For --

14

you know, for an example, most of Oahu is designated

15

as a Water Management Area and so they -- all of the

16

pumping and all of the use is very carefully looked

17

at by the Water Commission and they do a good job.

18

I know that was a question asked earlier today,

19

what's the difference between Maui and Oahu, and one

20

is that Oahu is looked at with a magnifying glass

21

because it has been designated a Water Management

22

Area, as has Molokai. When an application is put in

23

to use water on Molokai, to drill a well or a use,

24

then it has to be examined because it is under

25

management. And if a well will affect other wells,
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it's not allowed to be drilled, another place has to

2

be found to drill it where it won't affect existing

3

wells, where we don't have that currently on Maui.

4

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Let me ask you this: Being that

5

we see a lot of development cropping up and we have

6

not really heard from the Department where the water

7

is coming from and we've heard stats today showing

8

that in this specific area of the Wailuku area

9

aquifers that salt content has been raised and for

10

the myriad other things that the USGS has brought up

11

to us. Are you afraid, despite that Maui County has

12

constantly been against the State Water Commission

13

coming in and designating this an area? At the next

14

meeting, is this something that will be discussed

15

because of the needs that have been represented and

16

where this source development is going to be gotten

17

from, that the Wailuku Aquifer will be so

18

designated?

19

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Again, Jonathan --

20

MR. STARR: My (inaudible).

21

CHAIR ARAKAWA: -- I'll caution you as a Chair that

22

because you are on the Water Board --

23

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I'll wait with my question

24
25

(inaudible).
CHAIR ARAKAWA: You may not want to answer that for the
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2

Board, but as an individual.
MR. STARR: Are you talking about at the Commission

3

meeting next month? Or are you talking about as a

4

Board member?

5

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No. Just as a private citizen

6

with knowledge and knowing what will occur, period.

7

It's just a fact that we heard today.

8
9

MR. STARR: Well, I -- something that we heard -- we have
heard a lot of people say is that we need to look

10

for new sources outside of the box. And I think

11

that's something that everyone is starting to say,

12

whether it's USGS or the Commission staff said --

13

said something similar to that, and I heard Maui

14

Tomorrow representatives saying that, too. You

15

know, I think that we need to look for new -- new

16

solutions and new sources. And if we can do that,

17

then I think we'll -- you know, we'll be in good

18

shape. You know, I -- there's no -- there's no

19

certainty there, but I think that's the direction

20

that -- that will enable us to move forward.

21

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you.

22

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Thank you, Jonathan.

23

We have two other people that have signed up

24

to testify, and, Council Members, there was a

25

request that we take a 10-minute recess. We can
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take the recess now, or we can hear the testimony

2

and then come back and conclude.

3

COUNCIL MEMBERS: Recess.

4

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Recess, Mr. Chair.

5

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Ten-minute recess. (Gavel.)

6

RECESS: 11:32 a.m.

7

RECONVENE: 11:43 a.m.

8

CHAIR ARAKAWA: At this time I would like to explain that

9

we're going to be running into a little bit of a

10

time crunch. Linnel Nishioka with the Water

11

Commission has to leave at 1:00 and we have the

12

group with the National Guard Armory, they have to

13

leave at 2:00. So what I'm going to do is I'm going

14

to allow Rob Parsons to complete his testimony, then

15

I have four other people that have signed up to

16

testify. I'm going to defer those four people till

17

after we're -- we have some discussion because I do

18

want to have Linnel here for questions because I

19

just -- I don't want her to have to leave before we

20

do that. Then after we discuss whatever you have

21

questions for Linnel, I'm going to ask to move the

22

armory item up so those people, you can ask them

23

their questions, they can testify on that item, and

24

then they can leave, okay, and get their flight.

25

And I'm doing this because we have -- we have these
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time constraints. So as soon as we can get that

2

done, those discussions done, then we'll break for

3

lunch. Okay.

4
5

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So you want to (inaudible),
Chairman?

6

CHAIR ARAKAWA: So what --

7

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Time, time. You're looking at us

8

taking lunch after 2:00?

9

CHAIR ARAKAWA: No, no, no. I'm hoping that we can get

10

out of this a lot sooner than that. The National

11

Guard Armory, I think we can have a short

12

discussion. But the State Water Commission, their

13

resource management member, we're going to have some

14

questions for her. Okay. And I apologize, but they

15

have planes to catch, so we have to sort of move

16

this up.

17

So at this time I'm going to call Rob

18

Parsons -- Call the meeting back to order. Rob

19

Parsons, please complete your testimony.

20
21

MR. PARSONS: Aloha. Rob Parsons. Thank you for the
opportunity to conclude my comments.

22

I believe I left off with my opinion that

23

bringing Piilani Highway to four lanes merely by

24

restriping it is not the ultimate solution when we

25

can see that we have got easily 3,500 to 4,000 more
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cars planned for South Maui roads, and many more if

2

Wailea 670 and these Makena change in zoning

3

applications are also approved. So we would be

4

sacrificing safety and creating something like a

5

three-year construction zone on the Piilani.

6

Besides what the Department of Transportation

7

has brought forward, I would remind you of Police

8

Officer Sergeant Brad Hickel(?) who came before the

9

Council and also before the Planning Commission this

10

summer to say that he believes that no new approvals

11

should be granted anywhere in South Maui. And this

12

is someone who is on the job daily down there and by

13

his observations -- obviously he's not a traffic

14

expert, but he has a lot of expertise because he's

15

on the roads. He says that he does not recommend

16

any more approvals at this time.

17

I expect that what you'll do today is defer

18

these requests because you're being asked a lot and

19

the -- the Chair's requests of Planning Department,

20

Public Works, Water Department, State DOT and

21

Corporation Counsel to supply the necessary info for

22

you to legally comply, I think it's going to take

23

quite a while for them to provide you with that

24

necessary information.

25

I have got a suggestion, and that would be
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that the developer and Planning Department dissect

2

the change in zoning application for clarity and to

3

avoid confusion. Right now what -- what we're all

4

looking at is something for 755 acres, but there's a

5

mishmash of different requests in it. Some of it

6

would bring things into conformity with current

7

usage. Some of it is new and would add to what's

8

already been approved. And I -- so the piggybacking

9

of all the requests together is confusing and I

10

think we can sort that out for your benefit, for all

11

of our benefit.

12

Now, without the change in zoning request

13

before us, the developer still can develop about

14

half of what is being asked for. So deferral or

15

denial or saying not now is not punitive and it

16

doesn't constitute a takings. There's lots of

17

construction going on in Makena as we speak. Take a

18

drive down there, you'll see what I mean.

19

Smart Growth can be achieved only by smart

20

land use and responsible planning, and quality of

21

life is essential to our community health and

22

visitor industry future. Now, it's obvious that

23

Makena Corporation has been a good corporate

24

neighbor and employer. They have loyal employees,

25

well spoken, but that's not the crux of what you're
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being asked to provide today. The criteria is not

2

whether they have been a good corporate neighbor,

3

but how this request fits into responsible planning

4

for our island.

5

Your decision today has everything to do with

6

our quality of life. Please choose wisely and

7

require that all the essential information be at

8

your fingertips before any decision is made. The

9

future of Maui depends on it. Mahalo.

10
11
12
13
14

. . END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY . .
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Thank you.
Any questions for Rob? If not, thank you
very much.
At this time, Council Members, I'm going to

15

ask Linnel Nishioka to come down. And if you could

16

direct your questions to her concerning her area of

17

expertise.

18

MS. NISHIOKA: Thank you, Chair, for taking me out of

19

order. My apologies for having to leave early.

20

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Well, thank you for coming down at all. I

21
22
23
24
25

apologize.
Councilmember Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.
Thank you, again, Ms. Nishioka. One
interesting comment that was shared with the members
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1

this morning is that with particular to our

2

Department of Water Supply that they only have

3

reports of pumpage or use, water use as those that

4

have provided or the Department monitors. Have

5

your -- you and your Commission required any water

6

user of -- from the watershed to report either

7

weekly or monthly?

8
9

MS. NISHIOKA: We require by law monthly reports. I have
to say that we don't have uniform compliance with

10

that regulation, but we do have a requirement that

11

all users are supposed to file monthly reports. We

12

do have records of use outside of the Department of

13

Water Supply system.

14

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. And is that how part of the

15

figure was arrived at, that 470 plus million gallons

16

a day for the island was calculated?

17

MS. NISHIOKA: No. It was based on an initial model that

18

was done by John Mink, which is the hydrologist that

19

we had retained. And it was based somewhat on

20

current use, some on recharge, some on -- it was a

21

scientific basis for it. It is a -- a somewhat

22

simplistic model, but it is something that we found

23

as a guideline and we continue to use. So it wasn't

24

just kind of plucked from the air. I think -- I

25

don't want to people to get that misimpression.
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. Have you or your Commission

2

ever considered recommending a reallocation of

3

resources to accommodate requests that come before

4

you for various uses?

5

MS. NISHIOKA: Currently, because this area is not

6

designated, we do not issue water use permits. So

7

at the current time, it wouldn't be under our

8

purview to do any type of change in use or

9

reallocation as you're talking about. We would have

10

to come in and actually designate the water -- we

11

would have to designate as groundwater management

12

areas like we have done on most of Oahu, and at that

13

time we would issue water use permits. But we have

14

not designated anywhere on the island of Maui.

15

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. So even if you were asked or

16

requested, you would not give any type of

17

recommendation or opinion of anything until a

18

designation does occur regarding any -- any use,

19

whether it be an agricultural use or a resort

20

development use?

21

MS. NISHIOKA: Correct. 'Cause one of the things that we

22

found on Oahu is when you decrease the agricultural

23

use, it does have an effect on the recharge of that

24

area, and that would be probably something we would

25

have to look at before we would make any -- and,
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frankly, a lot of the decisions on how the actual

2

water is used is based on the current zoning that

3

the County and the State sets, and so that has an

4

influence, too, on the way that that water is used.

5

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. So with the State Supreme

6

Court's 2000 ruling on Waiahole, which I -- you

7

know, I understand is more of surface water, but

8

nonetheless there was a discussion and comments

9

given regarding the public trust doctrine as the

10

attorneys have used that phrase, any and all waters

11

would not be part of the consideration --

12

MS. NISHIOKA: Yeah.

13

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: -- of the Court's ruling?

14

MS. NISHIOKA: The ground and surface water are part of

15

the public trust. The Court basically said there's

16

no distinction between the two. There are three

17

public trust uses that the Court has pointed out to

18

us. One of them is domestic use, which is primarily

19

use by people. The second one is stream

20

restoration, which is an environmental factor. And

21

the third one is our traditional and customary

22

practices for Native Hawaiians for stream

23

restoration, taro lohi(?) farming. So those are the

24

uses the Court has said we need to give special

25

consideration to.
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I think there was some discussion and I saw

2

in your correspondence between surface and

3

groundwater interaction. There are places all over

4

the State where there is some interaction between

5

surface and groundwater. It's not present

6

everywhere. So in the case with windward Oahu,

7

there is a one-to-one correlation that we found by

8

studying the aquifer and looking at the pumpage and

9

the effect on the streams. I would say we haven't

10

seen that in Iao, although it's probably present in

11

areas very far on East Maui, towards Nahiku.

12

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: All right. So even with those

13

three areas that you just shared with us, Ms.

14

Nishioka, the -- I think one of the key comments of

15

the Court's ruling was that there would need to be a

16

prioritization of the categories or the use of the

17

water? Would I be correct in assuming that? And

18

that the basic premise would be people first or

19

domestic use first versus agricultural use or

20

business use or any other type of use?

21

MS. NISHIOKA: I think the Court -- I mean, I know people

22

have taken different spins on the case, but I think

23

the Court actually wanted to avoid having an

24

absolute hierarchy of use. And I think one of the

25

things the case showed that there can still be off
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1

stream uses of water, including agricultural uses,

2

but that the Commission must give special

3

consideration, so maybe that's a couple fingers on

4

the scale of deciding, for the public trust uses.

5

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you very much.

6

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Just for clarification, before I

7

call on you, Mr. Nishiki, so basically what you're

8

saying is for domestic use, for what we have, that

9

is a higher priority?

10

MS. NISHIOKA: That is one of the public trust uses.

11

CHAIR ARAKAWA: So utilizing water from different aquifers

12

and crossing over district lines --

13

MS. NISHIOKA: Yeah, the -- the out-of-watershed transfer,

14

and I referred to this a little bit in my testimony,

15

the out-of-watershed transfer is really referring to

16

surface water transfers versus all the discussion

17

that in my understanding we're having now has to do

18

with groundwater. And groundwater doesn't

19

necessarily fall in neat watersheds. You could have

20

an aquifer underlying five or six watersheds. So

21

that that whole discussion of the out-of-watershed

22

transfer is really more a discussion on surface

23

water, which I don't -- I think today we're talking

24

about the groundwater with Iao.

25

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. So bottom line, we can do it,
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that's a priority.

2

MS. NISHIOKA: That's our understanding.

3

CHAIR ARAKAWA: As you understand it.

4

MS. NISHIOKA: Yeah.

5

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Thank you.

6

Councilmember Nishiki.

7

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. Thank you. And I'm glad

8

the courts saw fit not to address which has

9

priority, either urbanization or farming, because I

10

think that every one of you would have very small

11

intestines if it wasn't for the farmers providing

12

you food.

13
14
15
16

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Nishiki, address the
question -COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you.
I want to ask you, in your last paragraph

17

here you said that the Commission has a pending

18

petition to designate Iao Aquifer as a Groundwater

19

Management Area.

20

MS. NISHIOKA: Uh-huh.

21

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: The Commission shall take up the

22

matter at its November 14th meeting on Maui. How --

23

Well, let me ask you this: In looking at how one

24

would decide to designate, you consider the US

25

Geological Surveys as someone being independent, not
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slanted towards development or no development, this

2

group?

3

MS. NISHIOKA: Yeah. We -- we use USGS. I would say,

4

too, that I am proud to have my own staff of very

5

qualified hydrologists that do their own

6

investigation and work. We come out to Iao twice a

7

year and stop -- on top of studying all the data

8

that comes in. It's probably the most studied

9

aquifer outside of Oahu. And so I think it tends to

10

be discussions that we'll have between GS and my

11

staff. So we -- in fact, we're meeting on Wednesday

12

to have some further discussions on Iao.

13

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So you use them as a group that is

14

very objective whenever water decisions or water

15

investigations are done?

16

MS. NISHIOKA: Yeah. I don't think it's a matter of

17

objectivity. I'll just say that hydrologists

18

disagree quite a bit on scientific matters without

19

it being pro or con development.

20

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. Now, when you -- when you

21

look at a study and they show that the chloride

22

level of an aquifer is rising, that there is not

23

enough recharge, and then you see in an area where

24

there is much rain deficit, does that raise your

25

concerns?
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MS. NISHIOKA: I think one of the concerns that we're

2

looking at, and this is a somewhat recent phenomenon

3

is that we are probably having -- And we do the

4

drought program also at the Commission. We are

5

probably having one of the worst droughts

6

historically we have seen in Maui County since --

7

for the last probably 50 years. And, you know, if

8

you have a drought that runs longer than three

9

years, it does start affecting the groundwater. But

10

it is a cyclical phenomenon and so that's one of the

11

things we're looking at.

12

I think the other thing that we are looking

13

at right now is there has been a drop in pumpage

14

over the last 12 months. And as you know for

15

aquifers, there is a lag in recovery between a drop

16

in pumpage and an actual what you'll see for the

17

water levels. So I think one of the things we're

18

analyzing is is there continuing to be a rise in the

19

chlorides, or is it starting to level off given the

20

reduction in the pumping that's occurred over the

21

last 12 months.

22

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: When the Board meets in addressing

23

a Groundwater Management Area, what is the normal

24

time in which you would make a decision based on you

25

mentioned that you have limited information? Is
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this limited information that you have prefaced

2

today something that you would need prior to

3

designating the Iao Aquifer as a management area,

4

designated management area?

5

MS. NISHIOKA: I think it's something that we are

6

interested in getting additional information. I

7

just want to kind of be a little bit clear on that

8

that the Commission has already come to a decision.

9

There was a petition filed about approximately ten

10

years ago, and it has been something we have been

11

watching. And in 1997 the Commission did decide in

12

August that once the 12-month moving average hit 20

13

MGD, Iao Aquifer would be designated. Currently the

14

pumpage is about at 17 and a half. But so there is

15

a pending decision. So the issue for the Commission

16

now is should it continue with its decision that it

17

made in 1997 based on the best evidence available,

18

somewhat sketchy, or should it continue to monitor

19

the situation as it has in the last four years,

20

hopefully get another monitor well in South Iao, or

21

should it go into a designation phase given some of

22

the most recent studies that have come out.

23

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: You know what, I listened to all

24

of that, so you're saying that ultimately it would

25

seem like they are going to designate this area?
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1

MS. NISHIOKA: No. Those are the options that could be --

2

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Oh. What did you say, then?

3

MS. NISHIOKA: Yeah. There are three options that -- you

4

know, when you have a situation, there's three

5

options you can do: You could do nothing, you could

6

do something, or you could do something in between

7

nothing and something. So that's what I was trying

8

to get at.

9

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. You're saying that I don't

10

know so all of what I say is just words until they

11

make a decision.

12

MS. NISHIOKA: Yeah. It's up to the Commission.

13

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. Okay. Let me get back to

14

the first -- the last -- the fourth to the last,

15

fifth to the last paragraph. You also mention,

16

"However, there are several points that were raised

17

in prior correspondence that we feel need further

18

comment. First, we have no legal objection to

19

Section 2.90A.030 entitled Allocation of Water Use

20

contained in Ordinance No. 2003 dated April 17th,

21

1991. We believe that the language that was adopted

22

does not conflict with the Water Code." And then

23

you go on to say, "I think there have been some

24

confusion in this area because the Commission had

25

objected to earlier drafts of the ordinance that we
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believed conflicted with the Commission's

2

jurisdiction and authority," period.
So I passed out to Committee members and I

3
4

think that the Corporation Counsel has this, also,

5

2.90A.030, Allocation of Water Use, and A says, "In

6

those areas where groundwater withdrawal reaches 70

7

percent of sustainable yield, the Council shall set

8

forth the allocation of water use withdrawn or

9

transmitted or both through the Department's water

10

system for planning process." I think this Council

11

that I -- when I read this is this County Council

12

and the words "shall set forth" means that it shall
Y.

13

be done.

14

My question to you is that if the sustainable

15

yield is, as you stated, 20 million gallons per day

16

and the pumpage is 17 whatever, 70 percent would

17

mean that it is, what, 14 million gallons. So does

18

this mean that -- do you take it into arriving that

19

the Council now has the duty to set forth the

20

allocation?

21

MS. NISHIOKA: I respectfully in your -- I wouldn't dream

22

of giving you a legal opinion on your own statute,

23

but --

24

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah.

25

MS. NISHIOKA: -- I think what's a little bit confusing is
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1

your sustainable yield talks about water source. We

2

regulate by aquifers, and I'm not sure whether

3

that's synonymous in your statute. I defer to your

4

Corp. Counsel.

5

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. Okay. I'm done.

6

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Thank you.

7
8
9

Councilmember Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. Thank you very much for
coming today.

10

MS. NISHIOKA: Thank you.

11

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I have a question with regard to

12

drilling permits. Does your agency also issue those

13

permits?

14

MS. NISHIOKA: Yes, we do.

15

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. The reason I'm asking is

16

because it was presented today the proximity of

17

where the wells or at least the pumps are installed

18

close to where the source is. When they're, let's

19

say, placed in an area where they're very close to

20

one another, do you look at that, also, when you're

21

issuing those permits?

22

MS. NISHIOKA: We do. And I think one of the problems

23

that we have is we're a relatively young agency, we

24

just came into being in 1987, and most of the

25

infrastructure that we're seeing problems with was
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done pre '87. But for future wells, we do look if

2

there's interaction with existing infrastructure and

3

we make it really clear to people that they may not

4

be able to pump as much water as they want to out of

5

that well if it were to affect someone else's well.

6

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. And the other question that

7

I would ask you is when those permits are issued for

8

drilling, at that time is the requirement placed on

9

the applicant to continue to give you -- if they do

10

get water, you know, from that well, are they

11

required to install meters so that it can measure

12

it?

13
14
15

MS. NISHIOKA: Yes. Yes. They're supposed to give us
monthly reports by pumpage.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: All right. Is there any

16

authority, if they fail to adhere to your

17

requirements, that you can pull their permits?

18

MS. NISHIOKA: Yes. And there's -- also the statute

19
20
21
22
23
24
25

provides for a fine of $1,000 a day per violation.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you very much.
Appreciate it.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Councilmember Molina, and then
Council -COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
Thank you, Ms. Nishioka, for coming by here
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today to enlighten us. In your earlier testimony

2

you mentioned, I guess, a recommendation from the

3

Commission to the Department of Water to use, I

4

believe, smaller pumps and wells --

5
6
7

MS. NISHIOKA: Actually, our recommendation was to spread
out the distance between the wells.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. And you said, correct me if

8

I'm wrong, that the Department did not go with the

9

recommendation, I guess this was some, what, 10 to

10
11

15 years ago?
MS. NISHIOKA: Yeah. I think one of the problems from my

12

understanding, you guys probably are more familiar

13

with this, is there's been some continuing

14

litigation about the Department developing

15

alternative sources in various areas. So my

16

understanding is that's had some impediment to

17

developing the alternative sources. But the pumpage

18

has gone down because I think the Commission has

19

tried to work with the County's Water Department to

20

reduce that pumpage.

21

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you.

22

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Councilwoman Tavares.

23

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes, thank you.

24

Thank you very much for being here. I wish

25

you were doing a presentation to us because I feel
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your Commission is very important to this whole

2

water issue.

3

Following up on Ms. Johnson's question, we've

4

been told that we don't even know how much is being

5

pumped out anywhere on this island because we don't

6

have control or there's no data from the private

7

wells. Do -- do you not have that data?

8

MS. NISHIOKA: We have the data, but I would be the first

9

to tell you it's not complete. But we do have data

10

from most of the big users. I'd say our problem

11

tends to be the small users that are using, you

12

know, less than probably 50,000 gallons per day and

13

that level. But most of the big users we do have

14

reports from them regularly on a regular basis and

15

we do have some -- we can provide that data. I had

16

inquired about whether we should for this meeting,

17

but I was told it was going to be somewhat of a

18

discussion of Iao and Waihee. But we do have

19

information across the State.

20
21

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Could you share with us a little
bit about your organization?

22

MS. NISHIOKA: Sure.

23

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: How big you are, how you're

24
25

funded, and stuff like that.
MS. NISHIOKA: We're the Commission on Water Resource
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Management. We're set up by the Constitution to be

2

the one agency that basically is charged with this

3

huge mandate to protect, conserve the resources for

4

future generations, which is a bigger mandate than

5

anyone can believe. We have historically been and

6

I've -- there's no secret, understaffed and

7

underfunded. I have a current operating budget of

8

approximately 1.6 million. I have 21 employees

9

including myself and my clerical staff. We only

10

have a presence on Oahu and we travel, as you

11

probably see, quite regularly to different islands.

12

But it's really not enough people to do the kind of

13

work. So we do depend sometimes on additional

14

funding from the Federal government through the USGS

15

program and also with the County Departments of

16

Water Supply.

17

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes. Thank you very much.

18

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Any further questions?

19

Councilmember Kane.

20

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you.

21

Thank you, Ms. Nishioka. Just to follow up

22

on a point that you just made, clarify the fact that

23

you want -- you thought that providing additional

24

information, but if I heard you right, you were,

25

what, discouraged from providing that information?
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2

Can you clarify that?
MS. NISHIOKA: No. I think I was just not sure what the

3

tenor of our conversation was going to be today, so

4

I was -- Actually, our staff has to compile that

5

information to bring it to you. And I am happy to

6

supply you that information. I was just under the

7

impression, and maybe erroneously so, that it was

8

going to be a discussion primarily of the Central

9

Maui Water System, which is comprised primarily of

10

Iao and Waihee Aquifers, and that's the reason why I

11

brought some information, as you saw my testimony,

12

on the pumpage for those two, but did not bring it

13

for the other areas.

14

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: So for clarification, though, you're

15

saying that there's private -- is there private

16

pumping going on in those aquifers that you -- that

17

our Water Supply is not responsible for, but you

18

have the information for?

19

MS. NISHIOKA: I have some. Primarily Iao and Waihee

20

are -- Iao for the greatest part, I would say 99

21

percent of the water usage is your Department of

22

Water Supply. I think the County has a small well

23

for the park system. I think Baldwin High School

24

has a small well, but those are really pretty

25

mainini in comparison to your Department of Water

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

124

LU 10/29/01

1

Supply. Waihee, the Department of Water Supply is

2

again the big user in that area. And -- and with

3

Iao, the Department of Water Supply actually could

4

pump more than the sustainable yield just by

5

infrastructure. So we can supply that information,

6

if you would find that helpful.

7

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Well, I guess -- Mr. Chair, if I may,

8

I guess the importance of understanding the

9

interconnectedness of the aquifers will come to play

10

because if you draw down on one, which we don't have

11

much information on and how it impacts the one that

12

we do have information on and how that's related, I

13

think that was the question that was asked in

14

previous meetings. And so it seemed like it was an

15

important aspect of us having information before us

16

to -- to move forward.

17

As well as the presentations that were given

18

earlier, I think both of them were consistent in

19

saying that they -- there was evidence -- I don't

20

know how concrete the evidence was, but there's

21

evidence there that shows that one aquifer and the

22

drawdown on that aquifer impacts the other aquifer

23

that's right next to it.

24
25

MS. NISHIOKA: Right. There isn't any question that -from our understanding, that Iao and Waihee are
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connected. However, you know, there's been some

2

discussion that the sustainable yield should just be

3

the number that we set for Iao, and that wouldn't be

4

our view of it. We have a sustainable yield for

5

Waihee Aquifer at 8 MGD. We have a sustainable

6

yield for Iao at 20. Were we to combine them, you

7

know, into one aquifer, we would -- we would suggest

8

the sustainable yield would at that point be 28. I

9

mean, that's -- it wouldn't -- in the fact that they

10

do -- because we do have that interaction in various

11

places. The aquifers themselves are not

12

self-contained. It's not like swimming pools next

13

to each other. There are, you know, underground

14

sort of interactions generally between adjacent

15

aquifers, but that was something that the Commission

16

looked at when it first established the sustainable

17

yields.

18

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: And one other final point and there

19

may be one or two questions within there: Clarify

20

with respect to the relationship with Dr. Mink and

21

regarding your folks' arrival at -- of your -- your

22

positions and what dependence or reliance you have

23

on Dr. Mink's findings.

24
25

MS. NISHIOKA: The Commission actually retained Dr. Mink
when it first was trying to establish sustainable
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yields for all the islands. And Dr. Mink did a

2

State-wide study for us at the Commission. And in

3

1990 the Commission adopted the sustainable yields

4

with some adjustments and some work -- I have my own

5

hydrological staff -- came up with our sustainable

6

yields that was adopted in our Hawaii Resource

7

Protection Plan. That's how we established it under

8

the Water Code. So that's how it was done. There

9

was good reliance on Dr. Mink's work.

10

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: And was any other reliable expertise

11

depended upon other than Dr. Mink's to arrive at

12

your folks' position?

13

MS. NISHIOKA: Yeah. My understanding -- I wasn't at the

14

agency at that time. My understanding that our

15

staff did some independent review of it, also. I do

16

have hydrologists on staff.

17
18
19
20

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: And that concurred with Dr. Mink's
findings?
MS. NISHIOKA: Some of it did, I think. I think most -to the most part it was.

21

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Chair.

22

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Thank you. And just for information,

23

Councilmember Kane, we did get some of the

24

information on the wells; however, if you look at

25

the map that we provided everyone at the last
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1

meeting, the Central Maui System versus the Iao --

2

the Wailuku-Iao System were two separate systems, so

3

we sort of concentrated on the Wailuku-Iao System.

4

The pump data that HC&S has, a lot of the large

5

pumps, the Department did provide us information on

6

that, but for this morning's discussion we sort of

7

separated the two out.

8

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Mr. Chair.

9

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Yes.

10

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: With that comment, I would like to

11

ask what concrete evidence do we have that these are

12

separate and distinct aquifers?

13

CHAIR ARAKAWA: They're not separate and distinct except

14

as has been pointed out by the Commission. These

15

are rough lines that are drawn. They do interact a

16

little bit and, as has been pointed out, they're

17

theoretical to a large degree, but it's the way the

18

confirmation is. In looking at all of the different

19

aquifers in the Wailuku area, for instance, the --

20

it's been pointed out very clearly that they do

21

intermix. So they're not very -- they're not

22

absolutely distinct. The general consensus, I

23

guess, the information that we were able to be able

24

to get was that they do overlap, they do mix, but

25

this is the general amount that the State is using
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as a target number to do their work on. So with the

2

best information we have, they're not distinct.

3
4

Okay. Councilmember Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I -- Yes, I -- After Charmaine had

5

asked her question, I had a thought with regard to

6

compliance because obviously you have a limited

7

staff and the information is so critical, though, to

8

planning. If there were a means whereby we could

9

either legally or otherwise try to work with your

10

agency to see the compliance particularly on these

11

readings for all of the meters that are out or at

12

least all of the drilling permits that have been

13

issued, if we were to do that, would that be

14

something that would also assist you?

15

MS. NISHIOKA: Yeah. Absolutely.

16

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: All right. Thank you very much.

17

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Nishiki, and --

18

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you.

19

CHAIR ARAKAWA: -- then Councilmember Tavares.

20

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Linnel, I'm reading from the USGS

21

response of the Iao Aquifer, the groundwater

22

development. I think that this study was done

23

sometime this year. And may I ask you first, the

24

information that you have derived to come to a

25

conclusion that the sustainable yield now is 20
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million gallons a day, is that information -- when

2

is that information that you got -- when was this

3

done? From studies, I guess, that were looked at.

4

MS. NISHIOKA: It has been based on data that we have seen

5

that's also collected by USGS and our own study of

6

the data. I would say that as, again, hydrologists

7

can look at the same data and have very different

8

ideas about what that data means. We are looking at

9

whether that data suggests that things are sort of

10

flattening out to a new equilibrium versus a

11

continuing upward trend. That's one of the things

12

that we're looking at right now. And there has been

13

some discussion between ourselves and USGS and,

14

again, good scientific minds sometimes have

15

different opinions.

16

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Let me ask you this question just

17

because it's in one paragraph and you probably have

18

the ability to explain it to us in simpler language.

19

I'm going to read about, it says here, "Although the

20

value of sustainable yield for the -- of the Iao

21

Aquifer is presently -- presently -- presently 20

22

million gallons a day, the response of the aquifer

23

to pumping in terms of water level declines and the

24

rise in the freshwater-saltwater interface has

25

raised questions concerning this value at least with
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regard to existing rates and distribution of

2

pumping. The ability to maintain a pumping rate of

3

about 20 million gallons a day at existing well

4

fields was examined by comparing the estimate --

5

estimated top of the transition zone for average

6

1996 water levels to depths of the production wells

7

assuming that water levels have stabilized. Water

8

levels were still declining in '96 with pumpage at

9

20.35 gallons per day, however, thus if the

10

calculations indicate intrusion of the transition

11

zone into the wells for assumed stable water levels,

12

sustained pumpage at 20.35 million gallons a day

13

from existing infrastructure would not be feasible."

14

So --

15

MS. NISHIOKA: Should I ask Steve? No.

16

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Very shortly. But I --

17

MS. NISHIOKA: Well, I think the USGS is trying to say --

18

and it's something that we saw also in 1996 and 1997

19

when the Commission was looking at designating, is

20

there were some very heavy pumping two years prior

21

to the August 1997 Commission action and you were

22

seeing pumpage in -- in not just 20.3, that's a

23

12-month average, but you were seeing pumpage at 23,

24

24. And what we found when you pump at that level

25

is that, yeah, you do lose wells. That's how you

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

131

LU 10/29/01

1

guys lost -- I mean not you, but that's how the

2

Department lost Mokuhau II, because as I think your

3

staff member was showing, you had that up-coning

4

effect. And one of the things that USGS has been

5

concerned about is there's a feeling that the lens,

6

the freshwater lens which overlies -- it's like

7

layered jello, you know, you have the saltwater and

8

then you have the transition zone which would be

9

like your green jello and then you have the yellow

10

jello on top. Okay. The yellow jello they're

11

worried is thinning, okay, and that's -- that is a

12

concern of ours, too. We're having some -- we have

13

been taking our own data and we're not showing as

14

great an increase in the shrinking of that lens.

15

And that's one of the things that we're looking at

16

now.

17
18

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Well, I'm sure you don't want that
lens to shrink any more.

19

MS. NISHIOKA: It's not. And we probably would suggest

20

that you have shallower wells as one of the

21

responses --

22

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Right.

23

MS. NISHIOKA: -- to the lens. So you're not in -- what

24

may have been in the yellow jello is now in the

25

green jello, if I can put it that way.
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1

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Right.

2

MS. NISHIOKA: And so that's one of the things that we

3
4

would suggest to the County.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And -- and let me ask you this,

5

being that if on top of that you see less rain

6

falling in an area, this would not in any way help,

7

perhaps, the recharging of the aquifer?

8
9

MS. NISHIOKA: That's correct. But, as I said, again,
drought is a cyclical thing.

10

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Right.

11

MS. NISHIOKA: I was just coming in today and somebody was

12

saying you guys are looking like you're having more

13

normal rainfall, but --

14

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah.

15

MS. NISHIOKA: -- it remains to be seen.

16

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I leave that up to God. And I

17
18

know that none of us are the miracle makers here.
Lastly, if we were designated an area, would

19

you give more input into planning decisions? Let me

20

ask you this in this way, let's pose the question

21

this way: When the Honolulu County Council --

22

because now most of the places are designated areas,

23

would you have more information, number one, would

24

you at that point -- if asked, and I want to know if

25

you have been asked in Honolulu about development,
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would you then be able to give a more scientific

2

answer to a request that is being asked of as to

3

whether an aquifer can be pumped at a higher rate?

4

MS. NISHIOKA: I wish I could tell you yes, but that

5

hasn't been our experience. It's relative to

6

legislative funding. And as a Department since 1991

7

DLNR has been cut 40 percent. So I would like to

8

tell you that was so, but it hasn't turned out in

9

history to be so, where we got increase -- it's all

10

a facet, frankly, of resources. Monitor wells are

11

expensive. I spend half a million to a million

12

dollars a monitor well. And those things are very

13

important for us to get the information, but because

14

you have to drill it so deep, yeah, so you get all

15

the way through the layers, it costs a lot more than

16

your regular production well. So it's a facet of

17

staffing, resources for us to get the information.

18

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And my last question finally is

19

that --

20

CHAIR ARAKAWA: That's your third last question, Wayne.

21

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. Thank you.

22

You have looked at the inundation of wells

23

here and some of the past history in which we have

24

dried up a well and now less rainage in this area

25

and so some of the concerns that have been raised by
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U SGS and perhaps even Water Commission. And then

2

you look at East Maui in which, perhaps, there is a

3

lot of water available and yet we have maybe failed

4

to do the EIS or am having conflicts with different

5

communities in regards to locating water source in

6

these areas. Would that be a recommendation on the

7

face of what you know today as where this County

8

should be headed in developing water source

9

development?

10

MS. NISHIOKA: I think it's hard for us to say. I mean,

11

our whole statement has just been we should not

12

continue to develop sources in Iao or, you know, the

13

Central Maui area, that we really do need to look

14

for alternative sources. Whether they come from

15

Haiku or Hana or Nahiku or further, you know, it's

16

not something that we would look at. We're just

17

looking at Iao and the fact that we are at pretty

18

much --

19

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: The max.

20

MS. NISHIOKA: -- the max.

21

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you.

22

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilwoman Tavares.

23

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah. Hi. I think in response to

24

Mr. Kane's question you had made a statement about

25

the pumpage between Iao and Waihee and that actually
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the Department can pump more than the sustainable

2

yield. Did I hear you correctly?

3

MS. NISHIOKA: No. I would -- I said historical -- yeah,

4

historically in the two years prior to 1997 the

5

Department of Water Supply was pumping in excess of

6

the sustainable yield.

7

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Oh, okay. I just wanted to

8

clarify that. Got to put glasses on my ears, I

9

guess.

10

Getting back to the monitoring wells, that's

11

a question I had here, who is responsible for saying

12

where they go and who does the funding? What kind

13

of funding is available for those monitoring wells?

14

I just heard you say that you folks were responsible

15

for that.

16

MS. NISHIOKA: It comes in different forms. I'll tell you

17

in Honolulu the Board of Water Supply puts in a lot

18

of money for monitoring wells. As a cumulative my

19

understanding is the Departments of Water Supply as

20

a whole probably put $9 million a year into

21

monitoring wells. We -- ours is all dependent on

22

CIP funding. We haven't gotten any CIP funds for

23

monitoring wells for the last two years. We also

24

work with USGS, who gets some Federal funding for

25

matching programs. They also have a drilling
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program with several of the counties for monitoring

2

wells and production wells.

3

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: So would you say that this is

4

something that we need to do as a County? Because I

5

keep hearing that we need more data and the way you

6

get data is through these monitoring wells, is it

7

not?

8
9
10

MS. NISHIOKA: Yeah. That's been -- that's one way for us
to get the information.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: What other ways do you -- the data

11

that you say you folks would like to see or USGS

12

would like to see, whoever, how do we get that kind

13

of data? What does it take to get the data that you

14

need?

15

MS. NISHIOKA: I think one of the things -- two things

16

primarily. One of them is for us to get a deep

17

monitoring well we think in South Iao. I think the

18

south thing is to quantify or come to some

19

understanding of all the inputs. I think Steve did

20

a good job of showing the inputs into the system

21

that we don't have information, starting with fog

22

drip, soil moisture, percolation. I mean, those

23

kind of issues are really important to figure out

24

your total amount of water.

25

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: So it's all not -- it's not all
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just monitoring wells --

2

MS. NISHIOKA: It's --

3

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: -- there's other things, too?

4

MS. NISHIOKA: Right.

5

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay.

6

MS. NISHIOKA: Because of the some of the things that I

7

think Steve was talking about at the USGS

8

presentation would be more -- wouldn't be

9

monitoring, would be active research.

10

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: So is the funding for these types

11

of activities other than the monitoring wells the

12

same sources of funding available for those kinds of

13

data gathering?

14

MS. NISHIOKA: Right. Correct.

15

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. Thank you.

16

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Thank you.

17

I have a couple of questions for you. In a

18

lot of the discussion we've been concentrating on

19

the Iao Aquifer as being the source of water, and at

20

the same time earlier we talked about bringing in

21

water from other districts, other areas, and that

22

being one of the priorities that's -- that the

23

courts seem to have. Now, if we were to bring water

24

in from East Maui, we have the EMI system that's

25

currently doing a lot of the irrigation water system
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coming through, is that something that the State

2

Commission would be recommending rather than

3

drilling or taking more water out of Iao Aquifer?

4

MS. NISHIOKA: No. I think what we were suggesting is

5

that the -- there be other sources developed outside

6

of Iao. And where those sources are, we don't

7

really have a recommendation. My understanding is

8

the EMI system is primarily a surface water system,

9

which is a little bit different than what we're

10

talking about drilling wells to hit the groundwater.

11

So --

12

CHAIR ARAKAWA: So if -- but if we were to say we're not

13

going to take any more water out of Iao Aquifer and

14

as a resource group for the entire state on water,

15

judging from what the numbers are, 476, you know,

16

plus or minus, understanding that's very variable,

17

and that the majority of that water comes from East

18

Maui, how would you then get the water from where it

19

is to where we need it? How would the State

20

recommend we do that?

21

MS. NISHIOKA: That would be difficult for me. I mean,

22

that's probably an infrastructure issue. I would

23

say that in Honolulu the Department of Water Supply

24

has a unified system, so they actually transport

25

water all over the island from various places, so
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I -- I -- we kind of defer to your Department of

2

Water Supply as to where the infrastructure should

3

be. We have just suggested it not be in Iao.

4

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. So anyplace but Iao, is what you're

5

saying? Okay. Thank you very much.

6

Councilmember Molina.

7
8
9

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
Ms. Nishioka, just for clarification again
with regards to the process for making the

10

determination for sustainable yields at various

11

aquifers, about how many Commissioners or people on

12

this Commission will make this determination -- make

13

these determinations?

14

MS. NISHIOKA: There are by statute six people on the

15

Commission. It's chaired by the chairperson of the

16

Board of Land and Natural Resources, who is now Gil

17

Coloma-Agaran, who is a Maui resident, a Department

18

of Health Director, Booth Anderson, and then we have

19

four citizen members that are appointed by the

20

Governor.

21
22
23

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Do you have the names of those
citizens?
MS. NISHIOKA: Yeah. The four citizens are Brian Yoshida,

24

Bobbie Geralt, Buddy Nobriga, David Nobriga, and

25

Monte Richards.
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. And after this meeting on

2

November 14th about how soon can we expect their

3

recommendation from the Commission?

4

140

MS. NISHIOKA: There will be a staff recommendation on the

5

14th. Generally the Commission does act on the

6

recommendations at that meeting unless they feel,

7

like you guys do, further information is needed.

8

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. And one more question, Mr.

9

Chair, regarding deep monitoring wells, what level

10

of priority has this deep monitoring well for the

11

Iao Aquifer been given? Has it been a high

12

priority?

13
14

MS. NISHIOKA: Next to what? Next to the schools? The
hospitals?

15

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah.

16

MS. NISHIOKA: Not much.

17

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. And about how long would it

18

approximately -- if -- assuming funding is given,

19

about how long would it take to get a well like this

20

constructed?

21

MS. NISHIOKA: Probably between a year to two years.

22

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you.

23

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Any further questions? Now is your

24

chance to ask Linnel questions because after this

25

she's gone. Okay. Then thank you very much.
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MS. NISHIOKA: Thank you for inviting me.

2

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Council Members, it's 12:30 and

3

what I propose now is we take a lunch break to

4

approximately 1:30 and reconvene. At that time the

5

Chair is going to go into a little bit of the

6

highways presentation and then we're going to be

7

discussing LU-5. Okay. Recess till 1:30.

8

(Gavel.)

RECESS: 12:34 p.m.

9

RECONVENE: 1:37 p.m.

10

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. I'm going to call the Land Use

11

Committee back to order. (Gavel.) Welcome back

12

from lunch, Council Members. Thank you for your

13

indulgence of letting Linnel Nishioka testify and

14

have questions and answers before lunch since she

15

had to leave at 1 o'clock. We're going to get back

16

to the testimonies we were hearing prior to that.

17

We have five more people who have signed up

18

to testify. We're going to start with Steven Suyat,

19

followed by William Kamai.

20
21

. BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY . .
MR. SUYAT: Thank you, Mr. Chairman, Alan Arakawa, and

22

members of the Committee. My name is Steven Suyat

23

and I'm with the Carpenters Union and I'm one of the

24

representatives, also the apprentice coordinator.

25

Listening to what the issue was about on water and
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1

traffic and I believe that we heard a lot of concern

2

on this. And I also heard about the people who

3

works in Makena who came and testified for the

4

project. We, the members of the Carpenters Union,

5

Local 745, are in support of this project and

6

approve the changing of the zoning.

7

Also I want to talk to some of the Council

8

members about ten years ago, maybe longer, in the

9

early or the late '80s and early '90s, we had

10

discussed about this issue on water and traffic and

11

the ten-year community plan. And I believe some of

12

the Council members was there at the time. And

13

today when developers come out and try to push for

14

projects, we still are on the same issue of water

15

and traffic. Where did we go wrong when we had this

16

come out before you in the past on this community

17

plan? Why wasn't the developers and the rest of the

18

community wasn't aware about how you guys was going

19

to approach this kind of issue?

20

I been going to these public hearings in the

21

past. And we discuss it because we had Wailea 670

22

in those days when we had fight for it. And we

23

discuss about the issues of water and traffic. And

24

today, the year 2000 -- Now look back now, this is

25

in the '80s and in the early '90s. We're in the
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year 2001 and we're still discussing about water and

2

traffic. Where are we going? Are we proceeding

3

ahead?

4

The bad things about it is what happened in

5

New York has been happening here in the State of

6

Hawaii where we have to meet ends to make sure that

7

everybody is working. Hotel is laying off by the

8

thousands. And we, the construction workers, are

9

the only one that the Mayor have seen sitting down

10

and try to talk about how bad it is for the

11

construction workers. It's going to get bad. Its

12

really going to get bad.

13

My concern that I brought in 50 members or 50

14

people from the Work Force Department to sign up

15

with our program in our apprenticeship, also sign up

16

as a member of the Carpenters Union. Now my job is

17

here. This morning I heard, do we need

18

construction? When you see Steve Suyat from Local

19

745 come up and talk, yes. I'm going to come up

20

here and testify for all projects that's going to

21

support my members and their families and putting

22

food and sending them to good schools and get

23

educated. Yes.

24
25

If we want to solve the problem about water
and roads, then we better go down to the
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and put signs that says no more visitors in the

2

State of Hawaii or in the County of Maui. Stop all

3

cars. No selling. But we can't do that because the

4

government can't help us. Government can't help us

5

because they only have a few amount of money, amount

6

of money that can be appropriate in this

7

infrastructure. Now the time has come that we

8

should put up more jobs. I speaking for all my

9

friends that the

10
11

who come and seek help from

us.
Now, for few of you who have been in the

12

Council for a long time, you know the issue. And

13

for the ones that just started, you have a long way

14

to go, but pick up the things from the old Council

15

members still. Going to get all this expertise to

16

come up and talk about the water issue, the road.

17

You know how many times I see Bob Siarot coming up

18

here and talking about the road? That's been way

19

back. Come on, people, we must move on. We're in

20

the year 2000 and if we want to get our

21

infrastructure like the Mayor want to get that thing

22

done before we open up some more of this thing and

23

when the airlines started to open up and go full

24

force, we better make sure those roads go in.

25

And I'm worrying about my members going back
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to work. It's not going to start today or tomorrow

2

or next week, it's not going to start next year, but

3

it's going to start five or ten years down the road.

4

That's where I'm looking at. And the gentleman came

5

up here, do we need more construction? For me, yes,

6

I do if I have to feed 400 of my members to send

7

them out to work. And that's why I'm here today in

8

support of the Makena Project District and changing

9

of zoning.

10
11
12
13
14

I thank you very much.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Thank you. Any questions for Steve?
Thank you very much.
William Kamai followed by Glenn Shepherd.
MR. KAMAI: Aloha and good afternoon, Chairman Arakawa and

15

Council Members. My name is William Kamai. I am a

16

union organizer for Local 745, Hawaii Carpenters

17

Union. I am in favor of this zoning change for

18

Makena Resort Corporation. Right now he's passing

19

out a petition with 162 signatures of residents of

20

Maui who feel the same way I do, but they had to

21

work and couldn't make this hearing today.

22

I ask that you support this zoning change and

23

to vote yes. Thank you.

24

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Thank you very much.

25

Any questions for William? If not, thank
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you.

2

Glenn Shepherd, followed by Daniel Grantham.

3

MR. SHEPHERD: Good afternoon. My name is Glenn Shepherd.

4

I live in Wailuku Heights overlying the Iao Aquifer.

5

I want to keep that a nice aquifer. I don't want it

6

screwed up. Please, give us your best shot, give it

7

your best thinking. There's a lot of

8

misunderstanding going on around about what is an

9

aquifer and what you can do with it. One of the

10

previous testifiers said, oh, we've got all this

11

technology, we can go to the moon and come back.

12

Well, I tell you, taking care of the Iao Aquifer is

13

a lot more complicated than going to the moon

14

because you don't have people with -- have to deal

15

with emotions and people that just don't understand

16

things.

17

Understanding of the dynamics of underground

18

water systems or any kind of fluid underneath the

19

ground is a very difficult subject and you have to

20

be careful. If you err wrongly, then you're in

21

trouble and you can't get out of it easily for a

22

long time, sometimes never. You can screw up an

23

aquifer and that's it, and then you have to live

24

with it. So, please --

25

And, Wayne, I'll bet you a nickel candy
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1

bar -- oh, wait a minute, they don't have nickel

2

candy bars anymore. I'll bet you a Baby Ruth that

3

they designate the Iao Aquifer. Are you on?

4

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Sure.

5

MR. SHEPHERD: Okay.

6

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Glenn, no public gambling.

7

MR. SHEPHERD: Last thing is -- I approve of this project.

8

I approve of it until you take care of some things

9

and not create more problems than the ones that we

10

already have, which has been based on lack of

11

planning. Going back to 1970 when I first came here

12

we haven't had any planning. We have underway here

13

a program to have a master plan or a regional plan,

14

and this thing should not go in until all the

15

considerations of a master or a regional plan are

16

taken care of. So you got to take care of the

17

planning, got to take care of the traffic, got to

18

take care of the schools, got to take care of the

19

infrastructure and all the transportation and go

20

concurrently or before you do anything in Makena

21

unless you want to create more problems for the

22

County of Maui. Thank you.

23

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Thank you very much.

24
25

Any questions for Glenn? If not, thank you,
Glenn.
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Daniel Grantham, followed by Ruben Aguas.

1
2

MR. GRANTHAM: Good afternoon, Council and Chair. I

3

wanted to express my appreciation that you got --

4

have been getting experts here to elucidate some of

5

these really complex issues. I want to let -(Inaudible).

6

?:

7

MR. GRANTHAM: Oh, I always forget. Daniel Grantham.

8

Sorry.

9

The original presentation to the Water Board

10

done by the USGS and Bill Meyer and John Mink and a

11

couple hydrologists from the State will probably be

12

on Akaku next week, so I imagine you'll get a notice

13

in the e-mail and you can get the straight stuff. I

14

think there's some very good information there, the

15

interaction between -- well, not the interaction,

16

but the presentations of Bill Meyer and John Mink

17

are very important, as is also the interaction

18

between John Mink and Mr. Shepherd, who just spoke

19

here.

20

You know, I kind of have to feel for Roy. I

21

see him out there pacing the hallways and it seems

22

unfortunate to me that we have such a

23

confrontational process here. Maybe there's another

24

way to look at this process that this is how we

25

hammer something out, that there's nothing wrong
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1

with having people come here for different opinions,

2

that that's a valuable part of the process to just

3

work out the best thing for Maui. And that we

4

should, you know, appreciate this, how it happens.

5

Maybe there's another -- an easier way for us to

6

look at that.

7

Now, I just want to leave you -- I mean, I'm

8

sure you have had that thought yourselves many

9

times. And you have heard plenty -- you have heard

10

the experts. I just wanted to raise that thought

11

that this is okay, you know, we're -- jobs, we all

12

want jobs, we all know jobs are important, you know,

13

and we all want sustainable jobs. We want a job

14

that's going to be here for more than five years.

15

We want jobs where somebody can have a job that

16

lasts their life, that they can give to their kids,

17

they know it will be there. That's -- I think we

18

could all agree on that.

19

One other thing, which is not my idea, but

20

was told to me by an elderly Hawaiian gentleman is

21

kanaka waiwai is a rich man, the money will follow

22

the water. And I think I'll quit there. Thanks.

23
24
25

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Any questions for Daniel? If not,
thank you, Daniel.
Ruben Aguas.
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Is there anybody else who wants to testify

2

that has not testified? Because after Ruben, I'm

3

going to close testimony otherwise. Okay. Thank

4

you very much. Proceed, Ruben.

5

MR. AGUAS: Yeah. Hi, my name is Ruben Aguas, and I am an

6

organizer for the Hawaiian Carpenters Union and I

7

live in South Maui. I'm here today to voice my

8

support for the approval of the Makena project. And

9

I ask you Council members to support the Makena

10

project, also. I believe the development team has

11

come up with a project that will be a good addition

12

to South Maui. The Makena project has been designed

13

to meet the community needs, for example, the

14

development team has bought -- has brought water to

15

the local residents from Makena and they developed

16

the roads. They are obviously here for the long

17

haul. Most importantly, the Makena project will

18

provide a steady stream of construction jobs over

19

the next 10 to 30 years. These are jobs for local

20

families like yours and mine. And since the project

21

will be built out over an extended period of many

22

phases, we would be able to utilize the local work

23

force without having to import workers from outside

24

of Hawaii to fulfill the jobs. And with all

25

uncertainty in the economic future of this state, we
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1

should welcome the investors who are willing to put

2

their money into the Maui economy. So I ask you,

3

please, support the Makena project. Thank you.

4

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Thank you, Ruben.

5

Any questions? If not, thank you very much.

6

And as no one has signed up to testify, we

7
8
9

are going to close testimony.
. END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY .
CHAIR ARAKAWA: At this point, Council Members, I'm going

10

to ask Bill Medeiros to give us a little bit of an

11

overview as to where the State highways are and some

12

of the projects that are designated for this area.

13

If you could, Bill.

14

MR. MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you. And basically I just

15

want to do a real quick one. Yeah, we were

16

requested to extract the State highways, and so we

17

have done that. In fact, I can go through the basic

18

layers. We have the general rules layer, that's

19

pretty much everything in the -- on island, but we

20

have it County-wide, so that's Kahului area. And

21

from that we took the existing County -- I mean,

22

existing State highways based on information that

23

was on the internet. And there's always a little

24

argument about the area out past Waihee, but that's

25

pretty much the State highway system.
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And then according to -- or attached to the

2

October 11th letter was six projects where we're

3

going to put the projects in in the darker color.

4

So new alignments is shown in dotted lines. The

5

Kihei Up-Country Highway. And this is the Lahaina

6

Bypass Road. I'll zoom in so you can see that a

7

little bit better.

8

In addition to those, four widening projects:

9

One on Piilani Highway, one on Mokulele Highway, one

10

on Kuihelani Highway, and one on Haleakala Highway.

11

And it's basically we've got the information on the

12

internet, internet on the GIS.

13

And we're also preparing data a little bit to

14

some of the new population data that we have been

15

getting, so that basically every dot represents

16

about 50 people. It's not exactly where everybody

17

lives, but that's within the close proximity

18

depending on the size of the blocks.

19

And, again, that's the State highway map and

20

as well as the project, the proposed projects. So I

21

just wanted to kind of do that overview so you know

22

that we have this data in the system now.

23

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Any questions from Bill -- for Bill?

24
25

In the back of your binders under the item,
the last insert is a reply from State DOT as to the
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1

projects that are scheduled. So if you'll go

2

through that, you'll be able to see where the

3

projects are, the scope of the work, the approximate

4

cost of each phase, the design and construction, and

5

where it's at in funding. Okay? What Bill has

6

given you is a brief overview on the map on the GIS

7

system on where these projects are and what they

8

are, but the details are in your binder.

9
10

Any questions on the -- that information?
Most of the information on the highways has

11

been presented in the past. Piilani, the restriping

12

has been gone over, the carrying capacity and the

13

upgraded carrying capacity part where it has gone

14

through. And if there are any other questions, I

15

believe we have a representative from the State

16

Department of Transportation.

17

I forget, would you introduce yourself.

18

MS. URASAKI: Jadine Urasaki, Deputy Director.

19

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Jadine Urasaki, the Deputy Director

20

for State Highways. So if you have questions on the

21

projects, she's here to be able to answer those

22

questions.

23

No questions on --

24

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yes, I do.

25

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Councilmember Nishiki. Jadine, if
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you would come up, please.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I want to turn to page 3 of that

3

handout, October 26th, 2001, Item No. 5, which

4

describes the highway improvement.

5
6

CHAIR ARAKAWA: You're looking at page 4, Councilmember
Nishiki?

7

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yes.

8

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Jadine, do you have a copy of this?

9

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No. 5. Do you have it in front of

10

you?

11

MS. URASAKI: Yes.

12

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Thank you.

13

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. Who are you and what is

14
15

your responsibility?
MS. URASAKI: I am the Deputy Director for the Department

16

of Transportation. My role is both for highways,

17

airports and harbors. I oversee all of the capital

18

improvement as well as the maintenance operations,

19

all of our projects.

20

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. Nothing to do with our

21

community plan, but just the project itself, the

22

last time that we had this discussion we see that

23

this interim is called the Interim Piilani Highway

24

Widening Improvements, Mokulele Highway to Kilohana

25

Drive. This has been a concern for many residents,
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visitors, and those of us that work. We see that

2

this project is only going from Mokulele to

3

Kilohana. So why -- what is that -- the -- which

4

is -- what is it, it's a four lane, but what about

5

from Kilohana now moving into the area that has been

6

in question where, if I may, all our hotels are

7

located, where the specific zoning change that is

8

being requested also is -- will be impacted --

9
10

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Wayne, will you pull the mike closer to
you, please.

11

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. And so this is all that the

12

State's going to go from in the funding of this

13

project which includes a million dollars of County

14

of Maui money?

15
16

MS. URASAKI: For this particular project, that is
correct.

17

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay.

18

MS. URASAKI: I think you're referring to the extension.

19

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Which only goes to Kilohana.

20

MS. URASAKI: Yeah. I think the question that you have is

21

the Piilani extension that goes further out; is that

22

correct?

23

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yes.

24

MS. URASAKI: Where we are on that as well as the future

25

permanent widening for this area as well is we need
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to redo our Maui Long Range Transportation Plan,

2

which we'll be doing next year. And that would

3

pretty much tell us whether or not -- how we will

4

proceed in doing that project. One other thing you

5

need to keep in mind is that we do have

6

approximately $130 million of Federal funds per year

7

and, you know, this is for our State-wide projects

8

that include both the counties as well as the State.

9

And, you know, therefore, you know, Piilani

10

extension as well as the permanent widening would

11

have to compete with all of the other needs of Maui.

12

And then, again, you know, the needs always appear

13

to be more than what the amount of Federal funds as

14

well as State funds that we have available and, you

15

know, therefore priorities have to be made. And

16

that's done through our -- for Maui, it's done on

17

the local level with the Citizen's Advisory

18

Committee. And, you know, they have a policy

19

Committee upon which Councilmember Molina sits on

20

with the Director of Planning, Director of Public

21

Works, as well as our Director of Transportation,

22

and that's where the decisions will be made in terms

23

of what will -- Maui's priorities will be and that's

24

how projects would be scheduled.

25

So at this time -- this interim project that
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1

the developers have been willing to participate in

2

will help and provide hope to a lot of the people to

3

get something done now while we still look at what

4

the future will be.

5

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah, I understand. I understand

6

that statement that you make. I think all of us

7

envision if we're going to really deal with the

8

concern of vehicle traffic and congestion on the

9

highway, that that leg from Kilohana to the area

10

that is in question in regards to the zoning needs

11

to be addressed. And so you said that this long

12

range plan is going to be drawn up. When do you see

13

that plan becoming a reality?

14

MS. URASAKI: That plan will start -- we'll start the

15

process of updating that plan. It's an old plan,

16

it's 1997, so every five years we do update it. So

17

we will be starting shortly to get the public input

18

and comments, but it will start I would say

19

relatively end of this year, beginning of next year,

20

and hopefully be completed by end of next year.

21

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So you intend to have the long

22

range plan completed by the end of the year 2003, or

23

'2?

24

MS. URASAKI: 2002 we hope to have it completed. And that

25

would depend upon, you know, a lot of things in
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terms of meeting with the public. If -- meeting

2

with the different I guess societies, the

3

organizations, as well as yourselves and the

4

comments that we get back, you know, it could take a

5

little bit longer, but we are looking to have an

6

updated plan at the end of 2002.

7

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Let me ask you, this interim

8

Piilani Highway which is just a portion of the

9

entire project that we envision that we have certain

10

statements within our community plan which takes it

11

all the way past Kilohana, when you use the word

12

"interim," what does this mean compared to what we

13

may hope to see in its final completion?

14

MS. URASAKI: Well, what --

15

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: What is the difference?

16

MS. URASAKI: Interim is somewhat similar to temporary.

17

In other words, we're staying within our

18

right-of-way areas. We're not going outside --

19

outside of the right-of-way areas and we're not

20

increasing or widening beyond what our current

21

pavement structure is -- currently exists in terms

22

of shoulders. So that would -- what that does is

23

that it allows for both the environmental and

24

planning process as well as design to be expedited a

25

lot quicker.
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. So I see where this interim
project will be completed by March 2003.

3

MS. URASAKI: 2002.

4

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Oh.

5

MS. URASAKI: The construction will be completed by March

6

of 2003.

7

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah, that's what I mean. When

8

you say "construction," you mean that whatever is

9

planned for this interim plan will be completed?

10

MS. URASAKI: Correct.

11

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. Now --

12

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Nishiki, you had a question

13

about Kilohana into Makena Resort project, and I

14

believe the Department of Public Works had commented

15

on this earlier, so I'm going to ask Deputy

16

Director -- or Director Dave Goode to -- sorry about

17

that, Dave -- to --

18

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Can I finish with her first?

19

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Well, I wanted her -- I wanted him to

20

answer that particular part of your question, then

21

we'll go back, since you did bring that up.

22
23

Dave.
MR. GOODE: Thank you, Chairman. So basically the

24

question was the carrying capacity of Wailea and

25

Makena Alanui?
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1

CHAIR ARAKAWA: To Kilohana.

2

MR. GOODE: To Kilohana. If I recall correctly, we'd

3

reviewed that because it was brought up in the

4

Traffic Impact Analysis Report as provided as part

5

of the application. And if I recall correctly, that

6

was not -- that was not deemed an area that was

7

going to be impacted heavily. Wailea Alanui from

8

Kokahi north to Kilohana, at least most of it, is

9

four lanes already. Part of it is two lanes. And

10

based on the anticipated disbursement of traffic,

11

where they anticipated folks to be going, those

12

assumptions looked reasonable because most folks

13

would take Piilani and we didn't think there would

14

be much of an impact on the existing roadways Makena

15

and Wailea Alanui.

16
17
18

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Now you may go back with Jadine. I was
just trying to answer the question.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And that's what I mean. Yeah,

19

David did answer the question again. But I'll stay

20

with the young lady.

21

The construction that you plan to have

22

finished at the end of the March 2003, do you -- can

23

you tell me from Mokulele to Kilohana how wide -- or

24

do we expect to see a four-lane highway be

25

contiguous from Mokulele all the way to Kilohana, is
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that -MS. URASAKI: I think that is the intent. Right now the

3

designers are at the 30-percent review process

4

period. I haven't personally seen the plans. I

5

know they'll be coming up to do their presentation

6

and they could probably explain a little bit more in

7

detail, but it is going to be a restriping to add

8

two more -- two more lanes to the -- to the highway.

9

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And can you tell me what will be

10

done in regards to either jogging paths or bikeway

11

paths on Piilani?

12
13

MS. URASAKI: The bikeway paths will be taken up and the
County -- the Mayor has --

14

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Taken out or up?

15

MS. URASAKI: They will be taken out and be put into the

16
17
18

North-South Collector Road.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And so there would be no room for
either biking or pedestrian walkways?

19

MS. URASAKI: That is correct. Again, this is a highway

20

area, so we are trying to -- it's more of a safety

21

issue for us on highways. And so we are working

22

with the County Department of Public Works and we

23

are looking to move the bike paths on to the

24

North-South Road Collector.

25

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Now, in areas of the highway, have
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you -- or you have some people that have looked at

2

the entire project and you said that there will be

3

four lanes all the way through. And what about --

4

what do they call those lanes? -- turn lanes,

5

storage lanes? Is there going to be any storage

6

lanes for --

7

MS. URASAKI: Yes.

8

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: They will be accommodated?

9

MS. URASAKI: They will be accommodated.

10

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. I'm done.

11

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Any further questions on the

12

highway process?
So if not, Jadine, on Mokulele going to --

13
14

from Piilani to Kahului, we're looking at that

15

roadway, are we going to be -- I believe it's

16

phased.

17

MS. URASAKI: The Mokulele Highway widening project?

18

CHAIR ARAKAWA: The widening project is being phased.

19

Could you tell us approximately how long that is

20

going to take to complete that project?

21
22
23
24
25

MS. URASAKI: We are hopeful that we will be completed
about 2007.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: So it's going to be phased in how many
phases?
MS. URASAKI: Five phases.
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CHAIR ARAKAWA: Five phases to be completed by 2007, is
what the goal is?
MS. URASAKI: We are hopeful that we could be completed in
2007.

5

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay.

6

MS. URASAKI: Of course, that is contingent upon the

7

Federal appropriations. And as most of you know, we

8

are going through a reapportionment on the Federal

9

authority. T21 will be over in 2003 and so the next

10

Federal Congressional appropriation is up for review

11

right now, so it really will be contingent upon

12

whether or not Hawaii will continue to get their

13

fair share of Federal dollars.

14

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. And just for brief background, in

15

creating the long term plan, could you briefly go

16

over the -- how that is done?

17

MS. URASAKI: I personally would -- I'm not -- I'm sorry,

18

I'm not sure how that is done. I do know for the

19

State-wide plan our State Transportation Planning

20

Office has been coming out here and they've been

21

going through meeting with the CAC, meeting with

22

different organizations. And I would presumably

23

assume that the same thing would happen with the

24

Long Range Transportation Plan, that there would be

25

an outreach done to the Maui contingent and a
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process would be developed for them to provide

2

input.

3

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. But basically it is a collaborated

4

effort between the State, County, and the Citizens

5

Group --

6

MS. URASAKI: That is correct.

7

CHAIR ARAKAWA: -- Advisory Group which Councilmember

8
9
10

Molina is on?
MS. URASAKI: Yes.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: So the Administration -- the County

11

Administration, the State Administration, plus the

12

Citizens Advisory Group are involved in creating the

13

prioritized system?

14

MS. URASAKI: That's correct. Director Min will be

15

involved, so would Director Goode because a lot of

16

the Maui general plans would have to be consistent

17

to what the Long Range Transportation Plan would

18

have for Maui.

19
20

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Thank you very much.
Perhaps either of you two directors could

21

explain what is happening on the County level as far

22

as prioritization of the highways in this area.

23

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, can we finish up

24

questioning with the Deputy Director?

25

CHAIR ARAKAWA: You have more questions for her? I
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thought we were done with --

2

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: No. She made me think of a few, so

3

I have a few and I think my neighbor has a few.

4

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. I apologize. I didn't see any

5

hands go up, so I thought we were done.

6

Councilmember Hokama.

7

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.

8

Do you folks have a policy as it regards to

9

highways versus, you know, maybe smaller roadways of

10

the intervals between stoplights or something of

11

that nature?

12

MS. URASAKI: In generalities, yes, we do.

13

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: What would -- Would you be able to

14

tell us this afternoon, share with us what those

15

minimal interval standards might be.

16
17
18

MS. URASAKI: I may not. I don't know if the consultants
would be able to answer that question.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. Well, I would just hope that

19

you would take into account that, in my opinion,

20

I'll just speak for myself, Deputy Director, that a

21

highway is used to facilitate movement of traffic

22

and that the more signalization you may want to

23

consider tends to break that flow. And since we

24

are -- we're talking about the South Maui region and

25

you want to talk about Piilani, I'm talking about by
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the Safeway intersection as well as within a -- less

2

than a mile you have another one at Lipoa Street,

3

which is by the golf course and Kihei Elementary

4

School. I would have hoped that the State would

5

have considered a connector road to Lipoa and just

6

use one intersection and do the improvements at that

7

one instead of having two very short term

8

signalization areas that -- well, I consider it an

9

impediment to movement of traffic flow.

10

MS. URASAKI: No, that's absolutely correct. We do look

11

at that. As far as connector roads, that is the

12

jurisdiction of the County. We are currently

13

working with the County in terms of looking at

14

certain areas where we could eliminate some of the

15

streets and therefore take away some of the

16

signalizations that are there.

17
18

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So you are looking at also taking
away, then, if I heard you correct?

19

MS. URASAKI: That is correct.

20

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I would -- yeah, I would really

21
22

appreciate that review, Deputy Director.
Now, let's get back to Mokulele, since the

23

Chairman did bring that up. You know, I don't know

24

if you're going to be here for the next project, but

25

the next project also has a temporary signalization.

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

167

LU 10/29/01

1

And, again, I'm sure you've traveled that road, like

2

all of us have. I would hope that you would -- it's

3

your policy to minimize and find new alternate ways

4

of providing safe entry/exits to Mokulele instead of

5

a stoplight or signalization option, whether it be

6

through an underpass, overpass, working out some

7

kind of agreement with our neighbor, HC&S, on use of

8

their roadway system, which I think they've at one

9

time offered to work out some type of option with

10

the State, that you would continue to look at that

11

types of projects instead of the old, standard,

12

traditional put a stoplight and then continue to

13

break flow.

14

MS. URASAKI: Yes, we do look at all these different

15

options, especially to minimize our safety issues.

16

However, with that, we also need to look at a

17

balance of what the funding cost would be. So, you

18

know, again, we're only -- we only have so much

19

money that is available and so many priorities that

20

Maui has. And so taking that into account with what

21

we can and cannot do, we do look at that.

22

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. Have you -- We have in our

23

code the ability to condition a zoning request.

24

Does -- Would the State consider assessing those

25

that come before you and your Department to utilize
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a State highway to assess a potential user for a fee

2

to pay for that improvement to the highway system?

3

MS. URASAKI: You're talking more on pro rata share? Is

4
5
6
7

that correct? Or -COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Well, I mean, or make them pay the
whole share.
MS. URASAKI: Right now we -- we haven't come up with a

8

policy on per rata share or any type of share. Of

9

course, if any developer wants to pay for the whole

10

share, you know, we'll -- we'll kindly look at that.

11

We don't ever turn away money. But in terms of how

12

we're going to assess it, we are working with John

13

Min and his staff in looking at how we can come up

14

with a, I guess, methodology on how we can -- impact

15

fees and how we can assess that with developers.

16

Currently, right now on Oahu, we're doing a study in

17

the Ewa region and we're going to base how we, you

18

know, apply that to all the neighbor islands from

19

that study. In the meantime, I know your Department

20

of Planning here is moving forward on that and so,

21

you know, we're trying to keep pace with them.

22

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So you would have no problem --

23

problem or would you consider supporting the County

24

imposing certain conditions to ensure payment of

25

certain improvements to a State facility, whether it

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

169

LU 10/29/01

1

be a roadway or easement or any type of --

2

MS. URASAKI: Yes. Yes, we would --

3

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: -- public use program.

4

MS. URASAKI: We would look into that. I mean, we

5

wouldn't turn it away. We would look into it and

6

consider it based on the needs that we have.

7

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you very much.

8

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember -- woman Johnson.

9

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. I did not see on the handout

10

the extension of Piilani that would go up towards

11

Kaokoa or that region. I know that there was a

12

million dollars, I think it was in STIP this year,

13

at least for the study for the extension of Piilani

14

to connect to some location Up-Country. Could you

15

comment on that?

16

MS. URASAKI: I don't think it was in the STIP. I think

17

it was a legislative add-on during this past

18

session. And I think you are correct, it was a

19

million dollars. Again, going back to what I

20

mentioned earlier to Councilmember Nishiki, the

21

extension of Piilani as well as any permanent

22

widening of Piilani for the future, we need to go

23

back and take a step back and look at the needs

24

within the Maui Long Range Transportation Plan. And

25

until that is done, we are not committed in any
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formal fashion to pursue the extension at this time.

2

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you very much.

3

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Any further questions?

4
5

Councilmember Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Do you take into consideration

6

community plan -- the law and community plan, which

7

is law that we try to follow, when you formulate

8

long range plans?

9

MS. URASAKI: We work with, again, the County. So the

10

input that the County has with their General Plan

11

would correlate with what we put in for the Long

12

Range Transportation Plan.

13

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Let me -- let me try to explain

14

what we have in regards to -- under transportation.

15

It says, "Develop and implement" -- and maybe you

16

can see what you think the words mean, "Develop and

17

implement a well planned road and public

18

transportation system to allow residents and

19

visitors to move safely, effectively and comfortably

20

within the region. All the improvements should be

21

planned, designed and constructed as prioritized

22

under the implementing action section below such as

23

generally described as the Kihei Traffic Master

24

Plan. Undertake transportation system improvements

25

concurrently with planned growth of the Kihei-Makena
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region. Require adequate interregional highway

2

capacity including the widening of Piilani and

3

Mokulele Highway to four lanes prior to construction

4

of major projects south of Kilohana Road or mauka of

5

Piilani Highway."

6

MS. URASAKI: So your --

7

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: When we got a statement like that,

8

how would you look at what Piilani Highway should

9

look like south of Kilohana Road, mauka of Piilani

10
11
12

Highway?
MS. URASAKI: That is the County's General Plan; is that
correct?

13

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. Well, the --

14

MS. URASAKI: So that would be the County's, not -- so the

15

objective of the County General Plan, you know, is a

16

little bit different from the Department of

17

Transportation's and what their -- you know, their

18

mission is is safe -- safe transportation, capacity

19

enhancements as well as socioeconomic value. I

20

don't know if John or David could answer that better

21

in terms of the community general plan and their

22

tie-in to our State Long Range Transportation Plan,

23

but they may be better able to address this answer

24

than I can.

25

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Did that answer your question, Wayne?
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. That's fine. She --

2

The other question I have is -- Unless

3

someone has questions in regards to Piilani, I want

4

to go to Mokulele.

5
6
7
8
9

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Does anyone else have questions on
Piilani?
We were doing both, Wayne, so go ahead with
Mokulele.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. I guess it's the next one

10

above that, No. 4, which is your Puunene Avenue

11

widening and Mokulele Highway widening, Kuihelani

12

Highway to Piilani Highway. Is this the project

13

that is what we call the Mokulele Highway

14

four-laner?

15

MS. URASAKI: That's correct.

16

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. So this construction,

17

according to what is being described, is a project

18

as designed in five phases due to funding

19

constraints. And then it talks about it will be

20

advertised December 2001, construction notice to

21

proceed May 2002, and expected completion of this

22

phase May 2003. Then it says estimated construction

23

cost is $15,740,000. Then it talks about the total

24

construction of the project is estimated at 85

25

million with each phase estimated to be between 15
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and 20 million. The funding source is State and

2

Federal funds. Then you told us about the 130

3

million in Federal funds that are distributed

4

State-wide.

5

Where within the priorities that the State

6

has identified is Mokulele Highway and the $85

7

million it would take?

8
9

MS. URASAKI: It's not just the State. Again, it goes
through a process upon which Councilmember Molina

10

does sit on. And that process -- when they went

11

through that process, Mokulele Highway did come out

12

as one of the priorities for Maui. And because of

13

that, it's given priorities for the next, you know,

14

five -- five, six years to be funded, because,

15

again, it is a large project. $85 million is a lot

16

and we can't afford, you know, just for Maui to get

17

85 million. And so it is spread out between 15 to

18

20 million a year. But it is one of Maui's priority

19

projects right now.

20

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: You know, Riki asked an -- not

21

interesting question, a question in regards to some

22

sort of working together and looking at perhaps why

23

developers like coming to Maui because they could

24

probably get away with not putting in certain

25

infrastructure, and because of this we have fallen
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back. Maybe it's time for them to divvy up if they

2

want to come to Maui and be a partner here. And

3

Riki asked you a pointed question on how to do it.

4

Wouldn't the answer be very simple, if you want to

5

play, pay?

6

MS. URASAKI: That is something that the County is

7

responsible for. The State doesn't dictate land

8

use, so it would have to be something taken up at

9

the County level.

10

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Have you seen it done? Only

11

because I have read of a project on the Big Island

12

with Mayor Steve Yamashire and he may have a lot

13

more straight answers given. But do you know if the

14

Council was involved in telling the developer, you

15

want your development, pay -- pay for the highway?

16

MS. URASAKI: No.

17

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And this involved like 240

18

high-end homes and he was going to improve 6 miles

19

of a highway that cost 40 million.

20

MS. URASAKI: No, I'm not aware of such an agreement made.

21

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. Thank you. I'm done.

22

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Any further questions? Sure?

23

Okay. Thank you very much, Jadine.

24

Okay. Any questions for the Department on

25

the highways and this project?
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah, you know what --

2

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Sure.

3

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: -- I want to know, looking at

4

past, Mr. Chairman, in regards to funding of

5

projects, can we say that -- And, Jo Anne, maybe you

6

want to add to this. You know, were talking about

7

West Maui and some of the projects that were going

8

to be done there by State government, whether it be

9

Honoapiilani, whatever. It would seem to me that

10

unless this County really starts some discussion

11

with developers, as Riki had kind of said, are we

12

behind and are we going to fall further and further

13

behind?

14

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Nishiki.

15

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Which adds to many, I think, of

16

our concerns as decision-makers.

17

CHAIR ARAKAWA: If I interpret your question correctly as

18

do we assess developers for projects and do we have

19

a development fee associated with highways? Perhaps

20

Dave or -- Dave, could you answer that, what the

21

rules are as far as assessment for highways?

22

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Well, let me ask it this way: Is

23

this Administration either going to do, or does it

24

need some poking by this Council to say we ain't

25

going to -- you ain't getting it unless we get the
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infrastructure done? Let me ask you that -- that's

2

the way to ask the question.

3

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Nishiki, with due respect, I

4

would like the Department to ask whether or not we

5

do have a fee assessment that we do assess

6

developers for highways, because that is what the

7

County requires, I believe. David.

8
9

MR. GOODE: Councilmember Arakawa, in response to
Councilmember Nishiki's question, it's probably two

10

fold and I'll start off and then maybe John can wrap

11

up. When projects come in -- and we have to keep in

12

mind that projects can be small or big. They could

13

be small as a kitchen remodel or a room addition.

14

They could be as big as perhaps the project you're

15

discussing today or other projects, project

16

districts. We believe it's fair that everyone be

17

assessed their fair share. I think the Supreme

18

Court of the United States has been rather clear

19

about assessments and that there has to be a

20

rationale nexus for those assessments and that

21

fairness should prevail.

22

As you know, this Council has worked very

23

hard to make sure that the traffic impact fee for

24

South and West Maui gets reinvigorated and John can

25

talk about where that is at now. For individual
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projects that are big enough to require a traffic

2

impact report, whether it's through the SMA, change

3

in zoning or another process, the traffic impact

4

report after it's been reviewed and approved --

5

which doesn't mean it gets approved when it's first

6

submitted because sometimes we send them back.

7

Those traffic impact reports identify where the

8

impacts are going to be created and what the

9

appropriate mitigation shall be. And that's what we

10

agree on, and that those mitigations are done.

11

Usually the mitigations are closer to the project.

12

They're not five miles away or ten miles away.

13

They're usually real close. And that's why I think

14

the traffic impact fee is so important and this

15

Administration is working real hard to get that

16

done.

17

I don't think it -- I think it would be

18

remiss to say that we're not doing enough, that

19

we're letting people get off scot-free, because the

20

bottom line is everybody should pay, whether you're

21

building an ohana or 1,400 units or whatever the

22

unit count is. So maybe I'll -- maybe John could

23

follow up on the fee part.

24
25

MR. MIN: Yeah. Just a couple of comments. First of all,
I think for almost every project that comes before
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the Planning Commission today, traffic is a major

2

issue. And through the development authority that

3

the Commission has they can impose conditions to

4

require certain improvements, to require

5

participation in improvements or, you know, other

6

mitigative measures. And it is -- I would say in

7

100-percent of the cases there are numerous

8

conditions that require developers to mitigate

9

various impacts. So that's part of the review

10
11

process.
In terms of the traffic impact fee, we are

12

working with the Department of Transportation. Part

13

of the work that they're doing in updating the

14

traffic -- the land transportation plan for Maui is

15

very important for our traffic impact fee model

16

because in their work they actually come up with the

17

long range forecasts. So we've been working with

18

them, you know. We're sort on different time

19

tables, so we've been pushing them because we need

20

that component of their work for our -- for our

21

effort. So we are working with them on that.

22

In addition to that, we're also coordinating

23

with the Public Works Department that's updating the

24

Kihei Traffic Master Plan. So there is -- you know,

25

those are the kinds of efforts that are -- that are
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currently -- you know, that are occurring.

2

And as I mentioned, traffic is a major issue

3

and if you follow our Planning Commission meetings,

4

I think you'll know that they do a lot -- they look

5

very closely at that and they do try to impose

6

conditions that they feel will help mitigate the

7

conditions.

8
9

CHAIR ARAKAWA: So to put it all in a nutshell, at this
point whatever we require as a County for the

10

developers fair across-the-board that has been

11

established is being charged and assessed? Is that

12

a correct statement? And we can -- and we can, and

13

perhaps Corp. Counsel can explain a little bit on

14

what we can impose on an individual project as far

15

as what the nexus needs to be in order to establish

16

that fee or however you want to call it, an extra

17

cost.

18

MR. MIN: Well, Mr. Chairman, I guess in talking in terms

19

of, I guess, impact fees, you need to set --

20
21
22

CHAIR ARAKAWA: No. Just charging an individual developer
a fee, how do we have to set that up?
MR. MIN: Well, you need the -- the basis for setting the

23

fee. I mean, you know, you need to set the baseline

24

on what the per unit cost would be per unit. And

25

without that, you know, then you could face problems
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of it being declared a -- I guess an unauthorized

2

tax. So to impose a fee, you need to set the basis

3

for, I guess, calculating that fee on a per unit

4

basis.

5
6

CHAIR ARAKAWA: And that needs to be uniform
across-the-board?

7

MR. MIN: That's correct.

8

CHAIR ARAKAWA: So we cannot go project by project and

9

arbitrarily set a fee. It needs to be something

10

that has a nexus that is uniform in nature that is

11

clearly established for the community benefit in a

12

uniform manner.

13

MR. MIN: That's right. And I guess you could distinguish

14

between use types, for example, commercial use

15

versus a single family residence versus a public

16

facility, et cetera.

17

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Right.

18

MR. MIN: But, you know, it's based on use that's a

19

unified or a consistent number that you're going to

20

apply.

21

CHAIR ARAKAWA: So consistent throughout the County.

22

MR. MIN: That's correct.

23

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Thank you.

24
25

Councilwoman Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: In some areas, Mr. Chair, I think
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one of the things that has happened is certain

2

conditions are established by local jurisdictions

3

such as certain road has to be in place or certain

4

infrastructure has to be in place before development

5

can go forward at any level. And I think what's

6

happened in those jurisdictions, Mr. Chair, is that

7

those individuals who want to then come forward with

8

the develop -- development and they want to proceed,

9

they realize that that's a requirement and so that

10

what they have done is, in essence, said, well,

11

because it's not going to be done any time soon

12

either by State or County, they step forward and

13

they do it. But there's nothing that would prohibit

14

them from going ahead and doing that, at least in my

15

understanding. And if Mr. Minatoya has any comment.

16

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Corp. Counsel.

17

MR. MINATOYA: I think where we've been getting away with

18

charging or requiring developers to construct

19

certain improvements is basically that they have

20

agreed to go along with those conditions. If they

21

don't agree, that's where we have a problem. But

22

where they get into trouble if they don't agree is,

23

while we can't -- the County can't use it against

24

the developer in assessing the project, you know,

25

then there would be an adverse impact to, for
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example, traffic or water or wastewater if they

2

don't put in the improvements and, therefore, their

3

project would not be approved on that basis. And

4

so, you know, without their consent to having those

5

conditions imposed on their project, their project

6

wouldn't be able to move forward anyway.

7

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Councilwoman Johnson.

8

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: But just to -- but just to ask --

9

add to that, in the areas that I am speaking about,

10

basically the jurisdictions have pretty much said,

11

well, okay, we know what our infrastructure needs

12

are and there are certain responsibilities that

13

government has in order to keep traffic flowing

14

smoothly, whether it's on behalf of the State or the

15

County. And so what they have said is that, well,

16

we'll have to figure out, then, how we're going to

17

accomplish that. If somebody chooses to step

18

forward and does that, they're -- they're certainly

19

not -- just as, you know, the young lady alluded to,

20

they're not going to say, no, we're not going to let

21

you do that. If somebody wants to step forward and

22

they know that that's a requirement in order for

23

development to proceed, just like development of our

24

water resources, what people have been doing in

25

other areas is they step forward and they do it.
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But there's no connection necessarily between the

2

approval of their specific project because it's not

3

a condition and what has to take place. These

4

things are just in a general sense and not tied on

5

specifically to their projects.

6

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Right. As long as we're clear that it's

7

voluntary and not going to be held against the

8

development if they don't volunteer. So we cannot

9

phrase it or we cannot imply or we just cannot

10

create a situation whereby the development depends

11

on this volunteerism. I think that's the point that

12

Corp. Counsel is making.

13
14

Councilmember Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah, thank you. And that -- and

15

maybe our Corp. Counsel can look at this, it's the

16

Sunday, March 25th, 2001 Maui News. And in it it

17

says, "Construction is scheduled to begin next month

18

on the long-awaited bypass road from Keauhou to

19

Kealakekua and Captain Cook on the Big Island. The

20

5-mile, $25 million road will be paid for by 1250

21

Oceanside Apartments, developer of the Hokulia(?)

22

Luxury Housing and Golf Project two miles north of

23

Kealakekua Bay. The firm is a partnership between

24

Jackline Airlines and Arizona investor Lyle

25

Anderson. Then Big Island Mayor Steve Yamashire
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required the developer to post a bond to ensure the

2

highway project would be done without taxpayer

3

cost." And then it talks about traffic concerns

4

that they had.

5

So I think what Jo Anne is saying and what

6

all of us are alluding to is that, you know, the

7

young lady assistant came here and said 130 million

8

in Federal funds, eh, maybe it will come, maybe it

9

won't, and probably it will be late because of --

10

due to the other projects within the State. I think

11

Riki and this Council wrestled with, hey, why should

12

we give $1 million for our Hawaii Maui County

13

taxpayers when a developer should be paying for it

14

perhaps. And, yet, we manage to squeeze it out

15

because the State said they're going to come with 3

16

million and then the one developer said, well, we're

17

going to pay mainini money for this traffic impact

18

study and the other one says something else, anyway.

19

But the question is, as has been brought up

20

today, we want to be fair with big boys and small

21

boys. I don't wish to play different kinds of games

22

with them. But the question is is that this

23

so-called volunteerism isn't going to get it. Who

24

going to take out money if the other guy isn't going

25

to do it? No way. So we got to be tough and we
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say, eh, you like come Maui, you like to put

2

something up, dig, put up, because we need roads and

3

we need water development and everything else. And

4

I think that's fair.

5

We ain't going to come up with anything fair,

6

Mr. John Min and Mr. -- ah -- Assistant Public Works

7

Director, because the nickel and the dime or the

8

quarter or the 75 cents, you ain't going to be able

9

to find a real fair situation. But I think we --

10

this government cannot keep on digging to -- to fix

11

this infrastructure. It's big money. We haven't

12

even got to the Water Department to find out how

13

much it's going to cost to develop water sources

14

somewhere in East Maui or wherever we decide to go.

15

And I don't think you going to tell the residents of

16

Maui County to go put that money up. I think they

17

will tell you, put it aside, nicely. I was going to

18

use the word shove it. And then tell the

19

developers, if you want to come here, then put up

20

the money.

21

And I think this is a hard line, but this is

22

something that people in Maui County will say it is

23

fair. It is high time we do it. Otherwise, John,

24

you're going to keep on approving projects and then

25

you're going to tell us to figure out how the

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

186

LU 10/29/01

1

infrastructure is going to be addressed. And that's

2

what's in our hands all the time. And you know

3

what, we don't have fun doing this, despite that you

4

put it in our hands. It is not fun sitting right

5

here, but we'll do it.

6

But, also, if you want to approve projects,

7

give us some answers on how the infrastructure is

8

going to be addressed. Let's work together and take

9

that hard road and make hard decisions in how we're

10

going to develop Maui County. I think this is

11

finally where we got to stand here in Maui County

12

today. We cannot keep ongoing, let them go, let

13

them go, let them go, go get more and more and more.

14

We ain't got it.

15

And that's all I got to say, Mr. Chairman. I

16

hope that this Council and this Administration can

17

come together and really act on this because I don't

18

think it's fair for Makena to be waiting, also, but

19

at the same time --

20
21
22
23

CHAIR ARAKAWA: I'm glad to hear that, Councilmember
Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: -- sorry, I'm not going to approve
it without the infrastructure in there.

24

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Again --

25

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And let's go dig the money from
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these guys that -- I thought I saw here that my

2

staff gave me from some testimony that we've got

3

something like 1,700 units that have been given

4

approval that haven't been built yet just in South

5

Maui. Let's go get it from these guys.

6

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Well, Councilmember Nishiki, I believe the

7

Department has already stated that Mokulele is on

8

schedule. It's a five-step program and the time

9

schedule has been pretty much set. Piilani has also
been pretty much set.

10

What I'm going to do now is we're going to

11
12

shift to LU-5 as an item. The National Guard

13

representatives that are here are going to have to

14

be catching flight soon and they have been waiting

15

all morning and half the afternoon for their project

16

to come up. So at this time I'm going to ask all of

17

you to refocus to LU-5.

18
19

5

CONDITIONAL PERMIT FOR THE NEW ARMORY FOR THE HAWAII
ARMY NATIONAL GUARD (C.C. No. 01-219)

20

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Let's see. We have -- The National Guard

21

has brought in an entire staff to be here for

22

questions if we have to answer -- have any questions

23

to ask them on LU-5 item, which is the Conditional

24

Permit for the new armory at the Hawaii Army

25

National Guard on Mokulele Highway. We had some
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questions last time. Hopefully what we're

2

discussing this morning as far as -- or this

3

afternoon as far as the highway is concerned, we'll

4

answer some of those questions.

5

Mr. Munekiyo, perhaps you could introduce all

6

of the members that you have brought with you from

7

the National Guard, their expertise, so that if the

8

Council members have questions, they can ask those

9

appropriate questions.

10
11

MR. MUNEKIYO: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
My name is Mike Munekiyo. I'm the planning

12

consultant for the Department of Accounting and

13

General Services. DAGS is the applicant for the

14

proposed new armory facility in Puunene. Hawaii

15

National -- Army National Guard is the user. And

16

you may recall, Council Members, it was back in

17

August that this item first came before you. At

18

that time there were a number of questions that were

19

raised, but due to the unavailability of the

20

National Guard personnel at that time we were not

21

able to answer all of the questions. I think the

22

Chair did put those questions in writing, and we

23

have submitted responses back to the Committee.

24
25

What I would like to do this morning is -- or
this afternoon is ask Brigadier General Clarence
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Agena, who is the Deputy Adjutant General for the

2

Department of Defense, to speak on the general need

3

for this prbject. And he does have with him a

4

number of his staff people who are specialists in

5

various areas, aviation operations, engineering, so

6

forth, who can answer the questions, but, again, I

7

believe the responses have been submitted.

8

Just to note, there was one question relating

9

to the timing of Mokulele Highway and the completion

10

of this project. This project is scheduled to be

11

completed in early 2004. And, of course, given the

12

five-phase program that DOT had just outlined, we do

13

not anticipate Mokulele Highway, at least that

14

portion fronting this project, being completed by

15

opening date. So we are asking the Council to

16

consider the somewhat unique situation here where we

17

do have a fairly important State project that has

18

been in the planning stages for a long time and that

19

there may be some, I guess, delays in when Mokulele

20

might be completed versus when this project is going

21

to be completed.

22

So at this point I would like to ask General

23

Agena to just speak to the project in general. And

24

he will have his representatives answer specific

25

questions which the Committee may have.

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

190

LU 10/29/01

1

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Welcome, General.

2

MR. AGENA: Mr. Chair, Council Members, thank you for

3

taking the time off for -- to listen to us, anyway,

4

but we feel that this is a very important project,

5

the Maui Consolidated Readiness Complex on Mokulele

6

Highway in the Puunene area. I emphasize the word

7

"readiness" because we, the National Guard, need to

8

have that improved readiness for both Federal and

9

State emergencies. Currently we're involved in

10

both. We're involved in the Federal emergency

11

that's going on right now, as you see our members at

12

the airports. We're also prepared -- preparing

13

ourselves for other issues such as we are in the

14

middle of hurricane season, as -- and all of you are

15

aware as far as our involvement in that.

16

Among the other things that we really owe to

17

our soldiers and the people of Maui is an improved

18

quality of life. And we feel this new Maui

19

Consolidated Readiness Complex will improve the

20

quality of life for our soldiers and also for the

21

people of Maui.

22

As Mr. Munekiyo mentioned, I am Clarence

23

Agena, formerly from Lahaina and also my heart is

24

still in Maui. Family is still here in Maui, but I

25

am currently the Deputy Adjutant General for the
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State Department of Defense and also, in fact, in a

2

couple more days, I will also be the Commander of

3

the Hawaii Army National Guard. So I am here with

4

two hats on as a Deputy Adjutant General of the

5

State Department of Defense and also as the

6

Commander of the Hawaii Army National Guard for

7

which Charlie Company, Second Battalion, 299

8

Infantry is one of the subordinant units of our

9

organization.

10

We're looking at a 30-acre site, of which

11

36,000-square-foot footprint is on that site, 29,000

12

square feet for the armory facilities itself and

13

approximately 7,000 square feet for the

14

organizational maintenance shop. I'm not going to

15

belabor it, but I'm sure you understand that what

16

we're doing is trying to consolidate what we

17

currently have at our 47-year-old Kahului Armory and

18

our 28-year-old organizational maintenance shop that

19

is located at Paukukalo and trying to consolidate

20

those two activities into the Mokulele area in

21

Puunene, the old Puunene Airport structure.

22

We're looking at -- currently we're looking

23

at a $14.6 million project, out of which 25 percent

24

of which is from the State. And it could increase.

25

If we get more State legislation, it could increase
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maybe up to $17 million potentially. But this is a

2

project that we feel will bring a lot of good things

3

for not only for the National Guard, but really for

4

the people of Maui and the State of Hawaii.

5

At this time I would like to introduce to you

6

some of the members of my staff that I have brought

7

with me. Chief of Staff of the Hawaii Army National

8

Guard, Colonel Vern Miyagi; my -- our State Aviation

9

Staff Officer, Colonel Gary Hara. We have our

10

Facility Management Officer or Chief Engineer for

11

the Hawaii Army National Guard, Colonel Richard

12

Young. And we also have -- I also have with me our

13

Operation Aviation Officer, Lt. Colonel Daniel

14

Oshiro, and our Civil Engineer with the Hawaii Army

15

National Guard, Major Rodney Graham. Also with us

16

is our Federal representative, the United States

17

Property and Fiscal Officer who looks over all

18

Federal resources that we, the National Guard,

19

expend, we have Colonel Michael Rawlins, the United

20

States Property and Fiscal Officer.

21

At this time I would like to open to -- and

22

try to answer any questions that the Council and the

23

Committee may have.

24
25

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Committee Members. Last time we were
having the discussion there were questions about
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aviation as well as the highway capacity, if you

2

recall back, so we do have experts here that can

3

answer aviation questions as well as we have the

4

financial officer to explain why they need to have

5

this approved now without the condition of

6

concurrency with the highway. I think those are the

7

major issues that we brought forth.

8
9

So Councilmember -- Councilwoman Johnson, you
have the floor.

10

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. I really appreciate you

11

coming. And, you know, with the sad event that

12

happened on September 11th, I think we here in Maui

13

County look very differently at this request as it

14

comes before us.

15

The question that I have would be: Do you

16

believe that having that facility as separate from

17

the airport, which I know was kind of discussed last

18

time when you were not here, do you believe that

19

that would give you a greater amount of flexibility

20

in terms of the -- any operations or potential

21

readiness operations that you might engage in if

22

there were an emergency?

23

MR. AGENA: The answer to that question is yes. First of

24

all, being an organization the way we're organized,

25

the close -- the proximity of the organization to
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the airport really will add -- will not have any

2

impact as to our function, as to the readiness as

3

far as supporting the State and also improving our

4

readiness for Federal emergencies. It would -- it's

5

more a convenience being close to an infrastructure

6

where transportation is readily available. However,

7

that will not be a deterrent, being further away.

8

We do have facilities throughout the State that are

9

not close to the airport, and we are operating and

10
11

functioning appropriately.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. I say that because I think

12

from a standpoint of consolidation of a lot of our

13

core response, you know, I guess teams, you would be

14

one of those teams and I think we would be, in my

15

view, much more vulnerable all being in one location

16

as opposed to having some separation, so -- And I

17

also share the concerns of the Chair and other

18

members with regard to the Mokulele situation. I

19

think it would be unfortunate if you would have to

20

be held up by a -- you know, by a roadway

21

construction over which you really have no control,

22

and particularly where you have to respond to the

23

needs of the citizens.

24
25

MR. AGENA: Yeah. I believe the location that we are
right now is more restrictive and more confined to
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our operation, being situated in the commercial/

2

industrial area where the old fairground used to be.

3

Back then when it was constructed and I was

4

building -- growing up as a child playing my

5

football games at Lahainaluna, Maui High, the old

6

fair gate at that time, the way the Kahului Armory

7

was there, it was no problem. But now as other

8

infrastructures are building around it, it's

9

becoming more of a -- a distraction for us versus

10

being out in the industrial -- proposed industrial

11

area of the Puunene, old Puunene Airport. I think

12

that it would be more advantageous for us there.

13

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Well, I just want to say

14

personally I really appreciate what you're doing not

15

only for us, but for all of the citizens that you

16

have to look over and after. And all of your

17

families I'm sure must be very stressed at this

18

point, too. So I really am very grateful for what

19

you are doing, you know, for protecting all of us

20

and for the role that you play in our community. So

21

I just wanted to thank you personally. And I would

22

like to say that you have my support for this

23

particular project.

24
25

MR. AGENA: Councilwoman Johnson, I appreciate your
comments. I really thank you.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you.

2

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Hokama.

3

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Good to see you again, General.

4

MR. AGENA: Councilman Hokama, how are you?

5

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Fine, thank you.

6

General, I believe your consultant has made

7

you aware of additional planned projects in and

8

around where your project is being proposed and some

9

of it may happen, some of it may not happen. We may

10

relocate fairgrounds program to that site, we may

11

not. We have organizations of a nonprofit Maui

12

Economic Opportunities and Transportation Baseyards

13

as well as additional facilities. Do you see your

14

project being compatible enough with other potential

15

development in and around your area?

16

MR. AGENA: Very compatible since our operation's

17

basically closely related to being an industrial

18

kind of operation. Whatever infrastructure goes in

19

there, I think we are very compatible. We have --

20

we are a community-minded organization, as -- and we

21

do have also facilities that are in a similar kind

22

of location, such as our facilities in Pearl City,

23

where we do have major infrastructure there with

24

high industrial type of complexes there.

25

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. And why I bring that up,
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General, is that at the August meeting I believe

2

some of the information that was shared with us was

3

the ability of you possibly using some type of

4

aircraft, whether it be helicopter type of aircraft,

5

the need for refueling as well as the carrying of

6

live munitions. And so from a safety standpoint,

7

you see it being still very compatible with other

8

civilian domestic uses?

9

MR. AGENA: If we had to land any kind of aviation or have

10

any kind of aviation operations in the proposed

11

complex, it would be strictly for training and

12

emergency. We do have CH 47 Chinook helicopters and

13

also UH 60 Black Hawk helicopters available to the

14

National Guard for training purposes. When I say

15

"training purposes," I'm saying to the fact that we

16

do have -- our major training areas are either

17

Pohakuloa Training Area on the Big Island, or on

18

Oahu, Schofield Barracks, Kahuku's or Makua Training

19

Area. That unit is a small, light infantry type

20

organization and requires extensive training areas.

21

And if -- not if, but when scheduled training

22

requires the unit to fly to the neighbor islands,

23

whether it be the Big Island, Oahu, potentially we

24

could use CH 47s or UH 60 for smaller lift to be

25

transported to the neighbor islands on at least --
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at the maximum, once a month, but that will be for

2

12 consecutive months of neighbor island training.

3

But, more realistically, plan on once a quarter or

4

every three months or four times a year there could

5

potentially be a lift. But I may have to add that

6

we also -- in our Air National Guard we also have

7

C130s, Hercules airplanes, and we do a lot of

8

transporting interisland with the C130 aircraft and

9

we fly out of Kahului Airport with those aircraft.

10

As far as ammunition, the unit main --

11

primary weapons systems are small arms, all

12

categorized small arms; M-16, the squat assault

13

weapon, and also the M-9 Barretta pistol. So if

14

there are any weapons -- ammunition to be within

15

there stored, it will be strictly for -- a small

16

amount for civil emergencies, and which we do have

17

proper physical security means for those ammunition

18

and weapons system.

19

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. General, also being in

20

basically our general aviation and commercial

21

aviation flight path when landing into the trades,

22

that would not be a logistical or a potential

23

problem for your operations when you do need to have

24

helicopter lift capabilities and requirements?

25

MR. AGENA: No, it wouldn't be a problem for us. Well,
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first of all, you mentioned refueling, all our

2

refueling if anything will be done at the airport.

3

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Kahului Airport.

4

MR. AGENA: Yeah, Kahului Air. We won't be doing any

5

refueling. Only if there was an extreme emergency,

6

then we have to bring in a -- a fuel tanker to be

7

able to do refueling operation at our facility. But

8

our primary refueling operation will be at Kahului

9

Airport.

10

As far as air traffic, with our helicopters,

11

they usually want to us fly from the north coming in

12

over the airport at the appropriate altitude coming

13

in, or, if necessary, it could come in from the

14

south close to Ma'alaea, over Ma'alaea, and then

15

going to the airport. Normally that would be

16

ingress traffic route. Same thing if we're going

17

out to the Big Island or back to Oahu, we'll be

18

taking probably -- most likely we'll be taking the

19

same route, or potentially if we're going to the Big

20

Island, we could really fly up and go over Haleakala

21

towards the Big Island. So there are many

22

opportunities and avenues of ingress and also flying

23

out of the area if we had to.

24
25

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you, General. My
understanding is our Department of Water Supply is
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asking you to bring in a 12-inch line from I guess

2

the West Maui Mountain side of Mokulele Highway. Is

3

that within your scope of funding parameters and use

4

of Federal funds or State funds?

5

MR. AGENA: We have already programmed the infrastructure

6

in as far as both water and electricity to -- for

7

this particular project. And we currently also have

8

legislation bills drafted for State Legislature for

9

additional infrastructure if required. However,

10

right now we're looking at the current appropriation

11

of funding both Federal and State minimally, we

12

could still meet the requirements.

13

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: General, I ask you that question

14

because transmission of water, the quantity through

15

a 12-inch line -- I believe it's a 12-inch line,

16

Mike? -- is quite sizeable. But you're not planning

17

to use that kind of quantities, are you? Or do you

18

know something that we -- you need to share with us

19

today?

20

MR. AGENA: No, sir. The amount of water that we'll be

21

using is no different than what we're using right

22

now in the Kahului Armory and the Papakalo site

23

itself. And, actually, we're looking at about

24

9,000 -- what is it -- 9,000 gallons a day or

25

something like that? A month.
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?: Can I speak to that?

2

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Yeah. You need to please come

3

forward and speak on the mike, please.

4

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Please identify yourself.

5

MR. MORITA: Good afternoon. My name is Ralph Morita.

6

I'm with the Department of Accounting and General

7

Services. We are working with the Department of

8

Defense in planning and designing construction for

9

the improvement.

10

As far as your question about the water

11

system improvements, that was a requirement from the

12

water -- from the County related to fire flow.

13

Nothing to do with actual demand. Calculated demand

14

was about 9 or 10,000 gallons per day. So the

15

sizing of the pipe was a direct requirement related

16

to fire flow. We would be installing it as part of

17

the project using State funds, cannot use Federal.

18

And that's one of the issues, I guess, the -- what

19

is being discussed is the more State funds we

20

utilize for off-site, the less I have for the

21

on-site development. And there's like a match, I

22

think 25/75. So I had requested Department of

23

Defense consider getting more State funds to

24

maximize the on-site developments. So I hope that

25

answers your question.
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2

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Sound like -- So that's a County -I guess it's a County --

3

MR. MORITA: A County requirement related to fire flow.

4

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: It's a requirement, or was that a

5
6

County request?
MR. MORITA: No, County requirement. Because there is a

7

requirement for fire flow in all developments. And

8

we had discussed different options and there

9

currently is discussions with the County to address

10

the connection to their 36-inch line that there was

11

a source issue. We would be dedicating the 12-inch

12

line to the County for, I guess, additional -- for

13

their future use. And there is a -- some agreement

14

that we need to negotiate for a water tank

15

contribution. So these are pending discussions with

16

the County that I have to take into account in my

17

overall project costs.

18

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. General, I don't know if you

19

can answer or one of your team, the street -- the

20

highway signalization is a requirement of your

21

operation, sir, as far as the ability to get on and

22

off the property or your project site?

23

MR. AGENA: Richard.

24

MR. MORITA: I think some of these technical issues I

25

would need to address with the help of our
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consultant team. The issue of a traffic

2

intersection or traffic light was a request, but I

3

don't think it was a requirement for our job. The

4

last understanding I had from discussions or what

5

literature I saw was our project needed to utilize

6

the intersection constructed for the Kahoolawe

7

project to minimize having two traffic lights in a

8

close proximity. So at this point that's the plan

9

for our project.

10

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. Can you tell me now how your

11

project is tied into the Kahoolawe Island

12

Restoration Project?

13

MR. MORITA: The Kahoolawe Restoration Project is

14

utilizing a portion of our project site, so we are

15

coordinating their use while we are constructing the

16

DOD facilities. So they would still be on site

17

until I think ending of 2002 or '3. Yeah, 2003. So

18

we would still be under construction. We would

19

finish ending of -- well, we finishing about the

20

same time. So we are working out arrangements where

21

they can -- we can coexist, their continued

22

operation and our construction work. So that's part

23

of our planning for this job.

24
25

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you very much,
General. I appreciate your time and attendance
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1
2
3

today.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Thank you.
Councilmember Nishiki, you had questions.

4

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you.

5

CHAIR ARAKAWA: And then Councilmember Molina.

6

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. I'll turn to page 3 of the

7

October 12th cover letter, Mr. Chairman, from -- to

8

Mr. Glenn Tadaki. And then I'll turn from there

9

to -- yeah, to page 3. The question was asked, "At

10

what time of the day and what time of the year will

11

helicopters be used at the project site?" You go on

12

to explain the helicopters will fly for two reasons,

13

transport soldiers from military areas on Oahu and

14

Hawaii. Then you say that the -- this occurs on

15

weekends about three sorties a year. Can you

16

explain what sorties are?

17

MR. AGENA: Each lift of helicopter is one sortie. So if

18

you have three helicopters making one lift, that's

19

three sorties. If you have one helicopter making

20

three lifts out of the same area, that's three

21

sorties. So every lift is considered one sortie.

22

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Right. Then you go on to explain

23

that also this second reason is to provide an

24

effective response to Maui County concerning natural

25

disaster, civil disturbance. Normally if something
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is really needed to be done on an emergency basis,

2

you have no discretion but you will go and do it

3

anyway, wouldn't you?

4

MR. AGENA: That's correct.

5

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: To save someone's life or

6

whatever.

7

MR. AGENA: That's the mission.

8

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So my question is this: Then we

9

go on and ask you the question in Question No. 8,

10

sir, "What would be the impact to the applicant if

11

helicopter uses were prohibited at the project site?

12

Is the applicant willing to demonstrate proposed

13

helicopter uses for the Committee at a site

14

inspection? If so, where could such a demonstration

15

occur?" Your answer is the first impact is the loss

16

of valuable training time if the unit is required to

17

travel from Kahului Airport. The second impact is

18

the potential less effectiveness in providing

19

support to Maui County for natural disaster or civil

20

disturbance. But you have explained that no matter

21

what, you're going to come in, you're going to do it

22

if you got to do it.

23

Where are now your helicopters located today?

24

MR. AGENA: Helicopters are located on Wheeler and also at

25

the General Lyman Field in Hilo.
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. So it's not even on the

2

island of Maui?

3

MR. AGENA: That's correct.

4

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. So then the question, I

5

think, that most of us -- I won't say most, I just

6

say for myself have is noise. I was in army

7

aviation so I'm familiar with CH 47 and UH 60, plus

8

C130s. I've been on them, but that's besides the

9

point. How do you mitigate because that area is

10

agriculture and either landing or taking off you

11

impact I don't know what the area around you is, the

12

dust should the wind be blowing in a direction and

13

perhaps you could impact suddenly traffic on

14

Mokulele Highway? Because I don't know exactly

15

where that pad is going to be, but I know how much

16

dust and noise these helicopters are capable of

17

creating. So can you tell me if there is a concern

18

raised, then my question is: Why do you need to

19

have a helipad there rather than Kahului Airport,

20

which is -- I have -- right now you said that the --

21

the helicopters are located on Oahu anyway. So when

22

you come for training, then you move them to

23

Kahului, which is in the area where we have air

24

traffic so there's more control, I think is the

25

concern that I have.
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MR. AGENA: First of all, the helipad planned for the site

2

itself is a single helipad. But also under

3

emergency situations potentially there could be more

4

helicopters or more sorties flying out of the

5

facility. In regards to flying of -- for training

6

and for emergencies, for deliberate planning

7

purposes we could -- for deliberate planning and for

8

deliberate execution in support of education -- I

9

mean, in support of emergencies and training,

10

Kahului Airport is still available for deliberate

11

execution, you are right. However, as we expect, if

12

there were an emergency situation, all of our

13

facilities we have a planned helipad situated within

14

the confines of our complexes so that we could have

15

helicopters coming in and picking up and/or taking

16

out for those real emergency situations.

17

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Can you -- can you give me an

18

emergency situation where if you were at the airport

19

compared to there there may be a concern? Give me

20

an emergency situation that you know has happened

21

if -- and now you were -- you're at the old Kahului

22

Armory, right, and a helicopter is down there. Can

23

you give me an incident?

24
25

MR. AGENA: If there was a -- like we're in a situation
now whereby we are at the increased force protection
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condition. If there was a situation whereby we had

2

an emergency situation, a crisis situation on

3

Kaunakakai -- in Kaunakakai or Lanai City or even in

4

Kahului Airport, our soldiers will first mobilize at

5

the complex. In order for them to -- to retrieve

6

their equipment and weapons and all their -- and all

7

the other requirements, they will be at the complex

8

itself. A helicopter could pick them up right there

9

and take them direct to where the problem may exist.

10

And I use that as an example of an emergency.

11

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: What mitigation plans do you have

12

in regards to dust and noise? Are you -- I know you

13

told Riki perhaps what your air flight plan would be

14

as far as how you take off from the Puunene area and

15

head towards Maalaea if you're going to -- or go

16

over Haleakala. I guess my question is: You have

17

not sold me the fact that it is not going to be a

18

problem with a major highway that's going to move a

19

lot of vehicles and dust could easily in one fall

20

sweep create an accident and thereby create more of

21

an -- more of a problem.

22

MR. AGENA: Yes, Councilman Nishiki, first of all, safety

23

and environmental concerns are of utmost concern and

24

priority. If the safety situation prohibits us from

25

landing at that particular helipad, we will not do
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1

so. As far as helicopters itself, we may have to

2

alter our approach to the helipad to reduce and

3

minimize the amount of dust if the requirement comes

4

about whereby we have to land there.

5

I have my aviation staff officer here who

6

flies those helicopters and he can tell you exactly

7

how he will mitigate those kinds of concerns that

8

you have. Colonel Hara, would you like to

9

address --

10

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: If you could show us where the

11

Puunene -- where the helipad will be located and

12

where the tentative Mokulele Highway will be

13

located. Because --

14

MR. MORITA: What we have is -- I think answers your

15

question. This is Mokulele Highway. They have a

16

200-foot right-of-way setback for the expansion, so

17

our property line starts at the 200-foot setback.

18

The proposed location of the single helipad is

19

towards the back. The distance from there to here

20

is, what I'm told, 700, 700 feet, so -- or maybe

21

from here to Mokulele Highway is 700 feet, something

22

close to there, order of magnitude. It's quite a

23

distance away, so it's not immediately proximate to

24

the Mokulele Highway expansion.

25

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Wind direction normally out of the
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2

northeast, which way would the dust be blowing?
MR. MORITA: North points that way, so you would be saying

3

out of the northeast would be most likely this way

4

across. That's my guess.

5

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. Then Kona would be --

6

MR. MORITA: I guess opposite. I don't know. Or this

7

way. I don't know.

8

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: That way is your northeast. Okay.

9

MR. MORITA: Anyway, north faces directly this way,

10
11

parallel to Mokulele Highway.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: In normal wind would not -- the

12

dust would not carry that way, then, it would be

13

carried --

14

MR. MORITA: I'm not sure, but during the design of the

15

actual on-site improvements those are considerations

16

that we can try to address. Some of the issues we

17

were trying to address with the setback, you know,

18

not being too close to the highway. Other things

19

that could be considered, I guess, during the design

20

could be wind screens or vegetation or whatever.

21

I'm not sure. And the rest would be operational

22

consideration. But we haven't gone into the design

23

yet. We have taken those issues into consideration

24

for that proposed use. And I don't know, your

25

concerns -- I don't know how to address it other
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than Murray Air flies out from here right now and

2

they're right next to Mokulele Highway, so it must

3

be okay. I don't know.

4

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. I don't know how often they

5

do that, but I was just looking at who knows -- I

6

think you mentioned that that will be done at, what,

7

the Kahoolawe. Where is the Kahoolawe heliport

8

right now where they take off?

9

MR. MORITA: I think they're kind of right in the middle

10

where the existing runways used to be, so they have

11

striped off pads here. And as you can see, the

12

intersection that Kahoolawe made is sort of aligned

13

right around here. So that's how we're kind of like

14

going to make a carve out line where they stay on

15

one half of the property and we use the same entry

16

road for ingress and egress to minimize, you know,

17

additional traffic to Mokulele Highway and allow us

18

to construct our -- our facilities.

19

?: Colonel. I'm sorry.

20

MR. HARA: Good afternoon, Mr. Chairman, Council Members,

21

I'm Colonel Gary M. Hara. I'm the commander of the

22

Army Aviation Support Facility at Wheeler and also

23

the Commander of the 103rd Troop Command which all

24

the aviation units fall under.

25

As far as the dust, that's our concern and
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that's the reason why we wanted to construct the

2

helipad. We don't want to land into the open field

3

or a dirt field just because of the reason you

4

mentioned. We not only create a lot of dust, but

5

small rocks and small objects can be thrown up into

6

the air and it's a hazard to our soldiers and also

7

our facility. And that's why a helipad, a concrete

8

helipad is pretty essential to a safe operation

9

there. We can control, as you know with

10

helicopters, our altitudes, air speeds, we can

11

design or change our angle of approach depending on

12

the wind conditions. The stronger the winds, we can

13

do a steeper approach, et cetera.

14

The CH 47 -- I came up in a single-engine

15

helicopter community and I can say now that the

16

single engine is flying in a state of emergency. A

17

CH 47 has two engines and two just about everything

18

and it's so much safer now to fly a multi-engine

19

aircraft I didn't realize the danger I was flying

20

into all these years. But the capability of this

21

aircraft is -- far exceeds anything we have in the

22

Army inventory today and it's fully capable of

23

flying on single engine with a full load.

24
25

So I'm not real sure about your questions.
As far as the loss of training time, our concern is
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that the soldiers, you know, have a lot to do after

2

they get back to the armory. So if they have to go

3

to -- drive to Kahului Airport, it will be a

4

constraint not being able to carry weapons on the

5

commercial airlines. Once we get on the commercial

6

airplane, we have to fly into either Hilo, Kona or

7

Honolulu Airport, and then transportation would have

8

to be made from those airports up into the training

9

area. By doing a CH 47 or UH 60 aircraft, we can

10

land right to the helipad, load the soldiers in a

11

tactical manner which they're supposed to be trained

12

to do anyway, place them into their seats and force

13

them to do the safety training requirements that

14

they're supposed to know and be trained on. And

15

then fly them over the water into the tactical

16

training area, land, and they can get right out and

17

do their training. And on the following, just from

18

the tactical training area back onto the aircraft

19

with their weapons, fly right into the armory where

20

they can begin to clean their weapons, secure their

21

equipment, and then go home at a reasonable hour.

22

So just by, you know, the drive from Hilo Airport up

23

to Pohakuloa training area, as you know, is over two

24

hours. So if you count two hours, you know, going

25

and coming, it's four hours in a day that's lost
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1

just by going one airport to the training area on

2

the Big Island. And that's a major impact for

3

soldiers that have to -- one weekend a month to

4

train. So when we bring them in, we would like

5

to -- our job as leaders of the Hawaii Army National

6

Guard is to make sure that their time is very

7

productive, and we feel that by having this

8

capability, it's very beneficial to the soldiers.

9

And we're hoping that we can recruit more soldiers

10

in Maui with our brand-new facility and having the

11

ability of flying them to and from the training

12

areas and not waste their time at the airports.

13
14

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Let me ask -MR. HARA: As far as, you know, a potential disaster at

15

the airport, it is something that we have all looked

16

at. You guys had a situation quite a while ago when

17

Aloha came in. But if an airplane disaster occurred

18

and the airport was closed, it will be beneficial to

19

have a helipad and the capability to fly aircraft

20

into and out of and also be able to refuel by

21

vehicles, and that's what we would like to provide.

22

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: In your training areas, do you

23

have an emergency vehicle in case there's a crash at

24

Pohakuloa?

25

MR. HARA: At Pohakuloa there is a Fire Department, a
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Federal Fire Department stationed at Pohakuloa

2

Training Area. They're right there at the airfield.

3

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: We have it also at -- on Maui and

4

then we also have it at Barbers Point, wherever you

5

take off from right now in Honolulu?

6

MR. HARA: Where there's a high density of aircraft and

7

aircraft are physically stationed there at airports

8

where they have fixed-wing airplanes, we do have

9

fire crash and rescue.

10

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: What about having one here at the

11

National Guard Armory, whenever you have those

12

things also doing it?

13

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Nishiki, I'm going to ask if

14

you could restrict your questions to making a land

15

use decision. I know it's interesting to find out

16

the entire operation of the National Guard, but we

17

have a lot of people here that are from off island

18

that we brought in specifically today to answer

19

questions. And if we spend all of our time trying

20

to learn what the National Guard's business is,

21

we're not going to be able to ask them the

22

appropriate questions --

23

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah.

24

CHAIR ARAKAWA: (Inaudible).

25

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: All I'm trying to ensure is
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safety, also, Mr. Chairman, as been discussing this

2

issue.

3

CHAIR ARAKAWA: I understand that, but this is a land use

4

decision and, again, the safety and the operations

5

of the National Guard really -- they have to look

6

after their safety. So ask the questions that are

7

appropriate to your understanding and need to make a

8

decision for land use.

9

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: What about the safety if we should

10

condition that you have a safety vehicle there

11

addressing accidents as you come in or go out? Is

12

that something that the National Guard provides at

13

any facility where you have got troops taking off

14

and landing?

15

MR. HARA: Normally in a tactical training area like

16

Pohakuloa where we normally land and take off from,

17

there is no crash rescue, but there is one in the

18

vicinity where in the event there is an accident

19

they can, you know, move to and try to get to the

20

crash site. The first responders for the Pohakuloa

21

Training Area, as I said, were Federal fire

22

fighters. They're right there at Bradshaw Army

23

Airfield. All of our tactical training areas are

24

away from the airport where we normally land troops

25

by helicopters. If not, you know, we might as well
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just go into the airport with a C130. So with the

2

helicopter, we have the capability of landing them

3

very close to the training area. Same for Wheeler.

4

We can -- when we -- because there's a high density

5

of aircraft flying into and out of Wheeler, we have

6

a Federal Fire Department stationed right there at

7

Wheeler and also at Kalaeloa, Barbers Point. But

8

because of the -- we're not planning to fly into

9

Kahului 10 times a day, 20 days week. You know,

10

we're talking about three or four times a year. So

11

I don't think it would be cost effective for us to

12

get a fire truck and the proper, you know, personnel

13

trained to do fire fighting or air fire fighting

14

positioned at this armory.

15

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And the last question --

16

MR. HARA: In an actual emergency, which is unlikely, but

17

if we do, we would have to rely on your, you know,

18

Fire Department by calling 911. Other than that,

19

all we'll have at that helipad is the grounding

20

points and a fire extinguisher.

21

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Riki asked the question about air

22

traffic patterns. Are you cognizant of perhaps

23

where the residential areas are and where you would

24

be staying out of those patterns?

25

MR. HARA: We don't fly into Kahului as often as we used
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to, but prior -- my experience, you know, the Kihei

2

area was a very noise sensitive area. We

3

established routes offshore and also up on the mauka

4

side of Kihei as we transition from the airport to

5

Pohakuloa Training Area. That's our -- What we

6

would like to do is normally be offshore. And our

7

requirement by helicopter operations is to avoid the

8

flow of fixed-wing traffic at Kahului. Kahului

9

Airport is a class C airspace designated. Honolulu

10

airport is a class B, so everything else -- Kahului

11

is the next highest class airspace you have in the

12

State of Hawaii. All the other airports are class

13

D. So there's a little bit more restrictions as you

14

fly into and out of Kahului, FAA restrictions that

15

we have to comply with as aviators flying into that

16

airspace. So we maintain -- we would have to --

17

There's no regulatory requirement, but we normally

18

contact the tower based on the class C airspace 20

19

miles outside of Kahului to get weather advisories,

20

wind velocity directions and any traffic. And we

21

let them know what our intentions are and they

22

normally feed us into their flow of fixed-wing

23

traffic.

24
25

But we are sensitive Army community aviators.
I mean, we have been flying in the local area on
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Oahu for years and we understand our -- the -- our

2

noise signature, and we want to avoid that. You

3

know, we want to be part of the community. We live

4

in the areas that we fly over, so our aviators are

5

sensitive to that and we're going to remain

6

sensitive to that and under knowing -- no condition

7

will we intentionally fly over homes to try to get

8

people angry at our Army National Guard. We have

9

enough problems with the -- you know, the special

10

operations, marijuana eradication and everything

11

else.

12

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you.

13

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Any further questions? Councilmember

14
15

Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I'll try to

16

keep my questions brief and to the point. And I

17

only have about 20 of them, so -- Just kidding.

18

Just a couple.

19
20
21

CHAIR ARAKAWA: That's fine. Just so long as you get the
first 19 done in about 30 seconds.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: I'll try. For General Agena, thank

22

you for being here. I found the conversation very

23

interesting, to say the least. Regarding traffic on

24

Mokulele Highway, when you do have your operational

25

exercises, I presume you will be having convoys of
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trucks and so forth. Roughly how many vehicles are

2

involved in your typical convoy and when should

3

motorists be aware days and possibly times of when

4

these convoys will be on the road?

5

MR. AGENA: Okay. Let me explain the type of unit we have

6

there. It's an infantry company. When the infantry

7

company is at full strength, it's at about -- it's

8

about 130 soldiers when it's at full strength. Now,

9

with other support elements to that company, we

10

could have anywhere from up to 150 soldiers if we

11

were at 100-percent strength training all at once

12

where there were no one deployed elsewhere, at

13

schools or anything else. Now, when you see all

14

those soldiers there, it will occur either on one

15

weekend a month, a Saturday and a Sunday. They

16

could report in on a Friday evening and then end

17

their training on the Sunday afternoon.

18

On the normal day-to-day, Monday through

19

Friday, if we were at full strength on full-time

20

personnel, there would be a maximum of 7 to 10

21

soldiers working there full time. Now, to address

22

your question on Monday through Friday, I don't

23

think the 7 to 10 personnel will create any major

24

obstacles on the traffic. But on the weekend,

25

either Friday night or early Saturday morning, and
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if they report Saturday morning, it will be early,

2

like about 0530, about 5 o'clock in the morning, at

3

the latest maybe 6 o'clock in the morning. And if

4

they convoy -- they move -- they're there and then

5

they were to convoy out to a training area like

6

Keoneoio or to Ukumehame, wherever it may -- because

7

that's where we would have convoys, we may have a

8

total of seven to eight 5-ton vehicles to support

9

that requirement. When I say 5-ton vehicles, I say

10

because those trucks can carry up to 20 to 25

11

soldiers in each of those vehicles. So, yes, there

12

may be some convoy requirements, but similarly all

13

those vehicles currently exist close to the Kahului

14

Airport in the International Guard Unit there, the

15

292nd Combat Com Squadron. And also we have 2.5-ton

16

trucks located right now in Paukukalo organizational

17

maintenance shop. So right now, as the vehicles

18

stage at the old Kahului Armory, it presents a

19

little bit more of a traffic hazard, in my opinion,

20

than it would at the new complex.

21
22

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you.
And, General, with America's heightened

23

awareness with regards to the possibility of

24

chemical warfare, are there any plans for any type

25

of decontamination equipment or some type of
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augmentation to the County's haz. mat. team out of

2

this proposed facility in Puunene?

3

MR. AGENA: Okay. What we have right now organized within

4

the Hawaii National Guard is the 93rd Weapons of

5

Mass Destruction Civil Support Team. It's a

6

22-member full-time team that is currently being

7

organized to assess, advise and assist first

8

responders. And with our air capabilities, such as

9

the C130 and our CH 47, they can respond to support

10

your haz. mat. team here on island if the need

11

arises to do those three things, assess, advise and

12

assist. They are not the first responders, but they

13

are there to provide military support to the civil

14

authorities, i.e., your Fire Department. We have

15

done and currently doing situational training

16

exercises with each of these -- first we have Maui

17

will be included also in the training exercise, and,

18

in fact, next week -- no, in fact, this week we are

19

doing an exercise in Aloha Stadium with first

20

responders on Oahu. In fact, on September 11th our

21

Weapons of Mass Destruction Civil Support Team was

22

situated in Hilo working with the Hilo haz. mat.

23

people, and I had to bring them back to Oahu for the

24

emergency situation if it arose in the -- in

25

Honolulu. But we do have that -- we will have that
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capability once they're certified and their

2

equipment all in place. We are in process right now

3

of getting the certification. But just to give you

4

a warm and fuzzy feeling, our personnel are, in

5

fact, qualified, they have training, and they are

6

ready to respond and they have actually done some

7

real-world support to the first responders.

8
9
10
11
12
13

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. It is very
reassuring to know.
And my last question is a follow-up to my
question regarding -CHAIR ARAKAWA: Mike, I'm going to ask you to do it real
quick. They have a 4 o'clock drop-dead deadline.

14

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay.

15

CHAIR ARAKAWA: If they don't leave here in about five

16

minutes or so, they're going to miss their flight

17

all together.

18

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Last one. The -- your

19

flight line area can accommodate an aircraft in an

20

emergency situation such as that of an Aloha

21

Airlines type of aircraft if this area is to be used

22

as an emergency landing area?

23

MR. AGENA: Aloha Airline type of aircraft?

24

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. A 737.

25

MR. AGENA: No, sir.
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay.

2

MR. AGENA: The helipad we're talking about is strictly

3

for rotary wing helicopter vertical landing and

4

approach.

5

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. I thought -- When I heard

6

landing of emergency air -- of aircraft, I just

7

assumed maybe airplanes.

8
9

MR. AGENA: Fixed wing to include our International Guard
airplanes would strictly be at the airport.

10

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you.

11

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Thank you.

12
13
14

Councilmember Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
Thank you, General. I had the opportunity to

15

speak with your folks' consultant and one of the

16

issues that I raised was what you have referred to

17

consistently regarding first responder. And I

18

wanted to understand what role the County will play,

19

i.e., like you mentioned the Fire Department, would

20

play in the event of any type of situation that

21

would occur because of the fact that it's going to

22

be a storage site as well as there will be

23

situations of having hazardous materials on site,

24

i.e., the maintenance facility as well as the

25

incoming and outgoing aircraft. Do you folks have
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any plans or is there an intention to formulate a

2

plan with the County in regards to what you folks

3

have there, what will be there and how they can

4

respond appropriately and efficiently to any type of

5

situation that has a potential to occur at the site?

6

MR. AGENA: In fact, with our State Civil Defense and with

7

the County Civil Defense Agency, Mr. Kyle Watanabe

8

here, we are working very closely. We have in the

9

past, even with Mr. Selmanour(?) who was your Civil

10

Defense Administrator prior to Kyle. We have

11

provided all the information and we have constantly

12

included the County Civil Defense Agency as --

13

Administration into our plans as to support military

14

support. When we talk about the military support,

15

to civil authorities, and this is where we're

16

talking about, the understanding is that the

17

National Guard is in that role first. We are

18

military support to civil authorities first,

19

providing the response to the first responders,

20

i.e., whether they be the Fire Department or Police,

21

whatever the case may be, via the State Civil

22

Defense, that process in itself.

23

So to answer -- to answer your question, yes,

24

as far as the type of equipment, the type of -- the

25

capability of what we have on island is known and is
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in the plans of the County Civil Defense

2

Administration.

3

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, General.
Thank you, Chairman.

4
5
6

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Any further questions? Okay. If not, the
Chair would like to recommend passage of this bill.

7

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: So move.

8

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Second.

9

CHAIR ARAKAWA: It's been moved by Jo Anne Johnson,

10

seconded by -- who seconded? -- Councilmember

11

Molina. Any further discussion? If not, all those

12

in favor say aye.

13

COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.

14

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Opposed? Motion carried.

15

VOTE: AYES:

16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:
EXC.:
MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

Councilmember Carroll, Hokama, Johnson,
Kane, Molina, Nishiki, and Chair
Arakawa.
None.
None.
None.
Councilmember Kawano and Tavares.
FIRST READING of proposed bill, as
revised.

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Good luck on catching your plane. Sorry
to be such a tight deadline. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Mr. Chair, if we can request a short
recess, please.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Yeah, I'm gonna do that right now.
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COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you.

2

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Actually -- Five or ten minutes?

3

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Ten.

4

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Ten minutes. Okay. Recess ten minutes.
(Gavel.)

5
6

RECESS: 3:39 p.m.

7

RECONVENE: 3:55 p.m.

8

37

9
10

REQUEST FROM ROY FIGUEIROA, GENERAL MANAGER, MAKENA
RESORT CORPORATION, FOR A CHANGE IN ZONING (C.C.
No. 00-242)

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Land Use Committee will reconvene.

11

(Gavel.) At this time we're gonna get back to

12

LU-37. This morning we started our presentations

13

on water. And before us we have a lot of the water

14

experts. And if there are any questions pertaining

15

to the presentations this morning, I'd like at this

16

time for you to ask those questions and understand

17

that a lot of the information is not complete. So

18

we are working with the constraints of limited

19

sources of information. But for those questions

20

that you do have to make the best decision currently

21

with what information we have available.

22
23
24
25

Are there any questions? Councilmember
Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: What do you mean by that
statement?
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CHAIR ARAKAWA: What I mean is we have the people here

2

that best can answer your questions. If you have

3

questions --

4

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Right.

5

CHAIR ARAKAWA: -- please ask them.

6

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So what I requested was the

7

development plans for the Water Department in

8

regards to source development and the costs.

9

I see in front of me today a letter --

10

CHAIR ARAKAWA: The October 26th letter?

11

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Exactly.

12

CHAIR ARAKAWA: This is -- before we read the questions

13

that you asked through the Department, and these are

14

the answers to your questions.

15
16

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So obviously at the last meeting
that I -- when I asked our staff personnel to get --

17

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Questions.

18

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: -- information from the Department

19

of Water Supply in regards to source development,

20

where is that answer or is there an answer?

21

CHAIR ARAKAWA: What you have before you is the first set

22

of questions that you asked for answers. We

23

transmitted that. The second set that you gave us,

24

the Department did not have time to come back with

25

that.
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1

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay.

2

CHAIR ARAKAWA: So you have before you a letter from the

3
4

Department stating that.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Then when is the Department going

5

to respond to those questions in regards to source

6

development so we can make a decision?

7

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Well, you may ask them your questions if

8

you want to, but they did not have time to respond

9

to it in writing because of the lateness of the

10

request.

11

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Mr. Chairman.

12

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Yes.

13

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I don't believe it is the lateness

14

of the request, I think it is perhaps the inability

15

for the Department to gather that information and

16

give it to us. I don't mean to blame anybody, I

17

just mean to ask when will that information become

18

forthcoming?

19
20

CHAIR ARAKAWA: And I'm asking you if you have -- ask them
the questions and they can answer what they can.

21

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay.

22

CHAIR ARAKAWA: You're not getting a written response to

23

that today at this meeting because it wasn't

24

submitted in time for them to respond. So ask them

25

the questions if you want, they will respond the
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best they can.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Water Department, I had asked on a

3

previous meeting that was attended by Ellen

4

Kraftsow, what are the plans for the Water

5

Department in regards to source development, where

6

that area is, have you -- we heard on the east side

7

you have got an EIS that is being contested, I

8

guess, but I would hope that you would be able to

9

update this Committee in regards to source

10

development, costs, if there are any transmission

11

lines that are going to be developed, what is the

12

cost of the transmission lines, is there any plans

13

to develop more water source in the Iao area.

14

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. George or Ellen, perhaps you -- in

15

the Water -- Water Board hearing you were discussing

16

the possibility of buying the C. Brewer properties.

17

Perhaps you can go into some of that source as well

18

as what you're doing with the other two wells that

19

have not been developed at this time (inaudible).

20

MR. TENGAN: Mr. Chair, may I start off by saying that

21

by -- since 1997 we have added at least two wells in

22

the North Waihee area that's putting water into our

23

system now. We also have planned Iao Tank Site

24

Well. We already drilled the Waikapu Well, that's

25

ready for development. I believe it's in design.
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1

In our plans we also have a well out at -- in the

2

area of Camp Maluhia. We also have Kupaa Well 1 for

3

development. And following development or alongside

4

developing the wells we would need the transmission

5

lines to connect to the Central Maui system.

6

As far as the -- the deal or the transaction

7

with C. Brewer, that is in negotiations right now by

8

the board Chair and hopefully we -- I think part of

9

the -- the transaction would be acquisition of the

10
11

surface water system.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: And your approximate evaluation of how

12

much water will be in the surface water system? I

13

believe the Board was saying something about 14

14

million gallons a day.

15

MR. TENGAN: In the surface system?

16

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Surface system. I have heard

17

everything -- everything from -- to 29.

18

MR. TENGAN: I'm not sure as to the quantity on the

19

average day basis of how much water, but we would be

20

able to treat the water if we did acquire those

21

rights and put it into the system.

22

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay.

23

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Have we drilled the Waikapu area

24
25

an exploratory well, and what were the findings?
MR. TENGAN: Yes, we do have a well there. I believe --
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Probably the production capacity of that well will

2

be about 1 MGD, but this is part of the -- I believe

3

part of the Iao Aquifer, so it -- you know, it would

4

affect the -- or it wouldn't increase our

5

capability. What it would do, it would just spread

6

the pumping from the Iao Aquifer.

7

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Right. So what the actual well

8

did was not really give us any kind of optimistic

9

more volumes within that aquifer?

10

MR. TENGAN: No. The sustainable yield --

11

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Right.

12

MR. TENGAN: -- will still remain at 20 million gallons --

13

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: The same.

14

MR. TENGAN: -- per day.

15

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. Okay. Now, you're having a

16

meeting on the 14th of this month and the Water

17

Commission is going to decide whether you are so

18

designated a Groundwater Management Area. If you

19

are found to have been designated this area, what is

20

the Water Department's next step in regards to water

21

source development in this area?

22

MR. TENGAN: We would continue on as we -- we're doing

23

right now, which would be development of those

24

sources that I have mentioned.

25

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: What if the Commission says no?
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MR. TENGAN: Then we would have to go seek other
alternatives, I guess.

3

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. Let me ask you about the

4

other alternatives. Where are we now looking for

5

other water sources? I know that you are looking at

6

East Maui. Where are you in that plan?

7

MR. TENGAN: The final draft supplemental EIS is being

8

completed. I -- and I don't know exactly when it's

9

going to be ready, but it's being worked on right

10
11

now by the consultants.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So there's no timetable on that

12

one?

13

MR. TENGAN: No.

14

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: What is the cost?

15

MR. TENGAN: The cost of?

16

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Developing the source.

17

MR. TENGAN: We estimate each source to cost anywheres

18

between 17.5 to $2.5 million depending on the

19

elevation of the wells.

20
21

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. So on that East Maui
source, we are still waiting on the final EIS?

22

MR. TENGAN: Yes.

23

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Kahaloa, it was pointed out that

24

there is a 4 million gallon source that you think is

25

going to be able to produce water. Can you give us
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an update on that?
MR. TENGAN: We haven't gone that far yet. Our next --

3

next well will be in the Maluhia area, which is part

4

of the Waihee Aquifer.

5
6
7
8
9

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So that information that was
pointed out to us -COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Mr. Chair, his microphone. We cannot
hear you, Wayne.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. I'm sorry. So that 4

10

million as a conservative estimate that was given to

11

us in some graphs earlier, that source is still not

12

being developed yet?

13
14
15
16
17
18
19

MR. TENGAN: That's right. We haven't gone into that area
yet.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. I am done for now. I'll
allow other members.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Any other questions to the members here?
Councilmember Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: In looking at the responses that

20

were received on October 26th, with the

21

presentations that we saw this morning, I believe

22

it's on the second page, it just -- the response to

23

Question No. 2, it says, "Please answer the

24

following questions about infrastructure to provided

25

potable water to said region which is planned for
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completion by 2005." And then your response is that

2

wells will be located where possible and we're

3

adding approximately 1 to 1.5 million gallons a day

4

installed pump capacity per year for the Central

5

System, and you're going to increase storage to 1.25

6

million gallons per year. Is that per year or do

7

you mean per day?

8
9

MR. TENGAN: We would be adding 1.5 million gallons of
storage whether it's per year, per day.

10

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: It's just --

11

MR. TENGAN: That is the size of the reservoir.

12

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. All right. In light of

13

what was said this morning with regard to the actual

14

amount of withdrawal from the Iao Aquifer itself and

15

my impression that the Central System is really

16

getting to a point where it cannot give us much

17

more, why would we be or why would you be looking at

18

increasing the installed pump capacity? Would this

19

just be when the pumps go down to take over, or what

20

would the point in investing this kind of

21

infrastructure be if we're looking at possibly

22

developing something more other than in Central?

23

MR. TENGAN: We have added -- the wells we have added

24

recently were in the North Waihee Aquifer. If we do

25

any more development in the Iao Aquifer, it would be
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primarily for spreading of the pumping.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: So it's just simply as a backup

3

system in case one of the pumps goes down or to

4

increase efficiency in the system?

5

MR. TENGAN: Well, it's more for protection of the aquifer

6

when we go into spreading of the pumping so that we

7

wouldn't do that up-coning that was illustrated this

8

morning.

9
10
11

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Well, how would it accomplish
that? I guess that's my question.
MR. TENGAN: Well, as Linnel was saying, if you put all

12

your straws in one area there, you know, and you --

13

and you suck through those straws, you would be

14

taking all the water out from that one point and you

15

might damage your aqua -- your wells, but if you

16

spread it out, then you can -- the possibility of

17

damaging your wells and the aquifer would be

18

lessened.

19

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: So that would be, then, in

20

addition to the three pump installations that are

21

already there?

22
23
24
25

MR. TENGAN: The three that we're referring to is not from
the Iao Aquifer, it's in the North Waihee Aquifer.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. So there are -- so this
would be in addition to anything there?
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1

MR. TENGAN: Right.

2

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: All right. When you look at

3

increasing storage, where would the water be coming

4

from that you would be placing into storage if we're

5

in a drought situation?

6

MR. TENGAN: The storage would be placed, I guess,

7

strategically within our water system to support and

8

make our water systems more dependable. It wouldn't

9

necessarily help the drought situation.

10

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Well, I'm just reading from

11

your document where it says storage is planned to

12

increase to 1.25 million gallons also for the

13

Central System. So I guess the way I'm reading it

14

is that it would be in the Central System, so you

15

would be taking water from the Central System, or

16

it's just the location of the tank and then you

17

would be bringing water from someplace else to place

18

for the Central System?

19

MR. TENGAN: Right. After the initial filling of the

20

reservoir, the amount that we draw from the aquifer

21

would be -- would be dependent on the daily demand

22

of our customers, so it wouldn't necessarily mean

23

that we would be taking more water from the aquifer.

24

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you.

25

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Any further questions?
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And what I would like to do is, Steve, since

2

you have been here all morning, I apologize for

3

that, in your presentation you were pretty much

4

supportive of the 20 MGD from the Iao Aquifer. In

5

the presentation that you had at the Water Board

6

hearing a lot of you as water experts were saying

7

that we need to look at the total amounts that are

8

there. How comfortable are you with the 20 MGD and

9

the capacity we have right now?

10

MR. GINGERICH: I would say the data seemed to show that

11

based on the existing infrastructure right now, 20

12

MGD doesn't seem to be sustainable because of the

13

decline in water levels that we continue to see, the

14

increase in chloride at the existing well sites.

15

That's not to say that the aquifer can't provide 20

16

million gallons a day, but I just think with the

17

existing infrastructure of the wells, the depth of

18

the wells and where they're located, we seem to be

19

continuing to have problems. Even though pumping

20

has decreased since '96 and '97, there hasn't -- in

21

my opinion, there hasn't been very much change in

22

the decline of water levels or increase of chloride.

23

So to possibly get 20 million gallons a day, I think

24

you would need to optimize your system, which is

25

what we talk about backfilling wells so they're not
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pumping from so deep in the aquifer, spreading out

2

your pumping so you're not pumping heavily at one

3

place, but you want to spread it out throughout the

4

aquifer.

5

And the other point I wanted to make about

6

the 20 million gallons a day was there is a lot of

7

unknowns that went into that calculation. It was

8

kind of the best available estimate at the time it

9

was made, but we sort of continue to advance our

10

knowledge based on the data we're collecting. And I

11

think we're finding, you know, the estimate could be

12

better refined by looking at estimates of the

13

recharge for rainfall, the fog drip I talked about,

14

things like that, the interconnectivity with the

15

North Waihee Aquifer, with Central Maui where

16

there's a lot of pumping. All those factors have

17

really not been looked at too much. So, you know,

18

the 20 MGD was a good first guess, I think, but when

19

you start to pump enough to get up to that limit,

20

that's when you've got to fine-tune your guess a

21

little more. And I think we're at that point now,

22

we need to fine-tune it.

23

CHAIR ARAKAWA: In the evaluation that we did, looking at

24

the Mokuhau wells and looking at the number of tools

25

we took off-line, would you say that was a good
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analysis? Because we have the pumps too close

2

together, we actually brought that chloride level

3

up, and that would be the major problem with that.

4

And if we spread the pumps out, we will slowly see

5

that decline, salinity level, because it's settling

6

back down.

7

MR. GINGERICH: That would be the hope, yeah, definitely,

8

that the three wells placed so close together is a

9

major stress on the aquifer at one point and that

10

will cause, you know, the saltwater to up-cone in

11

that area. By decreasing the pumping, you're going

12

to relax the stress. If you move -- spread that

13

out, you should see an increase -- or a decrease in

14

chlorides as you spread that pumping out. As it is

15

right now, the -- I think it's pump one the

16

chlorides are still -- have still been increasing,

17

though, so you might still be pumping too heavily at

18

that point, even though you have cut one well out.

19

CHAIR ARAKAWA: In the total evaluation of what we put

20

together for water availability and looking at the

21

last study that was done, the '97 study that was

22

done, as a water expert, is that something that we

23

could depend on --

24

MR. GINGERICH: I think that --

25

CHAIR ARAKAWA: -- being that -- the total in this
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entire -- in this area being about 32 million?

2

MR. GINGERICH: I think that's the best available estimate

3

we have right now. It's -- like I say, as we

4

continually work, we look at new things like the fog

5

drip and estimates like that that might actually

6

increase the amount of recharge that we think we

7

have to the system. But I would say that '97 study

8

is the most current, best available estimate we have

9

of recharge to the system.

10

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Ellen, from the Water Department

11

standard, looking at the '97 study, can we agree

12

that that 32 million gallons is about the best

13

estimate we have right now?

14

MR. GINGERICH: That's the USGS Water Budget, Ellen.

15

CHAIR ARAKAWA: The water budget study. You have to speak

16
17
18
19

into the mike.
MS. KRAFTSOW: I just said far be it from me to dispute
the USGS.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Well, what we're trying to do essentially

20

is trying to establish a best guess from what the

21

aquifer is. And as the water experts from the Water

22

Department has come out pretty close to that

23

estimate. USGS, you're pretty much agreeing with

24

that. And that study is what we're using as -- what

25

I'm using as Chairman for an approximate level
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that's best guess at this point. So that's why I'm

2

trying to get as much concurrence as possible that

3

that is a number that we should be using from our

4

water experts. If we're going to take one number

5

and we're going to guesstimate what would be

6

provided, that's sort of what I'm trying to get to.

7

MR. GINGERICH: I think that's the number that you would

8

start with. The science of hydrology doesn't always

9

work in absolutes, so, you know, as we -- that's why

10

we continue to monitor the data. You know, we don't

11

say, well, it can take 20 MGD, so that's what we'll

12

pump and we don't, you know, have to look at the

13

aquifer because we're right. You know, we have to

14

continually update our data. You know, we're

15

watching the deep monitor well as it's increasing.

16

The hope is that that transition zone is going to

17

slow down and stabilize at a point that is an

18

equilibrium with what we're -- what you're

19

withdrawing, the 20 MGD, and that would be at a

20

stable point compared to the -- the recharge we have

21

estimated to be -- I'm not sure of the number. We

22

said 32 or 36 or whatever it was.

23

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Something around there.

24

MR. GINGERICH: But --

25

CHAIR ARAKAWA: We brought it down to about 32 there.
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MR. GINGERICH: You want to continue monitoring that to

2

make sure that if in the future if things change, if

3

irrigation patterns change, if recharge patterns

4

change, if rainfall has decreased for a long term,

5

all those things will be taken into account.

6

CHAIR ARAKAWA: You notice that when we did ours we

7

discounted from what the USGS had, 30 -- from the

8

study of total of 36 down to about 30, so taking

9

into consideration we might not be able to maximize

10

all the water that's available, but we tried to come

11

out with a best guess. And the 30 that we're using,

12

that we ended up with, I just wanted to make sure

13

and confirm that that's something that when you're

14

looking at it as water experts comes close to

15

what -- and, again, it's a best guess, comes close

16

to what we should be using as a target.

17

MR. GINGERICH: Well, I want to -- should make it clear

18

that you can't -- it's probably impossible to

19

develop all of the recharge into a system. There's

20

a bit of natural discharge that you're always going

21

to maintain. I think John Mink had put it, you

22

know, the best system would be a billion straws

23

sucking out of the aquifer just from the very top.

24

That's -- that's not, you know, that's hardly likely

25

that we're going to develop something like that. So
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there is -- you know, it's perfectly impossible to

2

withdraw all of the water from -- that is recharged

3

to the system. If we think 34 million gallons a day

4

is going in, you know, there's a certain percentage

5

of that only that we're going to be able to get.

6

CHAIR ARAKAWA: And just further on, the Water Department

7

at their -- their meeting was talking about the

8

purchase of the C. Brewer -- the wetland areas and

9

the -- the forest reserve area and the availability

10

of water there, would that water, that surface

11

water, be separate from the aquifer water that we're

12

talking about or would that -- would it be fair to

13

say that that availability of -- and the number I

14

heard was 14 coming from that meeting and that

15

was -- there was a range of anywhere from I think 14

16

to 28 million gallons that was estimated, but 14 was

17

what was presented. Would that be fair to say that

18

that is different and additional to the aquifer

19

water, surface water?

20

MR. GINGERICH: I'm not sure of the value exactly, but I

21

know that if they're capturing stream water, you

22

know, it was probably captured for irrigation,

23

that's water that would have eventually probably

24

reached the ocean, so -- and it never would have

25

recharged the aquifer. So, yeah, I would consider
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that as an additional source. Now, there is

2

probably some component that they're putting on the

3

ground as irrigation that would have percolated back

4

to the aquifer. Now, if you suddenly are not

5

irrigating with that, but putting it into your

6

supply system, you're going to lose that amount of

7

recharge to the system. And I believe in the USGS

8

Water Budget there was an estimate of recharge done

9

for I think predevelopment conditions I guess

10

without irrigation, so I think that's the number, if

11

you're going to take that irrigation water and not

12

irrigate anymore, that's the number that you should

13

look at, that number not including irrigation

14

recharge.

15

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Right. And that's what we did in our

16

study, we discounted for nonirrigation. So we came

17

up with our numbers based on the nonirrigation with

18

the change of practice from agriculture to

19

nonagriculture, but also looking at what is the

20

developable resource if we get the surface water to

21

add on to that.

22

MR. GINGERICH: Right.

23

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Were there any other concerns with

24

the areas that we presented this morning in our

25

presentation?
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MR. GINGERICH: I think it's important to be clear between

2

the State's boundary, you know, the Iao Aquifer as

3

delineated on their protection plan versus the -- I

4

believe on some of your charts you included

5

basically all half of West Maui, so those numbers

6

would be -- you know, they would consider a larger

7

sustainable yield for that whole area, but as a

8

hydrologist, I would caution that, you know, all of

9

those areas are connected and at some point drawing

10

from one aquifer will affect those water levels in

11

another aquifer.

12

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Right. And that's why we discounted when

13

we were looking at that water resource, considering

14

the connectivity between them all. And given that

15

they are connected to some degree, we discounted the

16

total values. So we tried to get a lower number

17

than we would if we totaled up all of the individual

18

aquifers or individual sections of aquifers.

19

MR. GINGERICH: Right.

20

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Councilmember Kane, you had a

21

question.

22

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Mr. Chair.

23

Mr. -- I'm sorry -- Gingrich?

24

MR. GINGERICH: Gingrick.

25

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Gingerich, thank you. Is there going
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to be some point in the future that you can make

2

this body aware of that will have a new formal

3

finding of fact of -- of the capacity of the Iao

4

Aquifer? I know that the last one was 1996 or '97,

5

it was arrived at in '96 at 20 million gallons. Is

6

there some time in the future that we're looking at

7

trying to solve the uncertainties and then try and

8

arrive at a more accurate figure?

9

MR. GINGERICH: Well, as far as the USGS is concerned, we

10

don't -- we don't really make a call on what that

11

number would be, you know, that's the --

12

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: State Commission.

13

MR. GINGERICH: -- State Water Commission that does that.

14

We certainly continue to be involved in monitoring

15

the system and are available, you know, to suggest

16

ways to monitor additional monitoring in the system

17

as far as the additional wells they want to put in

18

or areas outside the aquifer that might need

19

monitored. We enter into agreements with water

20

boards or other agencies that we -- where we can do

21

studies, you know, further research studies to look

22

at how much the aquifer might be able to sustain.

23

It's not -- usually not a regulatory number or

24

something like that, but as far as, you know, we can

25

come up with things like numerical models where we
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actually put in parameters for the system and try

2

and test different scenarios and look at optimizing

3

the system and try to figure out the connection

4

between the Iao Aquifer and Waihee or Central Maui,

5

things like that. So, you know, as data comes in

6

and as there's interested parties, we certainly can

7

work on stuff like that, but we don't -- you know,

8

we don't have any plans right now to revisit the

9

number or come up with a new number or anything like

10

that.

11

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Let me ask you this: In your opinion

12

do you see our Water Department going in a direction

13

away from this concentrated extraction and spreading

14

it out, do you see them -- or do you consider

15

their -- them demonstrating satisfactorily to

16

getting away from this concentrated extraction of

17

water and spreading out the withdrawal in the Iao

18

Aquifer?

19

MR. GINGERICH: Sounds like a loaded question.

20

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: It is.

21

MR. GINGERICH: Maybe I should say that it's a good idea

22

that they do that. I'm not certain of all the

23

practices of what they're doing. I know that they

24

have moved into the North Waihee sector and tried to

25

spread out pumping there. I think, you know, that's
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a good idea. I think it's important to keep the

2

pumping spread out as much as possible. We don't

3

want to -- you know, can't just move across an

4

aquifer boundary line and pump all the water right

5

there, you know, that's not going to work. So if

6

they're spreading out to Maluhia and to that area,

7

you know, that's a step in the right direction. I'm

8

not sure what the total demands for water are going

9

to be and how far they need to spread out, but, you

10
11
12

know, it's definitely a good idea.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you.
Mr. Tengan, can you, I guess, show this body

13

what your time lines are as far as -- Well, first of

14

all, let me ask, I'll back up and ask, do you folks

15

see yourselves demonstrating this move to get away

16

from concentrated extraction of water? And if so,

17

would you folks be able to demonstrate whether --

18

well, preferably in writing what steps you folks are

19

taking to accomplish that, to -- I guess the words

20

that were being used earlier was optimize the

21

efficiency of the infrastructure that's in place or

22

you folks are looking at putting in place so you

23

folks don't damage the aquifer?

24
25

MR. TENGAN: I think we are. As I mentioned earlier, you
know, we have moved out to North Waihee, we're
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moving out even further to Maluhia, we're going to

2

develop that well in Waikapu. So I think we are.

3

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: So let me ask you, to understand, by

4

moving out in those areas, does that then turn off

5

something that's existing now? I mean, are you

6

turning off a pump -- the pumps that are

7

concentrated together, are you turning off one of

8

those and then turning on something that's on the

9

fringes or can you --

10

MR. TENGAN: Well, I would think that we would shut down

11

the pumps or not use them unless absolutely

12

necessary, those pumps that show high chlorides.

13

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Is there kind of a -- do you folks

14

have a time frame as far as -- For me, I'm asking

15

this question because I am trying to tie it into

16

what we have in our agenda, which seems like we have

17

gone all around the place and we really haven't got

18

to the meat of the agenda item that we're talking

19

about. So I'm trying to tie it in now. They --

20

there's a request for change in zoning so they can

21

move with a plan that they're proposing, and I want

22

to kind of correlate that or see if there is a

23

correlation to what you folks are doing at the Water

24

Department to optimize the infrastructure on the Iao

25

Aquifer and, of course, the adjoining aquifers and
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2

what you folks are doing. So is there -MR. TENGAN: Yes. Our goal is to add on at least one well

3

every year. And we hope to get 1 million to 1.5

4

million gallons per day out of these wells.

5

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: And how far out are you folks looking

6

at? I mean, right now you're talking about Iao

7

Aquifer and the Waihee Aquifer. I mean, you said

8

that Kakaloa was far out, I mean, kind of far out

9

there. Is there any plans looking at Kakaloa or

10

more in the Waikapu area?

11

MR. TENGAN: Well, once -- after we get done with Maluhia,

12

I guess we would be looking even further to Kahaloa.

13

One of the major constraints would be the

14

transmission lines. It could be very costly going

15

across the gulches or going around along with the

16

roadways.

17

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: As far as the Kamaole Aquifer, and I

18

am just trying to look at it from -- in my opinion,

19

a logical standpoint of we're talking about a

20

project that's in Makena and the Kamaole Aquifer

21

sits under the Makena Resort or the proposal. Is

22

there any water development discussion going on

23

there within your Department that would be able to

24

eventually service this region?

25

MR. TENGAN: No. We haven't explored this area yet.
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COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Is there any discussion at all about

2

it or future plans to even bring it on line as a

3

discussion?

4
5
6

MR. TENGAN: I would have to refer to Ellen on this
question.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Ellen. I guess in theory it just

7

minimizes the transmission part, so I'm just trying

8

to understand that, Ellen.

9

MS. KRAFTSOW: Yeah, we -- the Water Department per se has

10

no plans in the Kamaole Aquifer. There are several

11

wells along the coast that used to be used for

12

irrigation that are no longer used. The water is

13

brackish down there. But there are efforts on the

14

part of I think both one of the developers as well

15

as Hawaiian Homelands to do some exploration in that

16

aquifer. So we'll be watching those very closely,

17

but as the Department we don't have -- We do have a

18

20-year capital project list which does involve

19

wells both in the Waihee Aquifer and going out to

20

East Maui. As you know, the EIS was stalled for

21

legal reasons. And if -- say, for instance, if the

22

EIS was approved in 2003 finally, we could be in

23

design and -- you know, in 2004. Like as soon as we

24

get the okay, we can move on that, but we can't --

25

obviously can't move on that until we get the okay.
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2

What other point? So I guess that's it for
that question.

3

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Mr. Chair.

4

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Any other questions?

5

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you.

6

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Hokama.

7

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Mr. Gingerich, would you say, then,

8

since I was listening carefully to how you mention

9

about aquifers having some sort of relationship with

10

one another, whether they be adjacent or, let's say,

11

just within the West Maui region, that, you know,

12

overpumping in one specific area may have a negative

13

effect on the abutting aquifer, would the reverse

14

also be true that, let's say, for West Maui, since

15

Pioneer Mill is not taking their millions of gallons

16

to irrigate sugarcane acreages anymore, that the

17

nonpumpage of that water could eventually be a

18

benefit to the aquifer on this side of the island,

19

on the West Maui Range?

20

MR. GINGERICH: I think the degree of connectedness

21

between the two is probably very slight because of

22

the -- the volcanic structure of the island, the

23

rift zone, the dike zones of the volcano that have

24

very low permeability rocks in. And probably

25

there's very little, if any, connectedness between
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1

the two, you know, that you could really depend on,

2

I think. So I would say --

3

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Even if you go all the way to Iao

4

and then come out by Ukumehame and Ukumehame had

5

sugarcane acreages that was cultivated, it wouldn't

6

have -- I mean, we don't have specific data that

7

says, yes, they're connected or not connected?

8
9
10
11
12

MR. GINGERICH: Right. I would -- I would say at first
thought it doesn't seem very likely that that would
improve the situation much here.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. Well, I appreciate -appreciate your comment on that.

13

Mr. Tengan, do we blend water? Let's say one

14

well that had a slightly higher chloride content and

15

one with very low chloride content and that after

16

blending it is still below the definition of

17

brackish water, and do we use it in our domestic

18

water system?

19

MR. TENGAN: Well, in the Central System we do put

20

water -- water from various sources into a tank

21

where the water is -- I guess it's blended, but it's

22

not blended for that purpose to reduce the chloride

23

contents of the water.

24
25

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Could that be a real option to do,
though?
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MR. TENGAN: It could be an option. I know we --

2

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Would it satisfy, you know, your

3

Department's requirements, Department of Health's

4

requirements for drinking water, Federal

5

requirements for safe drinking water?

6

MR. TENGAN: The chloride content is just as -- it's not a

7

mandatory requirement, the 250 parts per million.

8

It's primarily an esthetic value. Once you -- in my

9

opinion, once you get into about 180 parts per

10

million, you can start to taste the salt in the

11

water. So in answer to your question, you know, we

12

could meet the Federal requirements by blending

13

water. When I was on the Big Island, we did that at

14

one source in the Kauai Kai area where we mixed the

15

water from the surface system with the well water.

16

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: The reason I bring that up is we --

17

we know for a fact that Makena does have brackish

18

wells. And, again, I have no idea what their

19

chloride levels are, but let's say it's 400 parts

20

per million. And then blended with sufficient

21

amount of good, potable water, bring the chloride

22

down to, let's say, under 175, since you use 184 for

23

esthetics, would that be a real use that could be

24

presented to a domestic system for this project?

25

MR. TENGAN: You mean where the developer would do the
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blending?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Well, they could do the blending

3

and, of course, be -- they have to get certification

4

either from your Department of Health or both or you

5

could do the blending for them, but, you know, we

6

would have it certified and tested by Department of

7

Health and meets the standards and has appropriate

8

chloride -- chlorine content to make sure it's -- we

9

kill all the bacteria and whatnot. Is that a

10

real -- Is that a reasonable option for

11

consideration?

12

MR. TENGAN: As I said earlier, you know, we're not doing

13

that for the purpose of reducing the chloride

14

content in our water today, and so I'm not aware

15

that there were any changes in the Safe Drinking

16

Water Act that might affect this practice. So in

17

answer to your question, I would have to check with

18

the DOH if that was an appropriate thing to do.

19

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: But -- but facility-wise, it can be

20

done?

21

MR. TENGAN: Facility-wise, it could be done.

22

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you very much, Mr.

23

Chairman.

24

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Molina.

25

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
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A question for Mr. Gingerich. You mentioned

2

methodology earlier as it relates to the yield of

3

the aquifer, in particular Iao, as you spoke with

4

Mr. Kane about when the Commission of Water

5

Resources gave their assessment that 20 million

6

gallons a day, roughly about four, maybe five years

7

ago. What types of assessments or methodology do

8

you use now that might not have been used back then?

9

MR. GINGERICH: It would -- I would probably have to say

10

some sort of numerical groundwater model, which

11

is -- takes, you know, a lot of data and time to

12

produce, but it's probably the best tool we have to

13

look at a complex system like this. A system

14

originally used to set sustainable yield for Iao and

15

for, in fact, the entire State was kind of a

16

simplified model that you could do on paper with the

17

existing data we had. And that was done, I don't

18

know, in the mid '70s or '80s when that technique

19

was first come up with. And the use of computers at

20

that time didn't -- wasn't a very great idea, but

21

with the advent of PCs today, it's a lot simpler to

22

do something like that and we find it a much more

23

powerful tool. We have done that -- we did a

24

computer model for the entire island of Molokai when

25

that was designated, and the State Water Commission
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used some results from that model to help them set

2

their yields or limits on that island. So they have

3

a history of using a model, you know, in the past.

4

And even since that model was produced, you know,

5

our ability has advanced even further where we

6

could -- you know, I don't want to get into the

7

technical details, but basically we come up with a

8

3D -- a three-dimensional model of the aquifer where

9

we could look at all the inputs and outputs and the

10

different pumping scenarios like I talked about and

11

actually have a picture of the transition zone, you

12

know, moving with time in the system. And that's

13

probably the best way we would have to look at the

14

system.

15

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. So I ask that because in

16

your professional opinion, do you believe that if we

17

had used -- if today's methodology was used back

18

then in giving this assessment of the Iao Aquifer,

19

do you believe that figure would have changed for

20

more or less than what we presently have?

21

MR. GINGERICH: That's really hard to say with the new

22

findings we have maybe in fog drip, plus if the

23

well -- If you had a model before you drilled any

24

wells and used that model to guide where you drilled

25

and how deep you drilled, you might have been able
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1

to get more water out of the system than you're

2

getting now, but you might have also been able to

3

look into the future 50 years and see, oh, well, the

4

lens is going to continue to shrink to a point where

5

we can only get 14 or 15 or some other number like

6

that. So I really can't say, you know, if we had

7

that model, you know, we would have the perfect

8

system now, but it's kind of the next step you would

9

take to optimize how you're operating your system.

10

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you.

11

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Everybody, any more questions?

12

Councilwoman Johnson.

13

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I just had one quick question of

14

the -- either the Water Department or the US

15

Geological Survey. In areas where resort

16

development requires many of the water features, the

17

swimming pools, a lot of the water features just

18

simply for esthetics, how much actually is lost to

19

evaporation, you know, if we're looking at areas, or

20

would you have no idea?

21

MR. GINGERICH: I really don't have a good idea at that.

22

You know, there's -- I could probably spend a half

23

an hour and find an answer for you, but offhand I

24

don't know how much of that is lost. Obviously some

25

through evaporation and that sort of thing, but I
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couldn't tell you how much.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: But as a general rule, though,

3

when you have many water features where it's a large

4

surface area exposed to wind and sun and other

5

conditions, it would be different than if you didn't

6

have those kinds of amenities; is that correct?

7

MR. GINGERICH: Yeah. Yeah.

8

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.

9

MS. KRAFTSOW: And I think you also just brought up some

10

key point, too, which is that how much evaporation

11

is also going to be a function of how much sun and

12

how hot it is and how much wind.

13

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Right. Okay. Thank you.

14

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Councilmember Nishiki.

15

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you. To the Water

16

Department, we heard today the State Water

17

Commission and also USGS tell this Committee that

18

there is certain data that we need to pursue to

19

establish what is the sustainable yield and more

20

studies need to be done I think as this Committee

21

searches for an answer. What are you going to do in

22

regards to some of those questions that they have

23

said needs to be answered? In other words, you're

24

not helping us if we don't get that information. Do

25

you intend to spend the necessary money for someone
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to do the study?
MR. TENGAN: We have been working with USGS and the State

3

Water Commission in data acquisition and we have

4

cooperated with them as far as providing them

5

information that they have wanted from us. And this

6

is the extent of our participation.

7

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So if we were to ask USGS to come

8

up with other information that they would need,

9

would you participate?

10

MR. TENGAN: We would take a look at the cost of gathering

11

the data first. Assuming that it's reasonable and

12

it's a good investment, I'm sure we would

13

participate.

14

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Well, I think the concern that

15

this entire community of Maui has is for us to make

16

good decisions, for us to ensure future generations

17

with drinkable water, this Board and this Department

18

is cast with getting that valuable information prior

19

to any decision that we would make -- we would need

20

to make in our decision making. And I see

21

perhaps -- and I don't know, maybe you can tell me

22

this, but, you know, them coming on the 14th to take

23

up the matter on whether we're going to establish a

24

Groundwater Management Area, would you -- would you

25

say that it's a concern that they've had and that's
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the reason the decision will be made on the 15th?

2

I don't think it's a loaded question. I

3

think that those of us that have been following

4

water and the concerns of the Iao Aquifer as has

5

been pointed out by the lady Nishioka is one that --

6

I guess I'll ask that question again.

7

MR. TENGAN: Could --

8

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: The question is that because

9

they're coming and perhaps going to address whether

10

we establish a Groundwater Management Area is

11

because of the concern that they've had all along

12

with how we are managing the aquifer and pumpage?

13

MR. TENGAN: I think you're assuming that they're going to

14

designate the aquifer. That determination hasn't

15

been made yet.

16

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.

17

MR. TENGAN: That determination is to be made on the 14th.

18

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. I'm not assuming because

19

she told me that that's -- I was wrong. So I'm not

20

going to stick my long tongue out again and get it

21

bitten. My question is is that do you think, if I

22

may stick my tongue out again, that they will make a

23

decision? I have some concerns.

24

MR. TENGAN: I would hate to speculate on what the

25

Commission -- State Water Commission will be
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deciding.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Right. Okay. And -- and let

3

me -- let me take for scenario, then, if they do

4

decide, if I may repeat this question, then

5

perhaps -- Well, let me ask you this: Have you seen

6

where a community or an area has been designated as

7

a Groundwater Management Area?

8

MR. TENGAN: I believe Molokai and the Central Oahu area.

9

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. Okay. Thank you. So when

10

that decision has been made, what have you seen the

11

Commission do in regards to the next action?

12

Obviously they're concerned about the management of

13

the water resource, right?

14

MR. TENGAN: Right. Ellen works more closely with the

15

State Water Commission than I, so I'll defer that

16

question to her.

17

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you.

18

MS. KRAFTSOW: One of the first steps that they would take

19

is to establish existing use permits. And just to

20

give you an example, existing use permits are set as

21

of the date of designation, so even if the decision

22

is not completed until four years later, the

23

existing use permit still is defined as as of the

24

date of designation. Then subsequently they would

25

go through a quote, unquote, future use permit
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process, which would be uses ongoing.
For -- in the case of Molokai, they completed

3

their existing use -- I think that they designated

4

in '92 or so, and they completed their future use

5

permits in something like '96. Forgive me if I'm

6

wrong, but the date -- whatever the dates exactly

7

were, it was like three or four years later. And

8

the future use permits have yet to be dealt with.

9

So the other question is how would that

10

change what will actually happen to the aquifer.

11

Right now, as I think George explained, we have

12

several efforts both to increase yield by going to

13

other aquifers and to distribute yield within the

14

Iao Aquifer better. Those are things that the

15

Commission has wanted us to be doing and that we are

16

doing. So what could they do to make that go

17

faster? The answer is nothing. What they could do

18

is require that existing pumpage be diminished at

19

various locations. I'm not aware of any case where

20

they actually have done this yet, although I think

21

they're considering doing that in Molokai where the

22

sustainable yield of the Kualapuu Aquifer was

23

reduced from 7 to 5.

24
25

As far as I know on Oahu, and, again, I won't
claim 100-percent certainty with this, but I'm like
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90-some percent certain, a lot of the actual water

2

use permits, although it's designated, it is

3

actually the Board of Water Supply that determines

4

who gets what water. So in terms of practical

5

considerations and whether the aquifer would

6

actually better -- be better protected, it's not

7

clear to us that it would be. I mean, we're not

8

claiming perfection here, but we are taking steps.

9

And as far as your question about monitoring

10

wells and data collection, so far every year USGS

11

sends us a proposal and we spend about -- and it's

12

about 25,000 or so a year, but I think some of that

13

is for Kailihi(?) so say something on the order of

14

22,000 these days for data collection in Iao and

15

Waihee. And I think that's going to be going up.

16

And the Board is the one who has to decide about

17

whether or not we would participate in a monitoring

18

well. Even George and David don't have the

19

authority to decide that. But the Board has

20

historically approved funds to participate in

21

monitoring wells elsewhere. And I can't say what

22

the Board would do, but if I had to guess, if my

23

life depended on guessing, I would say I wouldn't --

24

I would guess that they probably would go for that,

25

but, again, we can't second-guess the Board or say
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1

what the board would do or make commitments for the

2

board.

3

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. Right. And -- and would

4

you say, whoever wants to answer, if not, I guess

5

we'll make that decision, wouldn't it be better for

6

us to see where this Board wants being that they're

7

cast as -- I remember we had this big question, I

8

think -- I think we voted within the State to create

9

the super water agency, is what it is, this Board

10

now. But, anyway, wouldn't be it be better to see

11

what the outcome of this meeting is prior to making

12

any type of water decision?

13
14
15

MS. KRAFTSOW: I'm sorry. I'm not sure I understood that
question.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Well, if we're looking at

16

addressing the water concern that has been raised by

17

the citizens of this community and getting data that

18

Water Commission and USGS says would be good prior

19

to making a good decision, my question is wouldn't

20

it be better that we await a decision by this Board

21

to see where they want to take or address some of

22

the concerns that they have or want to take into

23

account?

24
25

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Nishiki, I think that
question you can answer yourself rather than ask the
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1

Department. I mean, you're asking Ellen to give you

2

a decision as to whether it's a good idea to have a

3

department wait or for us to wait for a board to

4

make a decision. It's an opinion on her part, she

5

can't speak for the Board. She's already clarified

6

that.

7

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah.

8

CHAIR ARAKAWA: So --

9

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Mr. Chairman.

10

CHAIR ARAKAWA: It's getting to the point where I'm --

11

where we're getting close to 5 o'clock, there's a 6

12

o'clock meeting that's going to be coming on board.

13

Okay. So if you have further questions, please ask

14

them, be fairly brief about it, and continue.

15

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: You know, you know, I'm -- I'm

16

sincerely searching for an answer and figuring out

17

from water experts and people that have been through

18

this process what they see as being a most

19

responsible decision. I accept that I know very

20

little and this is the reason why I had hoped, Mr.

21

Chairman -- And everybody is commending you on it,

22

and I will commend you, too. If we can use these

23

people and ask some questions so that I can make a

24

decision. Now, would you like to give me an answer

25

on what your thoughts are --
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CHAIR ARAKAWA: In what Ms. --

2

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: -- to my question.

3

CHAIR ARAKAWA: -- Linnel Nishioka stated when she was

4

here, the Water Commission met several years ago and

5

designated an area -- an amount of 20 million

6

gallons a day for Iao Aquifer. And when it reached

7

that point, then they would -- the State Commission

8

would come in and designate. It is at 17 now, so

9

their decision making on whether or not to designate

10

this aquifer would be whether or not they see

11

sufficient change in the aquifer to merit that kind

12

of a decision to change what is there.

13

Ellen, as a representative of the Department,

14

can't speculate. And that's all I'm saying, she

15

cannot speculate any more than what's already been

16

stated. Nor should she, I believe, represent the

17

Department in something that would be merely

18

speculation.

19

If your question -- your question is worded,

20

should we wait until they make a decision, do you

21

think it's a good idea to wait until they make a

22

decision before making a decision, it's putting her

23

at a very uncomfortable position where you're trying

24

to prod her into saying something that you should be

25

able to decide for yourself.
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Wrong. Wrong. And I don't like

2

the way you did it to me. And I just -- I'm not

3

going to ask you for any apology, but I am sincerely

4

trying to make a decision and so I wish you would

5

have allowed me to ask that question because if

6

she -- She can say I don't know. But I am really

7

searching for an answer today on what is most

8

responsible for me as a decision-maker.

9
10

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Ellen, if you choose to make a comment,
you can make it.

11

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And I'm sorry.

12

MS. KRAFTSOW: I'm sorry, Wayne, forgive me, but I just

13

need one clarification. Are you asking me if we

14

should wait until they make a decision before we

15

continue to try and take remedial action for the

16

aquifer, or are you asking me if we should wait

17

until they make a decision before you decide on the

18

land use issue before you?

19

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I'm concerned about overpumping

20

this aquifer. I am concerned about the high

21

rainfall deficit that USGS has said is occurring.

22

I'm concerned about the rising salt and chloride

23

content that they said -- USGS has said has been the

24

direction that they see as they have done this

25

study. I am concerned about not enough recharge.
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Three areas that they pinpointed out that we should

2

be concerned about as we look at this aquifer. This

3

is my concern. Okay.

4

Now, you have so stated that you have lowered

5

the pumping to 17 million gallons a day now of this

6

aquifer. I am still concerned from the fact that is

7

this enough or have we reached the maximum in this

8

area where they may tell us now look somewhere else.

9

And so I think that even within the Water Board, why

10

spend more money in trying to go and put pukas in

11

the ground to address, perhaps, some of the concerns

12

of having wells too close to each other. As George

13

said, you are taking one in Waikapu, but the amount

14

of gallons that you're going to get is nothing. All

15

you're doing is taking from one area and not taking

16

more from another area.

17

These are kinds of concerns that I've got.

18

And I surely do not want to make a decision on a

19

water concern that is going to affect not only Kihei

20

and Makena, Kahului, where he lives, Wailuku, where

21

they live, every place. This is big-time concern.

22

And that's the reason why I think we brought you

23

people on and have asked you the questions so that

24

we can make a good decision.

25

And I am glad we're doing it, Mr. Chairman,
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1

but all I'm saying is that if you want to answer, if

2

you think you can help me, then help me. If you

3

cannot, then say it. Sorry, I cannot. But you got

4

to make a decision. And I'm not saying I'm making

5

one today, either. In fact, I would like to wait

6

and -- and allow the Commission to come because I

7

believe that they have studied this over the years

8

and that's why they're coming. I have not.

9

Nishioka said she's got her crew of hydrologists.

10

We'll see. That's all I'm saying. So, you know, my

11

question is: Should we wait? You know, because you

12

have seen this Board in action and you have seen

13

some of the decisions and what they have done on

14

Molokai and other parts.

15

MS. KRAFTSOW: Well, my thoughts are this: In terms of

16

should we wait, I'm going to answer that in two

17

parts. In terms of should we wait to take the

18

actions of distributing withdrawal and moving out to

19

alternate sources so that we can diminish

20

withdrawals on Iao, I don't think there's any excuse

21

for waiting. They do have a crew of hydrologists.

22

We speak to them all the time. We work with them

23

very closely. And I think it's clear that they

24

think that we need to be taking actions and we are

25

trying to take those actions. So do we wait for

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

272

LU 10/29/01

1
2

that? No.
As far as do we wait for the Council to make

3

its land use decision, again, we are not the

4

deciders on land use decisions, but I'm going to

5

say, I said it before, I think you have heard me

6

before, any one project that you approve or

7

disapprove is not going to be the make or break

8

project for all the aquifers on Maui. But what we

9

would like to see and what this County seems to lack

10

right now is some policy where we actually look at,

11

okay, how long do we want our resources to last and

12

how are we going to pace our land use decisions.

13

And that's not only for water issues, that's for

14

air, landfill, solid wastes, you name it. I don't

15

think that the County has a consistent policy.

16

I don't know whether or not it's fair to pick

17

out one project and start there, or if you need to

18

set the policy from -- and go from there on. And

19

I'm not going to venture to say that. I really

20

think that's the Council's decision. But what --

21

regardless of what you do with this project, I do

22

think it's time to start asking those questions and

23

answering them.

24
25

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Let me ask you this question:
Based on the amount of permits that we have for
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upcoming Wailuku projects, Kahului projects, Kihei

2

projects right now on line, what is the amount of

3

water we would be needing?

4

MS. KRAFTSOW: Okay. When you want to know how much water

5

demand is coming, you need to first ask what level

6

you're asking. So if you were looking, say, for

7

instance -- just give me -- bear with me here for a

8

second. If you were looking, for instance, at the

9

community plan build-out, you would be looking at as

10

much as 30 to 45 million gallons a day in addition.

11

Okay. On the other hand, if you were looking to

12

permits that are at some stage of the discretionary

13

process, have gone through and are built or

14

partially built, you're looking at something like 7

15

million. Then, on the other hand, if you're looking

16

at our actual water commitments that we have

17

committed meters for, and remember all of our permit

18

reviews say no guarantee of water is granted or

19

implied until a meter commitment is issued, that

20

totals 281,000. Then plus at any one time roughly 7

21

percent of our meters are unutilized, so figure 100

22

to 150,000 at any time

23

Usually there's always a gap there that's not

24

utilized that's, you know, no matter how we utilize.

25

demand for that.

So it depends, again, what -- what level of
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approvals are you looking at. But certainly when

2

the community plans were written, they had

3

principles and policies and then they had the map.

4

And the map is, in many cases, not consistent with

5

the principles and policies and we are given no

6

guidance how to comply with that. And we'll be

7

trying to answer that issue during the process of

8

our water use and development plan process. We'll

9

be asking people, okay, this is what the community

10

plan says, this is what the map allows, what do you

11

think we should do to balance these? And, of

12

course, working with the Planning Department as

13

well.

14

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you.

15

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Council Members, we have discussed

16

pretty much the major concerns that we have had with

17

this project and there is no question in my mind

18

we're going to have to be discussing water and

19

trying to determine a lot of what's happening within

20

the water for many projects to come for many years

21

to come and set policy. Same is going to be true

22

with a lot of what we're doing. But for this

23

particular item, we have many times on that. My

24

question to you is: How many of you need more time

25

to make up your mind and how many of you are ready
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to vote on this item?

2

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Mr. Chair.

3

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Yes, Mr. Kane.

4

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: With all due respect, I think as a

5

Chair if you're ready to present to us your

6

recommendation on this particular item, I think that

7

would be the way for us to proceed in this meeting.

8

For you to ask us -- it's like taking a straw vote

9

prior to taking a real vote.

10
11

CHAIR ARAKAWA: No. I'm just asking you how many of you
are ready to vote.

12

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: So --

13

CHAIR ARAKAWA: If you're ready to vote, I am ready to

14

make a recommendation. If you're not ready to vote

15

because you need more information, we will try and

16

get that information. But that's all I need to

17

know, is whether or not you're ready to vote.

18
19

Jo Anne.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Mr. Chair, I did have some

20

questions with regard to the joint venture agreement

21

and I don't know if -- with Charmaine's meeting

22

coming up, I don't know if the developer is prepared

23

to answer the questions with regard to that

24

agreement. So, I mean, for me, if you're asking me

25

right now, I would like to have an opportunity to at
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least -- I can visit privately, you know, with them,

2

but I would like the answers to that question before

3

I'm prepared to vote.

4

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Roy, do you have anyone that is ready to

5

discuss the joint venture agreement or can discuss

6

it?
And the bottom line on this is sooner or

7
8

later this Council -- Committee has to take -- make

9

a decision. We can be looking for information for

10

many years to come if we want to find every detail,

11

but we are charged with making decisions at some

12

time in our life. And I would like, again -- you

13

know, again, the Chair -- I've pretty much made up

14

my mind, that is why I say I'm ready to make a

15

recommendation if you are ready for that decision

16

making.

17
18
19
20

Roy, if you could answer Councilwoman
Johnson's question.
MR. FIGUEROA: My name is Roy Figueroa, I represent Makena
Resort. I'm not sure what the question was.

21

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Jo Anne.

22

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I can just ask -- you know, there

23

were just a couple things that in my mind -- and I

24

spoke to Gwen last week and I said that I would be

25

asking you some questions today in regard to this,
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but just so that I understand, because I kind of --

2

I went through some of the information and I handed

3

out a copy of the -- or at least portions of the

4

Central Maui Source Development Joint Venture which

5

was a presentation back in 1985 which was prepared,

6

I guess, in regard to that. But just so that I am

7

clear, I can ask you these questions. If you can't

8

answer them, that's fine. But is it my

9

understanding by reading through this information

10

that you have for your whole joint venture 13.4

11

million gallons per day of pumping capacity that was

12

developed by the joint venture?

13

MR. FIGUEIROA: That was the installed capacity.

14

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. And that's correct. And

15

that's the three wells, that represents those three

16

wells?

17

MR. FIGUEIROA: That's correct.

18

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. And if I read further

19

correctly, is -- are two of those wells that have a

20

pump capacity for 4.2 million gallons per day and

21

then one with a pump capacity of 5 million gallons a

22

day?

23

MR. FIGUEIROA: That's my recollection.

24

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. So -- And I just went back

25

through the Central Maui Agreement so that I can
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have this fixed in my mind. There was a gentleman

2

that was quoted in here, Richard Cox, he said of the

3

13.4 million gallons per day that was developed, the

4

demand -- and I am just quoting from this, this

5

demand of pumping capacity, of course, is for the --

6

will be for the maximum day and allowing for pump

7

breakdown-type effect. You know, so I guess what he

8

was saying, the way I understand it, is that if one

9

of those pumps and assume that the biggest pump went

10

down, he is saying that you would take into

11

consideration that effect when you were considering

12

what could be taken out of for pumping capacity. So

13

is that -- is that a correct statement?

14

MR. FIGUEIROA: I don't know what he really meant by that.

15

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. So you're not sure -- Well,

16

were you -- were you on board at this time?

17

MR. FIGUEIROA: Yes, I was with the company.

18

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. So it's in the statement,

19
20

but you're not sure what he meant by that?
MR. FIGUEIROA: I'm not sure -- Yeah, I'd have to say I'm

21

not sure how it relates to what you're thinking

22

about.

23

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Well, what I'm looking at is --

24

MR. FIGUEROA: I have no idea what you're driving at.

25

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Well, what I'm looking at
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1

basically is if the biggest pump broke down, the way

2

I read the calculations and the way I interpreted

3

what he said is that you would take that one well

4

out of the calculation because you would have to

5

allow for, let's say, taking that well off for

6

service or whatever, and you take off the biggest,

7

you know, take off that amount off-line. And that's

8

the way I am looking at it. Because I'm looking at

9

is as -- at that as a worst scenario, that if you

10

had to take that one down, that's taking it out of

11

the equation. So I'm trying to determine how we

12

would be looking at the calculation.

13

MR. FIGUEIROA: I don't know if he meant taking it out of

14

the three wells or taking that one out -- one well

15

out of the aquifer.

16

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Well, I -- you know, just in

17

reading this, my recollection is that it would take

18

the biggest one out of service. Now, I don't know

19

if --

20

MS. KRAFTSOW: Our standards require that you meet max day

21

demand in 16 hours pumping with the largest pump

22

out.

23
24
25

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. So with the largest pump
out.
MS. KRAFTSOW: But just for reference, we don't -- we
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1

don't take anything like four, four and five out of

2

those wells. That is the installed capacity and

3

there's redundancy and so on. But there's also

4

limits or recommendations that we have received

5

on -- in terms of how much we should take out of

6

each well field in order to keep the chlorides

7

healthy, and so we take considerably less water out

8

of those wells.

9

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. So you're actually taking

10

out less. Well, just let's for all intents and

11

purposes assume that the biggest well was down. The

12

biggest one has a pump capacity of 5 million gallons

13

a day. So if you took that out of your 13.4 million

14

gallons and you took out the 5 million gallons, you

15

know, because it was out of service, and you looked

16

at it -- Because the way I also read this, and Ellen

17

can correct me if I'm wrong, but to me, peak demand,

18

which is usually on the hottest day of summer and

19

sometimes in drought conditions, you would be

20

looking at a demand or average daily demand, let's

21

say, at 5.6, because what you're doing is you're

22

taking off the 5 from the 13.4. And I guess what

23

you're doing is you're coming out -- Well, no, you

24

would be limited to 8.4 million gallons a day,

25

that's taking out the 5. I'm sorry. I'm reading my
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figures wrong. And then looking at the peak demand

2

in the middle of the summer, your average daily

3

demand would be somewhere around 5.6 million gallons

4

a day. And so I would just be dividing the 8.4 by

5

1.5. So it's somewhere around I guess 6 -- you

6

know, if you rounded it off, you would be looking at

7

6 million gallons. Is that correct, Ellen?

8
9

MS. KRAFTSOW: If I'm hearing you correctly, it sounds
about correct. Another easy way to do this is you

10

want to meet max day demand in 16 hours and your max

11

day demand -- max day, now, is defined as one and a

12

half times average day.

13

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Right.

14

MS. KRAFTSOW: There is a separate term called peak day,

15

which is a different number, but this standard

16

refers to max day. So it's one and a half times

17

average day in 16 hours. If you want to convert

18

that, just to make it easier to think about, into

19

average day, then you would take about 44 percent

20

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Forty. Okay. So --

21

MS. KRAFTSOW: -- of your installed capacity, and that

22
23
24
25

would be about what it can deliver.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: So 44 percent, then, of the 13.4?
Or 13 -MS. KRAFTSOW: Well, that would be -- that would be our
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standards capacity, not allowing for issues of

2

chlorides and so on, yeah.

3

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.

4

MS. KRAFTSOW: Against your 12 it may be even.

5

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: So now my basic question is: If

6

we assume all this, you know, the calculations and

7

if I am reading this and interpreting it correctly

8

and taking into account what the Board of Water

9

Supply is basically saying, the entitlements under

10

the Joint Venture Agreement, what are you basing

11

those on, that you're going to draw everything out,

12

the full amount of the 13.4, or are you basing it on

13

the figures that I just, you know, calculated?

14

MR. FIGUEIROA: As one member of the joint venture, I'm

15

not going to say that I based it on any of those

16

calculations as far as why I'm here before you. I'm

17

here for a change in zoning based on matching the

18

community plan. And I think all the questions I've

19

heard the eight meetings that I have been to already

20

has been to determine whether there is water, not

21

whether my calculations or another member of the

22

joint venture's calculations compares to what the

23

Board's calculations are. We're looking at whether

24

there is water.

25

And, you know, I'm not saying that because we
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work to develop source that we're here to solve all

2

the water problems, but also I'm not here to say or

3

admit that because of this change in zoning, that

4

I'll be using all of the water that is available. I

5

think you have heard experts that have spoken to you

6

even today, the Water Commission is very comfortable

7

with the 20 million gallons per day sustainable

8

yield for the Iao Aquifer. They're comfortable with

9

the 8 million gallons per day in North Waihee.

10

We're not saying that that's a final answer even as

11

USGS says. We hope you don't wait to see a final

12

answer because if you see a final answer, that means

13

you're not studying it any more, and I don't think

14

any of us should stop studying what the ground can

15

yield as far as water. It's something we're going

16

to go on studying, on and on and on, because there

17

is no final answer. We have to look at the

18

conditions, as even USGS has said, and we'll go on

19

doing that. If we wait for a final answer, we're

20

waiting for something that's not going to come.

21

And I think, again, we want to ask the

22

Committee here to consider that we are in here for a

23

change in zoning to conform to the community plan.

24

When we talk about our development, we are talking

25

about in the range of absorption 50 to 100 units a
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year. Even if you were to, say, take an average of

2

that, 75 units a year, using numbers that the Water

3

Board uses, a thousand gallons perhaps, you're

4

talking about 75,000 gallons per year. And so we're

5

just one small component of the people that will be

6

drawing water, but we're part of it and we want to

7

be part of it. But we would like to have that

8

chance, especially since we have devoted a lot of

9

our economic resources to developing that water and

10

transmitting that water so that people of Kihei have

11

been able to use it, also. And so I think that's

12

the -- that's where I would stand on that matter.

13

As far as the numbers, what Water Department

14

say they can produce from there, historically what

15

they have produced, it's part of the large number of

16

water that can be produced in that aquifer, and

17

that's we have to look at. We're part of the

18

community that would benefit from the water

19

developed there, North Waihee and elsewhere into the

20

same system which we have helped to develop.

21

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And I understand what you're

22

saying, Roy. I do really think that you have been a

23

good corporate citizen. That's not what's at issue

24

here today. And the land use issue that we're

25

looking at right now, like it or not, it is tied
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into water. And if by giving further approvals on

2

to the 1,700 or so that have already been given,

3

which are all looking at this source which you

4

helped to develop for water, if we're looking at

5

that, what is the straw that will break the camel's

6

back? And it may seem like a minuscule amount, in

7

making a land use decision of this magnitude it may

8

seem very small in the scheme of things, but the

9

cumulative impacts of what we do here and our

10

understanding and comprehension of an agreement that

11

you have that, let's say, commits us as a Council or

12

as a County to give you whatever entitlements you

13

have, those are all key elements of that. That's

14

why I'm asking these questions. And if your version

15

or if your perception of that joint agreement is

16

different from what our County's perception or

17

agreement, you know, might be, then that causes us a

18

problem because either we're not living up to our

19

obligation, or there's a misunderstanding about

20

where we're going with this and what our obligations

21

are to you and to the other members of this joint

22

venture.

23

And I'm not saying that you're not entitled

24

to that, but I'm trying to fix a figure in my mind

25

that when a future developer comes and they would do
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something similar to you and we enter into these

2

types of agreements, if you install pumping capacity

3

up to 13.4 million gallons a day, does that mean you

4

get all of it? Because realistically, with what

5

Ellen is saying, she's saying no, it doesn't entitle

6

you to the full amount. You can't use it all

7

because if you can only use 44 percent and if what's

8

already being used by the other partners means that

9

they're using more than what, you know, let's say --

10

and I don't know if they are, but if they're

11

using -- if they have used it all up or other people

12

have come on line have used it all up, then what do

13

we have to give?

14

MR. FIGUEIROA: I think the Board of Water Supply has --

15

the Department has been consistent in saying they do

16

want to fulfill their obligations toward us in

17

delivering us water. Of all the people that have

18

used water, we have used 250,000 gallons. And

19

that's why I say, even based on 75 units per year,

20

that would be amount comparing to what we use now,

21

still comes out to an average probably about 75,000

22

gallons per year. And I'm not saying that you're

23

not -- don't add it and it's a cumulative effect on

24

everybody, but you still have to consider what

25

we're -- if you want to look at the aquifer and say
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it's going to have an effect on everybody, then some

2

of the things that you have been discussing, maybe

3

you -- I would think, if I were in your position,

4

would be looking at something or an action that

5

would affect everybody instead of affecting one

6

person. Here we want a chance to stand in line, and

7

that's what we're trying to do. And if you're

8

saying, well, this is something that we have to

9

really look at for the whole area and if you say in

10

being fair that we have to look at applying to

11

everybody, then it should be considered in the

12

context of everybody, not in the context of one

13

single developer.

14

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No. And I completely understand

15

that because it is a fairness issue. And I think

16

that we have recently been very consistent in asking

17

those questions of everyone that's come before us.

18

So in my mind, it is a question, and that's why

19

we're trying to get to these fundamental answers so

20

that we can address your concerns and, you know, so

21

that if there are other people standing in line,

22

they know where this Council is at least heading

23

toward, which is accountability not only to you, but

24

to the people who live in Maui County. We have to

25

make intelligent decisions and that's not easy to do
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1

when -- I think it was the woman from the Water

2

Commission this morning, she said, well, we're

3

basically, and I use the analogy that's a little bit

4

different from hers, we're writing checks and we

5

have no idea what the balance is in our account.

6

That's very frightening. And it should be

7

frightening to your development as well. Because I

8

would hate to approve it and then find at some point

9

that you had vesting and then there was nothing

10
11

there for you.
MR. FIGUEIROA: The thing is, as I said, I have heard the

12

same information that you have heard and maybe not

13

all of it, I haven't been to all the other meetings

14

you have been with other developers or other

15

projects, but I have heard the information. I have

16

heard the Water Commission representative being

17

comfortable with the sustainable yield as

18

represented. The Water Department has been

19

consistent. When you look at experts, John Mink has

20

been consistent, the Water Commission pretty much

21

accepts his version of what the sustainable yield

22

is. And I think that's what we're looking at as far

23

as saying, well, we think the water question has

24

been answered. I mean, it's not a matter of whether

25

the Water Department thinks they owe somebody 13
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million or 6 million or 3 million, it's what will be

2

available. We know that we're taking a risk in

3

developing and the Water Department makes this clear

4

to every single person who even applies for

5

anything, that they cannot guarantee the water until

6

you apply for the water meter. And that's true of I

7

think every single person.

8

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you.

9

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Nishiki.

10

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Roy, the State Land Use Commission

11

imposed upon you 22 conditions. One condition was

12

petitioner -- I know Riki harped on this, but I

13

don't know whether he ever followed through.

14

Petitioner shall provide affordable housing

15

opportunities for low, low moderate and gap group

16

income residents of the State of Hawaii in

17

accordance with applicable laws, rules, regulations

18

and of the County of Maui. When do you intend on

19

building these units?

20

MR. FIGUEIROA: We intend to comply with that condition as

21

even the Planning Commission passed it on their

22

recommendation to you Condition No. 10 did include

23

an affordable housing requirement. Now, of course,

24

it's up to the -- if the Council chooses to adjust

25

that condition, I mean, we would be willing to
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listen to that, but it is part of the conditions.

2

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. And, Mr. Chairman, the

3

reason why I bring this up is so often --

4
5

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Nishiki, if I can ask you to
wait just -- Roy, you avoided the question.

6

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Mr. Chairman.

7

CHAIR ARAKAWA: The question was --

8

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Mr. Chairman, if I may, please.

9

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Yes, Mr. Hokama.

10

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Since Mr. Nishiki did ask the

11

question, I can inform all of you, all my members of

12

your Committee, that I did follow through. I have a

13

condition that is -- I haven't had it typed up, but

14

I have followed through. I have talked to Mr.

15

Figueiroa of -- to place an affordable housing

16

condition that is quite specific. There are

17

triggers when the units will be built. And this is

18

in excess of those required by the Code for

19

hotel-related development, Mr. Nishiki. And so at

20

the proper time and -- you know, I'll have it typed

21

up, but I do have something for your consideration

22

that will address that specific concern.

23

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: If I may move on.

24

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Thank you, Mr. Hokama.

25

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: You are now also going to be
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putting in two more hotels?

2

MR. FIGUEIROA: No, I'm not.

3

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Then you are going to sell one

4

area that you --

5

MR. FIGUEIROA: We're now going to --

6

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: -- are now going to be entitled to

7

should the zoning request pass? Right now you have

8

got two areas where if the zoning request passes,

9

you will be able to build two more hotels. Is that

10
11
12
13
14
15

true?
MR. FIGUEROA: We do not -- We do not plan to build two
more hotels.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Well, you have the opportunity
under the -- should this zoning pass?
MR. FIGUEIROA: That is correct. However, we do have to

16

respond to the market, and right now we do not feel

17

that two hotels -- or another hotel, even, would be

18

warranted in that area. However, in the Maui County

19

Code in the Hotel District, time shares are allowed

20

and we do feel that type of product would be more

21

suited in this particular economic climate and

22

that's what we intend to pursue in that zoning

23

district.

24
25

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And because you will put in a
timeshare, does that mean that you will not meet the
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1

housing -- affordable housing component of when you

2

build the hotel of 1 to 4?

3

MR. FIGUEIROA: I'm pretty sure that Mr. Hokama's -- what

4

we have talked about will address that as he's

5

specific in his request.

6

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: We will require them.

7

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And, finally, the question that I

8

have is I think perhaps many people viewing this

9

think that if we deny it, you have nothing, but can

10

you tell us what you already have presently zoned in

11

acres that you are able to put up despite that you

12

may be given a denial?

13

MR. FIGUEIROA: What we have right now is a mix of things

14

that do not comply with the community plan. And

15

according to the ordinances today, if your zoning

16

does not match the community plan, especially in an

17

SMA area or with a subdivision, then it's considered

18

inconsistent and could not be approved. And that is

19

the problem we have with a lot of the acreage in

20

this Makena Resort area. And that has been pointed

21

out before. We have gone over this in the past

22

seven meetings, also, and so we hope that you can

23

consider the reason for trying to comply with that

24

community plan.

25

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Finally, in -- in Condition No.
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12, it says, "Petitioner shall participate in the

2

pro rata funding and construction of local and

3

regional transportation improvements, programs

4

including dedication of right-of-ways as determined

5

by the State Department of Transportation and the

6

County of Maui. Agreement between petitioner and

7

DOT as to the level of funding and participation

8

shall be obtained prior to petitioner acquiring

9

County zoning." Do you have before us an agreement

10

that you have with this County in regards to the

11

final amount of monies you are going to participate

12

in?

13

MR. FIGUEIROA: Well --

14

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And has -- and who have you made

15

that agreement with?

16

MR. FIGUEIROA: Right now, when we went back to the State

17

Land Use Commission, it was because the State

18

Department of -- Department of Transportation could

19

not reach a decision on what the pro rata share

20

would be, so we went for an amendment to that

21

condition saying that -- and that amended condition

22

I believe says that there would be a pro rata share

23

agreement reached before I believe it's June 2002.

24

I believe that's the date. To date the Department

25

of Transportation still has not come up, as I think
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1

even Jadine mentioned, with what that pro rata share

2

is. And despite that, we did agree to participate

3

in planning and design of the interim improvements

4

for Piilani Highway. We know that it's still taking

5

a risk. We don't know if they'll ever come up with

6

that specific pro rata share. We hope they do so

7

that we can have some credit for whatever

8

participation we have, but we went ahead despite

9

that, without knowing what that pro rata share would

10
11

eventually be.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So what you did was you went to

12

the State Land Use Commission and changed that

13

condition?

14

MR. FIGUEIROA: We amended it because we -- the State

15

Department of Transportation could never come up

16

with what the pro rata share is.

17

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Mr. Chairman, do we have -- What

18

other amendments did you make that we may not know

19

of? And the reason I ask this, Mr. Chairman, is

20

they can go in front of the State Land Use

21

Commission and amend conditions and these may be

22

conditions that we think will be fulfilled to only

23

find out that if we want to place similar

24

conditions, we would not know about this. So that

25

action that you have done, can you tell me when and
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have you made other amendments to this?
MR. FIGUEIROA: That was the only amendment June 1st,

3

2000, and this was before the Land Use Commission

4

June 1st, 2000. That was the only condition.

5
6
7

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And so what does that -- what does
that now condition read?
MR. FIGUEIROA: That last sentence is still talking about

8

pro rata share funding, but then it says, "agreement

9

between petitioner and DOT as to the level of

10

funding and participation shall be obtained within

11

two years from June 1st, 2000." And I believe this

12

is in your binder.

13

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. I guess my question is:

14

What guarantees do we have now that this will not

15

change, being that they went ahead and made this

16

change without us knowing? What are the guarantees

17

that other things won't be changed, especially

18

because I just feel that that amount may not be

19

fair.

20

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Nishiki, I don't believe we

21

have any guarantees as long as we're having

22

documents that members of our community and boards

23

such as ours can make decisions on. We always have

24

the ability to amend, to change positions. And as

25

long as we have those positions, we don't know
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what's going to happen 10 years, 50 years, 100 years

2

from now. The only thing we know for certain is

3

what's being presented before us and what we pass at

4

the time we pass it.

5

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Well, you know, you know, to --

6

CHAIR ARAKAWA: So if you're asking for guarantees, what

7

guarantees we have, we don't.

8

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Maybe -- Are you done?

9

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Yes.

10

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. So, Mr. Minatoya, maybe we

11

need to replicate, despite that you may have told us

12

in the past that, you know, once the Land Use

13

Commission stipulates a condition, why should the

14

County replicate it? But in a situation like this

15

where the developer is going and changing some of

16

these conditions and could change it at a later

17

date, we're not guaranteed within this County that

18

these conditions will be intact. However, if the

19

Council -- Because these things are happening now,

20

we experienced that in West Maui where Amfac did the

21

same thing on us, you know. So we're thinking, hey,

22

this is great, they put all this conditions, we're

23

going to see this happen, and all of a sudden we

24

find out later in the game that they changed it, you

25

know. These guys are professionals, they know how
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to play this. That's the reason why they hire all

2

of these people and they do these kinds of things.

3

It doesn't mean that it's good or bad, but it surely

4

takes out the integrity of a system that I thought

5

was intact. And, Mr. Chairman, maybe we need to

6

replicate these conditions as part of the County

7

conditions, also, so we can see it come back to the

8

Council should some of these conditions be changed

9

on us.

10

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Nishiki --

11

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So, Mr. Minatoya, (inaudible)

12
13

response.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Mr. Minatoya, you can respond to that, but

14

I believe if we pass this, we're pretty much making

15

this a condition of the County as well.

16

MR. MINATOYA: Well, first of all, I don't believe I have

17

ever advised either this Committee, the Council or

18

even the Planning Commission that it was useless to

19

replicate conditions. I have never said that. And,

20

you know, by all means, you know, if that's what you

21

want to see, you know, as an assure -- well, I

22

shouldn't say assurance, but as an additional step

23

for them to amend if they seek to amend the

24

condition, you know, that condition can be included

25

in your zoning ordinance. Although, you know,
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that's not to say that a subsequent Council, after

2

you have completed your term of service and if

3

conditions in the County of Maui change, that a

4

subsequent Council could come back and amend those

5

conditions that this current Council would place on

6

this zoning ordinance.

7

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Go ahead, Councilman Nishiki.

8

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: That is fine. But to keep the

9

process and its integrity, and we have seen it

10

happen to us, so that's the reason why if we don't

11

learn from these lessons, then we're the fools. And

12

we can just sit back here and play ta-ron, ta-ron,

13

but, you know, still yet the community gets burned.

14

And that's all I'm saying, is that perhaps we need

15

to do this because of what we see happened here and

16

then Amfac and I'm sure that there's been many more.

17

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Nishiki --

18

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And this is a --

19

CHAIR ARAKAWA: -- at the appropriate time --

20

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: -- home rule kind of protection

21

also --

22

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Nishiki.

23

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: -- that we here, us, elected

24

officials living in Maui County have set forth these

25

conditions and they don't -- they can go to the
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1

State and talk to the Land Use Commission instead of

2

not electing --

3

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Nishiki --

4

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: -- and make the deal.

5

CHAIR ARAKAWA: -- at the appropriate time, the Chair

6

would more than welcome you making that condition.

7

So when you want -- when we're discussing this, when

8

we're ready to vote on the conditions, if you want

9

to make a condition requiring that any change to

10

this come back to the Council for approval, the

11

Chair would accept that as a motion.

12
13

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Well, if there are no objections,
I want to include that.

14

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Well, at the appropriate time.

15

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I've got more questions. Not of

16

Roy.

17

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Yes, you have questions.

18

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Not of Roy. If someone wants to

19

ask Roy questions.

20

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Anyone else? What I'm trying to -- what

21

I'm trying to get to is: Is everybody prepared to

22

make -- have a -- make a decision. So that's what

23

my original question was. And, Jo Anne, you had

24

some questions and you followed that through.

25

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: You know, I -- I have said this
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and I don't know how many ways I can say it, but I'm

2

going to say it again. What I'm looking at -- and I

3

would like it to be whether it's illustrated by Mr.

4

Figueiroa or anybody who comes here, I want to see

5

graphically illustrated where are we now in terms of

6

all the various items. And I know that you have

7

done as a best a job as you can in terms of the

8

water and, you know, a lot of the other issues, the

9

traffic, all of these key things. You have done the

10

best job you can, but there's still schools. We're

11

still no further along with the schools. It's not

12

his problem, but it's our problem. So I want to

13

know where we are now illustrated in terms of all

14

the key services, all the indicators that we have

15

graphically. I want to see where we're supposed to

16

be in terms of the community plan, where are we

17

supposed to be in taking care of the needs on those

18

same levels. And once the 1,700 units that we have

19

already got approved and adding in the development

20

that we're looking at right now, where will we be?

21

If those two lines don't come -- you know, let's say

22

the top line and either in the middle or the bottom

23

line, if they don't somehow come closer together

24

with this project, then to me it's not proven to me

25

that I am making a good decision. So having said
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that, because I haven't -- even just putting

2

together -- I have tried to illustrate it myself

3

graphically. It's very difficult because there are

4

key things that are missing. I can't in my own mind

5

say that I would be making a good decision by

6

passing this forward. So for me, I don't know that

7

if the information is available or not, and I am

8

told I shouldn't wait for all the answers, but I

9

want to wait for the answers.

10

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember -- woman Johnson, this is

11

why the Chairman has had many meetings. The

12

education question that you're asking, it's in here,

13

the answers are in here, what the requirements are

14

from DOE. There has been a lot of discussion on

15

this and that's why the Chair has been asking for

16

specific questions so we could get the answers to

17

you. We're doing as best we can and we have done it

18

in every area. We have tried to do it as best we

19

can in every area. Some of the answers we don't

20

know, we just can't get -- get those answers, but we

21

have to make decisions on best information at some

22

point. It's not -- and the Chair will not say we

23

have given you every answer, every possibility, but

24

for what we have as far as information and ability

25

to gather that information, we have done our best we
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can.
And as with the community plans, as with

3

almost every other step of this process, there were

4

time limits that were imposed that we had to try to

5

actually come to a decision on and I -- you know, on

6

the CAC, in the community plan for Kihei-Makena,

7

that area, we set some point where we actually had

8

to make a decision. Whether we like the project or

9

we don't like the project, that's up to us as

10

individuals to decide, but the ability to make a

11

decision will never be -- have all and every bit of

12

information that is necessary to understand

13

everything completely. And this is why the Chair is

14

asking and has been asking, you know, right through

15

this thing and consistently whether or not there is

16

specific something that you need to be able to make

17

a decision, and we've been trying to provide that

18

information. But for education, I just happened to

19

turn to it, it's in here. Basically the commitment

20

from the developer is to follow whatever the State

21

requirements are to provide whatever is necessary

22

for the school system as they're required. Okay.

23
24
25

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Well, you know, just using

education as an example, right now there's a
restriction on the number of children per classroom
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which we have already exceeded. And I just want to

2

know in my own mind that anything that I do should

3

not worsen the conditions that we're facing now.

4

And like it or not, I -- I don't have any assurance

5

that that's going to take place.

6

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Again, that's a decision you have to make.

7

The developer or any one entity, including this

8

Council, cannot go out and predetermine what every

9

other Department in this State is going to do and

10

whether they're doing their job adequately or not.

11

We cannot tell DOE, you must put in a school here

12

because you must limit the number of children in

13

each classroom because that's not within our power.

14

That is their jurisdiction. So to have any one body

15

go out and tell everybody that you will do this

16

thing, make sure everything is perfect, each

17

Department has to respond to their own area of

18

responsibility. All we can do is the best we can

19

and all we can ask of any applicant is to do the

20

best they can to fulfill the requirements that we

21

make of them. Each of these requirements that they

22

are being asked to perform, a body like ours put in

23

a condition within our building -- within our, our

24

system so that they have to perform to that level at

25

a minimum. And that's what the Department and the
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developer work toward. So there will be not be a

2

requirement that says you must upgrade all of the

3

school systems to the point where we all like it,

4

but they will have, as they have committed to, a

5

position where they will put their pro rata share in

6

to upgrade the school system. Okay.

7

And, again, it is an individual decision as

8

to whether you're comfortable with that or not. But

9

you cannot expect the Chair to make sure that every

10
11

one of these areas are complete to our satisfaction.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No. And I do appreciate your

12

efforts to obtain information. And I think that for

13

anyone, you know, particularly us sitting here on

14

the Council, for us to make decisions when people

15

fail to accept their responsibility and they're not

16

accountable to someone, whether it's us as the

17

Council member or to the community, we're left with

18

the fallout of that lack of responsiveness to those

19

needs. And, yet, what we're also facing is do we

20

exacerbate those conditions by allowing something to

21

go further where we know it's not going to be

22

properly managed? Now may not be the time. I think

23

there are, you know, let's say better times ahead.

24

I don't think we're going to develop our way out of

25

our problems. We may develop our way into them.
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And I have had conversations about the detriments

2

that timeshare actually is causing in terms of its

3

long-term impacts, in terms of its, you know, let's

4

say drain on a lot of the resources without putting

5

things forward. So there are a lot of things that I

6

know have not been fully researched and

7

investigated. I don't expect you to do that, but

8

even with the research that I'm trying to do on my

9

own, there are so many things that I feel that are

10

just not timely with regard to this particular

11

project that I would prefer to know that maybe two

12

years from now when things, let's say, have at least

13

stabilized, when we have some better knowledge and

14

perhaps a little bit of direction as to where we're

15

going, that would be a time to come forward.

16

If there are parts of that for Mr.

17

Figueiroa's purposes, if he already has something

18

that's built that's inconsistent that we can clear

19

up, I have no problem with doing that for him. But

20

to just wholesale approve everything that's before

21

us, I just -- you know, I look at myself and I say,

22

I have to be comfortable with the decision that I

23

make. When I don't feel good about it, when I don't

24

feel it's right, I am always going to err on the

25

side of conservatism, which is saying not right now.
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CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay.

2

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman.

3

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Carroll first unless you

4

want to defer.

5

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: I'll defer to Mr. Hokama.

6

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Hokama.

7

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I'll make

8

it real simple for you as far as where I stand. I'm

9

ready to vote. I think with the proper conditions

10

I'm ready to support this project. You know, I

11

think someone that has been waiting 26 years that

12

has invested over $100 million up front deserves an

13

answer. Whether the members want to support it, the

14

request or not, that's up to them, but I think an

15

answer is deserving. And one way or another, we

16

need to make a decision. And so, as I say again,

17

with the proper conditions, I am ready to support

18

this project and I am ready to vote on it.

19
20
21

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Thank you.
Councilmember Carroll.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you, Chair. I have seen

22

this application I think more than anyone else, you

23

know, in the Planning Commission. I haven't asked

24

many questions today because I am very familiar with

25

the project. I feel that we have answered the
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questions about water adequately. The Department

2

was very clear about the allocation of water and I

3

am satisfied with it.

4

This is a long build-out. It is a type of

5

thing that we want to see on Maui. It doesn't bring

6

extra people in. It sustains our economy. It's

7

built in the right place. We don't want hotels all

8

over the island. We have areas like Makena where

9

they should be. That's why it's on the community

10

plan. We need to be consistent. We need to make

11

12

these changes so everything will comply and come
together.

13

This is an investment in tomorrow. We're

14

looking at as it as a disaster, some members,

15

they're saying they don't know, they're not sure. I

16

can say I am sure. I think it is a good investment

17

for Maui for tomorrow. I think we have a company

18

that has proved they have spent the money, they have

19

put forth infrastructure where they didn't have to

20

put forth. I also am ready to vote and I am -- if

21

the Chair will allow, I will make a motion.

22
23
24
25

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Well, after we have the -- Councilmember
Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. We have been
spinning on our wheels on this for so long and, you
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know, I really would like to hear your

2

recommendation. I know you want to leave it to the

3

body, but defer or vote. This has dragged on too

4

long, you know. And I think to keep the corporation

5

like this, people who are just trying to comply with

6

the rules of the game, to keep them waiting and just

7

delaying and everything else to me is unfair to

8

them. And I think we as leaders, we have to show

9

the public that we can be decisive and make the

10

decisions whether up or down. But, you know, you --

11

to me, Mr. Chair, I think -- you as the Chair of

12

this Committee need to set the course of action, but

13

if not, if you leave it to us, well, so be it.

14

And all this discussion on water, we know

15

it's not an -- it's not an exact science.

16

Everything -- there's a gamble to life in

17

everything, even with this. And if the zoning gets

18

approved today, it's just one of the many hoops

19

they're going to have to jump through. And this

20

Council, this body can set the conditions with water

21

and everything else that goes to it. So this is

22

just one of many things they have to go through, but

23

I think all they want is the opportunity.

24
25

And for me, I've had to face the dilemma -sure, I'm like a lot of people, I was born and
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raised here and I have seen Maui what it was like

2

before and what it is now. Sure, there's a

3

sentimentality in my heart, in a perfect world I

4

would love to see Maui stay the same, but we cannot

5

put an antigrowth sign out there, you know. I have

6

children, many people have children who would like

7

to live here. And I sure would hate to see a brain

8

drain on this community, our young kids leaving to

9

go elsewhere and contribute to other communities.

10

I'm selfish in that regards. I like to see our

11

young kids here, who's probably the most important

12

resource next to water, maybe more important than

13

the resource of water itself is our future

14

generations.

15

And I don't know about how the other members

16

feel, but what is the message we're trying to send

17

out to the community? Are we trying to be

18

antigrowth, saying no to everything? And in light

19

of what happened on September 11th, for me it

20

becomes even more imperative that we be supportive

21

of what's out there in the economy and any proposals

22

that may come up, any creative solutions. And

23

there's a lot of people not here today who would

24

like to be here, but they cannot. They don't have

25

the resources, financial resources to take time off
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from work. And I know there are people out there

2

who would like to keep the trades industry going.

3

And if we're going to be consistent in saying no to

4

this, then let's be consistent all the way.

5

But for me, Mr. Chair, whether we vote on

6

this thing or not, I mean, it's up to you, you want

7

to defer, that's fine.

8
9
10

CHAIR ARAKAWA: All I'm asking you is whether you want to
vote or not.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: But I can vote on this, too, today

11

and I can make my position known. And at this point

12

I would like to give the resort people from Makena

13

an opportunity in light of the economy times that we

14

have, but I really am concerned about this -- us

15

just keep spinning our wheels on this. There's no

16

guarantees in life to everything. So I just wanted

17

to share that with you.

18

And I know you have a tough task. This is

19

not -- this is considered probably the most

20

difficult Committee and there's a lot of stuff you

21

have do consider. And I appreciate the fact that

22

you tried to get us as much information for the

23

members on this item as possible, but let's go ahead

24

and do something tonight, Mr. Chair. Thank you.

25

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Councilmember Nishiki.
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you. Question for the

2

Corporation Counsel. Under the community plan

3

transportation goals and objectives, excuse me,

4

objective and policies, page 31, I guess my question

5

is: Is this development consistent with the

6

community plan? After all, I think that we don't

7

pass a plan here and then break the law. So it says

8

undertake transportation system improvements

9

concurrently with planned growth of the Kihei-Makena

10

region. Require adequate interregional highway

11

capacity, including the widening of Piilani and

12

Mokulele Highways to four lanes prior to the

13

construction of major projects south of Kilohana

14

Road or mauka of Piilani Highway.

15
16
17

MR. MINATOYA: Your question is whether this is
consistent?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Well, yeah, this is a -- I would

18

say a major project, as you have heard everybody

19

say, a big landowner, 25 years, and the kind of

20

impacts, so is this --

21

MR. MINATOYA: Looking at the language --

22

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: -- consistent with --

23

MR. MINATOYA: Looking at the language, it specifically

24

refers to construction. This is just zoning and not

25

construction. Construction would involve the
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approval of an SMA permit. This is merely a zoning

2

phase and does not entitle them to automatic rights

3

of construction. And so, therefore, it would -- in

4

my opinion, would be consistent.

5

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So we could put a condition on

6

here in this zoning process that they would not be

7

able to build until four lanes are put in?

8

MR. MINATOYA: That's your option to work out with the

9

applicant.

10

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay.

11

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay.

12

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Is the applicant here? I would

13

like to ask them a question.

14

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay.

15

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Oh, I'm sorry. Is the applicant

16

here? I would like to ask you a question.

17

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Roy.

18

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Just so that we keep the integrity

19

of this plan and -- and make sure that this

20

community of Kihei-Makena region also, as you say --

21

So many people have stated that you're a true

22

participant and a good community person. What if we

23

put in a condition that says that until the four

24

lanes are put in from on -- excuse me, on Piilani

25

Highway to four lanes south of Kilohana Road or
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2

mauka of Piilani Highway, would you agree to that?
MR. FIGUEIROA: I think you're -- in that question you're

3

assuming that the position is that it would be not

4

consistent if -- unless those four lanes were built,

5

and I think Planning Department responded to you on

6

that previously. Is that correct?

7

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Maybe I didn't hear.

8

MR. FIGUEIROA: Is that the same question?

9

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Maybe I didn't hear it.

10

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Richard, would you please explain it.

11

MR. MINATOYA: The other thing is that for the SMA permit,

12

you know, SMA permit requires consistency with the

13

community plan and if at the time of construction or

14

proposed construction Piilani Highway and Mokulele

15

Highway were not four-lane highways, then it appears

16

that the Planning Commission could not legally be

17

entitled to grant the SMA permit.

18

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. That's understood, but it

19

is not to say that -- The question I would have for

20

you, Mr. Richard Minatoya, is: Couldn't the Council

21

put this in?

22

MR. MINATOYA: Given the fact that it's required for the

23

SMA permit, I don't see a problem including that. I

24

mean, that's -- that's your option.

25

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So, Mr. Figueiroa, is that what
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2

you and I heard?
MR. FIGUEIROA: That's the first time I have heard that

3

response in response from the Planning Department.

4

The Planning Director I believe had a -- as I

5

understood it, a different response to that same

6

question.

7

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Then we need to --

8

MR. FIGUEIROA: Unless I misunderstand Mr. Minatoya.

9

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Then the personalities I have

10

missed identified.

11

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Wayne, one moment.

12

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Planning Director, how are you

13
14

going to interpret that?
MR. MIN: Yeah. In our letter dated October 25th to

15

Council -- to Committee Chair Arakawa, our answer is

16

essentially along the lines of Deputy Corporation

17

Counsel. This particular policy relates to

18

construction and, again, the action before the

19

Council today is not to approve the construction of

20

development at Makena. It's simply to set the

21

framework for zoning. When the project comes in for

22

review, SMA permit review, the project will be

23

reviewed for consistency in relation to this

24

particular policy. And, again, the policy calls for

25

undertaking necessary improvements concurrently and
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to require adequate highway capacity, including the

2

widening of the Piilani and Mokulele Highway to four

3

lanes prior to the construction of major projects

4

south of Kilohana Road or mauka of Piilani Highway.

5

And this would apply to the Makena resort, which is

6

south of Kilohana Road. So we would review this at

7

the time of the SMA permit and that's how this

8

particular policy would be -- would be implemented.

9
10
11
12

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So, anyway, I would hope that we
would include this in as language of a condition.
But now that you have heard it, Roy, did you
hear differently?

13

MR. FIGUEIROA: No. Now I understand both positions.

14

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Which is? If you can repeat.

15

MR. FIGUEIROA: No. I don't want to repeat. I am

16

satisfied with their --

17

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: That is your understanding --

18

MR. FIGUEIROA: -- explanation.

19

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: -- that prior to construction of

20

these projects that you have, that the four lanes

21

would be put in on Piilani?

22

MR. FIGUEIROA: Well, as I -- as I heard him say, it was

23

to be concurrent with growth and it is dealing with

24

construction, those projects. I think to put a

25

condition on the change of zoning is to put a

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

LU 10/29/01

316

1

condition on something where you haven't determined

2

the exact construction project. I think when the

3

SMA comes in, then you have an opportunity to see

4

that effect, whether it is a large project or not,

5

for that continuing project, which is a portion of

6

the entire development. And I think you would have

7

to judge it that way in respect to its effect,

8

direct effect on the transportation. I don't think

9

at this point we can say that each project within

10

the development would trigger this particular

11

requirement. I could be wrong, but that's the way I

12

see it. You might ask Mr. Minatoya or Mr. Min about

13

that.

14

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Anybody care to respond?

15

MR. MINATOYA: Yes, Councilmember Nishiki, I would agree

16

with the response that s project may not necessarily

17

be major, which would be -- which would trigger, I

18

guess, this provision. And it could even be a

19

hotel, which would obviously be major, but it could

20

be a single-family residence as part of their

21

project or, you know, some utility structure that --

22

or something of that nature which may not be

23

considered major.

24
25

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So this whole entire Makena Resort
application is not major? This is the reason why
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when we leave it up to language to be interpreted by

2

someone, wherever they may be, and I ain't going to

3

say who, that we lose again, every single time. And

4

this is the reason why, you know, I'd like to put in

5

this kind of conditions. Because what will occur

6

ultimately is we won't see the widening of this

7

highway. And -- and that's the reason why -- What's

8

the sense? What's the sense of thinking that it --

9

within our community plan, Mr. Chairman, we have got

10

something in here unless the language is

11

enforceable? And for us that sit here on the

12

Council, if we agree with a developer and then a

13

call like this of the Planning Department or the

14

Corporation Counsel, if this is not a major project,

15

then what is a major project? Eh. And there we go

16

again. You know, projects will come up in that area

17

and boom, boom, boom, boom, still two lanes and the

18

impact and everything else and nothing is built.

19

And then who is going to pay for it? Taxpayers of

20

Maui County again, you know.

21

I will save my piece if there is a motion

22

made because it is a sad day for all of us in Maui

23

County, especially those that will have to put up

24

with this kind of interpretation and -- and see a

25

sincere undertaking of what a Council Committee did
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in the community plan to make sure that

2

infrastructure is there prior to any kind of

3

development. And, you know, maybe if those of us

4

that see this as being important, if we can

5

strengthen that language, if we'd like to see that

6

occur, then we -- it is perhaps our responsibility

7

to make those changes prior to first reading. And

8

can I ask you if that -- is that substantive?

9
10
11

MR. MINATOYA: Is what substantive?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: If I -- if we need to get language
in there on this project and make it so that --

12

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Nishiki.

13

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: -- four lanes are put in prior to

14
15

any development.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Nishiki, when you're

16

discussing the community plan, you would need a

17

community plan amendment. We are discussing a

18

zoning issue of a project. There are two separate

19

pieces of legislation that would be required, I

20

believe. Richard.

21

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I'm not -- being that we kicked

22

this community plan language in the head and have

23

thrown it up in the air and said it's no good, I am

24

now not even worried about this anymore. This holds

25

no water. I'm trying to look now at language in
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here that is going to hold this developer so that

2

they will have to make sure that there is -- well,

3

we will have to make sure that there's four lanes

4

from Kilohana on down to this major project.

5

Because we've heard what the interpretation is.

6

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Nishiki, if you want to

7

change the community plan, it's a different process.

8

If you wish to make an amendment to -- or a

9

condition to what is the ordinance now, at the

10

appropriate time you can make that amendment. But

11

if you're trying to change the community plan during

12

this process, I'm just pointing out that it's two

13

separate, but you may make an amendment.

14

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I understand.

15

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. As long as we're clear.

16
17
18

Now, okay, are there any other questions at
this time? Jo Anne.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: If the zoning is consistent with

19

what's in the community plan and it's just in the

20

SMA, is there any occasion for it to come back to

21

this Council?

22

CHAIR ARAKAWA: No.

23

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: So we once again abdicate the

24

responsibility for the people that have gotten us

25

into big hot water. I don't like that.
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CHAIR ARAKAWA: If the zoning is consistent with the

2

community plan, then if it is in an SMA area, it

3

will be reviewed by the Planning Commission, if not

4

at -- if we pass the zoning.

5

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: If I had more faith in the

6

Planning Commission and their ability to make

7

decisions which addresses Mr. Nishiki's concerns of

8

adhering to the community plan, I would support it.

9

I'm not about to give away the rights of this

10

Council and dump on the citizens.

11

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Any further discussion?

12

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. So, Richard, in making any

13

kind of language change, we could work with you

14

and -- and do it prior to first reading, that would

15

not be substantive?

16

MR. MINATOYA: Well, I think it reflects something that's

17

already in the law, so I don't think it's a

18

substantive change in that respect.

19

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Now, I'm not -- this is in the

20

community plan that I -- as you stated, I want to

21

put it in as a condition of zoning.

22

MR. MINATOYA: And as I have stated --

23

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So for me to add it later on with

24
25

the proper language.
MR. MINATOYA: Are you saying you're going to change
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the -- what it says?

2

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Add conditions on --

3

MR. MINATOYA: If you put it in as --

4

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: -- to this. I'm going to make it

5
6
7
8

a condition of zoning.
MR. MINATOYA: If it's going to reflect what's in -what's in the community plan as your condition -CHAIR ARAKAWA: Richard, Richard, I think what

9

Councilmember Nishiki wants to do is change it so

10

it's not a major development. He wants to change

11

those wording so that any development would have to

12

come in to Council.

13

MR. MINATOYA: Then I think that would be substantive.

14

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: It would be?

15

MR. MINATOYA: Yes.

16

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Am I correct, Wayne, what you're

17
18
19
20

trying to do?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I know what he's telling me. I
got to do it now.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Yeah, but is that -- am I correct in

21

interpreting what you're trying to ask, that you're

22

trying to ask for that change in that community plan

23

point where it says major development and you're

24

trying to change that so that the condition is --

25

the major part is taken out so any development for
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this project?

2

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Oh, I see what you're saying.

3

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Is that what you're trying to do?

4

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No, no, no, no. I'm -- No, no,

5
6
7

wrong.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Please explain what you're trying
to get to.

8

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: When I try to use this language as

9

a way in which the Planning Department would address

10

this during their SMA. John Min's renegging and

11

saying no, he doesn't see this as being a condition

12

when they come in for their SMA that they cannot

13

build until Piilani is four lane to their

14

development. This is what John is saying. So I'm

15

just upset at John Min.

16

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Mr. Chair.

17

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Kane.

18

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you.

19

What constitutes a major development? I

20

mean, how do you folks determine that? We're

21

talking about an application before us that has all

22

kinds of things that are going on, so -- From what I

23

am hearing the concern is that it come in piecemeal

24

and they can get away with getting the whole project

25

developed over a 20-year period without complying
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with that particular -- that condition. And so it

2

sounds like that's what the concern is, they can get

3

around it, so at what point does -- do you folks

4

look at it as a major development which would have

5

to have all this compliancy?

6

MR. MIN: Okay. By looking at this policy, I think a key

7

concept is adequate highway capacity. How does a

8

project affect that criteria? Okay. Now, the way

9

this policy is worded, it adds on to this including

10

widening of Piilani Highway and Mokulele Highway.

11

So there's sort of an inference that highway

12

capacity -- well, there's almost an inference that

13

the highway capacity is not -- is not adequate and

14

that you have to include the widening of the highway

15

and four lanes of Mokulele Highway. It's a very

16

awkward written policy. But if you ask me how would

17

we try to operationalize this, we would look at the

18

issue of adequate highway capacity, how does a

19

project that is coming before us relate to that?

20

Okay. Now, we know that the widening of Piilani

21

Highway and Mokulele Highway to four lanes is a

22

preferred improvement. Okay. So how does it affect

23

the highway capacity on Piilani Highway and Mokulele

24

Highway? And at the time a project comes in, we

25

would review that impact.
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What is a major project, how many units is

2

it, it's not really clear. And this is where,

3

again, it depends on -- you know, it depends. A

4

major project could be 50 units, it could be a 100

5

units. You know, I don't know what the magic number

6

will be, but whenever that project is reviewed,

7

let's say it's a 100-unit project, the impacts of

8

that project on traffic and specifically on highway

9

capacity, which is what this policy relates to, will

10

have to be looked at. And if it's concluded that

11

there may be a significant impact or a major impact,

12

then it would trigger -- it would trigger this

13

particular requirement, which is improvements to

14

Piilani Highway to four lanes and Mokulele Highway.

15

So it's -- I can't give you a real black-and-white

16

answer because this policy is not that black and

17

white, but I could tell you how we would go about

18

interpreting this. And, you know --

19

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: John, let me ask you this: This

20

application that's before us has all kinds of things

21

that are in there regarding changes in zoning, the

22

chart -- I mean, we have been provided with charts

23

and there's pages of it. Now, the plan is coming

24

forward and it's been described earlier by the

25

applicant that they're looking at a build-out of
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approximately 75 units a year for the next "x"

2

number of years for a build-out. So if we're

3

looking at that information, but they come in -- as

4

an example and, you know, hypothetical, you know,

5

and they come in and they say, okay, we're going to

6

do 12 units here, we're going to do it in January,

7

we're going to a 37-unit thing here in July, and

8

we're going to do a 43-unit thing over here in

9

November. Are you folks going to comply -- you guys

10

to put it all together and look at that as a major

11

project, or are you going to look at the 12, the 37

12

and the 43 as separate things and not consider that

13

a major project? And so, again, I'm just trying to

14

expand more on the lines of what Mr. Nishiki has a

15

concern with so I can better understand how you

16

folks will be interpreting it, which kind of makes

17

me nervous because it's kind of a subjective thing.

18

It seems like this is your interpretation as the

19

director, well, what about the next -- and no --

20

nothing meant against you, John, but down the road,

21

15 years from now if you are not the director and we

22

have another director who has to make the same

23

decision that you're going to be faced with, how is

24

he going to interpret it? So that's what I'm trying

25

to understand, John.
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MR. MIN: Well, I think ideally if any development is

2

proposed within the resort, we would certainly like

3

to know, you know, what all the different parts are,

4

all the different projects are, so that we can look

5

at it in total. Okay. But even if projects came in

6

incrementally, okay, like your example, you know,

7

that would be something, you know, if -- let's say

8

the first one comes in and then shortly thereafter

9

the second one comes in, we're going to begin to

10

look at these cumulative impacts. Okay. And after

11

a while, when the numbers start adding up -- I mean,

12

for each project we're going to have review its

13

impact in and of itself, but obviously when we begin

14

to see other projects develop, we're going to ask

15

ourselves a question, well, what is the additive or

16

the cumulative impact?

17

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay. You have answered my question.

18

I appreciate it. Thank you, Mr. Chair. And that

19

was just for clarification because it seems like

20

it's being characterized in a different light and --

21

and I personally don't agree with the

22

characterization that was made. So I'm just trying

23

to get a clarification of it.

24
25

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Hokama, is your question
along this line? Because I'd like to follow up on
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3

this one.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: No -- well, in a sense yes, Mr.
Chairman.

4

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Why don't you ask your question first.

5

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: And, again, I think the difficulty

6

that I think my buddy from South Maui and Mr. Kane

7

was alluding to is that we have policies that are

8

not quantifiable. We have language policies that

9

give intent and direction of where we want to go,

10

but it's not so specific that it's quantified with a

11

specific number. Okay.

12

People bring up quality of life, well, I can

13

remember 30 years ago when Maui was maybe 50,000

14

people and I thought that was great quality of life.

15

And if I held fast to the philosophy that anything

16

that degraded my quality of life we don't want,

17

well, what are we going to do with this 75,000 more

18

people we got here today? I think, Mr. Chairman,

19

that we should also take into perspective that, you

20

know, basically the intent of the -- that we're all

21

trying to do is something good. We pass an omnibus

22

agricultural bill two Councils ago, Mr. Chairman,

23

okay, we gave zoning County-wide under agricultural

24

category. Right now with a lot of them, their match

25

up with community plans can wait for subdivide.
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We -- Did we take into account the majors impact on

2

water, road systems? I was trying to remember and

3

that's why I asked Mr. Raatz if he could recall as

4

part of the staff development how did we look at

5

those issues when we passed the County-wide zoning

6

bill for a specific category of land use and its

7

permitted abilities for agriculture subdivisions.

8

And even if they just did agricultural activities,

9

depending on the type of crop that they would use,

10

did we ask if there was sufficient water in the

11

mountains to make sure we could do development of

12

all agricultural lands?

13

I think the problem that we are gripping here

14

is we're trying to put a quantified number on a

15

philosophy, on an idea of where we'd like to go and

16

how we'd like to achieve it. Now, you know, I

17

understand the traffic. And, again, compared to all

18

of us who come from different regions, if the intent

19

is capacity means that you can drive from Kihei to

20

Wailuku in 20 minutes as anything over 20 is not --

21

exceeding capacity, then we need to define and say

22

that's what it is and develop a roadway that

23

delivers people in 20 minutes from one point to

24

another point. For me, traffic is anything that

25

takes more than a few minutes because I come from
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Lanai where we have basically no traffic. Okay.

2

And yet you can talk to someone from LA and goes,

3

traffic, ah, this is nothing what you got here on

4

Maui. I got to deal with two-hour commutes,

5

three-hour commutes. It's relative to what we're

6

trying to achieve, Mr. Chairman. And it's, again,

7

trying to quantify a philosophy.

8
9

I think what we need to do is to see that we
put in the best protections we can to still have a

10

healthy economy, still provide a quality of life

11

that for many of us -- obviously, the nine of us

12

have nine different definitions of quality of life.

13

But I think what each person is fighting for is

14

worth discussing, is worth debating, because I think

15

what we're going to end up with, whatever the

16

decision is, is going to be the best because the

17

nine of us have tried to hammer out something that

18

we believe sincerely each of us is providing the

19

best we can as in regards to this specific request.

20

But I think if we look at everything, Mr.

21

Chairman, what I feel that Mr. Nishiki is trying to

22

emphasize as a condition, I think if you can help us

23

quantify it so that the condition or his position of

24

maybe what he wants us to consider from his point of

25

view might be more easier for all of us to
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understand. I can understand numbers, I can

2

understand quantification, but as regards to a

3

philosophy, well, I've got my own definition and my

4

own point of view.

5

So I would hope we would take it into account

6

of what we can do that's reasonable. And whether we

7

approve this or not, you know, eventually we need to

8

come to some sort of decision, Mr. Chairman, and I

9

would hope you would encourage us to try and reach

10
11

that specific point, no matter what the outcome is.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Yes. Thank you, Councilmember Hokama.

12

Before I ask you, Wayne, I am going to ask John, you

13

know, this decision making by the Department as to

14

the size and scope of a project to when it -- this

15

particular rule will apply, as the Department Chair

16

do you have a specific formula, and I do mean a

17

specific formula, say a $5 million project or a

18

50-unit project, something that is quantifiable to

19

be able to determine where those break points would

20

be to follow the community plan requirement or not?

21

Is it something that is going to be cumulative,

22

every three projects that come up to "x" amount now

23

becomes large enough to be considered, or what

24

exactly and how exactly are you going to define

25

that? Because keeping it nebulous the way it is I
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think doesn't do any of us any good. The idea that,

2

you know, the whole entire project might go in and

3

never have to meet this requirement is still a

4

possibility, according the way you've defined it.

5

So could you define for us something a little bit

6

more specific.

7

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: And, Chairman, please, if you let

8

me interject, I really want to hear Mr. Min's answer

9

because over the last five years on the North Shore

10

over 500 units have been built or had permits for

11

construction or have been constructed. In its

12

totality that's a major development with its impact,

13

and yet because those were all small developments,

14

it wasn't scrutinized, and yet we have over 500

15

units in over five years or 100 units a year. I

16

really would like to hear your answer on that, Mr.

17

Min.

18

MR. MIN: Well, I think for -- for purposes of South Maui,

19

some of the work that we're doing now with the

20

traffic impact fee is very important to helping to

21

answer these kinds of questions because it sets up a

22

model. It give us some framework to determine,

23

number one, what is adequate capacity or what is the

24

acceptable level of service or adequate level of

25

service, what is the forecast or the projected, you
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know, growth within the area. The point I'm trying

2

to make is that we're working on trying to quantify

3

some of this. The work that the Department of

4

Transportation is going to be doing on updating the

5

Maui Long Range Transportation Plan fits into that

6

as well. Okay. The traffic impact fee study -- or

7

not traffic impact fee, but the update of the Kihei

8

Traffic Master Plan ties in with this. And that's

9

how I think in terms of traffic we hope to get a

10
11

little bit better picture.
I think we're going to also need to do a

12

little bit more, though, in really keeping track of

13

a lot of the projects that are coming on-line. In

14

the Planning Department we don't -- we don't see

15

every project that comes, that's approved. Okay.

16

There's a lot like, for example, in the way of

17

subdivisions. You talk about 500 units on the North

18

Shore, a lot of them were probably subdivisions.

19

That kind of information we need to put into our

20

database and we are, you know, taking a look at how

21

we can -- we can keep track of those kinds of

22

projects because, you know, that will affect the

23

overall numbers. We can keep track of projects that

24

come before the Planning Commission very easily, and

25

those are typically large projects coming in for,
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let's say, SMA permits, but there's a lot of other

2

things, a lot of smaller projects that sometimes are

3

not part of that mix. We need to -- to keep track

4

of that.

5

And I think as part of the sort of evolution

6

of -- of our informational system, our planning

7

system, this is going to be an important part of it.

8

And, again, we are working towards that. But I have

9

to honestly tell you right today we're not in a

10

position to give a quantifiable answer to this. I

11

can tell you how we would go about evaluating this

12

and making that determination or judgement. And I

13

can tell you that if it's a project of any scale,

14

it's going to be subject to a public review before

15

our Planning Commission because more than likely

16

it's going to be an SMA permit. Okay. But, you

17

know, I can't say at this point in time that we have

18

a -- you know, we have a specific number or

19

something, you know, that would be that precise.

20

But in terms of the methodology, we would look at

21

the project, we would send it out to agencies for

22

comment, we would have the traffic report that's

23

part of the project evaluated by appropriate

24

agencies, and the information that's provided back

25

to us will help in evaluating or determining how
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this particular policy will be implemented. Okay.

2

If it's a -- there will be a public hearing, there

3

will be public input that will be part of this

4

process as well. That's kind of how public decision

5

making in interpreting some of these policies occur.

6

And then we have nine members of a Planning

7

Commission that have to weigh all this information,

8

agency comments, traffic studies, and other input

9

and they have to decide, does the project fit or not

10

fit this particular policy. And if it doesn't fit,

11

then what kinds of mitigative measures are going to

12

be necessary to resolve or minimize, you know, the

13

traffic impacts. That's the process. Okay. That's

14

how decision making goes on.

15

This Committee does the same thing. Planning

16

Commission does the same thing. You don't have neat

17

formulas that are going to help you make, you know,

18

very easy decisions. I mean, you have to weigh a

19

lot of stuff. Maybe we'll get to a point where our

20

informational systems will be more sophisticated,

21

and I hope we do, are better able to quantify some

22

of this stuff. And not just for traffic, but for

23

other infrastructure as well. And I think we're

24

moving in that direction, okay, but we're not there

25

today. Maybe in a couple of years we'll be a little
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bit closer, you know. And I hope we do move in that

2

kind of direction because I think it will help all

3

public decision-makers. So that's my comment.

4

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: And one thing I think you may need

5

to consider and since Mr. Goode is also here, that

6

he would also need to consider is you, the

7

professionals that lead major departments -- and I

8

think what would be critical not only to us, but to

9

also the Planning Commission is that as heads of

10

lead agencies with the ability to get the expertise

11

or the professionals in your specific fields of --

12

of responsibility, the need for you to come up with

13

strong positions and strong recommendations. Deny

14

it because this, this, this. A lot of time we see

15

the Planning Commission recommends that or the

16

Planning Commission gives no recommendation. But

17

the lead agency, you that help process the approval

18

permits that go through an entitlement process,

19

needs to take the key role as the professionals of

20

our County agencies, strong positions. Whether it

21

be good or bad, you should just help state it so

22

that it's clear not only to the Council members, but

23

also to the Commission members in prior -- instead

24

of assuming that they have the understanding of

25

something that you have taken years to become
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qualified in. You know, we ask lay people to

2

volunteer to take major responsibilities, but they

3

may not understand certain intricacies.

4

I mean, look at water, we all have our own

5

ideas of what is water, water capacity and

6

sustainable yield, but we're not hydrologists.

7

We're trying to make comments and decision on

8

comments and information provided to us. But there

9

may be certain key components or information that a

10

George Tengan or Alan may know because they are

11

experts and that's what they have dedicated to be

12

qualified in. You as planners and public work

13

directors, or even Mr. Minatoya as a legal advisor

14

are more qualified than me to come up with that

15

specific type of positions from your key lead

16

agencies. And I think that is what we also need to

17

look at you to provide all of us as decision-makers.

18
19
20
21

Thank you.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Nishiki, try to make it
fairly short.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. I don't know where all of

22

that went, to be honest with you, but I want to

23

bring it down to what we have been talking about.

24

What the language was is that I said -- and people

25

that are viewing this and listening, please, this is
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really important because somebody can take you

2

around the world and then you go, where have I

3

landed and then you wonder. But I want to make this

4

very clear and succinct because it is that way. The

5

language says, undertake transportation system

6

improvements concurrently with planned growth of the

7

Kihei-Makena region. Require adequate interregional

8

highway capacity, including the widening of Piilani

9

Highway and Mokulele Highway to four lanes prior to

10

the construction of major projects south of Kilohana

11

Road or mauka of Piilani Highway.

12

Now, they -- Mr. Min has given you the spiel

13

of, well, we've got to look at all of this and

14

everybody else has chimed in in saying all of this,

15

but I think Mr. Kane goes, explain what major

16

projects is. Okay. And -- and I in the Council

17

when we created this community plan, I kind of knew

18

what a major project is, but maybe this is not a

19

major project, ladies and gentlemen, because all the

20

Makena Resort compromise -- comprises of is only

21

1,030 acres in Makena, Maui, that's all this project

22

is, 1,030 acres. It ain't major, is it? Small

23

time, only 1,030. Got to be 2,060 for it to become

24

a major project. Wrong, John. I don't care what

25

you just said.
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What else is in this project? Oh, this isn't

1
2

a major project, ladies and gentlemen, we have one

3

hotel now in there, but you know how many more hotel

4

sites will be there when we pass this zoning? Two

5

more. Not major, small time. Not major. Or you

6

know how many more -- how many golf courses we got

7

here? Two. Ah, small. That's three hotels, one

8

more than Lanai, two golf courses equal to Lanai,

9

but that ain't major, small time in the Kihei-Makena

10
11

area.
And then how much more urban use compared to

12

what they've got already? And in this application

13

83 acres from agriculture to urban, 17 acres from

14

agriculture to urban, 15 from agriculture to urban,

15

25.77 from agriculture to urban. Total increase --

16

and I don't know what the total now they have is --

17

is 145 more acres. So this ain't major, don't even

18

worry about it. So I have got to think about it and

19

do some more studying and, you know -- you know,

20

with all the new technology we have, then we're

21

going to determine if this is major.

22

This is the reason why when we have this kind

23

of statements made for all of us that are listening

24

and all of us that are making decisions, this is

25

when people start to lose respect for us as
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1

decision-makers that we can follow these kinds of

2

statements and say it's not major. Come on. If I

3

were to teach that to my grandchild in planning

4

class or what a major development is in Maui County,

5

I think she would say, grandpa, you lying to me

6

because you saying this isn't major.

7

I think we got to be real. I don't think we

8

have got to try to trick one another here today.

9

And it is -- I guess it's like I'm angry, but more

10

disappointed with what I am hearing today because I

11

had expected and I really respected many of you.

12

And it's not that I don't respect you, but I think

13

that I am saddened to hear what I'm hearing today in

14

regards to how Kihei-Makena is going to be done and

15

what we're not going to see here when the people are

16

clamoring for proper infrastructure and making sure

17

that it's in prior to more development occurring.

18

And -- and for this reason, I will -- I will speak

19

once a motion is made, but a sad day for the people

20

of Maui County no matter if you live in Hana, on

21

Molokai or Lanai to -- to see that what we have

22

tried to do in formulating proper infrastructure is

23

again going to be thrown along the wayside. And,

24

you know, I don't know what we can do to muster some

25

integrity in how we go about addressing this
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2

development today.
But anyway, thank you, my fellow Council

3

Members, for allowing me to speak, but I don't want

4

to get personal so I have not used names, but yet

5

I -- I feel a little bit disgraceful.

6
7
8
9

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Nishiki, you may make an
amendment and you may add a condition.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I will make an amendment if a
motion is made, if it's made.

10

CHAIR ARAKAWA: So that is your option.

11

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you.

12

CHAIR ARAKAWA: If you can quantify it, you choose to

13

quantify it, then I would ask that you do put in a

14

condition, and we will discuss it and decide on it.

15
16

Any further discussion? Jo Anne.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: You know, all of us just attended

17

or most of us attended the Smart Growth Conference,

18

and I thought we learned some things there. This is

19

not smart. Thinking about making decisions when we

20

have no public transportation plan, we have a law

21

that's on the books that says we have a traffic

22

impact fee ordinance, it's a law, we're going to

23

break that. We have a transmission of a South Maui

24

transportation planning model that's not done. We

25

have no affordable housing legislation that we have
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enacted. We have no high school for South Maui.

2

God knows when the Kihei-Upcountry Roadway is going

3

to be built. The police and the fire needs are

4

still -- while we're working on it, is not done.

5

Segmentation is a way of life in Maui County. That

6

is the way the developers make it not appear to be

7

major, but it is major because it has accumulative

8

impacts. We have no park assessment required for

9

hotels or time-shares and I -- correct me if I'm

10

wrong, but those are the majority of the people that

11

are using our parks, and yet there's nothing in

12

place. We have homeless people living at our

13

beaches. In West Maui Papalehua(?) is the newest

14

subdivision.
I'm -- I agree with Mr. Nishiki. If we're

15
16

gonna plan, let's plan. Let's work with the

17

development community at a point in time when we can

18

manage it. We're getting way ahead of ourselves.

19

We haven't done our job. Now, I don't want that to

20

be his problem or anybody's problem that comes

21

before us, but by God, I think we're making a stupid

22

decision if we haven't even done our homework and

23

then we continue to pass things that don't even make

24

sense.

25

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Any other comments? Okay. If I'm not
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going to have any other comments, then the Chair's

2

going to make a recommendation. And following the

3

recommendation, I would accept -- I expect that we

4

will have conditions put on this project, so we'll

5

have discussion about that. The Chair recommends

6

approval of the ordinance before us.
And Item No. 9, Corp. Counsel, the No. 12 DOT

7
8

condition, would that be comparable, or do we need

9

to change Item No. 9 to read as No. 12 of the

10

ordinance reads? Here.

11

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Mr. Chair, would you like to call a

12

short recess so we can get that motion formulated?

13

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Five-minute recess, please.

14

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Everyone wants a 5-minute recess?

15

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you.

16

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Recess five minutes.

17

RECESS: 6:43 p.m.

18

RECONVENE: 6:48 p.m.

19

CHAIR ARAKAWA: (Gavel.) Call the meeting back to order.

20

On consultation with our Corp. Counsel, looking at

21

the condition that was brought up that was being

22

changed, the way we have it is appropriate. So the

23

Chair is going to recommend adopting the package as

24

is.

25

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: So move.
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Second.

2

CHAIR ARAKAWA: It's been moved by Councilmember Carroll,

3

seconded by Councilmember Hokama. Discussion? And

4

at this time I would expect that we would have

5

several conditions. So, Mr. Carroll, you made the

6

motion.

7

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you, Chair. I had

8

originally intended to go over all the points that

9

we had why we should pass this, but I think

10

everybody is a little tired of all the redundancy

11

we've had on both sides, pro and against. But I

12

will say that I think this project is appropriate.

13

I think that we do need some -- to attach some

14

things to it. I was going to address affordable

15

housing, but Mr. Hokama has -- I believe has -- more

16

than adequately he will address that.

17

We have had a lot of discussion, and only one

18

thing bothers me, and not many things do. It's been

19

inferred over here by many people that the Planning

20

Commission is inadequate, makes poor decisions, is

21

otherwise not to be trusted. We have a group of

22

people that have volunteered their time without pay

23

and they do the best job that they can with the

24

training they have. They are truly the citizens of

25

Maui that sit on that Commission. If we don't like
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some of the things that come down from that

2

Commission, I think it's very inappropriate for us

3

to say we don't trust them. We don't like the way

4

they make decisions. We don't like this or that.

5

We should have some respect for our people, and

6

those people sitting on the Commission are our

7

people.

8
9

I support this. I expect that when I give up
the microphone, starting with Mr. Hukama [sic],

10

Hokama or whatever, we will have some amendments.

11

And then I would hope that the rest of the members

12

would all support this. Thank you.

13
14

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Thank you.
Councilmember Hokama.

15

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you, Chairman. I would -- I

16

have a condition that I would like to propose. You

17

would like it in a motion for us to amend, or how

18

would you like to take the conditions, Mr. Chairman?

19

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Why don't -- why don't we discuss the

20

condition first, bring it out, and then we'll make a

21

motion once we clean it up so everybody understands

22

so we do it only one time.

23

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. Well, to respect your

24

wishes, then, Mr. Chairman, this is regarding

25

Condition No. 10 as presented on Exhibit B of the
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proposed attachment. Currently Condition 10 reads,

2

"the applicant shall comply with affordable housing

3

requirements adopted by the County of Maui." I

4

think some members alluded that we don't have an

5

affordable housing policy and in general I would

6

agree with them. We do have in the Code a policy as

7

it relates to hotel-related developments. And the

8

formula there is 1 -- 1 housing unit for every 4

9

hotel-related units, so it comes out to 25 percent.

10

That stays the same. My proposal is that a minimum

11

of 10 percent of all units or the total units of the

12

development shall be affordable housing units,

13

excluding those units required to satisfy Chapter

14

2.94, which is the hotel-related development housing

15

policy. Said affordable units shall be provided

16

concurrently with the market units. So there's a

17

trigger when it's going to be built, Mr. Chairman.

18

Provided, however, that a minimum of 50 percent of

19

the total affordable housing units shall be provided

20

within the Kihei-Makena Community Plan region; and

21

provided further that not less than 50 percent of

22

the said required affordable housing units shall be

23

single-family dwellings. Any revision or amendments

24

to this provision shall require Council approval.

25

So if I may explain my condition, Mr.
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2

Chairman, one -CHAIR ARAKAWA: Wait, wait two seconds. Does everybody

3

follow what the conditions were to this point?

4

Okay. Continue.

5

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. So,

6

again, what we're trying to do is attach a condition

7

that a minimum of 10 percent of the total units

8

developed shall be affordable.

9

Two, I think we have learned from the past,

10

as we were informed in a -- one of our standing

11

committees that we need a trigger when these housing

12

affordable units shall be provided, and so I'm

13

proposing they be done concurrently.

14

Third, Mr. Chairman, I think that we have

15

heard and I have received requests that people would

16

like to be offered a choice, so I am proposing that

17

a minimum of 50 percent be within the community plan

18

region. And for those that would like to live

19

outside of the region for whatever personal reasons,

20

that they also be given an opportunity

21

I think one thing that I have also learned in

22

my discussions with those that are interested in the

23

affordable housing program that for some -- for

24

various reasons, either they may not be able to

25

afford -- they feel they may not be able to afford a
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single-family unit or some of them prefer not to

2

have single-family dwelling types of housing and,

3

therefore, the condition that not less than 50

4

percent be single-family dwellings also allows the

5

opportunity that affordable housing can be provided

6

in a multi-family setting. And, again, I'm stating

7

minimums.

8

And I think the last thing that I have

9

learned and that I would ask the members to support

10

is that any revisions or changes to this condition

11

must come before the Council and must have Council

12

approval before anything -- any changes will be done

13

to this policy or this condition. And that is what

14

I am proposing, Mr. Chairman.

15

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. I have one question for you. The

16

concurrency, when you say concurrency, do you mean

17

proportional?

18

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: That's --

19

CHAIR ARAKAWA: So if 15 -- if 20 houses are built, 2 will

20

be affordable?

21

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: That's correct, Mr. Chairman.

22

CHAIR ARAKAWA: So whatever their build out is, it'll be

23

concurrent to that?

24

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: That is correct.

25

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Thank you.
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2

Any other questions? Jo Anne.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Would they be constructed in

3

the -- in the area, in the immediate area? And I

4

don't mean in -- I mean in the specific area within

5

the project?

6

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I -- It can be, Ms. Johnson.

7

Again, I have left it broad enough they can -- it be

8

minimum 50 percent in the community plan region and

9

50 percent outside of the region. I'm open to other

10

members' comments because from some of the employees

11

that work for this particular developer, some have

12

stated that they choose not to live in the

13

development, but would prefer to live in the area.

14

And so I've worded the condition to be able to

15

accommodate both of it within the region as well as

16

the ability to offer housing outside of the region,

17

Mr. Chairman.

18
19
20

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Does that answer your question,
Councilmember Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: By, by being in the region, you

21

mean in Kihei and then outside of Kihei, or do you

22

mean within Makena and outside of Makena?

23

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I, I -- my language, for Ms.

24

Johnson, is I'm using the Kihei-Makena Community

25

Plan region as those that would satisfy the minimum
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50 percent for the project area. So it could be all

2

within the project area. It could be some in

3

Wailea. It could be some toward Maui Meadows. It

4

could be some in Kihei. It could be some toward --

5

I'm not too sure where exactly where the line is,

6

but maybe toward Maalaea.

7
8
9

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I'm just trying to think of
impacts on the regional traffic.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Does that answer your question?

10

Any other questions for Councilmember Hokama on his

11

recommendation? Okay. If not, would you make a

12

motion.

13

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Mr. Chairman, I move to amend by

14

deleting the existing Condition No. 10 and adding a

15

new Condition 10 as stated. And I will be happy to

16

pass this to Mr. Raatz for duplication.

17

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Read it into the record and then --

18

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: The motion to amend to add --

19

delete No. 10 and add a new Condition No. 10 that

20

shall read, "A minimum of 10 percent of all the

21

units shall be affordable housing units excluding

22

those units required to satisfy Chapter 2.94. Said

23

affordable units shall be provided concurrently with

24

market units; provided, however, that a minimum of

25

50 percent of the total affordable housing units
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shall be provided within the Kihei-Makena Community

2

Plan region; provided, further, that not less than

3

50 percent of said required affordable housing units

4

shall be single-family dwellings. Any" --

5

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Second. Oh, excuse me. I'm sorry.

6

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: "Any revisions or amendments to

7

this provision shall require Council approval."

8

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Second.

9

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. It's been moved by Councilmember

10

Hokama; seconded by Councilmember Carroll.

11

Discussion? If not, all in favor say aye.

12

COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.

13

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Opposed? Motion carried.

14

VOTE: AYES:

15
16
17
18

Councilmember Carroll, Hokama, Johnson,
Kane, Molina, Nishiki, Tavares, and
Chair Arakawa
None.
NOES:
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT:
None.
Councilmember Kawano.
EXC.:
ACTION: APPROVE CONDITION NO. 10, as revised.

19

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Nishiki, amendment.

20

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah, I'd like to make an

21

amendment to that amendment that we just passed,

22

also, that says that 1 affordable housing for every

23

4 hotel -- I wanna have discussion on this first.

24

For every 4 hotel or motel rooms or fraction thereof

25

be also included in this amendment with the same
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language that Riki stated for the affordable. And

2

the reason why is because we have an affordable

3

housing policy for hotels, also, and I would like to

4

see when those hotels are built, those two hotels

5

are built, that these units be similarly built to

6

the way Riki has stated in his motion. So using

7

that same language using concurrency including what

8

timeshare -- I don't know if timeshare falls into

9

that category.

10
11
12

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Yeah, it does.
Councilmember Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: And thank you very much, Mr.

13

Chairman. If the members have an opportunity to

14

look at 2.94, I believe the Code requires, Mr.

15

Nishiki, that as far as the affordable housing units

16

as it relates to the hotel-related development,

17

must -- concurrency runs with the occupancy of the

18

hotel or a motel or hotel-related units. And so I

19

would say your, your concern is already taken care

20

by the existing Code.

21

And maybe Mr. Minatoya can give comment.

22

Under 2.94 when you look at the area of -- it's on

23

the bottom of the first left column, Mr. Minatoya,

24

and it moves to the top of the right-side column

25

which requires the concurrency to be with the
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2

occupancy of the facility to be built.
MR. MINATOYA: That's correct. The section is -- or the

3

specific section is 2.94.030.A, which says that the

4

affordable housing requirement shall be assessed by

5

the Department of Public Works upon issuance of any

6

building permit, and shall be available for

7

occupances [sic], occupancy concurrent with or prior

8

to occupancy of the apartment-hotel, hotel, or

9

motel.

10

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Councilmember Nishiki.

11

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Let me -- let me ask you this,

12

Richard. But the thing is that I don't want it to

13

be a choice of the developer. That's the reason why

14

I wanted to use that same language that Riki said,

15

so that they would have to put it within the Kihei

16

area, Makena area. It doesn't have to be within the

17

development. And also have affordability for I

18

think what he said was 50 percent single-family. So

19

I just wanna echo the same language in there for the

20

hotel component or timeshare component. I don't

21

want to use the same language in the affordable --

22

rather in this -- yeah, affordable housing policy as

23

it refers to hotel, motel, or hotel-apartment, or

24

timeshare. So that's the reason why for the more

25

specific language. And I guess, Richard, the
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question is I just wanna add that same language. Is

2

it possible rather than use this?

3

MR. MINATOYA: That's possible to be more specific.

4

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. And, and the reason why is

5

because I saw -- I can't remember what hotel created

6

one on South Kihei Road and then they -- the rents

7

were high or the employees didn't wanna live there,

8

and so they got that whole units all back to market

9

rentals. But this way it's more specific and it

10

kind of holds these hotel -- well, these affordable

11

units in perpetuity.

12

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay.

13

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So that's the reason for my

14

echoing the same language, Riki.

15

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Johnson.

16

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Can that apply to time-shares as

17
18

well as hotels?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Because there is a Four Seasons

19

timeshare that's coming in there. I'm almost

20

positive.

21

MR. MINATOYA: It does because it says -- If you look at

22

the Definition Section, which is Section 2.94.020,

23

it says for the purpose of this Chapter, the

24

following definition shall apply: "Apartment-hotel"

25

means a building or portion thereof used as a hotel
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as defined in Chapter 19 of the Maui County Code,

2

and containing the combination of individual guest

3

rooms or suite of rooms -- or suites or rooms with

4

apartments or dwelling units. Okay. And "hotel" or

5

"motel" means a transient vacation rental other than

6

a bed-and-breakfast home containing lodging or

7

dwelling units. So a timeshare unit would apply.

8

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Does that answer your question?

9

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh-huh.

10

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Any other comments on this?

11

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Did you make that a motion?

12

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No, no. I have to after comment.

13

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Councilmember Nishiki, if you would

14
15

make the motion.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. So, Richard, would this be

16

as an amendment to Riki's No. 10, or would it be

17

separate?

18

MR. MINATOYA: I think that's more of a parliamentary

19

procedure question, which I shouldn't answer. I

20

think that's for the Chair of the Committee to

21

decide.

22

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Mr. Chairman, I ask that question

23

then. Well, however it be done is how I will make

24

this motion.

25

CHAIR ARAKAWA: I'm going to allow our parliamentarian to
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2

comment.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I'm not a parliamentarian by any

3

long shot, but I was thinking of just accomplishing

4

what he wants to accomplish that perhaps that all we

5

need to do is add a sentence onto Mr. Hokama's

6

amendment, something to the effect that these

7

conditions shall also apply to those requirements in

8

Chapter 2.90.A -- oh, 2.94.

9

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Will that --

10

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: If that will suffice.

11

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Will that do it, Richard? It sounds like

12

it'll work. Will that work?

13

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Question, Chairman, please.

14

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Yes, Councilmember Hokama.

15

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I understand what Mr. Nishiki is

16

proposing, Mr. Minatoya, but the Code is the Code.

17

And so if you're asking for something that is to

18

change what the Code is saying, can Mr. Nishiki do

19

what he wants to do? Because the Code is already

20

enacted and it states how that specific

21

hotel-related housing policy is, which is, as I

22

understand, not a condition of zoning, but already

23

part of the existing County Code. So can we

24

accomplish what Mr. Nishiki is proposing and not be

25

in violation of what the Code is requiring us?
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MR. MINATOYA:

Well, I think it's a -- it's a two-prong

2

thing. First is whether or not you can be more

3

specific to a particular project with respect to an

4

individual ordinance. And that's possible for --

5

The best example I can think of that is no potable

6

water use on golf courses in general, but then you

7

got the specific use that, you know, for example,

8

Koele can use a certain amount of potable water.

9

The question is whether or not it becomes

10

more restrictive. And as it sounds to me, I

11

don't -- it doesn't really seem to be that way. And

12

whether that would be an additional burden on the --

13

on the applicant which theoretically the applicant

14

would have to agree to, but I -- you know, I mean,

15

given what was proposed and what's currently in the

16

Code, it seems to be very similar.

17

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. In looking at what is here -- And

18

you all have the written amendment -- it may be

19

easier for us to just take this part of the what's

20

in the Code and just do a completely separate item

21

on it and make that No. 11. Take out the minimum of

22

10 percent of all units and put in the requirements

23

of 1 and 4? One for four. Twenty-five percent as

24

required. Richard, is that 25 percent? So just

25

change the 20 -- 10 to 25 percent?
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MR. MINATOYA: One for every 4, the 25 percent.

2

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Yeah. So change the 10 percent to 25

3

percent, and take out "excluding those units" --

4

MR. MINATOYA: Mr. Chair, I think --

5

CHAIR ARAKAWA: I tell you what, let's take a five-minute

6

recess and let's work on this.

7

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chairman.

8

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Are we in recess?

9

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Are we in recess?

10

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Wait. All in favor of -- you guys, any

11

objection to taking a five-minute recess to try and

12

go over this?

13

COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objection.

14

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Five-minute recess. (Gavel.)

15

RECESS: 7:10 p.m.

16
17

RECONVENE: 7:12 p.m.

CHAIR ARAKAWA: (Gavel.) Call the meeting back to order.

18

Richard, if you'd read the correction.

19

MR. MINATOYA: Okay. The -- I guess the proposed

20

Condition No. 11 would be nearly the same language

21

as the proposed Condition No. 10. However, it will

22

start -- on the first line it would be at the end,

23

the word "those." So it would be all those units

24

required to satisfy Chapter 2.94 -- 2.94 of the Maui

25

County Code -- I guess we can clean up the grammar.
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1

Said units, affordable units shall be provided

2

concurrently, etc., with the same percentage

3

provisions.

4
5

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Minatoya, it would be "of
those."

6

MR. MINATOYA: "Of those." Okay. Yeah.

7

CHAIR ARAKAWA: So basically the first sentence -- we're

8

eliminating most of the first sentence or first line

9

and until the word "including" and -- or

10

"excluding," adding on the word "of" and starting

11

there "of those units required to satisfy Chapter

12

2.94" and continue on through the rest of this.

13

Okay?

14
15

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: And that's Condition -- proposed
Condition 11, Chairman?

16

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Proposed Condition 11.

17

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So move.

18

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Second.

19

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. It's been moved by Councilmember

20

Nishiki, seconded by Councilmember Tavares.

21

Discussion? If not, all those in favor say aye.

22

COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.

23

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Opposed? Motion carried.

24
25
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2
3
4
5

Councilmember Carroll, Hokama, Johnson,
Kane, Molina, Nishiki, Tavares, and
Chair Arakawa.
None.
NOES:
ABSTAIN: None.
None.
ABSENT:
Councilmember Kawano.
EXC.:
ACTION: APPROVE CONDITION NO. 11.

VOTE: AYES:

6

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Mr. Chair.

7

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Kane.

8

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: I'd like to propose one other

9

amendment, and this is based on some earlier

10

discussions in prior meetings that the applicant

11

came forward and had made representations regarding

12

densities not being as high as what the proposals

13

are before us. And so with that, in Exhibit B, No.

14

2, it reads "the density of the A-2 Apartment-zoned

15

area shall not exceed" and I'd like to replace the

16

number 10 with the number 8, and that would

17

represent a 20-percent reduction in density on the

18

Apartment zone units per acre.

19

CHAIR ARAKAWA: On Exhibit B, Item No. 2 --

20

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: That is correct. The number 10 is

21

going to be replaced with the number 8, Mr. Chair.

22

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Does everybody got that? So it would

23

currently read -- what Councilmember Kane is

24

proposing, the density of the A-2 Apartment-zoned

25

area shall not exceed 8 units per acre and the
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height shall not exceed 45 feet. Everybody got

2

that? Discussion?

3

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, so what is -- would be

4

the revised total number of units developable under

5

the request?

6

CHAIR ARAKAWA: We'd have to calculate it out.

7

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Yeah. And I apologize. I haven't

8
9
10
11

calculated that out.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. You want to explain the purpose
again for trying to do this.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Yeah. Again, this is in -- in prior

12

meetings we had the presentation by the applicant,

13

and they represented that because of the point that

14

was brought up through public testimony about the

15

densities, that their representations were that they

16

were not intending on maxing out the density. And

17

I -- and so I'm -- I'm asking that this body

18

consider reducing the densities and basically just

19

putting into writing what the verbal representations

20

were at those prior meetings and bringing the

21

density down to 8 per acre versus the 10 per acre,

22

which would represent about a 20-percent reduction

23

in the Apartment-zoned areas.

24
25

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Mr. Figueiroa, do you -- Take the mike,
please. This change from 10 to 8, have you -- Do
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you have Exhibit B? Do you know what we're

2

discussing it?

3
4

MR. FIGUEIROA: Yeah. I'm familiar with what Mr. Kane
brought out.

5

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Is that acceptable?

6

MR. FIGUEIROA: I think -- Yes, because it would be more

7

consistent with what we have been representing to

8

the Council.

9
10

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: And, Mr. Chair, just a final note

11

with that. At times they even represented that in

12

certain situations they may even be going with a

13

lesser density, but in keeping with this language

14

which is talking about not exceeding a certain

15

amount and because they didn't represent that the

16

entire portion of this designation -- or this zoning

17

designation wasn't represented that way in its --

18

how should I -- in its entirety, I feel this is

19

something that we can look at as far as a compromise

20

and reduce the density, but still allow them to --

21

they can even go lower, because they did represent

22

at times that they were even going lower in some

23

situations with the Apartment zone.

24
25

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Everybody understand the amendment?
The applicant has agreed. Councilmember Hokama.
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you, Chairman. I am just

2

trying to -- so that we can understand Mr. Kane's

3

amendment, which I would like to support -- and,

4

again, you know, part of this total request is they

5

also have current -- They're trying to change some

6

zoning and, again, they have some existing zoning.

7

We're only looking at the category that is being

8

requested to -- for a Change in Zoning, right, Mr.

9

Kane?

10

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Yes.

11

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Not those that have existing

12

zoning --

13

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Not --

14

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: -- under A-2.

15

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: That's right. The change, which

16

represents I believe approximately 30-some odd acres

17

of adjustment. I'm not talking about the -- I think

18

they have existing about 180 -- 185 acres, Mr.

19

Figueiroa? And we're talking about the actual

20

change from an existing zoning that is not Apartment

21

and you're asking to go into Apartment that we

22

reduce that density?

23

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So how many acres we looking at

24

about, Mr. Figueiroa, 160 -- 63 acres, more or less?

25

Would that be accurate? I mean, in a round number.
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MR. FIGUEIROA: Yeah. It would be about that.

2

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. So, by agreeing to Mr.

3

Kane's proposal, you are telling us that you are

4

willing to reduce A-2 units allowable by

5

approximately 330 units less?

6

MR. FIGUEIROA: Well, Mr. -- Yes, we are agreeing. Mr.

7

Hokama, I think there are no limits right now on A-2

8

Apartment, So even the Planning Commission imposed a

9

limit, and we're agreeable to that. And we are

10

agreeable because we did represent that we weren't

11

going -- that we were bringing the density down. So

12

we are agreeable to that.

13

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you very much. I just wanted

14

to have, you know, us understand the scope of what

15

they agreed to, Mr. Chairman, and that's out of

16

maybe approximately 1,630, they're willing to go

17

down to approximately 1,300 units, which is a

18

reduction of about 330.

19

Thank you very much. Thank you, Mr. Kane.

20

CHAIR ARAKAWA: And --

21

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: And that's my motion, Mr. Chairman.

22

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay.

23

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Second.

24

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Thank you. It's been moved and seconded.

25

And just for clarification, Richard, if you would

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

364

LU 10/29/01

1

go -- explain what you were just explaining to me.

2

MR. MINATOYA: I guess it should be clarified for the

3

record whether -- or what does that restriction

4

apply to. And I guess maybe it should just be made

5

clear that it should be applied to the 100 -- the

6

163.149 acres that are part of that -- I guess Table

7

2 of the letter, transmittal letter.

8
9
10

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Roy, did you get that? It applies
to the 163.9 acres.
MR. FIGUEIROA: Well, I believe what action the Committee

11

is taking is the Change in Zoning application, so

12

that's what we're talking about.

13

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Right.

14

MR. FIGUEIROA: Yes, I understand that.

15

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Any discussion? Richard, are we

16

clear on it, Richard, from a legal standpoint?

17

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Do we need a recess?

18

?: Recess.

19

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Short recess. (Gavel.)

20

RECESS: 7:21 a.m.

21
22

RECONVENE: 7:23 a.m.

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. We'll call the meeting back to

23

order. (Gavel.) And for clarification on the

24

motion, we are looking -- if you look on page 2 of

25

the ordinance, we're looking at 119.719 acres.
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COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Yes, Mr. Chairman, that is correct.

2

CHAIR ARAKAWA: That is what we are doing, okay, for

3

clarification. Okay. Any discussion? If not, all

4

in favor say aye.

5

COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.

6

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Opposed? Motion carried.

7

VOTE: AYES:

8
9
10
11
12
13

Councilmember Carroll, Hokama, Johnson,
Kane, Molina, Nishiki, Tavares, and
Chair Arakawa.
None.
NOES:
None.
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:
None.
Councilmember Kawano.
EXC.:
ACTION: APPROVE CONDITION NO. 2, as revised.

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chairman. We didn't take a
vote on No. 10, right?

14

CHAIR ARAKAWA: We did.

15

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: We did.

16

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Yep, we did.

17

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: On the first one? Oh, okay. Must

18

have been when I was at my other meeting.

19

COUNCIL MEMBERS: (Laughter.)

20

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Are there any other amendments?

21
22

Councilmember Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I'd like to propose -- and I'm not

23

sure if it's in the proper format, but including

24

some of my concerns and the concerns expressed by

25

others. I would like to put that prior to any
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1

construction or project approvals that the Council

2

reserves the right to apply any or all of the

3

following conditions, and that is provided that

4

sufficient water is available for development so as

5

not -- so as to not compromise the integrity of

6

Maui's water supply, that's one.

7

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Let's take 'em one at a time if

8

you're going to list -- Are you going to list the

9

whole list?

10

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I'm gonna list the whole list, and

11

then if there's any of that meet with concerns, then

12

everybody can hear it. Because I'm just listing the

13

conditions. And then the next one is provided the

14

regional -- that regional public transportation is

15

in operation provided that the South Maui

16

Transportation Model has been --

17
18
19
20

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Wait, wait, take it slow. I gotta write
this down. Provided the Regional Transportation -COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Provided, right. Provided that
regional public transportation is in operation.

21

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay.

22

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Provided that the South Maui

23

Transportation Planning Model has been completed,

24

and the traffic impact fee ordinance is in effect

25

and being complied with. Provided that a South Maui
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High School is constructed. Provided that the

2

Kihei-Upcountry connector road, the Mokulele Highway

3

Project, and the expansion of Piilani to four lanes

4

is completed with the --

5

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Second.

6

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: -- with the level of service that

7

is at the Maui Long Range Transportation Planning

8

level recommended at "C". And the final one,

9

that the park assessment formula be applicable to

10

any hotel, timeshare or apartment proposed.

11

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Second for discussion.

12

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. We're not gonna make it as a

13

motion. We're gonna have it as discussion first,

14

and then we'll through with the motion, since we've

15

been doing it in every other item. So if you want

16

to explain each of those items for discussion.

17

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Well, it -- you know, basically

18

what I'm trying to do is address the concerns that I

19

expressed initially. Because all of the impacts

20

that we're speaking about, all of these things,

21

whether the developer does these things or not, I --

22

you know, I'm not asking that he specifically has to

23

do them, but I'm saying that before these

24

developments or any development can go forward, or

25

any construction can go forward, that we have to as
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a Council be able -- or at least be looking at which

2

of these conditions, could be any of them, it could

3

be just several that are in place before a specific

4

portion of their project is to go forward. I would

5

like to provide some mechanism whereby the Council

6

can look at the situation, assess it, and then make

7

a determination. Because there are many of these

8

things that are really critical and for us to

9

continue to do what we're doing, these are things

10

that every one of the meetings I've gone to people

11

have expressed concerns about. So if we're gonna go

12

ahead and people are gonna approve this, then I

13

think we have to responsible and we have to make

14

sure that the needs of the citizens are met before

15

this goes forward.

16

CHAIR ARAKAWA: And I'm asking you -- You listed a list.

17

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh-huh.

18

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Can you go through them one at a time so

19

we can discuss each of those items so we understand

20

what you're asking for?

21

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Well, the first one is just that

22

prior to any construction or project approval, that

23

the Council reserves the right to apply any or all

24

of the following conditions. It's just simply what

25

I stated.
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COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Mr. Chairman.

2

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Kane.

3

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: In the discussion prior to the motion

4

being accepted by you, Mr. Chairman, on the first --

5

CHAIR ARAKAWA: I did not accept the motion.

6

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: That's what I mean. So prior to that

7

acceptance, if you do decide to or not, the first

8

item I believe was regards to the water. And if I'm

9

not mistaken, I don't know if Ellen can clarify that

10

prior to submitting any type of permits, that there

11

already is a standard condition that the Water

12

Department does subject to availability of water at

13

the time. So I don't know if that's something

14

that's already a standard item that the Department

15

of Water Supply or Water Department has regarding

16

conditions of giving out permits, right? I guess

17

it's for the water meter application, Ellen?

18
19

And I apologize if I'm a little incoherent
right now.

20

MS. KRAFTSOW: I think we all are.

21

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Hold on a couple seconds. Jo Anne, would

22
23

you repeat No. 1.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. It's just provided that

24

sufficient water is available for development so

25

that it would not compromise the integrity of Maui's
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water supply. And that's apropos of all the things

2

that we've heard about the salinity levels rising,

3

potential destruction of our aquifer --

4

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Just repeat what you --

5

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Well, it's just that --

6

CHAIR ARAKAWA: -- what you wrote down.

7

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: -- the condition the way that I

8

worded was provided that sufficient water is

9

available for development to prevent a compromise of

10
11
12
13

the integrity of Maui's water supply.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Ellen, you want to comment on Mr.
Kane's comment on that?
MS. KRAFTSOW: Our rules and standards require that any

14

developer be able to supply source, storage and

15

transmission as needed to -- and distribution,

16

basically water service to serve the pending

17

development according to standards without

18

diminishing concurrence or service to existing

19

customers below standards that are set. So from

20

that extent, yes, although I don't think that the

21

rules -- Well, yeah, basically to that extent that

22

it's covered in the rules.

23

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: It's covered. And basically the

24

mission of the Water Department is to provide

25

efficient water service and --

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

371

LU 10/29/01

1

MS. KRAFTSOW: Yeah, but the mission isn't gonna really --

2

I mean, the mission is just how we try to operate.

3

It's not -- There's no -- the mission in of itself

4

is not a rule, but the rules require adequate

5

service for fire and domestic use according to

6

standards without diminishing service to existing

7

customers below set criteria. And that would apply

8

to source, storage and transmission the applicant

9

will always be required to provide. Whether or not

10

that's sufficient to address Jo Anne's question is

11

another issue.

12

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you.
Thank you, Mr. Chair.

13
14

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Councilmember Carroll.

15

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you, Chair.
In interests of time, I'm just going to

16
17

comment on all of it. I think the No. 1 and the

18

last one, the parks one, are already addressed. And

19

I think the other ones are inappropriate. Thank

20

you.

21

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Councilmember Johnson.

22

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: The park's one is not addressed

23

because hotel and timeshare are currently exempted

24

from any parks assessment at all.

25

?: That's right.
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2
3
4

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. I believe she's right. They are
exempt.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: I'd like to ask Mr. Min about
that. I thought they were.

5

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Mr. Min. Hotel and timeshare --

6

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: If not, I stand corrected.

7

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Hotel and timeshare park assessment, do

8
9
10
11

they have a park assessment?
MR. MIN: I don't believe they're covered under our parks
assessment.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Oh, I'm sorry. I stand corrected

12

then. I thought they were. All right. I change my

13

statement to I would approve of the last one, but

14

that's the only one.

15

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. For Item No. 1, Jo Anne, I'm going

16

to ask you how do you -- as Chairman what I would

17

prefer is we take each item and decide on each item

18

one at a time going down.

19

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.

20

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Or if you prefer to lump them all together

21

for one motion, that I will leave that up to you at

22

this time.

23

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Since the first one appears to

24

have been addressed by the Water Department policy,

25

I will withdraw that one because it appears to be
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2
3

covered underneath our current water policy.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. So there's no motion for the first
one. Your second item.

4

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: The second item was that provided

5

that regional public transportation is in operation.

6
7
8
9

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Discussion on that. Jo Anne,
explain.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: One of the things that we have
been tossing around for so long is the fact that we

10

need to address demand-side management. And while

11

it is not Mr. Figueiroa's problem to address, it is

12

a concern of the community because even with the

13

expansion to four lanes of Piilani, even with the

14

other roadway infrastructure improvements, we have

15

1,700 units coming on line that will barely enable

16

us to operate at level of service "C". And unless

17

we do this, I do not believe it is responsible for

18

us to continue the way that we've been in our

19

transportation planning. We're not planning them.

20

We're just reacting.

21

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Thank you.

22
23
24
25

Comment? Mr. Carroll.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you.
Although it has been said that it is not
their problem, we're making it their problem. We
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are singling them out and we are literally stopping

2

them from doing anything unless they can do it.

3

It's not fair and I don't think it's appropriate.

4

Thank you.

5

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Molina.

6

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, thank you, Mr. Chair.

7

Public transportation, I mean, it's -- I

8

believe in that area several years ago there was a

9

movement to get some kind of bus service going and

10

it didn't work. And, you know, I think it's just a

11

long-term solution for Maui. Eventually we wanna

12

see it, but that could take many, many years. And

13

to me to subject the applicant to this, I don't feel

14

good about it. So that's my spiel on it.

15
16
17

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Any other comments on it? Councilmember
Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I guess we don't have a lot of

18

faith in our ability to do what we're suppose to do,

19

and that's very disheartening. And along with the

20

lines of what Mr. Nishiki was saying, if we are not

21

going to plan, if we are not going to take on the

22

responsibility of addressing these issues and have

23

them in place so that we're not exacerbating the

24

existing problems that we already know are out

25

there, if we're not gonna do that, it's just not
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responsible. And this is going to be or eventually

2

it will be a major development. Therefore to just

3

simply ignore the problem and bury it when we have a

4

traffic impact fee ordinance already in place, which

5

we are ignoring, I think is irresponsible.

6

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Johnson. In your definition

7

of regional public transportation, does MEO qualify

8

as a public transportation? What are you

9

considering public transportation in this region?

10

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I'm looking at --

11

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Roberts? Roberts and --

12

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I'm looking at something that --

13

it could be a bus, it could be a tram, it could be

14

vanpool, but some type of regional transportation

15

system should be available that runs a regularly

16

scheduled operation. Right now MEO does some of

17

that, but not all of it. And it doesn't -- it's not

18

open to the general public.

19

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. We also have Akina that has a bus

20

system that is running in this area. I believe

21

Roberts has a bus system that is running in this

22

area. They're private entities. Would you consider

23

them as part of a public system because they do pick

24

up the public?

25

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: If that's still in place when they
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want to go forward and if it's adequately addressing

2

the needs of demand-side management, then, yes, I

3

would consider that.

4

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Because it's --

5

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: But I would reserve -- I would say

6

that at the time when any development is to go

7

forward, that it be the Council's right to make that

8

determination as to whether it's adequate or not.

9

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. I just point out the entities that

10

are there already because we've had -- I've had

11

discussions in my office with these people that are

12

providing that transportation. And I'm also on the

13

MEO board. So we are -- we do have a semi-system

14

that's there in MEO and the combination of the

15

private enti- -- businesses. And I wanted to know

16

if you were clearly defining what your request was

17

for a public bus system that was operated by the

18

municipality, or if it were something that were

19

operated by any entity?

20

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: It can be by any entity.

21

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Thank you.

22
23

Councilmember Carroll.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you. Perhaps I didn't make

24

myself clear enough the first time, so I'll try to

25

clarify my feelings on this. I am, as Councilmember
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Johnson and everybody else over here must know, a

2

strong proponent of planning and public

3

transportation. However, to tie something like this

4

into a project has a potential of doing a back-door

5

way of killing a project. I don't think it's

6

appropriate. I don't think it should be tied to

7

this project. I think this Council should be

8

working on it. It was said that we need to be

9

responsible. Yes, let us be responsible. Let's not

10

tie it onto somebody else because we don't wanna do

11

it or we can't do it or we think, well, this is a

12

way to put pressure to get it done. Let this

13

Council address the problem and solve it, but don't

14

tie it to this application and, in effect, possibly

15

kill it. Thank you.

16
17
18

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Any other comment? Councilmember
Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, Mr. Chair, if we -- for

19

something like this, I -- we're gonna do this to one

20

applicant, we gotta do 'em to all. And I don't

21

know. It's -- Public transportation, we're talking

22

big, big money and, you know, people's attitudes

23

totally gotta change, and that's gonna take a long

24

time in coming. So with the cost factor figured

25

in -- I mean, the intentions are good, but, again, I
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feel like we're singling out at a single entity on

2

this and what kind of precedence -- that's the

3

question for me, what kind of precedent are we gonna

4

set? If we do this to one applicant, then is it

5

gonna be a precedent we're gonna set for all

6

applicants all over the island? It's my take on it,

7

Mr. Chair. Thank you.

8
9
10

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Any other comments?
You wish to make a motion?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No. I -- I will make a motion

11

that prior to any construction or project approvals,

12

the Council reserves the right that an adequate

13

regional public transportation system be in

14

operation.

15

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Second.

16

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. It's been moved and seconded by --

17

moved by Councilmember Johnson, seconded by

18

Councilmember Nishiki. Discussion? All those in

19

favor say aye.

20

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Aye.

21

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Aye.

22

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Opposed?

23

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.

24

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: No.

25

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: No.
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1

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: No.

2

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Motion is defeated.

3

VOTE: AYES:
NOES:

4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11

Councilmember Johnson and Nishiki.
Councilmember Carroll, Hokama, Kane,
Molina, Tavares, and Chair Arakawa.
ABSTAIN:
None.
ABSENT:
None.
EXC.:
Councilmember Kawano.
ACTION: MOTION DEFEATED.

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Your next proposal.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: The third one is provided that the
South Maui Transportation Model has been completed
and the traffic impact fee ordinance is in effect
and that the applicant is in compliance with it.

12

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Second.

13

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Mr. Chair, before you accept the

14
15
16
17
18

motion.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Kane. Well, it's not a
motion, it's for discussion.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Well, I heard a second yelled out
over there.

19

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Well, I'm not accepting the second.

20

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: So I'm just acknowledging that

21
22
23

somebody tried to make a second.
A question to Mr. Min. Where are we, Mr.
Min, on this -- on this -- related to this proposal?

24

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Transportation model.

25

MR. MIN: Okay. We have -- we have a scope of work put
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together. We've been working with the Department of

2

Transportation because there are certain parts of

3

their work that we need for our model. So we're in

4

the process of coordinating that. One of the issues

5

that we are trying to work through with them, and I

6

think Jadine pointed it out earlier, is that we're

7

working on different timetables. So we're really

8

asking them to move up their project. So we've been

9

having conference -- we had a conference,

10

teleconference last week. We've exchanged our scope

11

of work. We're gonna be talking to them again this

12

week because you really need to pin that down. We

13

have firmer cost estimates, you know, we're -- we've

14

been doing the work on our end, I feel, but we

15

really need to coordinate this one critical

16

component with DOT, and that's where we are.

17
18

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Now, are you folks, cast with a
deadline from us? I think from the budget --

19

MR. MIN: Yes.

20

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: -- budget time we put a deadline on

21

you coming forward with that.

22

MR. MIN: Yes.

23

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Can you elaborate on where you are at

24
25

now with that?
MR. MIN: Okay. I think we have to report back to the
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Council I believe it's --

2

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: March.

3

MR. MIN: -- next March, give you a status report. Our --

4

our -- the timetable that we're working on, and I

5

don't know if it's a Council-imposed one as much as

6

a self-imposed one, is we'd like to be able to get

7

something to the Council by next summer. Okay?

8

That's what we're pushing for.

9

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you.

10

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Any further discussion?

11

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Um --

12

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Johnson.

13

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I did put that in the form of a

14

motion only because of the fact that we're trying to

15

get Charmaine's meeting going.

16
17

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Never mind my meeting. It's
already (inaudible).

18

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.

19

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. And, John, in the budget, this

20

year's budget, we did put money aside. We did ask

21

that that be done. So in the parameter of what

22

we're trying to accomplish to create the model, are

23

we going to be able to meet this deadline?

24
25

MR. MIN: We're -- we're certainly trying. And as
I've --
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CHAIR ARAKAWA: This fiscal year.

2

MR. MIN: As I've indicated, you know, to you, we are

3

trying very hard to get the South Maui -- we'd like

4

to get the South Maui Traffic Impact Fee Report to

5

the Council by next summer. That's our goal. Now,

6

as I mentioned, there are some critical parts of

7

this that are dependent upon the State's forecast,

8

and they are working on a different timetable. So

9

we really need to -- you know, we need their

10
11
12

assistance in accelerating their program.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. There are actually two models that
you need to be working on.

13

MR. MIN: That's correct. That's correct.

14

CHAIR ARAKAWA: The West Maui one as well.

15

MR. MIN: That's correct.

16

CHAIR ARAKAWA: So both will come in on the --

17

MR. MIN: Well, we -- you know, one of the issues that

18

came up is that the cost of some of these -- this

19

work is a lot -- is a lot more than we anticipated.

20

So our priority is if we have to make a choice,

21

given the funding that we have, we're gonna focus

22

first on the South Maui model. Okay?

23
24
25

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. 'Cause I believe we put 100,000 for
each model.
MR. MIN: That's correct.
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CHAIR ARAKAWA: And that's not gonna be adequate from what
you're saying?
MR. MIN: Based on some of the numbers that we've been
getting back, no.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Further discussion? Councilmember
Carroll.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you. Once again we have

8

something here that is good that we need to do. We

9

need to do it. We should not be going over there

10

and saying that this applicant has to wait on us to

11

get this through. Worse yet, we're reliant on the

12

State. Does anybody over here have any doubt that

13

the State might never get this done, or they might

14

get it done years from now? And, also, we have to

15

agree on it. It has to mesh. Again, this is not a

16

fair thing to put on the applicant. It's something

17

that needs to be done. It's something we need to

18

address as a County, as a Council, but you're going

19

to put this on any application, this or any other

20

one, again, it is not right. It is not fair. It is

21

not appropriate. We're saying hold up. You can't

22

do anything until we do our job. And, again, I

23

cannot support this. I support the concept. I

24

support doing it. I do not support tying it to this

25

application. Thank you.
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CHAIR ARAKAWA: Thank you. And, again, it is already in
our budget.
Councilwoman Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: This is -- may I remind the

5

Council members this is an ordinance that's already

6

on our books. We may not like the law, but we have

7

to follow it, and we're doing that. If we don't

8

remind -- Any applicant that comes before us, this

9

is what they have to contend with. It does apply to

10

everyone. It's just that it's not being done so

11

there's no enforcement. So it does apply to

12

everyone, the law applies to everyone equally. And

13

this is a law. And if we wanna ignore it, fine.

14

I'm not gonna ignore it.

15

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilwoman Johnson, you --

16

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Mr. Chair.

17

CHAIR ARAKAWA: You look at what we already put in the

18

budget. The discussion the Department is already

19

working on it. I hardly see that as this Council is

20

ignoring it. As to how it applies to a specific

21

development and how we're gonna tie that -- this

22

into a development, that is a question as to whether

23

it's appropriate or not, but the actual project

24

itself has been funded by this Council and is being

25

worked on by the Department.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I understand that, Mr. Chair, but

2

with all due respect, this is an ordinance that is

3

on our books. It was put there 12 years ago. The

4

fact that we're giving a time constraint or

5

whatever, then I think what we need to do is amend

6

the ordinance to allot the additional time for the

7

County to complete its work. But the ordinance is

8

very clear. It states that we shall do this. And

9

if we're not gonna do it, fund -- it doesn't say you

10

shall fund it and then it's gonna be completed

11

later. It says we shall do this and we shall abide

12

by it. That's what the law says. So I'm just

13

simply stating that when the individual, whether

14

it's this individual or any other person that comes

15

before us or any other entity, that this should be

16

in place at the time so that they know what the fees

17

are going to be that they have to comply with. I

18

think it's just very simply stated that they should

19

be in compliance with the law. I think that's the

20

least that we can ask at this point.

21

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Kane.

22

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: I just wanted to echo, Mr. Chair,

23

what you stated as far as the statement of or the

24

characterization that we're simply ignoring this I

25

think is -- I think is inaccurate. I think we've
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shown that we've taken very serious what

2

Councilmember Johnson brought forward. I think that

3

it was not a malicious act that we've ignored this

4

particular ordinance. It's on the books. And

5

because it's been brought to the -- brought to

6

light, I think that this Administration as well as

7

this Council has made efforts to try and put

8

together this transportation model and then come up

9

with the mechanism to make it work properly.

10

But I agree with Councilmember Carroll that

11

is this the applicant that we're going to start

12

imposing all of these County -- or County of Maui

13

issues that we have to come forward and make work?

14

I think we've shown that we're trying to make the

15

efforts to correct these issues and for the most

16

part the issues that she's brought forward, and I

17

think we're making these efforts to try -- to try

18

and do it, but unfortunately you can't do everything

19

overnight. And I don't think by imposing this on

20

this particular applicant or any other -- or if it

21

is gonna come through on this applicant, then let's

22

be consistent and make sure it goes through every

23

applicant. And not only for this item that's being

24

discussed, but for the whole list of items that are

25

being proposed for us to consider.
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I didn't see that happen last week or last

2

month on other issues that we brought forward from

3

the Land Use Committee. Why is it only being

4

focused in on this particular applicant? And I

5

don't understand why that's being done. So I'm not

6

willing to support it.

7
8
9

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Further discussion? Councilmember
Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah -- I just want to read some

10

language from the Kihei-Makena Community Plan on

11

page 17 under "Land Use, Objectives and Polices."

12

And under "c" it says, "Upon adoption of this plan,

13

allow no further development unless infrastructure,

14

public facilities and services needed to service new

15

development are available prior to or concurrent

16

with the impact of new development." And then "d"

17

it says, "Limit hotel uses to those areas presently

18

planned for hotel use, and limit hotel development

19

until adequate public facilities and services are

20

established to meet existing needs."

21

Now, I don't wish to debate this subject

22

matter, but I think that this modeling concept has

23

been with this Council for who knows when, time

24

immemorial, 10, 12 years or whatever. And we've got

25

language here in the community plan. I think that
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somehow, some way, as I described my frustration,

2

we're gonna have to come up with interim answers to

3

address water development, highway development,

4

Piilani Highway, Mokulele or whatever. As Mr.

5

Carroll said, don't expect the State to do it.

6

Now, why I am supporting this is only

7

because -- we'll see when the amendment is made, but

8

according to what I've heard from Administration

9

officials, you know, they don't really wanna see

10

certain things happen in regards to concurrency or

11

impact fees and we're moving too slowly. And with

12

all the new development occurring, we are again

13

going to put Maui County and its visitor industry

14

and the economy in jeopardy, not to mention our

15

citizens. I think we're headed for a recovery.

16

So, you know, we'll see how we go through

17

this whole process tonight, but I think that I'm not

18

trying to single out this developer as this motion

19

is made. I, however, feel that when you're

20

developing over a thousand acres, there is a big

21

impact. And as I stated earlier, I'm just hoping

22

that this Council and this Administration will come

23

up with interim measures to deal with how we get

24

money from these people that want to come in and

25

develop Maui County. So --
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CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Nishiki.

2

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: -- I'm gonna support this motion.

3

Thank you.

4

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Councilmember Hokama.

5

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I just wanna say that when you have

6

infrastructure requirements and from what we've

7

known and continually hear about, it's either the

8

prioritize -- prioritization of the project, where

9

it stands, and, of course, the ability to receive

10

funding to get it constructed and completed. And

11

part of the South Maui Transportation Program that

12

we're working in that we put in $100,000 of County's

13

funds in the current budget is gonna move toward

14

accomplishing that. What we have here by a

15

condition of No. 9 is already securing a commitment

16

of this company to do this development committing to

17

provide funding to accomplish the construction of

18

the infrastructure needs. And that's how I read and

19

understand Condition No. 9. And whether it's them

20

or their successors, it's a commitment that's bound

21

by this zoning that they will pay their share to

22

fund and construct transportation improvements and

23

programs, including dedication of rights of ways

24

determined by the State DOT and the County of Maui.

25

Without this type of people agreeing to pay for it,
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who knows when we're gonna put up the funding even

2

after we complete the plan. And so I am not gonna

3

support the motion because I think it's already a

4

commitment made and agreement made by the developer

5

or the representative of the developer to ante up.

6

That's all I've got to say.

7

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Councilmember Johnson.

8

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: We won't know these -- we won't

9

know the answers to these questions until such time

10

that the transportation planning model is submitted,

11

reviewed and approved. We don't know what the

12

impact fees are going to look like at that point in

13

time. They may be less. I don't know. But I would

14

rather at least put in a condition, because as Mr.

15

Hokama has pointed out, the developer has said that

16

they're willing to do something towards improving

17

let's say the transportation in this area. It

18

doesn't seem that it's gonna be that far away for

19

this impact fee ordinance to be enacted. It is

20

already on our books. We've funded it and I think

21

that perhaps the development community, since they

22

have contributed over the years or we've allowed

23

them to contribute to the problems that we now face

24

right, you know, at this point in time, perhaps they

25

would like to fund the additional amount so that
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they can all know, and I'm not just saying this

2

developer, anyone that wants to come forward. I

3

asked somebody in my office today, and they said

4

yes, they're willing to come forward and pay to help

5

fund the remainder of the study if we don't have

6

sufficient funds.
So I don't see it as something that is

7
8

onerous. It's something that is just simply there

9

that we're acknowledging it exists. I'm not saying

10

the developer has to do it, but I'm saying that in

11

order to know whether we're doing our job or not or

12

whether what they've proposed is sufficient or not,

13

we can't do it unless we have that information in

14

front of us. It's putting the cart before the

15

horse.

16

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Would you like to make a motion now?

17

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, I make a motion that prior to

18

any construction or project approvals that the

19

Council requires that the South Maui Transportation

20

Planning Model has been completed and the traffic

21

impact fee ordinance is in effect and that the

22

applicant is in compliance.

23

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Nishiki, is there a second?

24

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Second.

25

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Thank you. It's been moved and seconded.

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

392

LU 10/29/01

1
2

Discussion?
The Chair will not be supporting this because

3

as Chair of the Planning Committee when we did the

4

community plan, I do know that there are complete

5

plans for the entire Kihei Highway system. The

6

County has done extensive work in analyzing each of

7

the highways. We have started programs to start

8

widening South Kihei Road, for instance. There are

9

plans currently being enacted to work on the

10

North-South Collector Road. Indeed, virtually every

11

roadway in Kihei has been studied to some degree.

12

And in the consideration of the community plan, it's

13

something that each of us were given a complete book

14

on to be able to discuss.

15

So as far as a transportation discussion and

16

a model, I believe we already have had something

17

produced. We need to have something that is

18

upgraded, updated to reflect what we're doing

19

currently because there have been some adjustments.

20

But I believe most of what you're asking for has

21

already been accomplished in the past.

22

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Having said that, Mr. Chair, I

23

question why we put in $200,000, then, to have each

24

of these transportation planning models done if we

25

already have the information.
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CHAIR ARAKAWA: And what I've said is we'd like to see the

2

update, but during the community plan process we

3

were each given a book that had the transportation

4

of Kihei in there.

5
6

Okay. Any further discussion? If not, all
in favor say aye.

7

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Aye.

8

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Aye.

9

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Opposed?

10

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: No.

11

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: No.

12

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.

13

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Motion defeated.

14

VOTE: AYES:
NOES:

17

Councilmember Johnson and Nishiki.
Councilmember Carroll, Hokama, Kane,
Molina, Tavares, and Chair Arakawa.
ABSTAIN:
None.
ABSENT:
None.
EXC.:
Councilmember Kawano.
ACTION: MOTION DEFEATED.

18

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Your next motion.

15
16

19

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: The next motion, and I'll just

20

make it, it's provided that a South Maui High School

21

is constructed.

22

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Discussion? Councilmember Carroll.

23

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: I'm not picking on Councilmember

24

Johnson over here. However, again, something like

25

this is so out of control of the applicant and even
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the County and even the State that putting a

2

condition like this on would be truly an effective

3

way of killing the entire proposal. I am for a

4

school over there. I've been with the schools for

5

many years, four times PTA president, and with the

6

DOE for a long time. We all strongly support having

7

a school over there, but, again, this is not the

8

place to promote it, especially with -- on this

9

application. Thank you.

10

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Any other discussion? In -- Did

11

you have -- Okay. If not, in this year there was a

12

charter school that was enacted and each of us in

13

Council, you know, did vote to support using the

14

youth center as a starting point for the charter

15

school. I go there periodically and I have noticed

16

that they're also using the cafeteria now. This

17

high school that you are talking about is building.

18

The funding is being enacted for the school to

19

exist. In what you are requesting for your -- for

20

your motion, how would this not already be looked at

21

as a high school in the area?

22

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Because the permanent structure,

23

Mr. Chair, is not in place. It's housed

24

temporarily. And because of the needs of the Kihei

25

community, which is the fastest growing community,
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one of the fastest growing ones in the State, I just

2

cannot continue to see children crowded into

3

classrooms and not address the issue. I understand

4

the other Council members' concerns about why are we

5

looking at putting in conditions or putting in,

6

let's say, caveats that tie any further development

7

to certain things taking place in our community over

8

which the developer has no control. We do have

9

control. I think that it is about time that we

10

started reacting in a better, more positive way and

11

putting these things out there instead of

12

exacerbating the existing problems.

13

So I see what we're doing and, I mean, I'm

14

sure this one will go down in flames, too, but it's

15

the thing that I have had the most frustration with

16

about planning, is that we seem to talk about a lot

17

of things, but not a lot of things seem to get done.

18

If we're not gonna do it now and if it's not this

19

development, it will be other developments. There

20

are other ones coming down the pike. And when you

21

say yes to one, will you say yes to them all? And

22

if that's the situation and if you can't put in

23

conditions, then what is the sense in sitting here

24

and dialoguing and trying to find out about water

25

when we don't seem to have the heart to really ask
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fundamental questions?
So my basic reason for introducing these

3

kinds of measures is to actually provoke thought

4

about where we're going, what we are doing, and why

5

are we doing it. And if we're not going to put

6

these things in place or compel others to put them

7

in place, and I don't mean the developer, I mean the

8

Department of Education, believe me, these people

9

will be lobbying the DOE and they will fight it.

10

Mr. Dowling put in a school. I mean, there are not

11

situations that have not, you know, come before us

12

before where they've had solutions come forward.

13

This is being done in other areas all over the

14

United Stated. So with that, I rest my case.

15

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Well, in the planning process we

16

did locate an area for a school site in the

17

community plan. We did have discussions with DOE

18

and we did get them to come before us and explain

19

what their plan was as far as the construction of

20

schools. So that we in discussion of the community

21

plan did consider this and it was something that we

22

did not take lightly. In the construction of or the

23

allowance of the charter school that is there, I

24

believe that all of us had concerns about the youth

25

center when we approved that and we all had concerns
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about how they would grow.
Now, we can as a Council, I guess, extend our

3

rule over and above what the State does. I don't

4

know if that is appropriate and I don't know if the

5

Council members would be willing to do that, but to

6

suggest that, you know, we're going to do the school

7

or require a school I think would be subjecting this

8

applicant to something that's totally out of his

9

control as to whether or not the school would be

10

constructed, a physical structure would be

11

constructed. It could possibly be rented or it

12

could possibly be expanded into the existing site.

13

I have no idea. But the requirement in my mind now

14

is not something that we took lightly.

15

So how the Department of Education reacts to

16

this and has reacted to schools from a personal

17

level, not a Council level, from a personal level as

18

a past PTA president, I have not been really happy

19

with. And I do not like their formula for

20

construction of new facilities, nor do I like their

21

system of constructing new facilities whereby

22

students have been subjected to the whole

23

construction process and trying to learn in dust and

24

heavy machinery moving and all that noise and

25

everything else that's very bad for learning, but
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that is what we have to work through and that is the

2

system that we have. We need to either get the

3

State to release that so that we have independent

4

control of the school system, which I have been in

5

favor for, or -- But to compel a -- to compel a

6

contractor or a developer to try and force the State

7

to do this I don't believe is appropriate for this

8

body.
Do we have a motion, Councilmember

9
10
11
12
13

(inaudible)?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Mr. Chair, is the -- is this in
our community plan, this particular high school?
CHAIR ARAKAWA: The school site was right below the Tech

14

Park, just a little bit before. There used to be a

15

big sign on the roadway. We did put it in the plan.

16
17
18

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: So if it's in the community
plan -CHAIR ARAKAWA: But the physical construction, the

19

building itself was not there, but the ability to

20

construct and to put in a site we did.

21

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.

22

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. We have a motion on the floor. Oh,

23

we don't have a motion.

24

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.

25

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: We don't have a motion.
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CHAIR ARAKAWA: Further discussion?

2

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I make a motion that prior to any

3

construction or project approval, that the Council

4

reserves the right to see that a South Maui High

5

School is constructed in accordance with the

6

community plan.

7

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Is there a second?

8

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Second.

9

CHAIR ARAKAWA: It's been moved by Councilmember Johnson,

10

seconded by Councilmember Nishiki. Discussion? If

11

not -- Councilmember Hokama.

12

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah, I will have discussion.

13

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Hokama, and then Nishiki.

14

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you, Chairman. Again,

15

Exhibit B, Condition 8, we are already requiring the

16

development to provide for the development, funding

17

and construction of school facilities in this

18

region. Thank you.

19

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Councilmember Nishiki.

20

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. I just wanna repeat from

21

the community plan again.

22

plan allow no further development unless

23

infrastructure, public facilities and services

24

needed to service new development are available

25

prior to or concurrent with the impacts of new

"Upon adoption of this
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development." Also under "Education" under "d" it

2

says, "build a high school to serve the Kihei region

3

when required to accommodate growth." And right now

4

I see that the growth is there to whereby a high

5

school is needed. Thank you.

6

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay.

7

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So to keep in the integrity of

8

this plan, I want to quote from a law that we

9

passed.

10

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. You were there when we were doing

11

the community plan, so you know we had discussion

12

about the high school and other schools and you know

13

we moved the site and --

14

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah.

15

CHAIR ARAKAWA: -- there was a lot of discussion.

16

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. My position from here on

17

in, Mr. Chairman, and why I feel I can defend my

18

statements and my voting is because if you are

19

bringing in any projects in Kihei for rezoning, if

20

you bring in 670, I will promise you we will bring a

21

hoard of people out so you get the drift. Thank

22

23

you.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Well, Councilman Nishiki, whatever is

24

referred to the Committee is referred to the

25

Committee. I don't select.
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Councilmember Johnson.

1
2

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I understand what Councilmember

3

Hokama is saying, but so many times it's very

4

subjective as to what educational facilities can

5

mean. It might be contributing to a classroom, it

6

might be constructing a smaller educational facility

7

with a nonprofit, but we need a high school and

8

that's why I made the motion.

9

CHAIR ARAKAWA: And we're not disagreeing, but I also am

10

pointing that the charter school is started up and

11

they actually have students that are doing that

12

work.

13
14
15
16

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Well, and, Mr. Chair, I actually
want it constructed.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Any further discussion? If not,
all in favor say aye.

17

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Aye.

18

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Opposed?

19

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: No.

20

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: No.

21

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.

22

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Motion fails.

23
24
25
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1
2
3
4
5

Councilmember Johnson.
Councilmember Carroll, Hokama, Kane,
Molina, Nishiki, Tavares and Chair
Arakawa.
None.
ABSTAIN:
None.
ABSENT:
Councilmember Kawano.
EXC.:
ACTION: MOTION DEFEATED.

VOTE: AYES:
NOES:

6

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Johnson.

7

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. The next one is -- and I

8

know that these are in the discussions that we've

9

had, the Kihei-Upcountry Connector Road. And it

10

would be provided that the Kihei-Upcountry Connector

11

Road, Mokulele Highway project, and expansion of

12

Piilani Highway to four lanes is completed with the

13

level of service being "C," which is mandated in our

14

Maui Long Range Transportation Plan, that these

15

projects be done and operational.

16

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Discussion? Councilmember Carroll.

17

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you. The Kihei-Upcountry

18

Road, what is the -- I believe it's supposed to be

19

potentially now in 2010 or so. I believe it's 2010.

20

Again, this is inappropriate. This is in effect

21

killing the entire application before us. To tie it

22

into something like that, especially in these

23

economic times that we are having, who knows when

24

something like this can come about. It -- Again,

25

it's not right and it's not appropriate to tie it to

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

403

LU 10/29/01

1

this application for the same reasons that I gave

2

for the other proposals. Thank you.

3
4
5

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Further comment? Councilmember
Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. Jo Anne, I would hope that

6

you would separate this one here and also when you

7

make a motion, make sure that we address or create

8

language that says that the expansion of Piilani

9

Highway to four lanes extending south to Wailea Ike

10

and Mokulele Highway to four lanes would be

11

included. And maybe separate the Upcountry road

12

from the Piilani, Mokulele. That is my input.

13

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. David, would you like to comment on

14

the Upcountry, Kihei to Upcountry road, what the

15

status is?

16

MR. GOODE: Yes, Mr. Chair. I believe the State

17

Department of Transportation made mention of that in

18

their communication to this Committee on this item.

19

If I recall correctly, it's in the Federal EIS

20

process and that the EIS has been submitted to

21

Washington, DC for review.

22

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. I'm not sure if the funding is

23

there for the construction at this point, but I know

24

it's been worked on quite some time.

25

MR. GOODE: Yeah.
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CHAIR ARAKAWA: Do you have any idea whether the

2

construction budget is part of this package?

3

MR. GOODE: The construction monies, my recollection was

4

that this was a special line item that was inserted

5

through the legislative process in Washington, so it

6

wasn't specifically part of ISTEA, the normal ISTEA

7

fund or T-21 funding.

8
9

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. So you don't know whether it's
actually funded this year or not?

10

MR. GOODE: Oh, it's definitely not funded this year.

11

CHAIR ARAKAWA: I'm pretty sure it's not.

12

MR. GOODE: It's not even in design yet.

13

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Thank you. Any further discussion?

14

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Mr. Chairman.

15

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Nishiki.

16

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah, if there's no more

17

discussion, then I would make the motion.

18

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilwoman Johnson, would you allow

19
20
21

Councilmember Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, I will allow Councilmember
Nishiki to make the motion.

22

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Mr. Nishiki.

23

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: The motion is that no new

24

certificate of occupancy shall be issued prior to

25

the completion of the expansion of Piilani Highway
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1

to four lanes extending south to Wailea Ike and

2

Mokulele Highway to four lanes, period.

3

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Second.

4

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Discussion?

5

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. I just wanted to state for

6

the record that even the State Director of

7

Transportation informed this Committee on July 2nd

8

that, and I quote: "No new developments in our

9

State especially in certain growth areas such as

10

Maui have generated new traffic that is growing

11

faster than our ability to provide the needed

12

regional transportation improvements." So with that

13

statement that he made and with what I feel is the

14

ability of this Council and the Administration to

15

get in an interim way with the help of the Public

16

Works Director to -- to -- not through voluntary

17

means, but through, you know, a little arm hitting

18

and some good dialogue with development people that

19

we will be able to generate the kinds of money that

20

we want to get the roadways -- North-South Collector

21

Road, Piilani Highway and Mokulele -- without

22

perhaps using public taxpayers' money, but getting

23

development money to push this through.

24
25

And it's something that I not feel, but I
know that if this development -- and I wanna treat

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

406

LU 10/29/01

1

it fairly -- and other developers, as has been

2

stated by a myriad of Council members today, if we

3

can pursue this end, then I think that we would be

4

doing the right thing. And this is one area I just

5

feel, Mr. Chairman, is achievable, is really

6

achievable, and it'll show the people of Maui

7

County, especially those residents that have to go

8

through whether they drive to work from Up-country

9

area or wherever and the visitor that is visiting

10

Maui County and those of us that live within the

11

area that government, indeed, can succeed with a

12

little communication with developers.

13

I don't think that we've made the effort and

14

for this reason I just feel that this is achievable.

15

It may even make it so that this developer himself

16

or whoever they are will see that we're gonna get

17

four lanes all the way to Wailea Ike in a snap of a

18

finger. But, you know, we often talk about, as we

19

did today, well, you know, it's not fair to this

20

developer or whatever. My whole thrust for these

21

statements is that it's just not fair not only for

22

this developer, it's not fair for this community,

23

it's not fair for those of us that have put us in

24

office, those of us that are making all kinds of

25

statements as far, yeah, we need it, but why aren't
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we doing it?
I think that if Maui County is someone

2
3

special and this Council is something special and

4

the Mayor is something special, then we can all get

5

our heads together and do it. I think it's doable.

6

We don't need to pass an ordinance. We can get all

7

the participants to, as we say locally,

8

and, and get it together, you know, share in this

9

whole thing. So for this reason, I submit this

10

and,

amendment.

11

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Councilmember Johnson.

12

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I support Mr. Nishiki's amendment.

13

I will take out the Kihei-Upcountry Connector Road

14

because I believe that if these two key elements,

15

Mokulele Highway and Piilani Highway expansion, are

16

in place, it will do a great deal to lessening the

17

traffic problem in the area. Past Councils let

18

these issues languish, and I believe that the

19

Councils have in the past allowed many of these

20

things. And the small developments, as Mr. Hokama

21

pointed out, contribute to the problems that we face

22

now.

23

I don't think it's unfair or unreasonable to

24

expect someone who's done a quality development to

25

want the very best for their community and to be
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willing to just make a statement and to say yes. I

2

believe that before we go forward, they wanna ensure

3

that their investment is going to pay off. And if

4

we continue on when the economy improves and when

5

tourism is back at its pre-disaster levels, when

6

that takes place, I would like to be able to have an

7

opportunity to have this infrastructure in place.

8

If the developer does not want to do it, I would at

9

least hope that we can lobby the State on CIP to

10

come forward with a lot of these projects that will

11

provide employment for infrastructure and that will

12

also provide a better quality visitor experience as

13

well as provide for our local residents.

14

Our local residents put up with a lot. They

15

put up with a lot. And if we do everything that we

16

can always looking at the tourist in mind, how does

17

that make our local people feel? What do they

18

expect? They're looking at us for making wise

19

decisions, making wise judgments, and yet we're not

20

willing to step up to the plate and say yes, we've

21

heard you. We wanna do what you have asked us to do

22

and at least compel people before we exacerbate

23

existing problems, compel people to be adhering to

24

minimum standards. This developer did not create

25

the situation, but I don't think we should allow
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1

anyone to worsen it and to do this to the public.

2

They're looking at us as leaders. I think it's

3

about time we started acting like it.

4

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Nishiki.

5

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. One last statement, and

6

I'll just be real brief and real simple at the same

7

time, also. I can remember when I use to wanna

8

bring my friends home. My mother always used to

9

say, "You like bring your friends home? You better

10

clean up the house." I said, "Oh, okay, okay." And

11

then I had to go clean up the house. Similarly, you

12

know, we wanna bring our friends or tourists, all

13

these people to come to our house Maui, but if we

14

get opala and all messy, it's not attractive. So

15

similarly I think this is a challenge for us. They

16

like invite people to come over and they going to

17

pay thousands of dollars, well, clean up your house,

18

Wayne. And for this reason, as I said, I'll keep it

19

real simple, and this is the reason why I'm backing

20

up the amendment.

21
22

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Any further discussion?
On this one, Wayne, if you would separate

23

Piilani and Mokulele, too, I would support Piilani

24

being completed before this project occupancy, but I

25

won't support Mokulele. Because I believe Piilani
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1

there will be -- without the four lane, there'll be

2

congestion in Kihei that's gonna be very severe.

3

But Mokulele, I believe it'll clear up at Mokulele

4

intersection.

5

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Mr. Chairman.

6

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Nishiki.

7

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah, I -- and I really take what

8

you said with sincereness only because I don't feel

9

like Mokulele is gonna be completed. Maybe we've

10

got a chance with Piilani. So I'd like to withdraw

11

that motion and hope my secondary would withdraw it,

12

also, and restate --

13

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I withdraw the motion and wait --

14

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: -- that motion.

15

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: -- for the restatement.

16

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Councilmember Nishiki, restate your

17
18
19
20
21

motion.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I gotta look for my piece of paper
here.
David, you have the language? I need some
help. I lost my piece of paper.

22

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman.

23

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Short recess.

24

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: If you would, yeah, grant a very

25

short recess so Mr. Nishiki can draft some language.
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CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Short recess.

2

RECESS: 8:25 p.m.

3

RECONVENE: 8:28 p.m.

4

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Call the meeting back to order.

5

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. My

6

amendment would state that no certificate of

7

occupancy shall be issued prior to the completion of

8

the expansion of Piilani Highway to four lanes

9

extending south to Wailea Ike, period.

10

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Second.

11

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Discussion? The restriping of

12

Piilani is what we're talking about, correct, Mr.

13

Nishiki? The project that we funded this year.

14

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No, I'm -- I'm saying basically

15

what was -- when we had that big philosophical

16

discussion on the expansion only goes to Kilohana.

17

I want the four lanes to go all the way to Wailea

18

Ike south of Kilohana Road, four lanes.

19

CHAIR ARAKAWA: May I ask why you would want it from

20

Kilohana to Wailea Ike when the studies show that

21

it's not gonna be necessary to have it four lanes,

22

That that level of transportation is adequate?

23

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No, Mr. Chairman. No, Mr.

24

Chairman, I don't believe that the studies show

25

that. I believe that if you travel that highway up
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in that area now, there is a problem with it being

2

two lanes. So it is not something that I take

3

lightly when I have calls about this area of the

4

highway. And with, as we said, this major project

5

coming on board and two more hotels being put in,

6

not to mention the other developments, I just feel

7

that this amendment is achievable.

8

And I think David -- David mentioned to us

9

it'll cost about an additional 5 to $7 million, I

10

think was his estimate, to create that portion of

11

that highway. So I just feel that it's achievable

12

and it would address the concerns raised by visitors

13

as well as residents of Maui County that are either

14

working or visiting that area, period.

15
16

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Further discussion? Councilmember
Carroll.

17

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Question for David.

18

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay.

19

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: David, we're talking about the

20

section of highway not the restriping, but after

21

that one section over there, I believe, and, you

22

know, widening that, that one. $5 million? That

23

looks like -- as I recall, I mean I go over there

24

all the time and go to, you know, conferences and

25

things. I thought that was prohibitively expensive
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because of the extensive work that would have to be

2

done. Is that right?

3

MR. GOODE: I think -- Mr. Chair, I think we need a little

4

clarification here. If I recall correctly, I

5

thought the dollar figure that Mr. Nishiki quoted

6

had to do with the extension of Piilani Highway

7

along the border of Wailea 670 towards Makena, the

8

upper end of Makena. That's what I recall. That

9

was, oh, a couple of hearings ago. Is that what

10
11
12

you're referring to?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Okay. I'm not sure which we're
talking about now, that's why.

13

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Nishiki, would you clarify.

14

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Could you, please.

15

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. This is -- this is the

16

segment that I'm speaking about, Bob, going from

17

Kilohana because the segment that is already being

18

addressed with that $3 million State and whatever

19

else is from Mokulele all the way to Kilohana. Now,

20

the part that has not been addressed and --

21
22
23
24
25

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Excuse me, Wayne. Give me just two
seconds.
Bill, could you bring up that area?
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Kilohana is the entrance to Maui
Meadows.
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you.

2

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: So from Maui Meadows --

3

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Yeah. Kilohana is the entrance to

4

Maui Meadows and it goes up and then you have these

5

two blue rock hills over there. So it would take

6

blasting out that blue rock and create two more

7

lanes to go through there. And that's basically the

8

major cost that's gonna be incurred to get through

9

there.

10
11

David.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Okay, Chair, that was my concern,

12

that area over there. I mean, maybe I'm mistaken,

13

but I remember one conversation where they said that

14

would be very, very expensive going through there.

15

It would be a major job. You had to move utility

16

poles, you had to blast out over there. I just

17

wanna make sure that we're talking about an amount

18

that, you know, is achievable, a job -- I mean,

19

something that is achievable, not something that's

20

going to run into mega dollars. Not 5 million, but

21

maybe 20 or 30. And that's why I was asking you if

22

you anything about that, any projections for that.

23

I know it's not a County highway, but if you knew

24

anything about it.

25

MR. GOODE: If I could respond. That's probably not an
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unreasonable number that he came up with. I don't

2

have enough information to be able to substantiate

3

it, but it's -- it could very easily be that much. I

4

mean, we're talking -- Councilmember Kane's correct,

5

It's a big mound of blue rock. We've all driven by,

6

it's pretty high.

7

The project -- Councilmember Nishiki is

8

correct, the project that's -- that the State has

9

funded that the County's contributed a million

10

dollars towards is -- we call it restriping, but

11

there is a substantial amount of hard improvements

12

that have to be made from Mokulele to Kilohana, is

13

my understanding.

14

If I could add, Chairman, the volume -- the

15

capacity ratios along Piilani Highway are at their

16

highest around Lipoa. And if you look at the

17

various intersections along Piilani Highway and you

18

look at where the peak traffic is the heaviest, and

19

as we all know, it's in both -- generally both

20

directions, it's lesser at Mokulele, you know, it's

21

pretty high -- it gets at near its peak at Lipoa,

22

and it gradually works its way down towards where

23

you get to Wailea. Kilohana is where the newest

24

traffic signal is in. It's one of the entrances to

25

Maui Meadows. Then there's another intersection
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with Okolani that goes down to Wailea, and then you

2

hit Wailea Ike. As you get towards Wailea Ike,

3

those numbers are substantially quite low. And

4

while there may be a need at some time in the very

5

distant future for four lanes in that section, I

6

can't see why there would be a need at -- in the

7

near future. My two cents.

8

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Thank you. Councilmember Molina.

9

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, thank you, Mr. Chair. Just

10

speaking for the members' information, an article in

11

our binder from the Maui Weekly regarding Piilani

12

Highway's fast track one to two years, the current

13

proposal is we're looking at $4 million -- David,

14

right? The one that we kicked in 3 million from the

15

State. And we're trying to get that fast track

16

within one to two years. With this proposal that

17

Mr. Nishiki made, I don't know if you'd have a rough

18

estimate of how much we're looking at additional

19

cost if we do have to go blast all that blue rock,

20

as Mr. Kane had mentioned, and timetable how long

21

more, you know. How long more would this project

22

take if we take this request into consideration,

23

David?

24
25

MR. GOODE: The -- to me the key lead item here is
funding. There is no funding at the State level.
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There's no funding here at the County level. So --

2

And there's no funding at the Federal level that's

3

been identified as part of the STIP for this

4

section. So with enough equipment, you can do the

5

job pretty quickly, and I can probably design it

6

pretty quickly, but you gotta fund it.

7

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. So if we were to take this

8

Kilohana proposal, we're looking at, what, an

9

additional -- provided if there's funding, an

10

additional two years or more, in your opinion?

11

MR. GOODE: Well, let's say that it could be funded in the

12

next State biennium. Okay? So we'd find out, do a

13

legislative process around April or so if it's in

14

and come in July 1, 2002 the money would be

15

available. Someone's gotta design it. As soon as

16

they get the permitting, EA, SMA perhaps. So by

17

that time, the work's already started on the other

18

improvements that we've allotted funds for. So,

19

yeah, year and half, two years away if things work

20

out smoothly.

21

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you.

22

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Nishiki.

23

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. And I wanna make it very

24

clear to my fellow Council members. You guys, we

25

already talked about forget it -- Mr. Carroll
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brought up forget it about the State. Now we're

2

still bringing up who's gonna fund it. I'm saying

3

the developers are gonna fund it. When 670 comes

4

in, what are you gonna do, vote against it or for

5

it? I'm curious. If you're gonna vote for it, then

6

you better make sure you get the money from the 670

7

to put in that area 'cause that's the roadway

8

they're gonna need to pass through. We've already

9

created two lanes there. The State did it. I can't

10

remember who paid for that one, but we've got two

11

lanes and it's not like kryptonite. They did it and

12

they blasted through. Modern technology can do it.

13

And so I'm just looking at it from a point where I'm

14

not banking on State or County. I'm banking on us

15

to get the developers to pay for this. If you're

16

gonna constantly bring up State and the biennium

17

budget and this whole thing, forget it. Don't vote

18

for it because that'll never happen and you're

19

right. But I'm saying that if you have in your mind

20

that we're going to make this pursuit we're

21

trying to get the development community to ante up

22

for this, then perhaps you can back this proposal.

23

If you're thinking the other way, forget it,

24

you'll grow a beard and become a hippie.

25

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Carroll, then Johnson.
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COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you, Chair. I don't have

2

enough hair to grow so I'm not too worried.

3

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: (Laughter.)

4

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: However, I question if we need

5

that section of road widening, but I have a much

6

deeper concern. We're talking about additional

7

developers, 670, other things. Who says 670 is

8

going to pass? Who says some other developer's

9

going to come along? I mean, are we assuming that

10

we're gonna pass every developer that comes through

11

here? I don't think so. And want to -- again, to

12

tie it just to this one developer, again, I think is

13

inappropriate. And if we're going to go along that

14

other rationale, we're going to say, okay, we're

15

going to approve enough projects to be able to get

16

enough money to do this, yeah, I have a real problem

17

with that. It seems like in advance we're deciding

18

what we're going to do with people that come before

19

us and we haven't even heard their applications and

20

we don't know what impacts their applications would

21

have.

22

I -- I hope that we will get the restriping

23

in a reasonable amount of time. I don't think we

24

could widen that one section in anything less than

25

five years. I worked with the State on highways and
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I'm sure if Mr. Siarot or anybody else would come

2

down, he would tell you exactly this because they've

3

told it to me many times. From the initiation of a

4

project to the completion is no less than five

5

years, period.

6

So the State, as Mr. Nishiki has said, we can

7

count them out. We can't tie it to that. And to

8

tie it to future developments to get the money, I

9

don't think that's appropriate. And to tie it only

10

to this developer, I don't think it's appropriate.

11

I share the sentiments that we need to do something,

12

but I don't think this is the answer. I think we

13

need to be innovative, but I don't think this is

14

innovation. I think this is looking for a deep

15

pocket that we can pass on the improvements to, and

16

I won't be supporting that. Thank you.

17

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Jo Anne.

18

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: When Kaanapali Ocean Resort and

19

Amfac, who was the seller at that point in time,

20

wanted to get Honoapiilani Highway widened to four

21

lanes, they took down I think it was at least one

22

road bridge above, they reconstructed the other

23

bridge above, they took out all kinds of blue rock

24

or red rock or whatever you want to call it. I know

25

it was very hard and they did blasting. And they
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did it in relatively short space of time because the

2

developer wanted to go forward with Kaanapali Ocean

3

Resorts. And so they stepped up to the plate and

4

they helped with design money. They did whatever

5

they could so that that development could proceed.

6

And all of the review, basically, done for the

7

widening of that whole section, which stretched all

8

the way from Kaanapali Parkway to Honokowai was done

9

in probably under two years. So, believe me, when

10

people are motivated to move, they move. And when

11

people want something, just like Mr. Nishiki read,

12

there were six miles of highway that someone, a

13

developer, stepped forward to pay for. If people

14

want what they want, they have to recognize that

15

government cannot continue to foot the bill and that

16

the public is not going to continue that route

17

because it's continued for too long already.

18

So I really support Mr. Nishiki's motion. I

19

think that the logical progression of that area is

20

to have four lanes all the way. Why have a short

21

little space, albeit it's rock, you know, that might

22

be a little bit difficult to blast through, but

23

there are -- there's divided highway at the end of

24

that space with four lanes fully provided for. They

25

certainly can extend the four lanes to connect and
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not leave just this short little segment where it's

2

only two lanes. It's not good planning.

3

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Any other comments?

4

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Call for the question, Mr. Chair.

5

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Well, I'm gonna comment a little

6

bit first. I would've supported the construction

7

and the proposal up to Kilohana. Beyond Kilohana I

8

believe is unnecessary and I think it's an

9

additional burden, and at this point I think it's

10

just trying to make a point. It's not a

11

practical -- there's no practical need. So if you

12

would just wanna make a point that you want to put

13

it in there, that's fine, but I don't see doing this

14

just to try and create a situation. The restriping

15

of Piilani, I believe that's something that will

16

affect the community. And I think the traffic there

17

needs to be corrected and there needs to be the

18

improvements there prior to certificate of occupancy

19

because when those projects come on line, that

20

highway is already at the point where it's starting

21

to congest. So I can see supporting that, but

22

insisting that it goes from Kilohana to Wailea Ike I

23

will not support. So as the motion is,

24

Councilmember Nishiki, you can make your point --

25

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No, I'm -- I'm not --
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CHAIR ARAKAWA: -- (inaudible).

2

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I'm not going to make a point.

3

I'm just saying you're creating two more hotels and

4

you know that more development is going to be there.

5

You accepted the fact that no one's going to do it.

6

So let me ask you, in the end, who's going to do it?

7

I already know that there are -- one, two, three,

8

four, five -- six major hotels beyond Kilohana. And

9

who knows the amount of workers that have gotta

10

traverse this area. Who knows how much tourists are

11

going to travel that area.

12

So when I hear a department head tell me that

13

there's no need for this, I would only wish that he

14

would go and do his studies. When he sees the full

15

build-out of two more hotels there and possibly when

16

this subdivision goes through and the amount of land

17

that will be used for more development that is not

18

going to be necessary, let alone the amount of the

19

construction workers that will have to go out in

20

that area to develop this area, let alone knowing

21

that this area is frequented -- frequented on

22

weekends, La Perouse, Makena Beach. Come on, let's

23

not -- let's not joke each other on -- on this. And

24

one should not take it personally, but I'm just

25

saying let's have integrity and responsibility as
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we plan for Maui County in this area. That's all

2

I'm saying. I know it's that way already.

3

need to speculate. There is heavy traffic there,

4

and it will get even worse as we see the other

5

developments that are coming up. I don't know how

6

many more are going to go and visit that shopping

7

center out there, Mr. Chairman, from impacts when

8

Kihei grows. So -- I'm done. Thank you.

9

I don't

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Nishiki, I was out there

10

just the other week at the Terry Fox Run. We had a

11

lot of traffic, a lot of people were there. The

12

level of service on that road was still good. We

13

could get in and out of that place even with all

14

that additional traffic there.

15

further --

16
17
18

Further --

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Oh, I wonder why? Because this
bombing has happened.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Nishiki, first of all, in

19

doing the concepts that we've been discussing, one

20

of the major things in this smart growth concept has

21

been set your priorities, get those projects done.

22

In my priority system when we are looking at what

23

highways need to be completed where the funding to

24

Maui County -- that's coming to Maui County need to

25

be concentrated, it's on the major highways:
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Piilani, Mokulele. We're looking at roadways going

2

to Paia. We're looking at roadways going to Lahaina

3

and Kula. If we have extra funds and we have the

4

ability to focus extra funds, I would prefer to

5

focus them on those major roadways. That's what the

6

smart growth concepts have been saying to this

7

point. These small little segments that you're

8

trying to concentrate all the funding on to me are

9

not the highest priority.

It will not service the

10

majority of the people. So when we're talking about

11

those concepts and in the consideration of where I

12

would concentrate those funds, those are the areas

13

where I consider more necessary, and those are the

14

areas I will support for funding. Other areas I

15

think need to take a little bit of a back burner

16

until we can catch up with those major areas.

17

Driving to Lahaina this past week, and I've talked

18

to Councilwoman Johnson about this, there's segments

19

of road around Olowalu that are collapsed. Funding

20

needs to be concentrated in the areas where we have

21

the most need, and that is where I'm gonna be

22

focusing my attention as far as trying to put

23

Federal, State and County funds if at all possible.

24

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Call for the question.

25

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Wayne, I'll allow you one short
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2

comment.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah, I just want to correct you

3

when I look at your philosophy and my philosophy.

4

Mine is not to get money from government. Right now

5

there is rampant development in this area and the

6

way to get it is from the developer. This is my way

7

of funding. So it is not going -- it's not that I'm

8

going to ask money from a Kaanapali developer nor a

9

Kula developer. I'm going to get money from a

10
11

Wailea-Kihei developer.
And I would hope that we'll all not take any

12

of these statements that we make tonight lightly,

13

but we will focus in on really trying to get our

14

infrastructure on line. And if we let these guys

15

go, we'll never have the chance to get 'em again.

16

Right now we've got -- what do we have here? Over

17

1,700 units in this area that are coming on line and

18

are yet to be built. If we can quickly get all

19

these guys in line with their checkbooks out and

20

their checks out, then we can realize this

21

infrastructure improvement that we are going to

22

need. But if we pass it now and don't do anything,

23

then surely, as you stated, Mr. Arakawa, you and

24

whoever else is on the Council is going to be

25

fighting for what government entity is going to pay

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

427

LU 10/29/01

1

for this. I am not saying any money is going to

2

come from taxpayers or government. It's going to

3

come from the developers. And I think they rightly

4

deserve to pay this ante up. That's it. I'm done.

5

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. All those in favor say aye.

6

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Aye.

7

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Aye.

8

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Aye.

9

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Opposed?

10

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: No.

11

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: No.

12

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.

13

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Roll call.

14

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Roll call. Councilmember Kane.

15

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Nope.

16

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Carroll.

17

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: No.

18

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Hokama.

19

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: No.

20

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Johnson.

21

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Aye.

22

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Molina.

23

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.

24

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Nishiki.

25

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Aye.
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CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Tavares.

2

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Aye.

3

CHAIR ARAKAWA: The Chair votes no. The tally, Dave.

4

MR. RAATZ: Motion fails.

5

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Motion fails.

6

VOTE: AYES:

7
8
9
10
11
12
13

Councilmember Johnson, Nishiki, and
Tavares.
NOES:
Councilmember Carroll, Hokama, Kane,
Molina, and Chair Arakawa.
ABSTAIN:
None.
ABSENT:
None.
EXC.:
Councilmember Kawano.
ACTION: MOTION DEFEATED.

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Short -- Jo Anne, you have one more
motion.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: This is my last one. That the

14

park assessment formula be applicable to any hotel,

15

timeshare, or apartment project which is proposed by

16

the developer and make it subject to Council

17

approval so that we have an opportunity to review

18

it.

19

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Mr. Chairman.

20

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Kane.

21

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: For discussion. Was this the bill

22

that just previously came out of the Parks Committee

23

and that was just recently passed? No.

24

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.

25

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay. Thank you.
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CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Carroll.

2

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Right now the -- for other

3

regular -- the hotel and housing, the Parks Director

4

can make -- we passed it, right? They can make the

5

decision whether they accept money or land. All

6

right. What -- just for -- to make sure,

7

Councilmember Johnson is proposing that we also have

8

this be like that, not go through the Council,

9

because we already have passed something to where

10

they can take care. I see -- I can see making it to

11

where these other units would have to fall in the

12

same category but, uh --

13

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Carroll, if I may. I

14

believe what Councilmember Johnson is proposing is a

15

park assessment fee for the hotel and for the

16

timeshare. We don't -- we do not currently have a

17

park assessment fee for that group. So she's

18

proposing it.

19

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: No, that's what I meant. It's

20

getting late and I'm getting tired, but what I meant

21

was we passed already if somebody makes a

22

subdivision, they have to -- the Parks Director

23

makes a choice whether it's land or, uh --

24

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Correct.

25

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: And I'm saying well, you know, if
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we make it where this particular project that would

2

be the same way with the hotel and the time-shares I

3

think might be appropriate, but not going through

4

the Council. I'm not sure.

5

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Hokama.

6

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: This I think I would like to really

7

support provided -- and I'm assuming that my

8

neighbor on the side of me, he's talking about PK-1

9

category. Because the golf course is PK-4 and I

10

think, if anything, that's an existing use that

11

we're gonna recognize that's already, you know, part

12

of the community plan designation.

13
14

CHAIR ARAKAWA: I believe what she's talking about is the
hotel.

15

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: PK-1.

16

CHAIR ARAKAWA: The hotel.

17

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: The hotel, time-shares and

18

apartments if there (inaudible).

19

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Not the PK-1, the hotel.

20

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Anything but PK-4. PK-1, -2 or

21

-3.

22

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Right, right, right. Okay.

23

CHAIR ARAKAWA: PK-1 as well.

24

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: As we did on Lanai, Mr. Chairman,

25

what I would hope we would consider doing, 'cause
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this part I've been consistent on, is that I would

2

like development of parks in this project area. I'd

3

like to have it built, at a minimum, to the

4

standards that the County Parks Department would

5

require, and yet I would like to have it maintained

6

and still owned by the developer just like we've

7

provided at the Manele-Hulopoe Project District on

8

the island of Lanai. There's much advantages. One,

9

we don't need to pay for it. We provide a public

10

park that will be in perpetuity and it would be part

11

of a unilateral agreement documented with the Bureau

12

of Conveyances and assigned to all future heirs and

13

assignees, as well as provide an amenity that the

14

developer can promote as part of their marketing

15

plan for their market housing program because I

16

believe, if anything, it's to their advantage to

17

have that park kept up to a level that we will

18

require as well as pay for it from their end. So

19

that would be my comments and I would hope my

20

neighbor would consider supporting what I'm

21

proposing to her recommendation.

22

CHAIR ARAKAWA: I'm gonna ask our Corp. Counsel to --

23

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes.

24

CHAIR ARAKAWA: -- explain some concerns that he has.

25

MR. MINATOYA: In reviewing the ordinance regarding the
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park assessment, and that's in Chapter 18.16,

2

they -- the ordinance specifies that, that the

3

developer shall provide an area of 500 square feet

4

for each lot or unit, okay. But if you look at the

5

definition terms of -- for that section in

6

18.16.320(A), you know, it refers to dwelling units

7

as means room or rooms connected together,

8

constituting an independent housekeeping unit for a

9

family and containing a single kitchen. Okay. So

10

hotel theoretically wouldn't fall under that. And

11

then it says lodging unit means room or rooms

12

connected together, constituting independent

13

housekeeping unit for a family which does not

14

contain any kitchen. It seems to be like a -- more

15

like a rooming house situation. And if you look

16

under a subdivision, it talks about the term does

17

not -- the term includes a building or a group of

18

buildings converted from hotel residential use. The

19

term includes dwelling units or lodging units added

20

to a building or a group of buildings other than

21

hotel where the total number of units is three or

22

more. So it seems like there's -- it's been

23

determined that there was a rational nexus regarding

24

these type of units so that they could come out with

25

or come up with a standard of 500 square feet per
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lot or unit. Now, the question or the concern is

2

that -- is whether or not an area of 500 square feet

3

per each hotel unit is -- or there is a rational

4

nexus for that or not. Okay. So, you know, you got

5

a situation where you got 500 square feet per unit

6

or lot where people live versus a unit were

7

sometimes it's occupied, sometimes it's vacant, and

8

also I can see the argument coming up that somebody

9

staying in a hotel would use the hotel amenities and

10

not go to the park. So that's the concern that I

11

think needs to be addressed if you're looking at

12

that. I don't see a problem with coming up with --

13

with a certain assessment. It's just how do you set

14

that assessment?

15

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Johnson.

16

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: This is one of the items that

17

we're gonna be taking up in our Parks and Recreation

18

Committee because we're trying to arrive at some

19

kind of a formula, but also try to provide some kind

20

of a rationale for coming up with a formula. And

21

perhaps what may be better is for us to put in

22

wording into such a motion that -- say that the park

23

assessment formula which is applicable, you know.

24
25

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Perhaps you would consider something along
the lines of -- to insert a requirement that the
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park assessment fee when developed be applicable to

2

this project. Because I don't think you'd be able

3

to go through all the rational nexus and be able to

4

create --

5

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.

6

CHAIR ARAKAWA: -- what the percentage is right now.

7

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No, I'm not intending to that now,

8

but that's what I'm saying is that the park

9

assessment formula be applicable as --

10

CHAIR ARAKAWA: When developed.

11

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: -- when developed or -- you know,

12

that, in other words, that they are compelled to

13

adhere to whatever that formula is at that point in

14

time.

15

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Richard, is that something we can do?

16

MR. MINATOYA: I believe so.

17

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay.

18

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And to address Councilmember

19

Carroll's concerns, the only reason I wanted to put

20

it in was because on something that's as large as

21

this and because it's been expressed before that if

22

it's land, we have to accept the land, but in this

23

particular situation I'm also taking a look at some

24

other things such as actual park development

25

where -- or in-kind where, let's say, a developer
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might do grading, something of that sort. Because I

2

think we have to be flexible when we're looking.

3

And so right now the way the ordinance reads, it's

4

just cash or it's land.

5

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Corp. Counsel.

6

MR. MINATOYA: One other thing to add is that I think --

7

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Or combination.

8

MR. MINATOYA: That I think that -- that I think the

9

applicant should be consulted with this because it

10

kind of looks like or smells like or feels like an

11

ex post facto type of application for this new bill.

12

So if they're agreeable to it, then it should be no

13

problem. I'm just clarifying my answer.

14
15
16
17
18

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Applicant representative. Eric.
You're their legal representative.
MR. MAEHARA: I'm sorry. Go ahead. Eric Maehara
representing Makena Resort.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Would you be amiable or would your client

19

be amiable to having a condition put in that they

20

shall be subject to applicable park assessment fees

21

when developed for the hotel -- for the appropriate

22

areas within this development?

23

MR. MAEHARA: Frankly, no. Two reasons. First of all, I

24

think it's discriminatory. I think the proposed

25

hotel would be the only hotel which would be subject
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to this proposed park assessment. And, secondly, in

2

line with the Deputy Corporation Counsel, there

3

doesn't appear to be a rational nexus between the

4

operations of the hotel and the activities of hotel

5

guests, and the park requirements in the park

6

assessment ordinance, which is basically aimed at

7

residents, you know, residents, whether it's

8

single-family or multi-family residential unit with

9

children that require parks. So far I don't think

10

there's been a rational nexus that indicated that

11

hotel guests require the same type of park

12

requirements that residents do. And so the answer

13

is no, we wouldn't be agreeable to this.

14

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Charmaine.

15

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Oh, I don't have any questions for

16

Eric. I'm done.

17

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay.

18

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I mean, I don't have any questions

19
20
21

for Eric. I'm sorry.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. On -- no, but on this topic? Does
anybody have any questions for Eric?

22

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah.

23

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Nishiki.

24

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Eric, are you telling me that when

25

I go to a park, 70 percent of the people are
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visitors when I go to any Kamaole Parks or anyplace

2

like this. When I go to the ocean and lay on the

3

beach, again, 70 to 80 percent of the people are --

4

are visitors. When I go even down to play

5

basketball sometimes, the people that visit these

6

places are again visitors that use it. Not to

7

mention the fact that they use the bathroom and

8

flush the toilet and -- and then they use the

9

showers, and then sometimes they even sue us. But

10

the question is is that that these are one of the

11

biggest users of parks and why we have to include

12

this as part of any type of development. I think

13

it's darn right selfish.

14

MR. MAEHARA: You know, I give you two reasons why we

15

oppose this proposal and I thank you for reminding

16

me of another reason. And I was remiss in not

17

raising this earlier. This proposed hotel would be

18

completely within the SMA district, within the

19

Special Management Area and would be subject to the

20

SMA rules and regulations. And in that regard,

21

there will be some type of probable activity type

22

restrictions on this hotel. But let me point out

23

also that in the Makena Resort we've already made

24

public beach access available not just to the resort

25

users and the residents of the resort, but to all
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Maui residents and visitors from all over the world.

2

We've provided three public beach accesses. We

3

don't have any further beach frontage area that is

4

not already developed and most of it for public

5

beach access. You're right, the visitors use the

6

beaches and we have provided these public beach

7

accesses. There will be one right in front of this

8

proposed hotel district. And as I said, we don't

9

have any other beach frontage for further beach

10
11

access development.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah, Mr. Chairman. And I can

12

tell you the reason why, Eric, it's even become more

13

of a problem for us because of how we planned in the

14

past, which means that, good or bad, all these

15

hotels have located themselves in front of these

16

beautiful sandy beaches. And you might have paid an

17

arm and a leg to buy this piece of property, but as

18

soon as you do this, as soon as you do this also,

19

you create amongst local people, you hardly see 'em

20

go down. And I don't mean to differentiate, but

21

I've got to in this situation. You don't see local

22

people go down to Kaanapali nowadays too much to go

23

on that beach anymore. Number one, there's no --

24

there's no public parking. You may say you've

25

created the access, but there's no parking. And
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1

sometimes if there's no parking, then you gotta pay

2

to park because you gotta go into a hotel. In the

3

Makena area, the same thing. You've located

4

yourself in this beautiful, wonderful beach whether

5

we use it for fishing, which is hard accessible, or

6

to use it to go swimming or picnicking or whatever,

7

but local residents are being locked out. And

8

because of this, we gotta even go use taxpayers'

9

money to go buy places at Palauea or wherever to

10

create more accesses and beach for the local people.

11

So what you're doing is you're gonna create another

12

hotel in that area, and I tell you something, once

13

that hotel comes up in that area and you get all

14

these two hotels sharing that sandy beach, you're

15

not gonna find local people going over there. You

16

going to lock us out. And, I'm sorry, it's high

17

time that -- We try to take care the visitor, but,

18

you know what, the people that now live in Maui

19

County are going to also have a voice I think in

20

this Council to represent their needs. And, you

21

know, if the language that we use is going to be

22

when we develop an ordinance that you will have to

23

divvy up, then I don't think that is any way or form

24

discrimination.

25

MR. MAEHARA: I don't want to debate you, Wayne.
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2

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And can you please explain
discrimination.

3

MR. MAEHARA: Wayne, yeah, I don't wanna debate you.

4

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I think local people get

5

discriminated.

6

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. One at a time.

7

MR. MAEHARA: I don't want to debate with you, but I

8

object to you putting this in a local versus visitor

9

context. I spend a lot of time down in Makena. I

10

spend a lot of time on those beaches. For one

11

thing, I've never seen any of our three parking lots

12

full of cars, not once. And another thing, I see a

13

lot of local people just like me at those beach

14

accesses, all three of 'em. So I really take

15

offense at your remarks right now.

16

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: You know why? Because one thing

17

is that I know what has happened to Honolulu and

18

Waikiki when I grew up as a little boy --

19

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Mr. Chair.

20

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I see the population --

21

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Point of order, Mr. Chair. Point of

22

order. We're not getting anything accomplished by

23

going back and forth between my colleague and this

24

person.

25

CHAIR ARAKAWA: We're not going to be doing this long.
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COUNCILMEMBER KANE: So if we can like stop already and if

2

we can start moving on with relevant discussion and

3

let's move, but -- you know what I mean?

4

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Mr. Chairman.

5

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: We've been here 12 hours and now we

6

stay arguing. We -- Mr. Nishiki and Mr. Maehara are

7

up here debating about locals and -- and visitors.

8

Come on, let's move. I'm getting tired already,

9

okay.

10

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Nishiki, finish your --

11

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Come on.

12

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah, if I may. And I think that

13

when we look at having to take care of these two

14

areas, that we need to get -- whether it be beach

15

parks or parks away from these hotels that are

16

developed in front of prime beaches, people need to

17

pay. Government cannot continuously pay to

18

accommodate both sides of this community, whether it

19

be the visitor or someone that lives here. And I

20

see constantly the necessity when you look at the

21

Kamaoles or whatever as we develop.

22

Maui's population is going to grow. You all

23

stated that there's no way that we're going to stop

24

development. You've all stated that you want to see

25

your kids and future kids come back to live on Maui.
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1

And if this is the mentality, then parks are part of

2

the infrastructure. And I think that the direction

3

that we're headed for to creating this

4

infrastructure is a sound one.

5

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Nishiki.

6

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you.

7

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Councilmember Tavares, you want to

8

comment on the --

9

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, I just wanna comment, you

10

know, that I'll be the last person to be speaking

11

against more parks, but I feel that this is not the

12

appropriate place for it. If we're gonna look at

13

hotel development triggering park assessment, it

14

should be in the ordinance, in the park assessment

15

ordinance and not a condition on a particular

16

project. I'd also like to remind everyone that if

17

they're building out 1,300 units, the park

18

assessment is gonna be around 14 acres for the

19

project if it's at 1,300 units based on that,

20

residential units, not counting the hotel. So I

21

don't know what the figure is for the build-out

22

right now, the final one. I heard 1,300. I heard

23

1,600, 1,700. So whatever it is, I think there'll

24

be good-sized parks. And if the Parks Director is

25

going to be -- and I think he will represent the
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County well, if it's him that's in office at the

2

time, knowing what the concerns are about parks,

3

that those 14 acres or where the combination of

4

those 14 acres are, should be to meet the needs of

5

our community as well as the residents and visitors

6

to that particular development. So I won't support

7

it at this time.

8

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Councilmember Carroll.

9

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you, Ms. Tavares, for saying

10

most of what I wanted to say. I also won't be

11

supporting this. This is not the place to do it.

12

If the Council members feel strongly that this

13

should be something that we need to do and address,

14

have it come before the Parks Committee like any

15

another item. And I will note that the park

16

assessment does not come on -- will not be coming

17

along for a long time. It's going to be quite

18

awhile before that happens. If they feel strongly

19

about it, there is time to do something about it. I

20

definitely won't be supporting this now. I would

21

support further discussion in committee. Thank you.

22

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Councilmember Johnson.

23

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I understand the concerns

24

expressed, but I also believe that at this point in

25

time wording could be inserted so that the park
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1

assessment formula that we would develop would be

2

applicable to these, you know, hotel, timeshare or

3

apartments that would be proposed and subject to

4

Council approval. And the reason why I'm saying

5

subject to Council approval is in the ordinance we

6

may not make everything subject to Council approval.

7

We'll probably use the current process. And by

8

inserting wording of this particular nature, at

9

least we would, as a Council, be able to see what

10
11

was proposed at the point in time when that occurs.
The reason that there's no other hotels in

12

that area that have this kind of, you know,

13

assessment is because it was not -- it wouldn't

14

apply to existing hotels. And the reason I'm very

15

adamant about at least putting in language that has

16

it -- has it coming back to the Council would be

17

because it is so important. I see the Kaanapali

18

Ocean Resort right now, I mean, their park

19

assessment, which is actually tied to South Beach

20

Mauka, a totally different project, is still not

21

completed after all these years behind the West Maui

22

Youth Center or behind the Boys and Girls Club now.

23

And I can guarantee you, Kahikili(?) Park, it's

24

a tiny little park right next to that resort. It's

25

gonna be crowded with people. I just know it.
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So I agree with Mr. Nishiki. I -- I just see

2

this as an issue and I know that other Council

3

members feel differently, but I would at least like

4

to insert wording so that if and when a bill is

5

developed that addresses the hotel and the timeshare

6

and the apartment buildings, that it come back to

7

the Council so that we could review it and make sure

8

it's reflective of what we want rather than giving

9

away, once again -- and I know Mr. Carroll doesn't

10

agree with me, but giving away our responsibility to

11

people other than ourselves. We're the ones that

12

are elected. We're the ones that have to answer to

13

the public, nobody else.

14

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Johnson, if you're going to

15

make a motion, I need the verbiage. So I would ask

16

if you're gonna make a motion, can you come up with

17

the language.

18

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I'll make a motion and I'll try to

19

word it in such a way that -- Okay. I'll say that

20

the condition reads that the park assessment formula

21

if developed will apply to this applicant on hotel,

22

timeshare or apartment projects subject to Council

23

approval.

24

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Second.

25

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. It's been moved and seconded.
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Discussion? Councilmember Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. And I'll say that I will

3

constantly fight for the citizens of Maui County and

4

visitors alike. Not everybody's gonna be able to

5

stay at a hotel on the oceanfront. There are people

6

that visit that are going to have to stay in other

7

areas as they come, whether it be away from the

8

ocean or whatever. And everyone, whether we're

9

locals or visitors, should have the ability and

10

should not be treated as second class citizens. I

11

see this happening to those of us that live here.

12

We become -- less and less have the ability to get

13

to fishing areas, sandy beaches or whatever. And I

14

think that this ordinance will address, perhaps, the

15

ability for us to -- equal the ability for us to

16

either purchase park land near the ocean so that we

17

can go and do our traditional -- and have our

18

traditional access to the ocean. So this is putting

19

those of us that live here on an equal level with

20

those that have the ability to stay in an oceanfront

21

hotel and enjoy those amenities. Thank you.

22

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Mr. Chair.

23

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Councilmember Kane.

24

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Yeah. I'm looking at this map and

25

are we talking about an oceanfront hotel? I mean,
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from what I see, this is not an oceanfront hotel

2

we're talking about. This hotel is above the road,

3

not below the road on the makai side, huh? Where is

4

it? So we can get clear information because right

5

now this whole time we've been representing

6

beachfront property, beachfront hotel.

7

CHAIR ARAKAWA: You see the brown --

8

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Yeah.

9

CHAIR ARAKAWA: The brown spot where the marker is?

10

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Yeah. Yeah, so verify because I'm

11

sitting closer and I see something that's not on the

12

beach, and yet I'm hearing all this it's on the

13

beach and we're kind of going on and on about

14

beachfront property.

15
16

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Kane, again, the motion
that's on the floor --

17

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Yeah. I'm just commenting to the

18

comments that are being made, yeah, and it's not

19

accurate information and yet, you know, this is on

20

TV and the whole public is listening and it's being

21

misrepresented about what's on the floor. So let's

22

just -- let's get accurate over here. Come on.

23
24
25

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. What is on the floor does not
pertain to a specific beach park -COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Geez. Come on, Wayne.
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CHAIR ARAKAWA: -- but, rather, it's an accessibility for

2

the Council to be able to control and have a say on

3

how this is going to be done.

4

Okay. Further discussion?

5

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Call for the question.

6

CHAIR ARAKAWA: If not --

7

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Discussion.

8

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Nishiki.

9

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. I just wanna get clear for

10

the record because I'm familiar with the area there

11

and where the proposed hotels are to be --

12

CHAIR ARAKAWA: I actually go to the park there, Wayne.

13

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. And one hotel is right

14

adjacent to the Makena Prince and it's fronting the

15

old Alanui Hotel. Thank you so much. And then

16

you've got public parking in that area and -- and

17

those people that are adjacent to the Makena Prince

18

are able to walk right through Oneloa(?) Beach. The

19

other one farther to the Makena side of the beach

20

parking, what is fronting that area is a golf -- the

21

golf course.

22

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Nishiki, again, what is the

23

proposed -- the proposal on the floor does not have

24

anything to do with the location --

25

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay.
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CHAIR ARAKAWA: -- beach side or otherwise.

2

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No. Someone just questioned it,

3

so I just wanted to really say some clarity.

4
5

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Again -- I corrected Councilmember Kane as
well.

6

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah.

7

CHAIR ARAKAWA: This has nothing to do with whether the

8

hotel is located on the beach side or not. Okay.

9

So --

10

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: But anyway --

11

CHAIR ARAKAWA: -- if you want to discuss the topic

12

itself, that's one thing.

13

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I'm done, thank you.

14

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Any further discussion? If not,

15

all in favor say aye.

16

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Aye.

17

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: No.

18

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.

19

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Roll call.

20

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Roll call. Councilmember Kane.

21

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: No.

22

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Carroll.

23

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: No.

24

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Hokama.

25

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Aye.
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CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Johnson.

2

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Aye.

3

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Molina.

4

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.

5

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Nishiki.

6

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Aye.

7

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Tavares.

8

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: No.

9

CHAIR ARAKAWA: The Chair votes no. Motion is defeated.

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17

VOTE: AYES:

Councilmember Hokama, Johnson, and
Nishiki.
NOES:
Councilmember Carroll, Kane, Molina,
Tavares, and Chair Arakawa.
ABSTAIN:
None.
None.
ABSENT:
Councilmember Kawano.
EXC.:
ACTION: MOTION DEFEATED.

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Are there any other amendments?
Councilmember Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes. Yes, thank you, Mr. Chair.

18

I'm sorry I had to leave your meeting for awhile

19

this afternoon. I have two concerns, two major

20

ones, and they're still the same two major ones that

21

we've had all along, and that's water and

22

transportation. And I'll do the transportation one

23

first. As Chair of the Planning Committee, you

24

know, it's really hard to sit here and listen to a

25

community plan, as flawed as it is, be completely

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

451

LU 10/29/01

1

ignored. And I'm learning so much from these

2

experiences here that I hope that the next community

3

plan review that we go through we'll be writing

4

things very specifically so that there is -- the

5

clear intent is codified. Because giving guidelines

6

and making general statements about intent and

7

direction doesn't work. We're finding that out as

8

we try to apply what's happening with the community

9

plan.

10

I cannot in good conscience support a project

11

that is against what's in a community plan or the

12

timing of it. It's not against it, but the timing

13

of it is against it. And I would like to still draw

14

your attention to the fact that under transportation

15

in "b." it says undertake transportation system

16

improvements concurrently with planned growth in the

17

Kihei-Makena region. Require adequate highway

18

capacity including the widening of Piilani and

19

Mokulele Highway to four lanes prior to the

20

construction of major projects south of Kilohana or

21

mauka of Piilani Highway. Now we're in a debate as

22

what is major and what isn't, and this is a guide,

23

and so what is the intention and all of this? You

24

know, I think we can all say we know what the

25

intention was and that was to have infrastructure at
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least concurrent with development. I know we had

2

big, long discussions about this during the

3

Kihei-Makena plan, as some of us were here to

4

discuss that.

5

What I would like to throw open for

6

discussion right now is a proposal that we tie some

7

of the build-out of this project to phases to

8

development of the various -- or improvements to the

9

various roadways. And my proposal would be if,

10

depending on how this discussion goes, that 25

11

percent of the build-out of the units, which based

12

on 1,300 units would be 325 units, would be

13

concurrent with the temporary widening of Piilani

14

Highway; 50 percent would be tied into the four

15

lanes on Mokulele; 75 percent with Piilani permanent

16

four lanes; and 100-percent build-out with Piilani's

17

extension. And I think that shows concurrence,

18

concurrent development of infrastructure to match

19

the construction of development.

20

I'll throw that out to people. I sure have

21

the feeling that this project is gonna go with or

22

without, but I think that this is reasonable and it

23

does at least meet some of the intent of the

24

community plan which I feel, you know, we need to --

25

we really need to pay some attention to that intent
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in the community plan.

2

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Councilmember Hokama.

3

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you. Chairman, you got --

4

you have that written out so we can all maybe ask

5

staff to make a copy?

6
7
8
9

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Well, kind of that's roughly
written out.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Because I would like to consider it
as well then, Chairman, at the same time throw out

10

because the cur- -- part of the current situation

11

with the road system is the current existing

12

development. And so instead of just looking at what

13

the proposal is by this one developer, I would hope

14

we then would be open to expanding it and also look

15

at assessing those that are already existing that

16

was developed. Because part of the roadway

17

congestion is those that already live there and use

18

the system and they should help pay to relieve the

19

concern and the issue that is brought up by this

20

traffic. 'Cause whether this project goes or not,

21

everybody has made it a point to say that there's a

22

problem. And if this project doesn't go, we still

23

gonna need to fix the problem. And I would hope we

24

would expand it that the existing development --

25

developments would help pay for the solution.
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CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. I don't believe Councilmember

2

Tavares' wording suggests anything that has anything

3

to do with the funding of it, but, rather, the --

4

but, rather, the timing of the construction of it.

5

So if you could read it over again.

6

?: And slower.

7

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Trying to write it.

8

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: And, Chairman, before she does, the

9

reason I throw it out is because maybe the solution

10

to help address what she's proposing may be for us

11

to develop a general ordinance that would apply to

12

all in that specific impacted area or region to

13

provide for the solution.

14

CHAIR ARAKAWA: But, again, while I can understand that,

15

what was being proposed had nothing to do with the

16

funding part of it. So we can -- we can add onto

17

that or improve on that if you want, but the

18

proposal that was put on the floor for discussion

19

did not have that. So if you wanna add that on,

20

that's fine, we can do that for discussion, but what

21

Charmaine was proposing did not have that.

22
23

Okay. Charmaine, if you wanna go through
that or --

24

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah. I'm not sure about how the

25

wording would be, but it would tied into the
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development of 25 percent that would be contingent

2

upon, first 25 percent, the temporary widening of

3

Piilani Highway; the second 25 percent with the

4

widening of Mokulele to four lanes; seventy-five

5

percent or the next 25 percent with Piilani

6

permanently four lanes; and 100 percent with

7

Piilani's extension.

8
9
10

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. What do you mean by Piilani
extension?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I think the extension that goes

11

through from where it ends now into the project,

12

into their project, which I believe would be in

13

their last and final phase of development 'cause

14

that's the upper portion.

15

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. So that's the Mokulele --

16

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: No.

17

CHAIR ARAKAWA: No, excuse me.

18

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Piilani -- I think they call it

19

the Piilani extension.

20

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. That's into the project.

21

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Into the project.

22

CHAIR ARAKAWA: That's what Wayne was trying to put in,

23

that small segment. Okay.

24

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Actually farther than that, huh?

25

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah.
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CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Kane.

2

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: No, I'm just trying to understand, is

3

that one that Cayetano turned down?

4

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Oh, I don't know.

5

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Last year. That's the one, huh?

6

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: David Goode is nodding, so --

7

?: That's the one.

8

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Yeah, but the other question is --

9

that I have regarding what's being proposed is

10

Mokulele or the permanent four lane of Piilani,

11

which one has the State looked at as being completed

12

first? Because I know they talked about Mokulele

13

extensively at the five phases and they taking --

14

I'm not sure how long, David, but the Piilani

15

permanent four lanes, was that before or after --

16

and just to address Ms. Tavares' proposal to see

17

which one would be the one to go first in that

18

50-percent and 75-percent part.

19

MR. GOODE: Mr. Chair, to answer Councilmember Kane's

20

question, the Mokulele four lane would probably come

21

before the permanent four lane of Piilani Highway.

22

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay. So the way it's being

23

proposed, then, would probably be the likely

24

progression?

25

MR. GOODE: Correct.
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COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Yeah. And then -- Final question,

2

Mr. Chair. Then the final -- is there anything on

3

the radar regarding that extension, the Piilani

4

extension, which is the one that I mentioned earlier

5

that Cayetano turned down, that he kicked out at the

6

last -- is that there on the STIP or is it something

7

that's on the radar at all?

8
9

MR. GOODE: Yeah. Yeah. The extension isn't even on the
Maui Long Range Transportation Plan --

10

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Excuse me? I'm sorry.

11

MR. GOODE: It's not -- the extension is not even on the

12

Long Range Transportation Plan, which is probably

13

why the Governor decided not to spend that money.

14

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: But it's gonna be discussed next

15

year, according to the State and as far as the

16

group, yeah, that's coming forward.

17
18

MR. GOODE: Absolutely correct. That's correct. So it
may be inserted at that time.

19

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Chair.

20

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Any other discussion? Councilwoman

21
22

Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I just wanted to find out, did

23

Charmaine make that in the form of a formal motion

24

and was it seconded?

25

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: No, it wasn't (inaudible).
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CHAIR ARAKAWA: No. We're just having discussion now.

2

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.

3

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: You know, also with the

4

discussion, you know, any time during -- I mean,

5

we're talking about years of developing this project

6

and I think the Department of Transportation

7

projections for Mokulele five phases, I think I was

8

calculating it and the best conditions, it would be

9

2011 or 2013 for -- if they went two years per phase

10

or something like that. Anyway, it's a phenomenal

11

amount of time. And if in the -- in between here, I

12

mean, we could stick in another kind of condition

13

that if the level of service turns out, after

14

certain improvements are made, the level of service

15

turns out that it can support the rest of the

16

projects, that the applicant could come back in to

17

change the condition or amend a condition of zoning.

18

But right now without -- you know, without anything,

19

I mean it's like we're just totally ignoring what

20

the community plan has. So, you know, I really

21

would like to some part addressed that would help, I

22

think, the community and would also the developer in

23

that, you know, it would -- it would allow them to

24

go on on a phased-in plan. And I think their

25

phases, they were gonna start with the makai -- or
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yeah -- yeah, the makai side first and then work

2

mauka in the development. So I think that gives

3

them time for that last piece, that Piilani

4

extension, you know, tying it to the last piece

5

makes sense development-wise. It's not like they're

6

starting at the top and working down.

7

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. I would -- I'm a little bit leery

8

about the proposal, Councilmember Tavares. What I

9

would prefer -- and it's getting -- everybody is

10

getting tired -- is maybe a third on Piilani, a

11

third on Mokulele, and a third contingent upon the

12

project -- from the project area to Kahului being at

13

a level "C" or "D" or whatever is recommended in the

14

community plan. So we would have the entire highway

15

have to be at that level for the last third to be

16

complete.

17

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, I would have no objection to

18

that, that's -- if you wanna say it's 33 percent or

19

whatever. It just turned out to be candy to have

20

four phases tied into four highways. It worked out

21

to 325 units per phase to come up with the 1,300,

22

But somewhere, you know, there should be a

23

condition -- you know, a consideration of level of

24

service 'cause I don't think we should be ignoring

25

traffic information and traffic studies.
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CHAIR ARAKAWA: Right. That's why I wanna have the last

2

third dependent on a level of service for the entire

3

stretch because that's really what we're gonna be

4

basing our need on and the community is gonna be

5

looking at whether or not the road service is

6

adequate through that whole area. The actual

7

components of it, how it's constructed, I think

8

Piilani and Mokulele are the two most important and

9

the other one is just general overall.

10
11
12

We had discussion -- we had raised whose
hand? Councilmember Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you, Chair. Some questions

13

for our Corporation Counsel and maybe John over

14

here. Say we pass this, where does it leave us when

15

somebody comes through with a six-unit subdivision

16

or some other small projects? Let's say we okay

17

this 25, 25, 25, where does that leave other

18

projects? I mean, we're setting a precedent here.

19

Does it -- What situation is it gonna leave us in?

20

MR. MINATOYA: Well, you know, I usually advise, for

21

example, when I sit to advise the, the Planning

22

Commission that, you know, they never set

23

precedents. They have to take each project

24

separately and to judge the impact of each project

25

individually based upon, of course, the projects
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that they've just approved and the impacts of the

2

subsequent one. But each project is supposed to be

3

reviewed separately.

4

I do think, however, that as a matter of

5

fairness that, you know, the same standard has to

6

apply or should be applied for any subsequent

7

project in the same area.

8

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: All right. This is my concern: I

9

can see somebody coming to us and saying, eh, wait a

10

minute. How come -- or even this applicant. We've

11

gone over there and we've done this, and that's

12

fine, and we pass it out, and then we let somebody

13

else go down the line. It seems to me that once we

14

do this, we need to be consistent, and that's what I

15

worry about. If we're consistent, where is this

16

consistency going to lead to? Is it gonna affect

17

small subdivisions? Is it gonna affect

18

single-family homes? I mean, how far does it go?

19

MR. MINATOYA: That may be a possibility, but I also --

20

you know, but also part of your consideration is the

21

potential impact of that individual project. And

22

so, you know, theoretically, a six-unit

23

single-family residential project may or may not

24

have as much of an impact as, you know, a 600-acre

25

project. I mean, that's the kind of -- I mean,
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that's your area of jurisdiction. It's your -- it's

2

your -- it's your position to make those

3

determinations. I mean, if you can justify what

4

you're doing and you have a rationale, you know,

5

supporting your decision making, then -- then, you

6

know, that's fine.

7

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: All right. What I'm concerned

8

about is it seems a very gray area over here that

9

we're gonna get into. It's new ground. It's

10

something they didn't do before. And although it

11

sounds good what she proposed on the surface, I

12

don't want to lead us down the road that it's going

13

to really be a burden on who knows who, and that's

14

the problem.

15

MR. MINATOYA: And after 12 1/2 hours I'll give you a real

16

lawyer answer: It may and it may not. It'll

17

depend. It'll depend on the subsequent project,

18

it'll depend upon your decisions on those subsequent

19

projects, the, the decision making of the current

20

applicant -- I mean, there's a whole lot of factors

21

in there.

22
23
24
25

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: And that's my concern. Your
answer is why I'm so concerned. Thank you.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Eric, we're making a proposal and I
think it's only fair that you comment on it.
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MR. MAEHARA: Yes, Mr. Chair. I don't -- I don't have a

2

legal argument with this, but I'm a little hazy with

3

the proposal. Now, if I -- if I understand it

4

right, we get 25 percent of the density upon the

5

completion of the restriping of Piilani, an

6

additional 25 upon the completion of Mokulele. Now,

7

if we just stop there and if we go along with what

8

Ms. Tavares is indicating, we have a density of

9

1,300. So the first 25 will be 320 -- 325 units.

10

Now, we have to wait until Piilani is restriped.

11

Once that's done, then we get 325 units we can get

12

COs for. Now, at our proposed rate of about 75 to

13

100 units a year, hopefully, once we start hitting

14

our production stride, our development stride, we'll

15

get that 325 in three to four years. Now, the next

16

25 is at Mokulele completion, which DOT has

17

indicated was gonna be done in perhaps five phases,

18

optimum two years a phase, I think Ms. Tavares

19

indicated, yeah, perhaps 10 years. So between year

20

3 to 4 when we finish our first 325 and when we get

21

to get certificates of occupancy for our next 25,

22

we've got this seven years -- if I follow your

23

proposal right, we've got seven years of dead time

24

when we're dead in the water until Mokulele is

25

completed. Now, if -- if I understand the proposal
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correctly and if that's what you're proposing, then

2

it's clearly unreasonable to put us on that kind of

3

a restrictive timetable. And I'm only -- I'm only

4

using the numbers and the time frame that have been

5

stated earlier, and it just is very unreasonable.

6

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah. And that, Mr. Chair, is why

7

I talked about the level of service. If Phase I on

8

Mokulele Highway which is supposed -- their

9

completion date is May of 2003, if the level of

10

service is acceptable at that time, then I think,

11

you know, they can come back. But projecting out,

12

it is 2011 before -- before the entire Mokulele

13

Highway is finished. I think the first phase of

14

Mokulele is at the Puunene intersection at Hansen,

15

Hansen Road and Mokulele, which seems to be where

16

the dangerous part is and the hang-ups. The rest of

17

the traffic seems to flow -- even though it's heavy,

18

it seems to flow pretty well through Mokulele. So

19

perhaps, you know, that part could be phased in

20

to -- I mean, it could be tied into the completion

21

of Phase I on Mokulele and, you know, checking the

22

level of service. I suspect the level of service

23

will be fine at that point.

24
25

And then, you know, if we wanna use your -Mr. Chair, your suggestion to do 33 or one-third, I
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think that would be -- that would be all right. If

2

we do one-third on Piilani temporary and one-third

3

on Phase I of Mokulele, which is just that

4

intersection that's -- right now it's slated for

5

completion in 2003. So that I think will put you in

6

a good time frame, time line.

7

MR. MAEHARA: Can we see this on -- on paper? Can we see

8

it in black and white? Or can we have maybe a short

9

recess so we can make sure we understand what's

10
11
12

being proposed?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Or try to negotiate what's being
proposed right now.

13

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes.

14

MR. MAEHARA: Well, perhaps we better recess to negotiate

15

rather than do it on the floor.

16

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Council members? Councilmember Johnson.

17

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Mr. Chair, I can understand, you

18

know, the concerns being expressed, but basically

19

we're talking about infrastructure concurrency

20

that's already in the community plan. Ms. Tavares

21

is not asking for anything that isn't in our

22

community plan. We're ignoring most of the rest of

23

it. At least give us something.

24

And I don't think we have to ask the

25

developer permission to follow our community plan.
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With all due respect, I don't mean to be

2

disrespectful, but I think that the community plan

3

is what it is.

4

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Thank you.

5

Council members, any further discussion?

6

In the one-third, one-third, one-third I

7

think -- I do think we need to respect in some way

8

having some concurrency, because the traffic that is

9

there will affect the community and we need to

10

respect the fact that if traffic gets too bad

11

without this concurrency, it doesn't matter what the

12

development is, but we need to address the highway,

13

the carrying capacity. So that's why I'm trying to

14

do it this way with a level of service.
Councilmember Carroll.

15
16

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: I'd like to take that short

17

recess. I realize it's really late, but I'd like to

18

see it written down, is what I'd like to see.

19

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. I tell you what, ten-minute recess.

20
21

(Gavel.)
RECESS: 9:44 p.m.

22

RECONVENE: 10:04 p.m.

23

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. I'll call the meeting back to

24
25

order.

(Gavel.)
Councilwoman Tavares, you have the floor.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I guess we -- well, talking and

2

stuff, trying to figure out what numbers we're

3

working with and what it looks like. So we throw

4

out for discussion that in recognition of the share

5

they've already paid for the restriping or the

6

temporary improvements to Piilani Highway, that they

7

would be able to develop 100 units. Then it would

8

get phased in according and based on -- would be the

9

balance of 1,200 units, 25 percent tied into the

10

temporary actual completion of the widening of

11

Piilani Highway; 50 percent at the completion of

12

Mokulele Highway Phase I; 75 percent at Mokulele

13

Highway Phase II; and 100 percent at the Piilani

14

extension. Because the Piilani permanent isn't even

15

on the books, and I was verifying that they had said

16

between 2006 and 2020 was the projection for the

17

Piilani Highway permanent.

18

The Mokulele Highway Phase I is that -- maybe

19

I could have David explain what the phases are from

20

Mokulele Highway Phase I and Phase II. I think

21

Phase I and Phase II will take care of the majority

22

of the problem that we see with Mokulele Highway.

23

MR. GOODE: Mr. Chair.

24

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Dave.

25

MR. GOODE: My understanding is that Mokulele Phase I is
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the area on this side from Kuihelani Highway to past

2

the mill to where the -- approximately where the

3

cane haul crossing presently is. Phase II is the

4

intersection with Piilani Highway and North Kihei

5

Road.

6

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. David, Phase I would be from Hansen

7

Road -- just before Hansen Road to where the cane

8

haul crossing is?

9
10

MR. GOODE: Yeah.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Hansen Road is the road that goes off to

11

the left --

12

MR. GOODE: Yeah, yeah.

13

CHAIR ARAKAWA: -- to the post office. There's supposed

14

to be traffic signals --

15

MR. GOODE: Right.

16

CHAIR ARAKAWA: -- signalization there?

17

MR. GOODE: Correct.

18

CHAIR ARAKAWA: That's Phase I.

19

MR. GOODE: Phase II is on the other end, the Piilani

20

Highway, North Kihei Road and Mokulele intersection.

21

It includes the realigning of Piilani, Mokulele.

22

And that has received an SMA permit, so it's -- with

23

the exception of a couple of land acquisition

24

issues, it's essentially ready to go.

25

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay.
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MR. GOODE: That's I and II.

2

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: And all of -- all of this on the

3

25, on the percentage parts, would be an option

4

available for an interim impact fee of $5,000 per

5

unit that we would have to work out, you know, the

6

details as far as an agreement goes, but I think

7

this gives us an opportunity to have some

8

improvements become a reality and that it would be

9

concurrent with construction or the phase-in of the

10
11
12
13
14
15

construction of this project.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: For clarification, you said that there's
an option for $5,000 a unit, so if -COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Uh-huh. As an interim impact fee
that -CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. So if there is -- the project's --

16

the highway is not completed, they can buy that

17

segment of it with the $5,000 per unit, or is this

18

$5,000 a unit for everything anyway?

19

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Right. No, it would be -- it

20

would be an option for the developer to -- if it

21

looks like for some reason any part of the -- you

22

know, the STIP changes or there's, you know, delays

23

or whatever that's out of their control, that they

24

can put in the dollars to help the project along if

25

need be. And that's what these impact fees are for,
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to actually produce a result, that the monies then

2

would be available. So we can't have people coming

3

back to us and saying, well, there's no money to

4

finish this or finish that if they -- these people

5

as well as others are going to be paying this

6

interim fee.

7

And I think that these interim -- that's

8

another discussion, but we're -- you know, I -- This

9

whole thing circulates around fairness, really. And

10

if we're gonna have an impact fee for -- if we're

11

gonna have an interim impact fee, it applies to

12

everyone, not just projects big or medium. If we

13

had these impact fees in place before Haiku started

14

developing the way it developed, we wouldn't have a

15

problem on Hana Highway today. And the cumulative

16

impact of all the small projects is what we're

17

suffering from now, not from big projects 'cause big

18

projects have put in improvements. It's the

19

cumulative impact of smaller developments that have

20

resulted in our condition today of inadequate

21

transportation.

22

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Discussion? Councilmember Carroll.

23

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Okay. I assume that Councilmember

24

Tavares is gonna make this a motion? We don't have

25

a motion on the floor already.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: No. We don't have a motion yet.

2

CHAIR ARAKAWA: We're just having discussion first.

3

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Okay. Yeah. And by the time we

4

have first reading, then we can have in -- we can

5

work out the wording and all the details of this

6

before then.

7

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Right.

8

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Molina.

9

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I just

10

wanted clarification from Councilmember Tavares.

11

For the -- at the 100-percent completion build-out,

12

is there a level service that you wanted to put in

13

these conditions?

14

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: No, I think that by the time --

15

you know, we'll know what it is by then, but I think

16

it's more important to tie it into that Piilani

17

extension which will take it into their project from

18

the end of where Piilani Highway ends right now and

19

it would go into their project. I think it's more

20

motivation for them to complete that portion of it

21

rather than to leave it out and tie it into a level

22

of service.

23

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you.

24

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Councilmember Johnson.

25

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: If by some quirk the impact fee is
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developed and it should happen to be in excess of

2

the $5,000 at the time they're ready to go forward

3

with this, how could that be addressed, you know, to

4

say a minimum of $5,000?

5

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Tavares --

6

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, I think that's --

7

CHAIR ARAKAWA: -- would you consider --

8

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: -- some of the details that need

9

to be worked out.

10

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay.

11

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: But I would think that it's like,

12

you know, good-faith down payment, kind of. And if

13

it's more, that they should pay more. If it's less,

14

then they would be able to credit it to the next

15

phase. If it comes out 4,800, then they could

16

credit their balance to the next phase or get -- you

17

know, it would be kind of ridiculous to get a

18

refund, but at least credit to the balance. I think

19

that detail or those kind of details could be worked

20

out in the agreement.

21

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. So we'll work out it between --

22

work out some of the specifics between now and first

23

reading.

24
25

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: And I don't think that the
developer would interested in, you know, skating out
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on paying a share, the right share, but to put

2

something down that's like called earnest money, you

3

put it down now and then if it changes, you make up

4

the difference if it's more, and you get to use the

5

balance if it's less. I think that's fair.

6

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Councilmember Nishiki.

7

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. For Administration, for --

8

for Public Works Director, are you people interested

9

in getting money from developers to get the

10

infrastructure going?

11

MR. GOODE: Mr. Chair.

12

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Mr. Goode.

13

MR. GOODE: When you say you people and being interested,

14

what do you mean?

15

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Your Administration.

16

MR. GOODE: Okay.

17

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I just don't wanna play games

18
19

anymore. I wanna hear what you have to say.
MR. GOODE: Okay. As I stated earlier, we strive for

20

fairness. And I heard Councilman -- Councilwoman

21

Tavares say fairness. And maybe it has been a

22

former administrator that makes one think in those

23

terms a lot, although I'm not saying Council members

24

don't, but that's what we think about. We wanna be

25

fair because we let everybody in the office, we talk
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to everybody. And if they're doing a kitchen

2

remodel or 500 units, I gotta treat them the same.

3

So we asked based on the law, based on what's on the

4

books, that's what we can charge them. And right

5

now we're developing the impact fee. And depending

6

the development, like I stated earlier, if there's

7

impacts associated with that development that cause

8

impacts of certain areas generally with -- within or

9

near the development, then they gotta mitigate that

10

whether it's adding additional lanes, turning lanes,

11

signalization. And we've done that with developers.

12

So if it's on the books, I think we can do it.

13
14
15

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So what is this voluntary stuff
that you people are still pursuing?
MR. GOODE: The voluntary fee, as I understand it -- What

16

the Mayor's doing is he's recognizing that it's

17

gonna take time to develop the traffic impact fee.

18

Okay. Now, he's recognizing that generally

19

developers of larger projects are willing to pay

20

that because in essence it should take the traffic

21

issue off the table. It's saying, I'm paying my

22

fair share. It -- the issue should be taken off the

23

table. I'm not saying that's the case here, but

24

that's basically the idea, is pay it.

25

I also understand that we don't know what the
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actual amount's going to be. So Councilwoman

2

Tavares is correct. I mean, if it comes in more,

3

they'd have to pay a little bit more. If it comes

4

in less, they should get a rebate.

5

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. I'm not worried about what

6

is correct or not, David. I wanna know with the

7

1,700 units that we know are coming on board, is

8

this Administration doing anything? Are you doing

9

anything to address this, or is it going to be put

10

on the taxpayers to fund roadway improvements or the

11

gamut?

12

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Nishiki, we have a proposal

13

that we're discussing. Okay. This is not going to

14

get us very far if you're trying to grill the

15

Administration as to what their intent is. Let's

16

look at what is on the table for discussion.

17

Concentrate on that because it's getting late.

18

We've all been here for almost 13 hours and I'd like

19

to be able to discuss this amendment and -- if you

20

would concentrate --

21

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: That's -- that's fine. I'm --

22

I'm -- I still have my mental hat on, but I'm

23

wondering as we pursue what is being proposed, what

24

this Administration is actually doing, that's all.

25

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Well, again, Councilwoman Tavares has put
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a proposal on the floor for us to discuss, and part

2

of that discussion has an impact -- an interim

3

impact fee of $5,000.

4

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay.

5

CHAIR ARAKAWA: So concentrate on the discussion.

6

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Then I'd like to see exactly what

7

is going to be improved as we look at the roadway.

8

CHAIR ARAKAWA: If we're looking at the highway --

9

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And we're phasing in the

10

project --

11

CHAIR ARAKAWA: What I --

12

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: -- where do we foresee as in the

13

final view of what's to be done, what's happening to

14

Piilani from Mokulele to Wailea Ike?

15

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilwoman Tavares.

16

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: What is -- what is the picture I

17

see?

18

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Please explain the picture.

19

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah. The picture would be the

20
21
22

temporary widening of Piilani Highway to four lanes.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Bill, could you point that out on the -as we go through this.

23

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: And actually that's to Kilohana.

24

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: That's it?

25

?: Yep.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: That would be --

2

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. Well, how do we know it's

3
4

gonna happen?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: -- at the 25 percent. And then at

5

50 the Mokulele Highway Phase I which would cover

6

that intersection at Hansen Road and Mokulele which

7

seems to be the real sore point, a real dangerous

8

intersection. And that one's completion date is

9

scheduled for May 2003. And Mokulele Phase II,

10

which would be the Piilani and Mokulele

11

intersection, if that follows along two to three

12

years after Phase I, then we're looking at 2004,

13

2006, and that's where 50 percent of their seals

14

would be applied. Oh, no, 75 percent at that point.

15

And then 100 percent would be at the Piilani

16

extension which would be from Wailea Ike into the

17

project.

18

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. You see the --

19

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: And if the State's -- if the State

20

stays with their schedule, that also should be

21

pretty close to the rest of the phases on Mokulele

22

Highway, which is a five-phase project at this

23

point.

24
25

CHAIR ARAKAWA: And the caveat to that was that the
developer would have an option to pay an interim fee
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of $5,000 if the project did not go according to

2

schedule?

3

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes.

4

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Question.

5

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Any further discussion, Wayne, since you

6

have the floor?

7

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I'm just curious that your view --

8

are we banking on the fact that we're going to

9

develop an impact fee and, therefore, taxpayers

10

would not have to bear the burden? Are we banking

11

on the fact that if we -- this motion is made, we'd

12

have to see this project through with its completion

13

and may have to fund the highway with taxpayers'

14

money?

15

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Nishiki, I believe most of

16

these projects, the State Highways, are on the

17

Federal and State and County participation, so this

18

is tax dollars. The $5,000 impact fee would be

19

something that would be assessed to the developer,

20

but most of that highway is on the State Long

21

Term -- well, on the plan. Correct me if I'm wrong,

22

David.

23

MR. GOODE: That's correct.

24

CHAIR ARAKAWA: So, no, we're not getting the entire

25

highway funded with private dollars.
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you.

2

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Councilmember Kane.

3

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: So I was trying to understand the

4

impact fee, the -- I guess we're calling one an

5

interim impact fee?

6

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Interim impact fee.

7

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: In your -- Charmaine, I know you

8

were -- I'm sorry, Mr. Chair. Charmaine, you were

9

saying something about the pro rata share. Is that

10

something separate, or is that -- this 5,000 is

11

being implied toward that pro rat- -- I know when

12

you first opened up, you talked about the pro rata

13

share.

14

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah. I think that it should go

15

toward their pro rata share because that's -- pro

16

rata is supposed to be a fair share, so based on

17

your use or your creation of the impact --

18

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: And that's what we're talking about

19

when we say quantifying something, this is how we're

20

quantifying it?

21

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah. Right.

22

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay. Just for clarification 'cause

23

I was just trying to put what was said together.

24

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Further discussion?

25

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman.
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CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Hokama.

2

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So we would be looking at requiring

3

a bilateral agreement to satisfy this?

4

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Yes.

5

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Because on one hand you're asking a

6

developer to do something, and he is, on the other

7

hand, expecting a result from us.

8

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Right.

9

CHAIR ARAKAWA: So, Councilmember Hokama, I believe the

10

answer is yes. And as soon as we get done with the

11

questioning and we have a formal motion, I'll ask

12

the applicant if they're willing to consider this.

13

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you.

14

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Further discussion? If not,

15
16

Charmaine, the formal motion.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. I'll make a formal motion

17

to offer Condition No. -- that we have Condition No.

18

13, which is to give approval for 100 units in

19

recognition of the contributions already made for

20

the Piilani improvements. Following that there will

21

be an option for either an interim impact fee of

22

$5,000 per unit which shall apply to the pro rata

23

share, or CO for 25 percent of their units upon the

24

completion of the temporary widening of Piilani

25

Highway; 50 percent at the completion of Mokulele
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Highway Phase I; 75 percent at the completion of

2

Mokulele Highway Phase II; 100 percent at the

3

Piilani extension which is Wailea Ike into the

4

project.

5

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Second.

6

CHAIR ARAKAWA: It's been moved and seconded. Moved by

7

Charmaine, seconded by Councilmember Hokama. I'd

8

like to ask the developer -- If you'd come up and

9

you probably wanna bring your lawyer with you.

10

Eric, if you want to consult your client, if that

11

would an acceptable --

12
13

MR. FIGUEIROA: We need -- I need my accountant with me.
No, he's not here. I'm sorry.

14

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Is that acceptable?

15

MR. FIGUEIROA: The condition?

16

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Yes.

17

MR. FIGUEIROA: As I understand it, it would be applied to

18

the pro rata share also, so I believe that we would

19

abide by that.

20
21

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. So you're willing to accept these
conditions? This is for the record.

22

MR. FIGUEIROA: Yes.

23

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Further discussion?

24

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman.

25

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Hokama.
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I would just like to again for the

2

record, as I understand my colleague from

3

Up-country, that this will apply to any size

4

development, small, medium or large, this interim

5

impact fee?

6

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Hokama, as Chair I won't

7

agree to that at this point because I believe that

8

we will have an ordinance coming down for discussion

9

and I really don't know what that ordinance is going

10

to say. And at this point I don't know what the

11

nexus is for the request and what the numbers are

12

going to be. So we may discuss this for every

13

project and --

14

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: The nexus, Chairman, is fairness.

15

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Well, again, I'm willing to discuss this

16

topic on any project that comes down, but I will not

17

commit to the exact same criteria because I don't

18

know what the criteria is really gonna end up. I

19

don't know what the impact is gonna be for the

20

smaller development --

21
22

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Well, I'm stating it for the record
as I understand it, Chairman.

23

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay.

24

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair.

25

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Tavares.
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2

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I'm sorry. If there's somebody
else that wants to speak, that's fine.

3

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Nope.

4

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Now, following up on what Mr.

5

Hokama is saying, I think, you know, I am very

6

adamant about this being assessed everywhere to

7

everyone, whatever, not -- like I said, not just the

8

big projects. And I don't know what the timing will

9

be for this project to come through, but I think we

10

need to determine at what time -- point in time will

11

the assessment be, the interim impact fee be

12

assessed or collected. And that detail I guess

13

would be worked out, but I -- in my mind, I not only

14

think, hope and think that we better have a

15

permanent one before this body before that first

16

permit goes out for this project.

17

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Again, Councilmember Tavares, we are

18

looking at an impact fee coming down, a proposal

19

coming down. I don't -- I do not know at this point

20

what that proposal is going to encompass, what --

21

because I haven't seen it. It hasn't come down yet.

22

So at the time that we pass it, we will establish a

23

fee if we pass it. But until then, I do not know

24

what those conditions are. So we may discuss

25

whatever we want on the projects and we may impose
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conditions as we see fit. Until I actually see the

2

bill that comes down, I'm not gonna agree that that

3

is what we're gonna do unilaterally with every

4

project because if a bill comes down and we decide

5

we don't like what we're doing now, for me to commit

6

as a unilateral for everything would be foolish. So

7

what we pass out I'll agree to, but right now we're

8

sort of guessing. So I do not know what the special

9

considerations might be.

10
11

Okay. Councilmember Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I also agree with you, Mr. Chair.

12

I think that while I can understand uniformity,

13

equal treatment, all things are not equal and

14

they're -- for example, the Homeless Resource Center

15

project is a perfect example. Most of the people

16

ride bicycles, or will be, and a lot of them don't

17

have transportation. So I think that we have to, as

18

Mr. Minatoya said, allow each project to stand on

19

its own merits, pass, fail, do whatever we have to

20

do to get a result that is going to be reflective of

21

the wishes of the community and carry out the

22

community plan.

23

This particular thing, because it contains

24

elements that are specifically related to South

25

Maui, I think that it's very specific to that and I
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think that that's an appropriate fee for that

2

particular area. There may be other fees which

3

would be appropriate to other areas, and I would

4

like to see those addressed.

5

CHAIR ARAKAWA: And again, just for the record, we are

6

talking about a hard number of 1,300 units, correct,

7

Councilwoman Tavares?

8
9
10

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: That's the -- that's the number I
was working with.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: That's the number we're working with. So,

11

Roy, 1,300 is a confirmed number that we're working

12

with? 'Cause if we're doing percentages, I need to

13

have one firm number that we're working with. If

14

1,300 is a number we're working with --

15
16

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I think it's gonna be 1,200, would
be the number.

17

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Twelve hundred?

18

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: For the percentages.

19

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: You wanna take a recess so we can

20

have them provide us with that information instead

21

of us kind of guessing?

22
23
24
25

CHAIR ARAKAWA: No. I'm not gonna take another recess.
I'm just -- it's what we were discussing.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: We could do it at first reading as
we -- if you would like. We don't have to scratch
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our heads now.

2

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Roy, are you prepared to give us a

3

one number, or would you need the time to --

4

MR. FIGUEIROA: Well, I'd like to just respond. I think

5

whatever the number is, we'd still be paying that

6

pro rata share, whatever the exact number is. I

7

don't know if we're trying to arrive at an exact

8

number, but whatever that number is, I think if you

9

wanna -- is that because of the 25 percent --

10

CHAIR ARAKAWA: It's the percentage that I'm concerned

11

about. So if we're looking at 25 percent of a

12

number that we don't know --

13

MR. FIGUEIROA: I see.

14

CHAIR ARAKAWA: -- then we won't be able to establish what

15

that 25 percent should be. If you choose the $5,000

16

pro rata, then it's easy to calculate per unit, but

17

without that and we're doing a percentage, then I

18

think we need to have a number that we're working

19

from.

20

MR. FIGUEIROA: So I'm not really sure what kind of

21

number -- I think so far in our application we said

22

something like 1,200. Is that about right?

23

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Twelve hundred.

24

MR. FIGUEIROA: I don't know if you wanna use that as a

25

number to use in the percentage --
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CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. So we'll use 1,200 --

2

MR. FIGUEIROA: -- and then work from that.

3

CHAIR ARAKAWA: We'll use 1,200 and if you need to adjust

4

it before first reading --

5

MR. FIGUEIROA: Thirteen hundred units.

6

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Thirteen hundred? Okay. 'Cause I thought

7
8

it was 13.
MR. FIGUEIROA: Use that for these purposes now and then

9

see as you work on the language whether that has to

10

be adjusted because I'm not clear on how that would

11

work right now.

12

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Let's say 1,300 for discussion tonight,

13

and between now and first reading, if we pass this,

14

then you may make the adjustment or we will work on

15

the adjustment if necessary.

16
17

Okay. Councilmember Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: I'm just trying to understand how we

18

can just grab numbers from the sky like that. I

19

mean, really, Mr. Chair. That's exactly what we're

20

doing. We're just grabbing a number from the sky

21

and how can we sit here -- I mean, yes, we've been

22

here for "x" number of hours, but does that justify

23

us making that kind of decision? I'm just grabbing

24

a number from the sky for the sake of grabbing that

25

number. I mean, what does 1,300 mean? We've got
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stuff inside here that -- I mean, when we do zoning,

2

is it locked into a very -- to an exact number like

3

that at this point in time, or does that number come

4

to -- come to bear when we actually go for permits

5

and all that -- I mean, I'm just trying to

6

understand.

7

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Councilmember Kane, the only reason

8

that we're looking at a number, and this is what I'm

9

asking the developer 'cause this is a number that

10

they proposed, is because if we are doing a

11

percentage, we're going to assess a percentage units

12

allowable and we don't have a number, how do we --

13

what part of 25 percent -- If you don't know what

14

the total amount is, how you say what is 25 percent?

15

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman.

16

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: So it's -- excuse me, if I may finish

17

prior to you recognizing Mr. Hokama.

18

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Kane.

19

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: So is that kind of like the ends

20

justifying the means or I mean -- I'm just trying to

21

understand now. Okay. You're trying to come up

22

with a number.

23

CHAIR ARAKAWA: I'm trying to use the number the developer

24

came up with. That is what they proposed the number

25

of -- total number of units were going to be. This
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is why we're trying to -- I'm trying to confirm

2

that. It was either 1,200 or 1,300. I remember 13.

3

Councilwoman Tavares was remembering 12. That's why

4

I'm asking the developer, was 12 or 13 the real

5

number.

6

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Doesn't that present a flaw in the 25

7

percent, 50 percent, 75 percent thing? I mean --

8

I'll stop there, Mr. Chair. I --

9
10
11

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: And I see David waving his hand.
Maybe --

12

CHAIR ARAKAWA: David.

13

MR. GOODE: Mr. Chairman, in general when we do agreements

14

like this for Project Districts, we use a unit

15

count. We can certainly develop the unit count

16

between now and first reading. But if, for

17

instance, it may read, you know, the first 100 units

18

recognizing the improvements that are in. Beyond

19

the 101st unit, the first level improvements need to

20

be done, the restriping. Beyond the 401st unit, the

21

Mokulele Phase I, you know. Beyond the 701st, etc.,

22

etc. Because you do need eventually hard numbers

23

because the numbers can float depending on the

24

projects that come in. And that's what we would

25

strived to do. But if this Committee sees fit that
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the proposal as proposed is to move forward, we have

2

enough time between now and first reading to get

3

some -- something down in writing that's

4

administrable.

5

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Any --

6

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: I'm done.

7

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. I have no objection to doing that.

8

I'm just trying to get some relevant number that we

9

can use to relate whatever the 25 percent and the 50

10

percent is. So between now and first reading,

11

that's fine.

12
13

Councilmember Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you, Chairman. You know, I

14

would -- I can support what Charmaine's proposing

15

because she -- I think she worked hard to find a

16

option that is still reasonable. And why I can

17

support the percentage, Chairman, is because we

18

already set limits. We're gonna set limits by

19

density, by categories and acreages. So we know

20

what is the maximum count.

21

Now, I'm hoping that Mr. Goode can set a

22

specific number, which I doubt until you start going

23

on the property and do your engineering so you know

24

what is your net developable land per acre whatever

25

before drainage, roadways and etc., you know.
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You're gonna need -- you're gonna get some

2

subtraction out of that gross acreages. But we have

3

already set density levels, so it cannot exceed the

4

density per acre. I mean, you got -- we got set

5

numbers. Okay. If they only can end up with 100

6

units developable out of that total acreage, they

7

still gotta abide by the density per acre ceiling.

8

So I'm satisfying with the percentages because, no

9

matter what, until they do the actual design

10

engineering and go on site of what can be developed,

11

we're not gonna get that hard number, Chairman.

12

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Well, I can understand your point, but

13

from my perspective when I'm looking at a percentage

14

and the project can evolve over time, as you're

15

saying, the first phase being done 25 percent --

16
17
18

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: And if they're gonna do R-1, R-2,
R-3, they're set at a 2.5 limit per acre.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. But at 25 percent of what? If 25

19

of the maximum allowable or 25 percent of what they

20

actually do, 25 percent of what total pro- -- the

21

total project? That's why I'm looking for a

22

quantification.

23
24
25

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Is what the zoning -- total zoning
acreages they're converting, Chairman.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: But how many units are they actually
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con- -- actually doing? What is 25 percent of

2

the -(Inaudible).

3

?:

4

CHAIR ARAKAWA: If we're using a hard number of 1,200.

5

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I'm using their number.

6

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Yeah, I know. That's why I'm using their

7

number. I'm not making up a number.

8

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Which is based on their density --

9

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Right.

10

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: -- of the different proposals.

11

And that's not a number out of the sky. It was a

12

number that was said -- stated to us. We even

13

changed one density from 10 to 8. So unless there

14

is a little multiplication problem, that should

15

still be in that same -- I don't wanna say ballpark,

16

but in that same number. And I think if we tie it

17

into what is the maximum developable units per acre

18

and it's gonna be given -- if you got 10 acres and

19

your density is two per acre and you can only use

20

five, that means you can put all that stuff at five.

21

It doesn't mean that per acre you have to have the

22

two. The average has to come out per acre,

23

yeah.

24
25

CHAIR ARAKAWA: And, again, since they've proposed 1,200
as the top, you're talking 300 per -- percentage --
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COUNCILMEMBER KANE: See, that's what I mean.

2

CHAIR ARAKAWA: -- then we can just set 300, 600, 900,

3

1,200 rather than a percentage. If that is what

4

their proposal is, they have the hard number, 'cause

5

that's what they discussed with us.

6
7

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I mean, we can put a hard number
in now if you'd like, Mr. Chair.

8

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Yeah.

9

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Well, that's how we do Project

10
11

Districts, we get ceilings categories.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Yeah. And it's up to 300, up to 600, up

12

to 900, up to 1,200. All I'm trying to do is get

13

some definition of the percentage. Okay. Is that

14

okay? And, again, we can work on this between now

15

and first reading.

16
17

Councilmember Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. These units are what, just

18

multi-family?

19

CHAIR ARAKAWA: No.

20

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: What about the hotels? How many

21
22
23

rooms are the hotels being planned for?
CHAIR ARAKAWA: I believe this is total, right? With
everything inside, even the hotel --

24

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: What is the breakdown?

25

CHAIR ARAKAWA: -- or the apartment or timeshare. These
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are the total numbers of units that they were

2

proposing --

3

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: What is the breakdown on from the

4

hotel to multi-family? If -- if you came out with a

5

number, you must have come out with how many hotel

6

rooms are included and how many multi-family. You

7

must have. You got a number, then you gotta know

8

the breakdown. What is it?

9
10

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Roy, would you like to present that?
MR. FIGUEIROA: I think what we started out with, even

11

with the hotel rooms was like 545, and we dropped

12

that. And about 1,000 units multi-family, single

13

family -- what I would like to -- if I can propose

14

something on this, I think what's -- what's happened

15

here is in trying to quantify it, the percentages,

16

and I agree with Mr. Kane's assessment that, you

17

know, you cannot just pick a number out of the air.

18

And we, I think, are basically arriving at about 12

19

or 1,300 units, whichever it is that -- you know,

20

say you choose the 1,200 units, use that as a number

21

and work the percentage and do as Mr. Goode said.

22

We just set the number based on the 1,200 saying

23

that after the first so many units, it'll be this

24

much basing it on the 1,200 as a basis. But, you

25

know, whatever it is that we build first will be
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according to that 1,200. Sort of like using the

2

1,200 as an interim calculation number. We have no

3

objection to doing that.

4

CHAIR ARAKAWA: So the last number may be a balance that

5

would not fit exactly into this. There would be --

6

there would be an adjustment on the last.

7

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: But never answer Wayne's question.

8

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Wayne, you're -- Well, she stated

9
10

how many hotel units?
MR. FIGUEIROA: I think was about -- we said 545 rooms,

11

but we cut that down. The timeshare, we're looking

12

at only 100 to 200 units at the most. Probably

13

closer to 100.

14

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Well, you know, Roy, I think -- I

15

think the question that we're asking is: What is

16

your maximum build out and -- and --

17

MR. FIGUEIROA: I believe -- I believe as we --

18

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: -- and so if we're going to write

19

these things down, then we surely like to know what

20

you're representing. We don't want any speculation

21

on your part.

22

MR. FIGUEIROA: I think that we've been representing it as

23

shown in whatever you have there. I believe it's

24

1,000 -- what's it, 77 units --

25

?: Yeah.
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MR. FIGUEIROA: -- multi-family together with -- I forget,

2

28, maybe, single-family units. And that's

3

according to the zoning. I'm going according to the

4

zoning districts. And 545 hotel rooms, and that's

5

the number that I said has been changed, especially

6

the 545 rooms down to at the most 200.

7

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Anyway, I'd like to see what

8

the -- the acreage is and what they're zoned at and

9

what the hotel is and what we can allow for the

10

amount of units to be built. Because, you know, as

11

has been stated, you know, then you pulled 5,000 as

12

a number that each unit would be assessed at? Was

13

that the --

14

MR. FIGUEIROA: I believe that number has been --

15

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: How did that -- how did you derive

16

that?

17

MR. FIGUEIROA: The $5,000 per unit?

18

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah.

19

MR. FIGUEIROA: That's something that the Administration

20

has mentioned before about 500 -- $5,000 a unit for

21

the --

22

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Voluntary.

23

MR. FIGUEIROA: -- roadway improvements.

24

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Oh. Then I'd like to know how the

25

Administration got that number. Is that some number
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that Administration has used before? What are you

2

basing that as? The cost on what? And how many

3

units do you hope to assess? Because you've got

4

5,000 as the number that Dain said you pulled out of

5

the sky.

6

MR. MIN: Yeah. From what I understand, all the CIP

7

projects, major roadway projects in Kihei were

8

looked at, and I forget what the total was, whether

9

it was about 20, 30 million. And when you apportion

10

that among potential development, it came out to

11

about 5,000 per unit.

12

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So when you looked at your total

13

roadway projects in Kihei, it was gonna cost $20

14

million. Is that what you're representing?

15

MR. MIN: You know, I'm not sure whether it's 20 or 30

16

million, but, you know, it was in that magnitude.

17

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And what would that 20 or $30

18

million cover when you've said roadway projects in

19

Kihei? Did it cover Piilani?

20

MR. MIN: I believe it covered Piilani, at least the

21

widening of Piilani, North-South Collector Road, and

22

there's some other projects, South Kihei road

23

improvements.

24
25

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I guess, Mr. Chairman, I'd like to
see how this Administration pulled out $5,000 from,
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you know, the sky and -- and what it is is only

2

because they've actually done some work, perhaps.

3

And I wanna see what their end number is when they

4

said that they're going to generate 20 to 30 million

5

charging $5,000 per unit. Obviously they've got an

6

amount of units that they see that is going to be

7

built.

8

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Nishiki. Councilmember

9

Nishiki, at the time we create the assessment, we'll

10

go through that. Right now I don't believe what the

11

Director is saying is actually accurate because

12

Mokulele Highway alone is gonna cost 85 million. So

13

if you're saying 20 million and we're looking at all

14

the projects --

15

MR. MIN: Yeah. No, I didn't include Mokulele Highway.

16

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. But I'm looking at this as the

17

assessment for this area -- I would prefer not to

18

have it a guess and we come up with an actual figure

19

that we need to work with. Because when we put in

20

State highways versus County highways, where the

21

funding goes for these assessment is generally to

22

the County. So how it's going to apply directly to

23

the State highways, I'm not sure. Okay.

24

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Well, see, this is it. They

25

obviously have an idea which they're not comfortable
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with in telling us because they probably have not

2

done all their homework, so therefore they say that

3

they're gonna generate $30 million. Our -- we're

4

the policy making. Okay. They can -- they're going

5

to administratively do this, but we're the policy

6

maker. I wanna see what they're going to assess the

7

developers and how much more the taxpayer is gonna

8

have to pay. This is my concern.

9

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Again, Councilmember Nishiki --

10

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: That's the reason why they come

11

out with some preliminary figures and saying that

12

they're gonna generate 20, 30 million. I wanna see

13

what 20, 30 million's gonna do with the roadway

14

improvements that they say are gonna be completed.

15

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Again, Councilmember Nishiki --

16

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay.

17

CHAIR ARAKAWA: -- when we have this discussion, I'd

18

rather do this in a different venue because it's

19

getting very late. And, again, I, too, would like

20

to see how they're going to apply a County

21

assessment to a State highway improvement, so --

22

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Well, it's not only that. I -- I

23

wanna go with the policy, Mr. Chairman, that

24

taxpayers in Maui County are not going to pay any

25

more money, that the developers are gonna bear it.
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But I think that this --

2

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Nishiki.

3

?: We're not.

4

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: -- is fooling me. And that's the

5

reason why I'm not gonna go and vote for something

6

like this based on pulling something in the sky.

7

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Again, we have a proposal that is on the

8

floor. Let's discuss the proposal. Any further

9

discussion on the amendment? If not, all in favor

10

say aye.

11

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Aye.

12

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Aye.

13

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Aye.

14

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Opposed?

15

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.

16

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Motion passes.

17

VOTE: AYES:

18
19
20
21

Councilmember Carroll, Hokama, Johnson,
Kane, Molina, Tavares, and Chair
Arakawa.
NOES:
Councilmember Nishiki.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT:
None.
Councilmember Kawano.
EXC.:
ACTION: APPROVE CONDITION NO. 13.

22

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Charmaine, did you have another amendment?

23

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes, I had another amendment. And

24

it is really getting late and it's really too bad

25

because it's probably the most important part of
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what's going on here, and that has to do with water.

2

And we've been hearing from experts and from

3

non-experts and from wanna-be experts, and even the

4

experts don't agree on the Iao Aquifer and what's

5

happening in water -- with water here. I think

6

we're getting into a very dangerous situation and

7

hopefully in the near future we'll have some better

8

answers. But I wanted to offer Condition No. 14,

9

which would be that the project would provide water

10

other than from the Iao and Waihee Aquifers.

11

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Is there a second?

12

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Second.

13

CHAIR ARAKAWA: I'm just gonna do it as a motion and a

14

second and let's have discussion 'cause it's getting

15

late. Discussion? Okay.

16

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Mr. Chair.

17

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Kane.

18

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Charmaine, you can kind of go into

19

that and what you had in mind, just to understand

20

your thinking on where you're going with that.

21

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Well, I'm really --

22

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: And the only reason I bring that up

23

is because there's some issues regarding, as an

24

example which was brought up in previous discussions

25

about getting water transporting out of the Kula

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

502

LU 10/29/01

1

community plan area to come down there. So I don't

2

know if you're thinking along that lines or if

3

you're thinking -- I'm just trying to understand.

4

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah.

5

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: So if you can broaden, please.

6

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah. And I understand that. And

7

it's really too bad that it's so late, because we

8

really can't get into it. But I'm not thinking

9

about where else it would come from. All I'm

10

focusing on is the information that we've heard

11

regarding the lao Aquifer and that system that

12

serves Central Maui. And, you know, I have -- I

13

have yet to see or hear about a project that has

14

been turned down by the Water Department. I also --

15

I don't -- you know, I'm speaking about fairness,

16

too. Are we in totally the first come, first serve?

17

The guys -- the people who, you know, we're not

18

making allowances for that perhaps we should be

19

making a policy decision that our precious resources

20

should be devoted to the needs of our residents and

21

we're talking -- and that's affordable housing. And

22

that we should do something similar to what we do

23

with wastewater treatment capacity that there's an

24

allocation that's based on type or -- or, you know,

25

commercial, hotel, single family, multi-family,
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whatever. But, you know, right now it's -- it

2

doesn't seem to be that way and I'm -- I'm concerned

3

about our aquifer in Iao and the Waihee system.
To me, water is -- I mean, I know Mr.

4
5

Craddick has said things where there's water all

6

around us, and that is true. It is all around us.

7

It's cost of developing that water that's the issue.

8

That's always the issue. There's lots of water on

9

one side of the island. You wanna bring it over

10

here, that has a cost. If there's water underneath

11

you, you're gonna drill for it, that has a cost.

12

The only water you have is the ocean water, you

13

gotta desalinate, that has a cost. So it's -- you

14

know, there's water, it's what you're willing to pay

15

for it.

16

But I don't -- I'm not comfortable with us

17

taking an -- taking any more water from Iao and

18

Waihee, since we've heard those two aquifers are

19

sort of related. That's -- that's my concern about

20

water. And, you know, the Joint Venture, and I

21

understand this discussion went on earlier, there is

22

no Joint Venture anymore, that's pau. Somebody can

23

correct me if I'm wrong, but that doesn't exist

24

anymore. Time ran out. So we're on a fresh page,

25

so to speak. And unfortunately, but at some point
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in time we have to take a stand about the Iao

2

Aquifer and our water situation on this whole

3

island, critically Iao and Waihee.

4

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Jo Anne.

5

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Now I know why, Charmaine, that

6

when I asked the question I didn't really get an

7

answer when I had asked about the Joint Venture.

8

Anyway, I am concerned in the same way that

9

Councilmember Tavares and others of us are concerned

10

about water. The condition that I put in basically

11

was a little bit different than what Charmaine's

12

doing, but I'll support Charmaine's condition.

13

I think that -- I have a really hard time

14

when I look at the people Up-country who have been

15

waiting on a list for water meters. We have people

16

all over this County who would like to develop and

17

who cannot do that and then they wonder why we get

18

upset with the visitor industry because they get it

19

first. We always take really good care of our

20

visitors, but we don't care in a lot of ways -- and

21

by sending these kinds of messages, it really seems

22

that we don't really care very much about our

23

citizens. And I know that some people don't like to

24

hear that because they'll think that, well, that's

25

not what we're saying, but I really think that
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that's what it's really about. And when the local

2

residents look at us and look at what we're willing

3

to do and the conditions that we're willing to put

4

on so that people can develop for the visitors and

5

then they're not in line, I really think that's a

6

terrible message. It's a terrible message to send

7

because I think that our people deserve something.

8

This happened in the Virgin Islands. I've

9

seen it. And people talk about the loss of aloha

10

spirit. Well, they've turned on the visitor

11

industry because they felt that everything was being

12

done for the visitors and nothing seemed to matter

13

for the local residents. And that was very

14

difficult. So they started treating them a little

15

bit less friendly. They started getting a little

16

bit more, shall we say testy. They didn't smile as

17

much. They saw the visitor industry as depriving

18

them of the things that they believed that they were

19

entitled to. And we're looking at the same kinds of

20

issues here except I've lived it. I've gone through

21

it. I've seen what it is to travel for seven and

22

half miles to take an hour on a tiny little island

23

when the first thing you see when you get into the

24

Virgin Islands, it's beautiful from the air, but the

25

first thing that you smell as you get off the plane
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2

is the stench of sewage. That's hard.
And if we don't ask these questions now and

3

if we aren't responsive to the local people who are

4

really what this is all about -- This is what we're

5

doing, we're serving the local people and our

6

community. The visitors don't live here year-round.

7

I'm not meaning to say that we don't appreciate the

8

visitor industry. That's not my message. But I

9

think that the message that our citizens get is that

10

they're just gonna continue to stand in line and

11

wait and wonder whether or not we're ever gonna

12

consider them and put them first. And I think that

13

this is one way of perhaps doing that and saying

14

that we just at least not gonna damage the one

15

resource that we have left so that at least some of

16

the people that have these homes that have been

17

promised or at least have the development rights to

18

can build their homes and perhaps get water.

19
20

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Any other comment?
The Chair is not gonna support this measure

21

because I believe we do take care of our local

22

people. We do have good sewage treatment plants.

23

We have -- at times we have been giving out water

24

meters to our residents even in the Up-country area.

25

My problem is the way we've been giving it out and
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restricting those people on the waiting list, but we

2

have been giving out meters. The discussion on

3

water, I'm convinced having gone through what we've

4

done that there's about 30 million gallons that is

5

available. We're also looking at about 14 million

6

gallons of surface water. So there will be adequate

7

water in this area.
I do think we're gonna have to have

8
9

discussions about whether or not water from outside

10

of the district can be brought into the district,

11

and that is something that when we talk about water,

12

now we're talking huge numbers. And what should be

13

going to the agriculture industry, what should be

14

going to the general public for housing and basic

15

necessities, that is a priority that was stated

16

today.

17

So at this point without thinking it all the

18

way through and just saying that we're just not

19

gonna do anything from the Iao Aquifer and try and

20

put the whole thing to a standstill, I'm not gonna

21

support that. And I have done extensive studies

22

into this. Our office has taken several months and

23

looked at all of the documentation. So the Chair is

24

fairly comfortable that we do have adequate water

25

and that we can approve this development without
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1

jeopardizing the general community. And if we were

2

to the point where we were possible going to

3

jeopardize it, the community, we have water

4

available from other areas to bring into this

5

district to be able to service our community

6

properly.

7

Any other discussion? If not --

8

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah.

9

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Nishiki.

10

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I'm -- I'm gonna kind of reserve

11

my statements about statements that you just made

12

just because, as you stated earlier, none of us are

13

experts. However, going back to how and who gets

14

water, I think has always been a primary concern of

15

those of us living in Maui. The fact that when you

16

really see who is getting the water, it's those that

17

have the money to buy it, those that have put money

18

in and reserved space. And so when it comes down to

19

those that don't have the money to develop the water

20

sources, as Jo Anne said, they're on a waiting list.

21

You say, oh, I know some that are getting, but have

22

we checked the records to see how long some of our

23

residents have been waiting? Who are the ones that

24

in times of drought have to cut back watering their

25

lawns, irrigating their produce, and again still

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

509

LU 10/29/01

1

waiting in line to get a water meter to build their

2

house that they've waited for for 10, 15 years

3

because this wasn't available.

4

So I'm gonna wait 'til the Water Commission

5

has their meeting, but at the same time I'm gonna

6

support this motion made by Charmaine just because

7

what I know of by independent studies such as USGS,

8

who came and gave us testimony today, I can only say

9

that if there's signs that there's more salt in the

10

water, that the rainfall has lessened, with common

11

sense I can only say that this is an area that I do

12

not feel we can continually take water from until as

13

the State Water Commission and the USGS has stated,

14

more data and more questions need to be got before a

15

good decision is made.

16

So even as I discuss this project today, I

17

feel very uncomfortable in thinking that all the

18

water is gonna come from the Iao Aquifer to address

19

the needs of Kihei, not to mention what the needs of

20

Wailuku and Kahului and the people that wanna build

21

there, how we're going to address their needs, also.

22

So I'm going to support this motion.

23

CHAIR ARAKAWA: And at the same time, as a commentary,

24

I'll welcome when we have the discussion of using

25

water from different regions for -- bringing it in
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from different regions, if we're gonna make it a

2

requirement that we not use it from -- water from

3

this region, then we have to allow something to be

4

done. And the discussion will be very interesting

5

to see whether or not we're willing to bring water

6

in from other regions to allow sufficient water to

7

be available. That's where I'm coming.

8
9

Any other discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Mr. Chair.

10

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Kane.

11

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: On one hand the motion on the floor

12

is talking about having the developer find another

13

source of water, which sounds to me like a private

14

development of a water source, but on the other

15

hand, with one of colleagues supporting the motion

16

has made the point of people who have the money to

17

develop the water are some -- somehow being

18

treated -- or they're getting preferential treatment

19

because they have the water. So I'm kind of

20

confused because it seems like both sides are on one

21

side of the motion in their -- in their arguments or

22

in their presentation of their argument.

23

It seems like people who have the money to

24

develop the water don't get all the water. I think

25

they have to go and they provide additional waters
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to the system that will benefit people who otherwise

2

don't have enough water or people who don't have the

3

water. So which is it? I mean, which -- which

4

argument is the one that I should be listening to?

5

I don't know if Ellen can add some comment.

6

I don't know. She's been here for -- you know, she

7

talked for five minutes and here she is at five

8

after 11. Maybe she is the person that we should

9

ask some comments about regarding this.

10
11
12

CHAIR ARAKAWA: If you have a question, please ask her.
Ellen.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Yeah. There's a proposal on the

13

floor for alternative water source. Is -- Do you

14

see a likely area of water development outside of

15

Waihee and Iao that the Water Department is pursuing

16

in the next -- well, I don't know, see, because

17

this -- there hasn't been any specific timetable

18

that's been presented. Is it before the first

19

occupant moves in that they have to provide this

20

water, new water source, or have to go for water

21

someplace else? So it just comes back to what the

22

Water Department is doing, Ellen, as far as besides

23

Iao and besides Waihee. I know you brought in

24

Waikapu, which is the 1 million gallon, but I think

25

that was there to offset the concentration of
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pumping going on in Iao.

2

MS. KRAFTSOW: I guess I have a few comments to make.

3

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you.

4

MS. KRAFTSOW: The first is that, you know, when you buy

5

an airplane ticket and the ticket expires, you may

6

not be entitled the flight at the same rate, but

7

you're still entitled to something for your dollar.

8

So it's true that the CMJV has expired, however, it

9

is not -- has not been clearly laid out to us that

10

frees us of any obligation to provide water. There

11

is still debate over what needs to be provided and

12

so on. So -- And I -- It's out of my hands, out of

13

the Director's hands, out of the board's hands.

14

So I can't comment on how much is still

15

required, but I can comment on based on the initial

16

agreement, Makena has used the least portion -- or

17

Seibu Makena has used the least portion of their

18

allotment and is actually one of the only partners

19

that would've been substantially below. At that

20

time we would have been provided -- required to

21

provide water up to the agreement regardless of

22

where we had to get it, assuming that they had given

23

us the water and we've had the use of it for that

24

long. So the question of whether and to what extent

25

we would even require them to provide water is one
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that I can't really address because I'm not involved

2

in the CMJV final negotiations or lawsuit or -- but

3

there may be some obligation to them outstanding.

4

Other than that, yes, water is at a

5

first-come-first-serve basis and even in this case

6

it would be -- the presumption would be that they

7

had developed all or some of the water. As far as

8

other areas for exploration and development outside

9

of Iao and Waihee, yes, very much so. The East Maui

10

Development Plan, which as you know is on hold, I

11

guess they've been working on updating that EIS for

12

many years. And the possible purchase of the ditch

13

over there which would also be a non-groundwater

14

source. So, yes, there are other efforts ongoing

15

and any one of those could be brought to bear.

16

And, also, I don't know, perhaps Roy can give

17

more information about -- I'm not sure what the

18

status is of potential plans in Kamaole Aquifer

19

itself. So there are other issues, there are other

20

places to get water. I don't know that -- because I

21

don't know what the state of the CMJV is -- And I'm

22

sorry, if maybe George or Dave were here maybe they

23

could give you a better answer. I don't know that

24

we can necessarily require the entire amount to be

25

developed by them outside the aquifer. I don't
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whether or not that would be a conflict with what

2

we're already committed to give them.

3

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Mr. Chair.

4

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Yes, Councilman Kane.

5

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: What is the boundary line for the

6

Kihei-Makena Community Plan area with regards to

7

Kamaole Aquifer? And how -- and how -- in other

8

words, or maybe Roy can help in this, development of

9

water on site or someplace close by that still falls

10

within -- you know, so we don't have to deal with

11

that transporting out of one area into this

12

particular area. Has there any -- been any

13

discussion? Or I don't know if Roy, Mr. Chair, with

14

no objections from the body, if he's willing to come

15

up and address that particular question.

16

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Kane, if -- we did pass out

17

those colored maps depicting all of the different

18

aquifer areas. So if you look in your binder,

19

you'll be able to see where that Kamaole area is.

20

And I actually believe the Kamaole area is -- if

21

you're looking in that particular area, Makena is in

22

that area, but it's in a different community plan

23

district. So while it's in the aquifer, it's in a

24

different community plan district. So when we do

25

the -- the decision making based on community plan
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district, the Kamaole area where the water would be

2

available would be in the Kula district, but in

3

actuality it's in the Kamaole Weir -- Kamaole

4

Aquifer area. So if you're looking at -- And you

5

can see the community plan districts, Bill. These

6

are the community plan districts that are up here.

7

So you see the Kihei-Makena area is that --

8

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Long strip.

9

CHAIR ARAKAWA: -- long strip right along the coastline.

10

And that -- that lighter area is the Kula --

11

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Mr. Chair, let me ask a question to

12

Bill, then, since we have that graphic on there.

13

How high is the elevation for the Kihei-Makena

14

Community Plan area? How high in elevation does it

15

go?

16
17
18

MR. MEDEIROS: Okay, let me check. I'll have to bring
the -- that data in.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: And the reason I'm just -- I'm

19

getting into this, Mr. Chair, is because I agree

20

with Ms. Tavares that this is probably one of the

21

most important questions that we gotta deal with.

22

And it's unfortunate that we're here at 11:10 at

23

night to talk about this, but I'm not willing to

24

vote yes or no on something as important as this

25

without trying to explore all the information before
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making the decision.

2

CHAIR ARAKAWA: By all means ask your questions.

3

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: But I apologize for inconveniencing

4

anybody in this room who I know doesn't wanna be

5

here right now 'cause I agree with 'em. I don't

6

wanna be here, either. What is that, 20 those?

7

MR. MEDEIROS: Fifty.

8

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Fifty footers.

9

MR. MEDEIROS: So about 600-foot elevation right along

10
11
12

this line right here.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Mr. Chair, if -- can I ask Mr.
Figueiroa to come up?

13

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Sure.

14

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Since this is -- I think the

15

amendment request is gonna impact them. Mr.

16

Figueiroa, has your company had any discussions

17

whatsoever on private water or water development

18

within the Kihei-Makena planned area or I don't know

19

if it's even on property, or do you folks have any

20

capacity to take care of something like that or

21

consider something like that?

22

MR. FIGUEIROA: No, we do not. We have not undertaken

23

discussions with any other property owner even of

24

drilling wells. I know that that has been

25

attributed to us at times, but it's really another
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developer that has done that. On our own property,

2

our own brackish wells are between 600 to 800 parts

3

per million as far as salinity. And when we tried

4

to find water on higher levels of ground, we didn't

5

get much better results as far as doing some

6

testing.

7
8
9
10

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: How high does your folks' property
line go on the mauka side, Mr. Figueiroa?
MR. FIGUEIROA: I believe we go up to about a 1,200-foot
elevation and --

11

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: And -- No, go ahead. I'm sorry.

12

MR. FIGUEIROA: And that property is the -- including the

13

property we acquired last, which is about almost 800

14

acres which is still in Ag. And the community plan

15

only goes up to about --

16

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Six hundred.

17

MR. FIGUEIROA: -- 600, I think.

18

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: And you folks have -- Your brackish

19

water wells, at how high is the elevation of those

20

wells, the highest well?

21

MR. FIGUEIROA: All of ours are about 235-foot elevation,

22

250-foot elevation. We did try to test all the way

23

up to like, say, 700, 800, but the initial survey

24

didn't show that it would get any better -- much

25

better results.
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COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay. I'll yield the floor if

2

anybody else wants to ask anything along that line.

3

Again, I'm just trying to explore the options

4

considering that we're being requested to consider a

5

vote on outside of Iao and outside of Waihee.

6

CHAIR ARAKAWA: That's a very good question and --

7

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: I'm just trying to stay within -- you

8

know, so we don't have to deal with transmission

9

and, you know, getting it out of somebody else's

10

community plan area, just trying to exercise those

11

options. And if Ellen has comments, Mr. Chair, if

12

we can indulge her comments, please.

13

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Ellen, you have any comments?

14

MS. KRAFTSOW: Well, I just more have a question. I

15

understand, of course, why outside of Iao. I'm just

16

trying to understand why outside of Waihee?

17

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Well, I think the statement was

18

made earlier that even though there's not a direct

19

connection between those two aquifers, they are

20

somehow related. And the way that you relieve the

21

pressure off of Iao Aquifer is to do pumping

22

elsewhere. And then I know we heard that whole

23

story about the pumps being too close together, but

24

I thought that we were receiving warnings about both

25

aquifers, Iao and Waihee, and that's why I included
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2

both of them.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Is that the correct understanding,

3

Mr. Chair, that there are warning signs for the

4

Waihee Aquifer as well? And I see Ellen shaking her

5

head no, so maybe --

6

CHAIR ARAKAWA: I'll let Ellen explain that.

7

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: -- if we can get some comment on

8
9

that.
MS. KRAFTSOW: I feel like one of those non-experts or

10

wanna-be experts, but I'll try. The Waihee Aquifer,

11

of which so far all of our wells until Maluhia

12

basically have only been in the southern portion,

13

has a sustainable yield of 8 million gallons per

14

day. And as you've seen with Iao, those numbers can

15

be shaky. There are -- there is some connection

16

between them, but, if you recall, Steve also

17

mentioned that the permeability between them is low.

18

And you should remember that when those yield

19

numbers are developed, the -- there are water budget

20

development in all of the rainfall and recharge and

21

inputs that go into the water budget are developed

22

in those separate areas, so that is additional

23

rainfall and recharge that falls in those separate

24

areas. The fact that there is interplay between the

25

two doesn't mean that the total input into the
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system is less. It may be that the total system

2

availability is less. And there are a lot of

3

questions about the sustainable yield numbers you've

4

heard at length, but right now there -- the Waihee

5

Aquifer is still -- we're still well within the

6

sustainable yield pumpage of that. And even though

7

within a few years we would need to be moving on,

8

there's the East Maui Project, too. I mean, I

9

just -- right now the Waihee Aquifer doesn't seem to

10

be at risk in the same way that Iao is, and so I

11

guess I don't -- I don't -- I think we need to be

12

cautious with the whole area and we need to be

13

cautious, for that matter, with the groundwater

14

everywhere, but I don't see that the Waihee Aquifer

15

is in trouble right now. I don't think that anyone

16

was necessarily suggesting that today.

17

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah. If I can clarify my thing.

18

I think what I'm thinking of, and nobody say said

19

it, maybe, but if we reduce our pumping or our

20

extraction from Iao, we would have to make it up in

21

Waihee, which has about a sustainable yield of 8

22

million, 8 million gallons per day, and the current

23

pumping I believe is around 3.9 or 4 million. So

24

it's about half of what the sustainable yield is

25

supposedly is. But if we're gonna relieve more from
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Iao and there's -- you know, there's numbers from as

2

low as 14 or 14.7 was at your meeting --

3

MS. KRAFTSOW: Yeah, (inaudible).

4

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Well, anyway, it's -- you know, I

5

know that the resource -- you know, the Commission

6

says 20 million gallons per day. They're going to

7

meet, I guess, on the 14th of November and we might

8

have some time to look at, you know, those kind

9

of -- what happens to that. But I'm just saying

10

that Waihee was gonna be the reliever for Iao, so I

11

didn't think that we should touch Waihee, either.

12

It's not that somebody said that Waihee was in

13

danger.

14

MS. KRAFTSOW: Right. Well --

15

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: It's only pumped at half.

16

MS. KRAFTSOW: I mean, it's reasonable except I -- Okay.

17

First of all, about that 14 number, I'm gonna have

18

to watch that tape again, but I don't think Bill was

19

actually saying that the sustainable yield was 14.

20

I think he was saying that depending upon on how you

21

calculate it, and he gave a whole series of ways to

22

calculate it. But specifically what was 14 is

23

Mink's report gives if the initial head is this,

24

then you can take that percent of the initial head

25

at the equilibrium head, and if the -- if it's that,
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then you can take the other percent. And when it

2

got to over 26 feet of initial head, the ratio that

3

he gave was about 50 percent. So he estimated the

4

initial head of Iao at 28, and half of that is 14

5

would be the equilibrium head except the equilibrium

6

head. And he estimated that 20 million gallons a

7

day was what you could take and still maintain that

8

equilibrium head.

9

And then Bill, what Bill did was take a

10

series of calculations and see -- if the head, there

11

were other estimates of head and if the head had

12

been really this, well, then sustainable yield would

13

be that and so on. My recollection of what he was

14

saying is that you started to see adverse impacts in

15

the transmission zone even down around the 17 point

16

something and that probably he thought sustainable

17

yield was around 17. That was just Bill Meyer's(?)

18

Opinion now, that wasn't everybody's opinion.

19

And I -- I don't presume to that level of

20

expertise, so I'm not gonna go there, but that's

21

what I recall from that. And, again, I would have

22

to watch those tapes, too. As far as the -- I guess

23

this is an area where I'm feeling particularly

24

nonplused because the CMJV question is out there.

25

One of the partners may have actually exceeded their
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allocations, so it may be that part of what needs to

2

be given to the remaining people who would be owed

3

money, if any, is still -- or owed water, if any

4

were still owed, might have to come partially come

5

from the partner who had already sort of possibly

6

exceeded. And whether anything is still owed or not

7

is still a not -- a not completely clear answer,

8

so -- But if something were owed, then I don't know

9

how we could require the developer -- you know, what

10

we typically is if we know that their allocation or

11

that we are arguing that their allocation is

12

exceeded, we typically say so. If we don't know,

13

then we say if you're owed, you would have to

14

develop adequate source to meet your project other

15

than whatever is remaining in your allocation.

16

That's the best that I can say about that.

17

And if you wanted to move it outside of

18

Waihee, I guess the only thing would be that the

19

time constraints will be affected by a) the pace of

20

the lawsuit with East Maui and b) the pace of any

21

negotiations for the ditch on the West Maui side,

22

which I don't know how the developer would respond

23

to. Sorry.

24

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: It's okay.

25

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Any further questions for Ellen?
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If not, Ellen, may I ask you a question? It

1
2

just occurred to me. When the developer gets the

3

water, do they still pay for a meter cost and do

4

they pay for the water itself? Do they pay a water

5

fee?

6

MS. KRAFTSOW: Yeah. The water -- the water system

7

development fee includes source storage and

8

transmission. And when they have developed source

9

or transmission or whatever, they get a credit back.

10

And typically the water system development fee does

11

not -- it's an equity buy-in and it doesn't cover

12

development over a certain size. Just because

13

development over a certain size tends to expedite

14

the pace with which you have to do CIP and so it can

15

increase your costs. And so typically when

16

somebody's developing over about 100 to 120,000

17

gallons, we say in the letters that they may be

18

required to develop source, and then that's further

19

evaluated when they actually go to build.

20

CHAIR ARAKAWA: So all of that -- what they put in is

21

actually payment that the average person who is

22

applying for a meter, you would pay for a meter and

23

you would pay for, for water --

24

MS. KRAFTSOW: Uh-huh.

25

CHAIR ARAKAWA: And the developers are essentially paying
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that for the development of water. They're paying a

2

little bit more for the infrastructure upfront. Is

3

that how that works?

4

MS. KRAFTSOW: Um --

5

CHAIR ARAKAWA: And then they get some of it back because

6
7

of the accelerated rate?
MS. KRAFTSOW: Yeah, the -- I mean, the presumption is

8

that it's -- they're developing water for their

9

projects. So whether you're paying a fee or whether

10

you're doing a development, you're developing water

11

for your projects.

12

CHAIR ARAKAWA: So the cost is still there very similar --

13

MS. KRAFTSOW: Yeah.

14

CHAIR ARAKAWA: -- in the calculation. So they're not

15

getting water for free. They are paying for the --

16

they are paying for the water in the water

17

development?

18
19

MS KRAFTSOW: No, I -- Yeah, I don't think anyone's -Yeah. Yes.

20

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay.

21

MS. KRAFTSOW: They're not getting water for free.

22

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Any further questions?

23

Councilmember Johnson.

24

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: In the costs, Ellen, of the water

25

that they are getting, and let's say they're paying
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so much per 1,000 gallons, whatever it is, is it

2

presumed that within that cost there's sufficient I

3

guess leeway for them to actually help to pay for

4

the maintenance of the infrastructure in order to

5

get the water?

6

MS. KRAFTSOW: Right. Well, these are two separate

7

issues. They're -- they're not -- it's not that

8

they're not getting -- it's not that they're not --

9

They're not getting water for free because they

10

developed the water and they paid to develop the

11

water. Of course they -- back when they paid to

12

develop the water, it was a lot cheaper to develop

13

the water and -- But if you're talking about the

14

water system development fee, that also is actually

15

not adequate to pay for any new infrastructure.

16

What that was designed on was at the time there were

17

no fees island-wide and it was an equity buy-in to

18

the existing system based on equivalent capacities

19

based on meter size.

20

And it is actually not adequate for any new

21

source that we need to develop and we just -- it was

22

made lower because a political reality that we could

23

never get a fee that represented our true cost in on

24

one shot. And right now, as you know, we're going

25

for an increase to that fee because it is so
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inadequate. But in terms of how they would've paid

2

for it, that would be because they developed their

3

source. And how much source they would have credit

4

for, if any, is still an outstanding question which

5

I'm -- I just don't know the answer to about the

6

CMJV.

7

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. I -- I'm just trying to

8

understand if Maui County residents, all of us

9

through our taxes and through our State revenues

10

also that come in to help support our water system,

11

if we're all helping to pay for the infrastructure

12

and the maintenance of that infrastructure, or if as

13

a result of the original contribution made under

14

that Central Maui Joint Water Venture if they ended

15

up paying for infrastructure cost, too, as part of

16

that whole system. And so if the initial

17

contribution was just for drilling the wells and

18

putting in additional equipment, that's one thing,

19

but if we've been supporting that all the way along,

20

I just wanna make sure that, you know, I know who's

21

paying for what.

22

MS. KRAFTSOW: Okay. The water system development fee is

23

an -- is designed to cover the cost of expansion.

24

And the rates and revenues, the water rates, those

25

were supposed to cover maintenance. Okay. So
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anyone who is using water, anyone who pays their

2

water system development fee or develops source is

3

supposedly paying for the upfront capital to expand

4

the system, supposedly, although it doesn't really

5

cover. And anyone who is paying their rates is

6

supposedly paying for maintenance and operation of

7

the system, which PS also doesn't really cover.

8

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you.

9

CHAIR ARAKAWA: And, Ellen, that's proportional to the

10
11

amount of water they use? Thank you.
Any further discussion? If not, we have a

12

motion on the floor. All those -- Everybody ready?

13

And everybody understands the motion? Okay. All

14

those in favor say aye.

15

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Aye.

16

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Aye.

17

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Aye.

18

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Opposed?

19

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: No.

20

CHAIR ARAKAWA: No.

21

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: No.

22

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Roll call.

23

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Roll call. Councilmember Kane.

24

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: No.

25

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Carroll.
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COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: No.

2

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Hokama.

3

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: No.

4

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Johnson.

5

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Aye.

6

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Molina.

7

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Aye.

8

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Nishiki.

9

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Aye.

529

10

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Tavares.

11

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Aye.

12

CHAIR ARAKAWA: The Chair votes no. Four, four. Correct?

13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21

Okay. So the motion does not pass.
VOTE: AYES:

Councilmember Johnson, Molina, Nishiki,
and Tavares.
NOES:
Councilmember Carroll, Hokama, Kane, and
Chair Arakawa.
ABSTAIN:
None.
ABSENT:
None.
EXC.:
Councilmember Kawano.
ACTION: MOTION DEFEATED.

CHAIR ARAKAWA: And do we have any other conditions that
we want to impose? Councilmember Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair, not a condition that I

22

wanna propose now, but I would like to reserve any

23

further conditions for a later time maybe based on

24

some information that might come out of the November

25

14th meeting.

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

530

LU 10/29/01

1

CHAIR ARAKAWA: And that's perfectly okay and we do have

2

that opportunity. We have a motion on the floor and

3

we have conditions to that motion, so now we move

4

onto the main motion as amended. Councilmember

5

Nishiki.

6

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah, Mr. Chairman, I wanna amend

7

to also include the 22 conditions that were imposed

8

upon the developer by the State Land Use

9

Commission --

10
11
12

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Wayne, use your mike. We cannot hear
you.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Oh, I'm sorry. I wanna also

13

include the -- as amendment the 22 conditions. And

14

I think the developer said that one of the 22 was

15

amended, to include that amendment. And I guess be

16

repetitious so that these conditions cannot be

17

altered unless they come back to the County Council.

18

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Is there a second?

19

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Second.

20

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Seconded by --

21

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I'll second.

22

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Tavares. Discussion?

23

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Just the fact that we were told by

24

our County attorney that this was a way to make sure

25

that if any of these 22 conditions imposed by the
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Land Use Commission want to be changed, this would

2

be a way that the developer would have to come

3

through the Council to make these changes.

4

Otherwise, as we've seen in a couple of situations,

5

these conditions have been altered despite the fact

6

that we probably thought that they would run with

7

the zoning throughout --

8

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay.

9

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: -- and not be able for the

10

developer to go to the State Land Use Commission.

11

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Any further discussion? If not,

12

all in favor say aye.

13

COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.

14

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Opposed? Motion carried.

15

VOTE: AYES:

19

Councilmember Carroll, Hokama, Johnson,
Kane, Molina, Nishiki, Tavares, and
Chair Arakawa.
None.
NOES:
None.
ABSTAIN:
None.
ABSENT:
Councilmember Kawano.
EXC.:
ACTION: APPROVE CONDITION TO INCLUDE THE 22 CONDITIONS
IMPOSED BY THE STATE LAND USE COMMISSION (LUC).

20

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Any other amendments before we get

16
17
18

21

to the main motion as amended? If not, we have a

22

motion on the floor. Discussion? Councilmember

23

Johnson.

24

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: To the main motion, Mr. Chair.

25

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Johnson has the floor --
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COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Oh, I'm sorry.

2

CHAIR ARAKAWA: -- to the main motion as amended.

3

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No. I just wanted to reiterate

4

that I -- you know, obviously I'll be voting against

5

the main motion. I was pleased with some of the

6

amendments that Council members did try to add into

7

it. Fundamentally I don't have anything against

8

this developer. I think he's had a very good track

9

record. I think that he has entitled himself or,

10

you know, the -- with his good track record at least

11

in this community. He's certainly proven and I

12

guess with all the testifiers that he's been

13

supportive of the community or that the developer

14

has in general been supportive of the community.

15

I somehow do not think, though, that this is

16

gonna satisfy a lot of the people who are charging

17

us with the responsibility for trying to at least

18

chart a course of where we're going. And I'll

19

reiterate it once again, we need to know where we

20

are, we need to know where we're suppose to be in

21

terms of the community plan, and we need to know

22

that once this development comes on line as well as

23

all the others, where we're going to be. And I just

24

simply would like to know where this journey is

25

going to end 'cause generally when you begin a trip,
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you have a map with some idea of where you're going

2

and how much fuel you need, what resources you need

3

along the way so that you can reach the end of that

4

journey. And I don't see that we have that

5

direction and I don't believe that we should react

6

to a developer simply because that is where they

7

would like to go, and I will be voting no.

8

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Further discussion?

9

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Mr. Chair.

10

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Kane.

11

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: I think what we have before us

12

primarily is to bring into consistency the majority

13

of what's being requested, and that's being brought

14

into compliance with what the community plan is. So

15

although some of my colleagues feel that this is not

16

a plan, this is, in fact, trying to comply with the

17

very plan that was created for this region. There

18

are some net gains and those are the things that we

19

had the discussions on. And I think in the end it

20

seems like, Mr. Chair, that there's a majority of us

21

that feel that, in fact, we do have a plan, although

22

it's not a perfect plan. It's a plan that most of

23

us feel confident that we can move forward and try

24

to do the best that we can with the information that

25

we have.

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

534

LU 10/29/01

1

I don't think that it's a responsible move

2

for us to expect to have all answers to all things

3

prior to making any motions -- movement forward in

4

our journey, I guess, through the growth of our

5

island. And I think it would be irresponsible for

6

us to just stop dead in the water until we have all

7

answers to all issues. And I think that's what's

8

being represented somewhat, and I don't feel that

9

would be a fair representation.

10

I think the reality is that we don't have all

11

the answers and the reality is that we were elected

12

as not as experts in all fields, but we were elected

13

as people to represent other people. And I think

14

there's a lot of -- there's a lot of people out

15

there who will respect the decision that we're

16

making tonight and hopefully it'll carry through to

17

first and second reading. And if there's

18

adjustments that need to be made that are relevant

19

to the better quality of life that we're gonna get,

20

then so be it.

21

And I for one will be very supportive of some

22

comments that Ms. Tavares made regarding the

23

meeting, and Mr. Nishiki and others have made about

24

the meeting on November 14th. And if there's gonna

25

be some relevance to the information that is learned
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there that we can apply to this particular decision,

2

If there -- if it is deemed relevant, then I for one

3

would be very open to that. But I think we're

4

making a decision overall that is very important for

5

all of us.

6

You know, I'm not ashamed of the decision I'm

7

making. And although we've been characterized at

8

different points throughout the day as stupid, as

9

irresponsible, and other derogatory comments that

10

have made that is -- that has made me feel as if I'm

11

not as good as somebody or I'm not as smart as

12

somebody, I will readily admit I didn't come here

13

and ask for this job with the expectations that

14

people felt that I was an expert in all these

15

things. I'm trying to do the best that I can, Mr.

16

Chair, and make the decision the best way I know how

17

and trying to analyze whatever information that we

18

can gather.

19

And, Mr. Chair, I commend you for -- although

20

it's taken a long time, we have a lot of information

21

that -- that we have. And, you know, if this body

22

is gonna be characterized as stupid or irresponsible

23

or just incompetent or, you know, I -- lacking

24

integrity, I mean, all the negative things that were

25

brought out and then in the end saying, oh, but
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don't take it personal, it's pretty difficult being,

2

you know, a fellow human being to my colleagues

3

here. I'm trying my best and I'm gonna go home and

4

I'm gonna sleep good tonight because -- not because

5

we've been here for 14 hours, but I'm gonna go home

6

and sleep tonight because I feel good about the

7

decision that I'm making and that I gotta look at

8

myself in the mirror every morning I make a

9

decision.

10

I don't agree with everything that's in this,

11

but, you know what, it's the best I can do to make a

12

compromise that I feel is fair enough for all of us

13

to live with -- well, maybe not all of us, but most

14

of us that can live with this decision. So I

15

apologize for being long-winded, I know it's late,

16

but we've gone through a lot. And again I will say

17

that I think that the water issue, hopefully one of

18

us or some of us or all of us can come to find out

19

any more information prior to the end of this and

20

our role in it. That we can apply something that's

21

fair for the -- for the person, the applicant and

22

what's gonna be fair for all of us. So thank you,

23

Mr. Chair, for allowing me to speak.

24
25

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Any other comments? Councilmember
Tavares.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, thank you. It's been a long

2

and hard little role we're taking, and I sure hope

3

we come to a decision tonight because I do not want

4

a deferral on this item. The developer needs to

5

know where we stand, the community needs to know

6

where we stand. And I think it's been a long

7

process because, you know, we've wanted information

8

in order to make a good decision. Maybe not a

9

perfect decision, but a good one.

10

Each of us brings to this arena, you know,

11

our own ways and our own personalities and our own

12

concerns. And some of us maybe are -- express it a

13

little more differently and more passionately than

14

others do.

15

For myself personally, I'm still disappointed

16

that we haven't addressed what I think the community

17

plan wanted us to address. Somewhere we're gonna

18

have to take a stand and I sure hate to think that

19

it's gonna take us writing the next community plan

20

first in such a way that there's very little

21

interpretation. This plan was done in -- when was

22

that? -- 1998, so 2008 is supposedly is the next

23

time it's reviewed. We cannot pick and choose what

24

we wanna apply from the community plans. If

25

something isn't right in one of these community
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plans, we need to amend the community plan and make

2

it right. We can't just ignore things that are

3

there just saying, oh, it doesn't apply to this or

4

it doesn't apply to that.

5

I like the Makena folks. They all know that,

6

their employees know that -- in fact, your employees

7

had a lot of class after the last meeting. A number

8

of them spoke with me after the meeting and were

9

very cordial even though I had voiced my concerns

10

about the project. I think this is -- like I said

11

before, this is what we want a developer to be when

12

they come to us.

13

The time is just awful as far as I'm

14

concerned, and I'm gonna be consistent and vote

15

against the project. You know, I wish we could

16

easily solve our problems, but we can't. We're

17

gonna just really have to put our heads together and

18

work together to solve some of our problems. So

19

perhaps by the time, you know, the second phase of

20

this development or maybe even the first phase of

21

the development comes up or it comes to fruition,

22

that we will have solved the transportation and the

23

water situation prior to that and everything will be

24

a whole lot more palatable to the folks, especially

25

the ones who live in Kihei.
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I just want my last dying swan song here is

1
2

that whatever it is that we do, we should do it

3

fairly. It should be applied across the board as

4

much as possible. And I'm not talking about

5

applying the same principle or the same impacts to

6

things as divergent as a resort development compared

7

to a Public/Quasi Public use. I don't think that's

8

the kind of fairness we're talking about. I just

9

think we're talking about fairness within sizes of

10

different projects and that it's just because this

11

happens to be so obvious, it gets the most

12

attention. So I'm looking forward to us working

13

something out where we are fair and people will

14

know, everyone will know that we are applying things

15

fairly.

16

I can't tell you how upset I am when I hear

17

that, oh, 'cause somebody got money, they got this;

18

because somebody knew somebody, they got that. That

19

part really upsets me. The person that I, you know,

20

least like should have the same right to the

21

whatever it is as the person who's my best friend.

22

That's just how it should be. And hopefully we can

23

work toward that even though it's a pie in the sky

24

scene.

25

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Any other comments? Okay --
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah.

2

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Nishiki.

3

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you. I just have to read

4

the Kihei Community Plan and give my reasons why I

5

would be voting against this. On the inside cover

6

it says the Kihei Community Plan -- Makena Plan was

7

adopted by Ordinance 2641 and it became effective on

8

March 6, 1998. And we know that this ordinance has

9

the force and effect of law. When I look at some of

10

the objectives of the land use, I see where by

11

moving in this direction not having adequate

12

infrastructure I see there is a violation of this

13

community plan.

14

Now, when I look at 19.510.040, which takes

15

into consideration change in zoning, it says the

16

County Council may grant a change in zoning if all

17

of the following criteria are met: A) the proposed

18

request meets the intent of the general plan and the

19

objectives and policies of the community plans of

20

the County. This is where I see that we are not

21

following the law in passing this. And why I bring

22

this out is it says upon adoption of this plan,

23

allow no further development unless infrastructure,

24

public facilities, and services needed to serve new

25

development are available prior to or concurrent

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

541

LU 10/29/01

1
2

with the impacts of the new development.
When we talk about water development, I

3

believe that, and will probably find out as many of

4

us have stated on November 14th when the Commission

5

meets that I believe that there is inadequate water

6

to service this development.

7

Number two, it talks about infrastructure and

8

in this plan under transportation, undertake

9

transportation system improvements concurrently with

10

planned growth of the Kihei-Makena region. Require

11

adequate interregional highway capacity including

12

the widening of Piilani and Mokulele Highways to

13

four lanes prior to the construction of major

14

projects south of Kilohana Road or mauka of Piilani

15

Highway.

16

If we are saying that we do not understand

17

that language, Mr. Chairman, I think that when

18

reading this, it is so crystal clear to me that this

19

project of 1,050 acres, 1,031 acres is a major

20

project. And what the language is saying is that

21

prior to the construction of the major project of --

22

south of Kilohana Road or mauka of Piilani Highway,

23

that Mok- -- that Piilani needs to be widened to

24

four lanes. Nowhere did we do tonight in passing

25

any legislation that will see Piilani go to four
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2

lanes prior to this major project being constructed.
The other concern that I have is public

3

facilities. And I'm sad to see that the Police

4

Department was not here. And I know that the Police

5

Department has commented --

6

CHAIR ARAKAWA: They were here.

7

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Huh?

8

CHAIR ARAKAWA: They were here.

9

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah, I know. Many times that

10

already with what we have now they are having a

11

problem with providing adequate police protection to

12

this community of ours.

13

And finally, again, under "d" it talks about

14

limit hotel uses to those areas presently planned

15

for hotel use and limit hotel development until

16

adequate public facilities and services are

17

established to meet existing needs. Again, we are

18

now planning for two more hotels. Again, I believe

19

not enough water and what the community plan talks

20

about in construction of major projects south of

21

Kilohana Road that Piilani Highway be widened. And

22

I just want to let the community know that I just

23

feel personally that these two areas, Piilani going

24

into four lanes throughout the development all the

25

way to -- well, south of Kilohana Road was one area
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that we did not effectuate. The other, again, is

2

without being repetitive, I feel that there is not

3

enough water to service the existing zoning that we

4

have given out to some of the SMA projects totaling

5

1,700 units, not to mention some of the build-out in

6

Kahului/Wailuku area.

7

I guess as Charmaine has stated, you know, we

8

work hard to pass law like this only to see us

9

violate the intent of this law. And I guess the

10

biggest thrust that I was hoping that this Council

11

would rally around in working with this

12

Administration was to somehow get the developers

13

that want to come in this area and develop the

14

Kihei-Makena area to, again, pay their fair share.

15

And I would hope that in this committee report if

16

that is the way in which we as elected officials

17

want to see the infrastructure develop, that we

18

would take a strong position in directing this

19

Administration to start getting together with all of

20

the development that is now planned for the area

21

1,700 units, and having them pay for the needed

22

highway improvement and road improvements within the

23

Kihei-Makena area.

24

I think to not take action and expect,

25

despite that some of the statements that we've made
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is that do you think that the State's going to pay

2

for it? Not by the hair of my chinney-chin-chin is

3

exactly true that we need to be aggressive in

4

working with this Administration and being more fair

5

to every development that comes through in asking

6

them to pay the entirety of the water development

7

that would needed for this area as well as the

8

highway and road improvements to make so that this

9

community and the ability for those of us that drive

10

and work in this community that we do not put

11

ourselves to stress because of having to wait to

12

drive to our workplace and having to leave half an

13

hour to an hour early to get to the area because of

14

the traffic conditions on the highway.

15

We have read through the State Department of

16

Transportation that Piilani Highway will not be

17

completed until the year 2003. I only hope that as

18

we welcome visitors to this side of the islands that

19

we will not burn this economic engine called tourism

20

out. Because as we've heard in current surveys

21

taken by the Maui Visitors Bureau, the biggest

22

concern that the visitor industry has are visitors

23

that pay millions of dollars to come to this

24

beautiful island, their number one concern is

25

traffic congestion.
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So when we talk about economic impact that

2

can be or may be or perhaps will be created because

3

of the inadequate upgrading of Piilani Highway

4

causing visitors to wait in line driving either to

5

or from this destination will cause them to not

6

come. I think that is an economic impact that we

7

need to really address that we did not do by

8

allowing this project to go through.

9

Again, I just hope that we as a Council will

10

send a strong message to this Administration if we

11

are going to tackle by -- the bull by its horns in

12

saying that we want to say that as a policy you get

13

from the developers all the monies to improve the

14

infrastructure and we don't put the burden of

15

improving the roadway as well as the water system on

16

taxpayers of Maui County. And for this reason, I

17

will be voting against this project. Thank you.

18

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Any other discussion? Jo Anne.

19

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I just wanted to make one final

20

comment. And when we have discussions, we make

21

statements. Each one of us, I think, tries to be as

22

respectful as we possibly can. If we think ideas

23

are not in the best interest of the community, if we

24

think issues should be looked at more closely, if we

25

ask questions because we believe that they should be
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asked and others should perhaps be asking those same

2

questions, I think that what we're doing is we're

3

trying to achieve a goal, and that's representing

4

the community the best possible way that we know

5

how. We don't always agree, but what we don't agree

6

with are perhaps the ideas or the views. It has

7

nothing to do with the person who is expressing his

8

or her opinion. They are entitled to that. And it

9

does not mean because either Mr. Nishiki or myself

10

or anybody else thinks an idea does not have merit

11

or we call it foolish or stupid or whatever that was

12

alleged, when we do that, it's not a reflection on

13

the person who seems to have a different view.
So I do not want people to misconstrue or

14
15

make misstatements about anything that I said on the

16

floor of this Council because it is not directed at

17

a person. I have my opinion, and people may not

18

agree with and people might think my ideas are

19

stupid or foolish or whatever. I don't think

20

offense at that. I do not. And I do not want

21

people to feel that because we criticize ideas, that

22

we don't respect the people that are expressing

23

them.

24
25

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Any further comments? Councilmember
Molina.
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I might as

2

well give my comments as we approach Tuesday.

3

CHAIR ARAKAWA: You've been here 14 hours. You have --

4

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: What the heck, right?

5

CHAIR ARAKAWA: You have the right.

6

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: First of all, thank you for -- I

7

think -- I believe you set a new record for the

8

longest meeting this year, Mr. Chair.

9
10
11
12

CHAIR ARAKAWA: This year for sure.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: All right. Well, it was definitely
over some very worthy issues, for sure.
I feel comfortable with the conditions that

13

this Committee has set with regards to the proposal.

14

The applicant has made an effort to have their units

15

to be built concurrently with the pending

16

improvements to Piilani and Mokulele Highways. And

17

with their track record as a corporate citizen good,

18

I feel comfortable with that. And we all know

19

that -- as I said yesterday or was it today? --

20

there are many -- still many, many hoops for them to

21

jump through. And it took vision many years ago --

22

What is it? -- 25, 26 years ago for the Kihei-Makena

23

area to develop. And I find it ironic that people

24

who both oppose and support this zoning request are

25

at the forefront of this and, you know, they're
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benefiting, both sides are benefiting from what

2

happened, transpired 26 years ago.

3

And I guess for me, you know, I respect my

4

colleagues' comments on this both for and against

5

this rezoning request. My own personal philosophy

6

is I guess if -- I'm trying to look down the road to

7

the bigger picture. I'm very concerned about the

8

economy and the kind of message that we're sending

9

out to the private sector, the private business

10

sector. Do we wanna make Maui a place for future

11

investment and for future generations to obtain

12

sustainable jobs as well as maintain well-planned

13

growth that, you know, I think this Council is

14

taking a step forward to do so. And, for me, that's

15

where I'm coming from as far as supporting this

16

measure that's on the floor, Mr. Chair. I mean,

17

that's all I have to say for now. Thank you.

18

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Any further comments?

19

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I have a comment, Chairman.

20

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Proceed, Councilmember Hokama.

21

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you. You know, it's

22

interesting that we talk about community plans or

23

specific regions, Chairman, and we talk about what

24

the people may or may not want. I thought it was

25

interesting that people who live in the region
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that's being impacted came out to speak for it, for

2

this project. And I think they are aware of what

3

their community plan says and I think they are very

4

much aware of the concerns that people who live in

5

the region and those who live out of the region have

6

brought forward regarding this application.

7

I think, though, that it was interesting that

8

years later, after the South Maui Community Plan was

9

adopted and this request has come forward, that

10

those who live in the greatest impact area of the

11

region, our local people, have come out and spoken

12

up in support of this project. And I think a lot of

13

it has to do with the past history of the applicant.

14

I think they have developed the faith and confidence

15

to fulfill the requirements. And I think that is

16

exactly what a plan does, be allowed the flexibility

17

to adjust to the changing times.

18

I wish everything was static. I'm upset at

19

the applicant. I wish they came in 20 years ago to

20

do their zoning and maybe would've had a better

21

South Maui. Maybe half of South Maui wouldn't be

22

developed and we wouldn't need to have this type of

23

water or traffic concerns 'cause it wouldn't be

24

existing.

25

I think one of the things that we all look at
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besides the specific in your face issues is some of

2

the things that I think Mr. Molina brought up and I

3

think Mr. Lo will be happy to expound later during

4

budget, is how the economist look at the long range

5

future of this County, what is coming on stream as

6

far as valuation and the ability of revenue

7

generation. You know, we may not like it, but it is

8

factors that impact this County on the long-term

9

fiscal financial stability. It is a concern that

10

Mr. Brewbaker, the Bank of Hawaii, as their

11

economist have shared with Mr. Lo and myself that

12

they had -- he had a concern that in the near term

13

it didn't seem that we had future programs coming on

14

line that would generate a certain value that they

15

thought was important in the long-term financing of

16

how we do County programs and projects.

17

I still believe that the concerns that each

18

one of us has raised, whether we agreed or not with

19

each this evening this day or this past day, still

20

has a lot of merit. I think what we need to

21

challenge each other is to accelerate the programs

22

that will mitigate and resolve those concerns.

23

Challenge the Board of Water Supply and the

24

Department, put forward those projects that gonna

25

help bring sufficient water to the areas that need
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the water. Challenge our Public Works Department to

2

look at ways of how we're gonna finance, whether it

3

be impacts fees or other matters. I mean, look at

4

the Federal government, they placed an ADA

5

requirement where now we going back and redo

6

projects to ensure the use of facilities for a

7

certain segment of our community that has physical

8

disability, but whether it be beach access,

9

assessment for infrastructure improvements that they

10

may not have paid for, I don't see a problem of

11

passing a law or considering a law that will assess

12

everybody fairly to mitigate and to expedite

13

projects that will resolve our concerns.

14

I still think we can move forward, Mr.

15

Chairman, and I think this project has maybe helped

16

bring forth the need to mitigate and expedite

17

projects that will resolve our concerns. We talk

18

about it, you know, we go through the whole

19

spectrum: Don't do anything. Stop until we bring

20

up and resolve the concerns. Well, I don't think

21

majority of us have agreed to that end of the

22

spectrum, and neither do we agree on the other hand

23

of the spectrum, which is do everything and not take

24

care of the problems. There is that middle ground.

25

We need to find that compromise solutions. And I

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

552

LU 10/29/01

1

think, if anything, our County has shown that

2

they're willing to ante up to accelerate programs to

3

mitigate the concerns. And I'm looking forward to

4

the discussion and possible solutions that this

5

project has really bring to the front burner. And I

6

think we have the ability to meet the challenge, Mr.

7

Chairman. Thank you.

8
9
10
11
12

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Carroll, you're the only one
that has not spoken up besides the Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you, Chair. I always wanted
to speak after midnight.
I think that this project has merit. I agree

13

with Mr. Molina and the others that have spoken for

14

it. I've already said the reasons that I think we

15

should pass this. I have listened to our people. I

16

have studied this project. I have put in countless

17

hours reading. It's been about two years since I

18

was first involved in it. And I think we are doing

19

the right thing for our people and for our island,

20

and I would call for the question.

21
22

CHAIR ARAKAWA: I think the Chair deserves to have some
comments first.

23

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Proceed.

24

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Thank you very much.

25

This is a project that -- When I was the Chair
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of Planning Committee, we did the Kihei-Makena

2

Community Plan. I took the time, we went and met

3

with every community association in the area. I

4

took the time to meet with the Makena Community

5

Association. We had discussions on every single

6

aspect of this project. And as part of the plan,

7

after all that discussion, this project was put into

8

the community plan. There was consensus that this

9

was a good project. And as part of the planning

10

process in trying to design smart communities, smart

11

growth, looking at all the new-fangled notions that

12

we put to words now, one of the things that we need

13

to do is develop some consistency. When we put

14

together a plan, we need to work the plan. There

15

are other aspects of the plan that need to be

16

developed out, and as time goes on, we're finding

17

those flaws and we're trying to work on those flaws,

18

but the plan in of itself, I believe, was a good

19

plan.

20

Makena Development Company, as all of you

21

have said, from the very incept of starting the

22

hotel industry on Maui and working toward an

23

economic engine that we can -- we won't come to

24

appreciate as our primary financial engine. They

25

started at the very beginning, they put in the money
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for the water development, they have put in wa- --

2

the money for the roadway development.

3

When we say what is fair and we say, well,

4

fair is you stick the developers for all the costs

5

so that the rest of the community doesn't have to

6

pay for it. Is that fair? These people have been

7

from the very beginning contributing to the

8

development of this area. They haven't gone through

9

and overdeveloped it as quickly as possible to make

10

the maximum amount of dollars that were available.

11

When we had the high-end times when we could've sold

12

property -- just put up anything and sell it, this

13

company did not do that. They worked a very careful

14

plan. They took their time. They've gone through

15

every request that we've made of them to this point

16

and they bend over backwards to try and accommodate

17

the community. This is why when I went to the

18

communities -- community associations in the area,

19

they had very good support.

20

As a Land Use Chairman when we try and look

21

at all of the aspects that need to be considered, we

22

need to consider the water, we need to consider the

23

roadway. I've tried to take the time to go through

24

and get as much information for this Committee as

25

possible and to provide that. We provided some of
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the studies that show what needs to be -- what needs

2

to occur for Piilani. We've looked at the water

3

issue and we've presented not one, but many times

4

analysis of the water as has been requested. We've

5

looked at what the needs are in our community.

6

We've looked at what all the projects, all the major

7

projects, Kahului, Wailuku and Kihei to be able to

8

assess the water issue. We didn't go through this

9

haphazard. In all the discussions with all the

10

water experts, if you were listening to what they

11

were saying, we've made an evaluation, they've come

12

out with a proposal that they're working on which

13

clearly shows that we have a sustainable yield that

14

they're fairly comfortable with. The Water

15

Department because we've been pushing them because

16

they know they have concerns have started to spread

17

out their pumps. They've put in the projects that

18

are necessary to start that process to protect the

19

aquifer. The yield that the aquifer has versus the

20

demand, they've actually cut down what we've been

21

taking out when we were over 20 million gallons a

22

day. They've actually cut that volume down by

23

developing other areas. They are currently in the

24

process of trying to develop other water sources.

25

And we as a community are gonna have to need to look
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at some of our policies, analyze what we are doing

2

with water to make sure our community is well taken

3

care of. The numbers that have been put out, 476

4

million gallons a day sustainable yield from

5

underground sources, that does not constitute water

6

that is surface runoff water, what is going -- a lot

7

of what's going into irrigation. We need to really

8

look at those numbers and change policy to make sure

9

that any one aquifer is not overly used and that the

10

water that we have will sustain this population for

11

many, many centuries to come. I don't think there's

12

any question in anybody's mind here that 50 years

13

from now Iao Aquifer will not be adequate if we

14

don't do anything. We need to start looking at some

15

of those things. We need to look at the

16

transportation, build that model out. We have had

17

studies, extensive studies and improvements done in

18

a lot of areas in our community. And a lot of it is

19

because we start to plan it. Working the plan has

20

always been the problem. We've created many plans.

21

In the Kihei-Makena area, this particular project,

22

they are working the plan in the Chair's opinion.

23

And having gone through the countless meetings to

24

discuss every aspect of this community that we're

25

looking at and the impacts on our community, I
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believe we've probably put more time and effort into

2

this one development than many, many others

3

combined. I do not think we are rushing into this.

4

I do not think this is a project that has not been a

5

good friend to this community. Their timing

6

could've been better, but what they have put forth

7

into the community to deserve consideration I think

8

is far and above what most others do. And we need

9

to be very cognizant of the fact that unlike some of

10

the other developments that are going on in this

11

central area, this one developer has put in the

12

time, the effort and the money, the resources to be

13

able to get the entire Kihei community up and going,

14

to be able to take into consideration the

15

transportation over and above other developments

16

that are currently going on that go unquestioned.

17

The smart growth concept that we've been

18

going to all these conventions about and talking

19

about, one of the critical issues is creating a plan

20

and then working the plan. What was pointed out to

21

me by one of our former Mayor is that it's

22

surprising how close to the actual original plan of

23

Kihei, Kihei actually developed. And if you look at

24

the original community plan and you look at the

25

footprint that was put there, we've been working
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that plan quite well.
So the challenge to this Council is gonna be

3

great and each of you in your own respective

4

committees have a lot of things that you need to

5

work on. We need to work on park assessment. We

6

need to work on prioritizing which highways are

7

gonna be created. We need to work on where the

8

human service areas need to be worked, where is

9

senior housing, what are we gonna do for affordable

10

housing. But for this project, in my opinion, we've

11

done probably more work than all the others. So I'm

12

going to support this project, I have since the

13

community plan was adopted. And during that process

14

we put in a lot of work. We did not make a perfect

15

project. No project will allow us or any time in

16

our lives where we can say that we know everything

17

and we're gonna be able to predict everything. From

18

the day we're born, we don't know what's gonna

19

happen in our lives. And there are certain paths

20

that we have to follow and do the best we can to

21

plan for that, the actuation of our lives and what

22

we perceive we need to do in the future, but all of

23

that information will not be available at all times.

24
25

So with that having been said, I think this
is a very good plan. I would like to thank my staff

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

559

LU 10/29/01

1

who put in countless hours and really worked hard to

2

be able to present you all the information. And I

3

know, Yvette, I'm probably closer to my original

4

predication when this was gonna be completed than

5

you'd like, but at this point I think we're ready

6

for the question. Hopefully none of you have areas

7

that you feel we did not try to address even though

8

some of the information is incomplete. Is everybody

9

ready? All those -- all those in favor of the

10

project say aye.

11

COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.

12

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Opposed?

13

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.

14

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: No.

15

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.

16

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Let the record show we have five

17

21

ayes and three noes.
VOTE: AYES:
CouncilmeMber Carroll, Hokama, Kane,
Molina, and Chair Arakawa.
NOES:
Councilmember Johnson, Nishiki and
Tavares.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT:
None.
EXC.:
CouncilmeMber Kawano.
ACTION:
FIRST READING of proposed bill, as revised.

22

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Any further discussion? If not, I'd like

18
19
20

23

to thank all of you for bearing with us this day.

24

We put in probably the longest meeting we've ever

25
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had or I've ever been part of. And tomorrow morning

2

we start bright and early again. So good night,

3

sorry about dinner, and meeting adjourned. (Gavel.)

4

ADJOURNED: 12:14 a.m.

5
6
7
8
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11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

LU 10/29/01

1
2

561

CERTIFICATE
STATE OF HAWAII

)

3

)

4

CITY AND COUNTY OF MAUI )

SS.

5
6

I, Sandra J. Gran, Certified Shorthand

7

Reporter for the State of Hawaii, hereby certify

8

that the proceedings were taken down by me in

9

machine shorthand and was thereafter reduced to

10

typewritten form under my supervision; that the

11

foregoing represents to the best of my ability, a

12

true and correct transcript of the proceedings had

13

in the foregoing matter.

14

I further certify that I am not attorney for

15

any of the parties hereto, nor in any way concerned

16

with the cause.

17
18

DATED this 29th day of December, 2001, in
Maui, Hawaii.

19
20
21
22
23

Sandra J. Gran
Hawaii CSR 424
Notary Public for Hawaii
My Commission Expires: 5/14/04

24
25
RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

